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ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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Commission file number 001-31922

TEMPUR SEALY INTERNATIONAL, INC.
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Delaware 33-1022198
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1000 Tempur Way

Lexington, Kentucky 40511
(Address of registrant’s principal executive offics) (Zip Code)
Registrant’s telephone number, including area code(800) 878-8889
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dfie Act:

Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on Which Registered
Common Stock, $0.01 par value New York Stock Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) tfie Act:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405%edBéturities Act. Ye&l No [
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuiegd to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ort®®ecl5(d) of the Act. Yedd No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant @9 filed all reports required to be filed by Sewctk8 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of4L88rin¢
the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter petiatithe registrant was required to file such reg)pand (2) has been subject to such filing nemeénts fc
the past 90 days. YexI No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ibsnitted electronically and posted on its corpokieb site, if any, every Interactive Data File riegd to bt
submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Régnl&-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such grgperiod that the registrant was require
submit and post such files). YB8 No[I

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiers pursuant to Iltem 405 of RegulatiorKS8229.405 of this chapter) is not contained herand will no
be contained, to the best of registrant’'s knowledtgelefinitive proxy or information statements amporated by reference in Part 11l of this FormK.@r any
amendment to this Form 10-Kl

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant iarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a-axcelerated filer or a smaller reporting comparse
definitions of “large accelerated filer”, “accelezd filer” and “smaller reporting company” in Ruléb-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large Accelerated fileiX] Accelerated filerd0 Non-Accelerated filerd Smaller Reporting Compariy
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantskell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the BExge Act.): Yes[1 No

The aggregate market value of the common equity bglnonaffiliates of the registrant on June 3@, £Computed by reference to the closing pricestat
stock on the New York Stock Exchange on such deds,approximately $3,547,874,167.

The number of shares outstanding of the regissaminmon stock as of February 10, 2015 was 60,92&Hares.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the registrant’s definitive proxy staent for the 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholderkiah is to be filed subsequent to the date heagef,
incorporated by reference into Part Il of this fat0-K.




Table of Contents

PART L.

ITEM 1.

ITEM 1A.

ITEM 1B.

ITEM 2.

ITEM 3.

ITEM 4.

PART II.

ITEM 5.

ITEM 6.

ITEM 7.

ITEM 7A.

ITEM 8.

ITEM 9.

ITEM 9A.

ITEM 9B.

PART III.

ITEM 10.

ITEM 11.

ITEM 12.

ITEM 13.

ITEM 14.

PART IV.

ITEM 15.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Business

Risk Factors

Unresolved Staff Comments
Properties

Legal Proceedings

Mine Safety Disclosures

Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related 8tadder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity i8&xs.
Selected Financial Data

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financ@dition and Results of Operations

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MarRisk

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants @outing and Financial Disclosure

Controls and Procedures

Other Information

Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govaoea

Executive Compensation

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners Mahagement and Related Stockholder Matters
Certain Relationships and Related TransactionsParattor Independence

Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

Signatures

Page

10

23

24

25

27

28

30

30

55

56

114

114

116

117

117

117

117

118

119

123






Table of Contents
Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K (“Report”) includirthe information incorporated by reference hereantains “forwardeoking
statements” within the meaning of Section 27A o ®ecurities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Seesrifict”), and Section 21E of tl
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“EnghaAct”)which includes information concerning one or mofewr plans; objective
goals; strategies and key strategic growth initesj future events; future revenues or performaouae;ability to successfully integrate Se
Corporation into the Comparg/operations and realize cost and revenue syneagsther benefits from the transaction; our gbib realiz
the anticipated benefits from our recent assetodisipns and the acquisition of brand rights int&ier international markets; the impact of
macroeconomic environment in both the U.S. andriatiionally on our business segments; uncertairatiessng from global events; gene
economic, financial and industry conditions, paécly in the retail sector, as well as consumaetficence and the availability of consur
financing; competition in our industry; consumeceggutance of our products; the ability to contindpusiprove and expand our product li
maintain efficient, timely and cosffective production and delivery of products, andnage growth; the ability to expand brand awais
distribution and new products; the efficiency arfteetiveness of our advertising campaigns and otharketing programs; the ability
increase sales productivity within existing retadcounts and to further penetrate the retail cHanneluding the timing of opening
expanding within large retail accounts and therngrand success of product launches; the effeatemdolidation of retailers on revenues
costs; the effects of strategic investments onoparations, including our efforts to expand oumbglomarket share; changing commaodity c«
changes in product and channel mix and the impath® Company's gross margin; initiatives to imgrgvoss margin; our capital structure
increased debt level, including our ability to méeancial obligations and continue to comply wilte terms and financial ratio covenant
our credit facilities; changes in interest ratdsarges in foreign tax rates and changes in tax tpmerally, including the ability to utilize t
loss carry forwards; effects of changes in foreggwhange rates on our reported earnings; the oetaoinpending tax audits or other
proceedings; the effect of future legislative ayuiatory changes; litigation and similar issuesaficial flexibility; our expected sources of ¢
flow; changes in capital expenditures; and ouritgbib effectively manage cash. Many of these statets appear, in particular, under
heading “Management’s Discussion and Analysis ofRcial Condition and Results of Operatioms'TEM 2 of Part | of this report. Wh
used in this report, the words "assumes," "estimatexpects,” “guidance”, “anticipates,” “proposktprojects,” “plans,” “intends,” “believes”
and variations of such words or similar expressiamsintended to identify forward-looking statenserfthese forwardboking statements &
based upon our current expectations and variousrg#®ns. There can be no assurance that we wlizeeour expectations or that our bel
will prove correct.

There are a number of risks and uncertainties toald cause our actual results to differ materidilyn the forwardooking
statements contained in this Report. There are litapofactors, many of which are beyond the Compaagntrol, that could cause our ac
results to differ materially from those expressedaaward-looking statements in this Report, inahgdunder the heading “Risk Factonside
ITEM 1A of Part | of this Report. There may be atli@ctors that may cause our actual results teediffiaterially from the forwartboking
statements.

All forward-looking statements attributable to us apply onlpfthe date of this Report and are expressly fiedlin their entirety b
the cautionary statements included in this Refioetept as may be required by law, we undertakebtigation to publicly update or revise ¢
of the forward-looking statements, whether as altes new information, future events, or otherwise

When used in this Report, except as specificalltediatherwise, the term “Tempur Sealy Internatiorrafers to Tempur Sec

International, Inc. only, and the terms “Compariye,” “our,” “ours” and “us” refer to Tempur Sealy International, Inc. and @ssolidate
subsidiaries. When used in this Report, the tereal\g refers to Sealy Corporation and its histdragbsidiaries.

3
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PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

We are the world's largest bedding provider. Weettgy, manufacture, market, and distribute beddioglycts, which we sell globa
in approximately 100 countries. Our brand portfatioludes many of the most highly recognized brandse industry, including TEMPUR®
Tempur-Pedic®, Sealy®, Sealy Posturepedic®, Optiftynand Stearns & Foster@ur comprehensive suite of bedding products ofé
variety of products to consumers across a broagkerahchannels.

We operate in three business segments: Tempur Mortrica, Tempur International and Sealy. Theseomtaple segments ¢
strategic business units that are managed separ@al Tempur North America segment consists of t&. manufacturing facilities
Virginia and New Mexico and our Tempur North Amaeridistribution subsidiaries. Our Tempur Internagiosegment consists of ¢
manufacturing facility in Denmark, whose customiadude all of our distribution subsidiaries andrdhparty distributors outside our Tem,
North America and Sealy segments. Our Sealy segowersists of compar-owned and operated bedding and manufacturing tiasiliocate
around the world, along with distribution subsidkar joint ventures, and licensees. We evaluatmeagperformance based on net sales
operating income. Financial information about cegraents and geographic areas is included in ltedaRagement's Discussion and Anal
of Financial Condition and Results of Operationsd é@Note 18, Business Segment Information, of thdebldo Consolidated Financ
Statements, included in Part Il, ITEM 8, FinanS#&tements and Supplementary Data, of this Report.

In this Report, we present and discuss our 2014rtaple segments as described above. However tigeganuary 1, 2015, \
realigned our organizational structure. As a regsfithese changes, we will operate in two busiseggnents: North America and Internatio
North America includes results for the U.S. and &kn and International includes results for allsidiaries outside the U.S. and Can
Corporate operating expenses will not be includeeither of the segments and will be presentedraggig as a reconciling item to consolide
results.

In 2014, we acquired the Sealy brand rights fortioental Europe and Japan. Throughout 2014, wedoted a number of Se
products to retailers in certain European markets.also transitioned customer relationships andbédgtegrating operations in Japan.
sales from the Sealy products we have introducdlde®e markets are included in our Tempur Intesnatisegment results.

We sell our products through three distributionrofels in each segment: Retail (furniture and begldetailers, department stol
specialty retailers and warehouse clubs); Direetof@merce platforms, compawywned stores, and call centers); and Other (thardy
distributors, hospitality and healthcare customers)

Our principal executive office is located at 1008mpur Way, Lexington, Kentucky 40511 and our teteghnumber is (800) 878-
8889. Tempur Sealy International, Inc. was incoapext under the laws of the State of Delaware intedeiper 2002. Our Annual Reports
Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Curigaports on Form & and any amendments to such reports filed witfuorished to th
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SE@Uysuant to Sections 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchahge are available free of charge on
website at www.tempursealy.cams soon as reasonably practicable after such seep@telectronically filed with the SEC.

You may read and copy any materials we file with 8EC at the SE€’public reference room at 100 F Street NE, WasbmgDC
20549. The public may obtain information about ¢iperation of the public reference room by callihg SEC at 1-800-SEQ330. The SE
also maintains an internet site that contains tspgrroxy and information statements, and otheormftion regarding issuers that
electronically with the SEC. The website of the SE@ww.sec.gov

Strategy

We believe our future growth potential is signifitan our existing markets and through expansida imew markets. Our goal is
improve the sleep of more people, every nightaalund the world. It is our goal to become the sh@ader in every country we compete in
order to achieve our longrm growth potential while managing the currerdremmic and competitive environment, we will focusiovesting
in our brands, developing consummeferred products, expanding distribution andsstg for highest dealer advocacy and, where appatg
making strategic acquisitions. In addition, we viitus on improving our cost competitiveness todfir investments, expand margins
grow stockholder value.
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Acquisition of Seal

On March 18, 2013, we completed the acquisitio®edly (“Sealy Acquisition”and its subsidiaries, which manufacture and ma
broad range of mattresses and foundations unde8ahly®, Sealy Posturepedic®, Optimum™ and Ste@rRsster®brands. Our acquisitic
of Sealy is more fully described in Note 3, “ Adgjtions and Divestitures in our Consolidated Financial Statements includedart 11, ITENV
8 of this Report.

Our Products

We have a comprehensive offering of products tpaeal to a broad range of consumers, some of warieltovered by one or m
patents and/or patent applications. We also rolytimtroduce new mattress models, launch new prsdaod update our existing matti
products in each of our segments. Our 2015 prouhticiductions include the TEMPURIlex collection, which uses hybrid construction
new proprietary technology that pairs a faseponding TEMPUR material with a support layer enatlinnovative precision coils to delive
unique new TEMPUR feel with more responsive suppidie TEMPURFIlex collection also feature an EasyRefresh™ rerleveover and
cool-to-thetouch SmartClimate™ system. In addition, we updat@dSealy Posturepedic line in 2015, which inctittee Posturepedic Seri
Posturepedic Plus Series and Posturepedic PremyleidHSeries. The new Sealy Posturepedic mattrefesggre encased coils, gel merr
foam and a core support center for unsurpassed aggbort. We also introduced a limited editionlextion of Stearns & Foster mattres
and, internationally, introduced Tempur North, avriged system that will be marketed primarily in fhern European markets. Additiona
we offer a range of comfort products which inclyillows and other accessories.

Bedding

Our bedding product category includes mattresses)dations and adjustable foundations and reprededit.2%of our net sales
2014 . Our Tempur North America and Tempur Intdomati mattresses are composed of proprietary rayér, temperature sensiti
pressure-relieving TEMPUR@naterial that continuously conforms to the bodyd arther technologies. Additionally, our Tempur N
America and Tempur International segments offeesshvfoundations and adjustable foundations. OafySeegment produces mattresses
foundations across a range of technologies, inatudinerspring, latex foam, innerspring/foam hyhaittd visco-elastic “memory foanmanc
sells them directly to customers in North and Soherica. In 2014, our Tempur International segnmeeguired the Sealy brand rights
continental Europe and Japan from Sealy licendeeaddition, Sealy brands are represented by jeémtures and licensees throughout
world.
Other

Our other products include pillows and various ott@mfort products and represented 8.8% of ousalets in 2014 .
Our Channels

We sell our products through three channels: Rd¥aiéct and Other.
Retail

Our Retail channel sells to furniture and bedditgiters, department stores and warehouse clulma@uothers and represent@2l 4%
of net sales in 2014 . Our top five customers actamlifor approximately 34.9% of our net sales Far year ended December 31, 2QWith
one customer in our Tempur North America and Seayments (Mattress Firm) accounting for more tHa6% of our consolidated net sa
The loss of one or more of these customers couwddtieely impact our profitability.

Direct

Our Direct channel sells directly to consumers tigho our e-commerce platforms, compawyred stores, and our call centers
represented 4.3% of net sales in 2014 .

Other
The Other channel sells to third party, health@aré hospitality and represented 3.3% of net sal@9i4. Third party includes sal

to distributors in countries where we do not sdalectly through our own subsidiaries. Healthcareludes sales to hospitals, nursing hol
healthcare professionals and medical retailerspltalty sales include hotels.
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Marketing and Sales

Our overall marketing strategy is to drive consuagemand through the use of effective marketingctviviaries by segment.
Tempur North America

Our Tempur North America segment sells primarilgotigh the Retail channel, which contributed 94684 empur North Americ
segment net sales in 2014 . Throughout the yeareliesl on a series of strategic initiatives, whicbluded: advertising and istore marketin
investments, new product introductions and improsets in how we serve our Retail customers. Duridg4? we introduced a new televis
advertising campaign that featured our new products2015 we plan to drive growth in our Tempur toAmerica segment throu
investments in new products, marketing and othéatives.

Tempur International

Our Tempur International segment sells primarilyotiygh the Retail channel, which contributed 76.4%Tempur Internation
segment net sales in 2014 . Additionally, our Tempternational net sales are impacted by the nurobeompanyewned stores within tl
segment. We believe there is significant opporyuiit drive sales growth in our Tempur Internatiosagment through the expansior
companyewned stores. Our advertising strategy in our Tenhpiernational segment focuses on building bramdraness, which we believe
important to increasing our overall market shaneaddition to Tempur branded product sales, theplermternational segment includes S
branded product sales through Tempur Internatisumasidiaries in Japan and Europe.

Sealy

Our Sealy segment sells primarily through the Retzannel, which contributed 95.9% of Sealy segnmenitsales in 20140ur Seal
segment focuses on providing quality products wiithely-recognized brand names at competitive prices. dhertising strategy for our Se;
segment is largely based on cooperative advertisittgour retailers. However, we have also incrdasational consumer advertising in re
years.

Seasonality

We believe that our sales of products to furnime bedding stores are typically subject to modeasonality inherent in the bedc
industry with sales expected to be generally lomvaghe second and fourth quarters and higher irfiteeand third quarters. Internationally,
are subject to seasonality with European net $aesr in the third quarter as compared to the otherters during the year. In 2014, the tyg
seasonality patterns were affected by significawt product launches in the first and second quarfes a result, we experienced stronger :
in the third and fourth quarters of 2014.

Operations
Manufacturing and DistributionOur products are currently manufactured and digstiei through our global network of facilities.

Suppliersin our Tempur North America and Tempur Internati@egments, we obtain the raw materials used tdym® our pressure-
relieving TEMPUR®material from outside sources. We currently acqohliemicals and proprietary additives for Tempurdpicis from .
number of suppliers with manufacturing locationsuaud the world. We expect to continue these suppéiationships for the foreseea
future. We do not consider ourselves dependent apgrsingle outside vendor as a source of raw madégeior Tempur products and belie
that sufficient alternative sources of supply fbe tsame or similar raw materials are available. ithafthlly, we source a portion of t
manufacturing of our adjustable bed bases and ftionts from third party manufacturers. We do naisider ourselves dependent upon
single outside manufacturer as a source of thesdupts.
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In our Sealy segment, our raw materials consigtabfurethane foam, polyester, polyethylene foam steel innerspring compone
that we purchase from various suppliers. In the. Erffl Canada, we rely upon a single supplier falmcepolyurethane foam components
spring components in our Sealy mattress units. gloesnponents are purchased under a supply agreewenalso purchase a signific
portion of our Sealy foundation parts from thirdrtgasources under supply agreements, which reghia¢ we maintain certain volut
allocations based on a proportional amount of netpurchases. These volume allocations do noesgmt fixed purchase commitments.
are also dependent on a single supplier for theowidastic components and assembly of our Optimusp@tialty product lines. Except for
dependence regarding polyurethane foam, vidastic components and assembly of our Optimum™ialbe product lines, we do not consi
ourselves to be dependent upon any single outstthelor as a source of supply to our bedding busireess we believe that sufficie
alternative sources of supply for the same, sinafaalternative components are available.

During 2014, we decided to withdraw from productimhinnerspring components in the U.S. In conjwrttivith this decision, w
completed the sale of our three U.S. innerspringmment production facilities and related equipnteriteggett & Platt ("L&P"). L&P he
become the exclusive long-term supplier in the @r&l Canada of our wire-based innersprings and/ ®eakprings.

In 2014, our Tempur International segment acquiledSealy brand rights for continental Europe. dnreection with acquiring the
rights, we plan to source the manufacturing ofaierSealy products to an Eastern European manuéacind sell them through certain mar
in continental Europe in 2015.

Research and Developmeblite have four research and development centers thréhe U.S. and one in Denmark, which con
technology and product development. Additionallg have a product testing facility that conductsdrads of consumer tests annually.
believe our consumer-research driven approach novittion results in best-idass products that benefit the consumer. Reseanc
development expenses were $21.6 million , $21.0amibnd $15.6 million in 2014 , 2013 and 2012spectively.

Industry

We compete in the global bedding industry, comprisE mattresses and foundations, pillows and aotiess The mattress mar
category is comprised of traditional innerspringtnesses, as well as non-innerspring mattressesnitiade viscoelastic and foam mattress
innerspring/foam hybrid mattresses, airbeds arek latattresses. The foundation category is comppsiedarily of traditional foundations, t
also includes adjustable foundations. The primastridution channels for mattresses and foundataresretail furniture and bedding stores
well as department stores, and warehouse clubstidwaially, the pillow market is comprised of tradital foam and feather pillows, as wel
pillows made of visco-elastic, latex, foam, spormgéper and down.

The U.S. is the largest market in which we comp&iece 1993, U.S. wholesale bedding sales, whictudie mattresses a
foundations, have grown at a compound annual groatth or CAGR, of 4.8% , reaching approximately9$a.0 millionin 2013 according
the International Sleep Products Association (“I3PAhis growth has been driven by the increase inti& population, natural replacem
cycle of mattresses and an increase in the averagselling prices (“AUSPSs”).

The U.S. mattress industry has benefited from adsténcrease in AUSP over the past three decadesindparticular to the growth
premium priced normrnerspring mattresses but also due to variousr ddwtors including increasing mix of larger sizegttresses sold. ,
consumers have become increasingly aware of théhHeenefits of a good nighd’sleep, which is often associated with the qualftyheil
mattress, consumers have demonstrated a growitiggmibss to increase spending for higher qualitytmesses and related bedding prodi
This trend has been further supported by the deapbig shift in the population to consumers who 46é4 years old and typically hav
higher level of disposable income. The U.S. madtirdustry has responded with the development wf maovative technologies. Mattres
with enhanced features are typically sold at highes than traditional innerspring mattresses.

The traditional mattress innerspring category cargs to account for the majority of industry mattreevenues; however the ma
for noninnerspring mattresses continues to grow. In 2@&8ijtional innerspring mattresses, excluding fatmhs, represented approxima
$4,000.0 million of the bedding industry, and nanerspring mattresses, excluding foundations, semted approximately $1,700.0 milliof
the industry, according to ISPA. The market for 4mmmerspring mattresses was 30.0%the overall U.S. mattress industry in 2013, adow
to ISPA.
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The U.S. mattress industry has historically beemetated with the health of the overall economy approximately 70% of ne
mattress purchases are typically driven by theamgrhent cycle. Factors that have shown some Iéadsmciation with industry sales inclt
overall GDP, housing turnover, personal disposabt®me, consumer confidence, interest rates andogment levels. As such, duri
recessionary periods, demand for mattresses dedisi€onsumers reduce spending and delay disastiparchases. During the most re:
recession in 2008 and 2009, wholesale bedding sxiesrienced the greatest year-oyear decline in the past 20 years. Although der
improved in subsequent years, the increase in soltswas slower than in years following prior regienary periods. Assuming the healt
the overall economy continues to improve, we belithe mattress industry is well positioned for fatgrowth.

Competition

The global bedding industry is highly competitiVée encounter competition from a humber of mattesss foundation manufactur:
in both domestic and international markets, as wellcompetition from a number of pillow and othedting accessories manufactut
Participants in each of these markets compete pifintm price, quality, brand name recognition, ¢wot availability and product performance.

We have a portfolio of brands and a complementaogyrct offering, addressing most price points, comsr preferences and points
distribution. Our mattress products compete withumber of different types of mattresses, includimgerspring mattresses, visetastic
mattresses, foam mattresses, hybrid innerspring/foattresses, futons, air beds and othes@ported mattresses. These competing prc
are sold through a variety of channels, includingiture and bedding stores, department storess maschants, wholesale clubs, Intel
telemarketing programs, television infomercials aathlogs. The U.S. pillow industry is charactetiby a large number of competitors, n
of which are dominant, but many of which have greatsources than us.

The U.S. mattress market has experienced congolidit recent years. We, together with Serta Simsnaenllectively accounted fol
significant share of the wholesale bedding indusgyenues in 2013 based on figures obtained froRAI&nd Furniture/Todayindustry
publications. The balance of the mattress markehénU.S. is served by a large number of other ramturers, including Select Comf
Corporation, which competes in the niomerspring mattress market and focuses on theatitress market segment, and many others ope
on a regional basis.

The international market for mattresses and pillisvgenerally served by a large number of manufacsy primarily operating on
regional and local basis. These manufacturers affsoad range of mattress and pillow products.

The highly competitive nature of the mattress ailildyp industries means we are continually subjecthe risk of loss of market she
loss of significant customers, reductions in masgand the inability to acquire new customers.

Intellectual Property
Patents, Trademarks and Licensi

We hold various U.S. and foreign patents and paipplications regarding certain elements of thegseand function of many of o
mattress and pillow products.

As of December 31, 2014wve held trademark registrations worldwide, whigh believe have significant value and are importarthe
marketing of our products to retailers. TEMPUR® drampur-Pedic®are trademarks registered with the United StatésnPand Tradema
Office. In addition, we have U.S. applications piagdor additional marks. Several of our trademdrise been registered, or are the subje
pending applications, in various foreign countriéach U.S. trademark registration is renewablefinidely as long as the mark remains in |
We also own numerous of trademarks, trade namegcsemarks, logos and design marks, including y¥@abtearns & Foster@nd Seal
Posturepedic®. We also license the Bassett® tradeerin various territories under a long term agesgm
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Our licenses include rights for the licensees ® tuademarks as well as current proprietary orrppatetechnology utilized by us. \
also provide our licensees with product specifarai quality control inspections, research and ldgweent, statistical services and marke
programs. Only the New Jersey, Australia, Unitedg€iom and Jamaica licenses are of perpetual dorétith some rights of terminatiol
while the other licenses are for a set duratiorarer indeterminate in length and subject to readenadtice provisions. All licenses he¢
provisions for termination for cause (such as baptay, misuse of the mark or violation of standarapproval of marketing materials, at
rights and confidentiality of proprietary data. Withe exception of the Sealy New Jersey licenseud&ed below, the domestic licenses
predominantly trademark licenses. Also, with theeption of the Sealy New Jersey license (whichfipaypetual duration), each dome
license is limited by a period of years, all of athiare for a length of five years or less.

Our Sealy business segment derives income fromltieyaby licensing Sealy®rands, technology and trademarks to ¢
manufacturers. At December 31, 2014here were 23 separate license agreements ioteffich 8 domestic and 14 foreign indepent
licensees. Sealy New Jersey (a bedding manufaptuReroms To Go (a furniture retailer), Kolcraft Ergrises, Inc. (a crib mattre
manufacturer), Dog Pacer (a dog bed manufactuserd, Mantua Manufacturing Co. (a bed frame manufactu Chairworks (a che
manufacturer), Downlite (a pillow manufacturer) afitherican Textile Company (a comforter and mattnead manufacturer) are the o
domestic manufacturers that are licensed to useSdady trademark, subject to the terms of licergpeaments. Under license agreem
between Sealy New Jersey and us, Sealy New Jeesethh perpetual right to use certain of our tremtkmin the manufacture and sal
Sealy® brand and Stearns & Fostdsfind products in selected markets in the UnitedeSt In addition, we have a joint venture with Gant
Revolution.

Our foreign license agreements provide exclusigbtsi to market the Sealy brand in Australia, Thmallahe United Kingdom, Braz
Colombia, Paraguay, South Africa, Israel, SauditheaJamaica, Venezuela, Honduras and the DomirRegublic. In 2014, we acquired
Sealy brand rights for Japan, transitioned custore&tionships and began integrating operationdapan. However, a foreign lice
agreement limited to certain n@empeting Sealy products is still in effect withr dapanese licensee. Additionally, we have licamgeemen
in place with our joint ventures including thoseAsia, New Zealand and India. These licensing agesgs allow us to reduce our exposul
political and economic risk abroad by minimizingéstments in those markets.

Our licensing group generates royalties by licem$Sealy®brand technology and trademarks to manufactureetdd throughout tl
world. We also provide our licensees with prody&cifications, research and development, statisteraices and marketing programs. Fol
year endedDecember 31, 2014 , the licensing group as a wieherated unaffiliated net royalties of approxirha$d.8.1 million .

Governmental Regulation

Our operations are subject to state, local andigoreonsumer protection and other regulations irejato the mattress and pillc
industry. These regulations vary among the statescauntries in which we do business. The regulatigenerally impose requirements &
the proper labeling of bedding merchandise, rdgiris regarding the identification of merchandise“aew” or otherwise, controls as
hygiene and other aspects of product handling atedaad penalties for violations. The U.S. ConsuRreduct Safety Commission has ado
rules relating to fire retardancy standards for iegtress industry. Many foreign jurisdictions ategulate fire retardancy standards. FL
changes to these standards may require modificationour products to comply with these addition@ndards. We are also subjec
environmental and health and safety requirementts regard to the manufacture of our products andlgct of our operations and faciliti
We have made and will continue to make capital atfter expenditures necessary to comply with thesgiirements. Currently the
expenditures are immaterial to our financial result

Our principal waste products are foam and fabriaps, wood, cardboard and other h@mrardous materials derived from prot
component supplies and packaging. We also periliglidespose of (primarily by recycling) small amdarof used machine lubricating oil ¢
air compressor waste oil. In the United Statesaveesubject to federal, state and local laws agdlagions relating to environmental health
safety, including the Federal Water Pollution Cohtkct and the Comprehensive Environmental Respo@isenpensation and Liability A
We believe that we are in compliance with all aqgdile international, federal, state and local emritental statutes and regulations. Exce
set forth in “Legal Proceedingsihcluded in Part I, ITEM 3 of this Report, compla@nwith international, federal, state or local pstns tha
have been enacted or adopted regulating the digehaf materials into the environment, or otherwistating to the protection of t
environment, should not have any material effecinupur capital expenditures, earnings or competiposition. We are not aware of
pending federal environmental legislation which Vdobave a material impact on our operations. Exespset forth in “Legal Proceedings”
included in Part I, ITEM 3 of this Report, we havet been required to make and do not expect to raakanaterial capital expenditures
environmental control facilities in the foreseedhiture.
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Employees

As of December 31, 201and 2013, we had approximately 7,100 and 6,700 Ter8paly employees, respectively. In North Ame
there were approximately 4,700 and 4,600 emplowgsesf December 31, 201ahd 2013, respectively. In the rest of the worleeré wer
approximately 2,400 and 2,100 employees as of Dbeeil, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Approxima@h0% of our employees a
represented by various labor unions with separatiedtive bargaining agreements. Due to the largenter of collective bargainii
agreements, we are periodically in negotiation$ wértain of the unions representing our employ@&sconsider our overall relations with
workforce to be satisfactory. Our current colleetivargaining agreements, which are typically thyears in length, expire at various tir
beginning in 2015 through 2017. As of DecemberZ114 , our domestic operations employed approxim&®6 individuals covered und
collective bargaining agreements expiring in 20Chir international operations employed approximatgdp individuals covered und
collective bargaining agreements expiring in 2015.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

This information is incorporated herein by refereffiom our definitive proxy statement for the 208tnual Meeting of Stockholde
(the “Proxy Statement”) under the section entitlecbposal One—Election of Directors—Executive Odfis.”

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The following risk factors and other informatiorcinded in this Report should be carefully considei®lease also see “Special Note
Regarding Forwar-Looking Statements” on page 3.

Set forth below are descriptions of certain risating to our business.

Unfavorable economic and market conditions coulddtece our sales and profitability and as a resultjraoperating results may be advers
affected.

Our business has been affected by general busames&conomic conditions, and these conditions chakk an impact on futt
demand for our products. In addition, our Intermadl segment experienced weakening as a resulirargl business and economic condit
beginning in 2012. The global economy remains uolstand we expect the economic environment toicoatto be challenging as contini
economic uncertainty has generally given houseHekisconfidence to make discretionary purchases.

In particular, the financial crisis that affectd tbanking system and financial markets and theeotiuncertainty in global econor
conditions have resulted in a tightening in theditrenarkets, a low level of liquidity in many fineial markets and volatility in credit, equ
and fixed income markets. There could be a numbeather effects from these economic development®unbusiness, including reduc
consumer demand for products; insolvency of outarusrs, resulting in increased provisions for drémlises; insolvency of our key suppl
resulting in product delays; inability of retaileand consumers to obtain credit to finance purchadeour products; decreased const
confidence; decreased retail demand, includingralldiays or cancellations; counterparty failuregatizely impacting our treasury operatic
and adverse movements in foreign currency exchaaigs. If such conditions are experienced in fupggods, our industry, business
results of operations may be severely impacted.

In addition, the negative worldwide economic coiotis and market instability makes it increasingficllt for us, our customers a
our suppliers to accurately forecast future prodienand trends, which could cause us to producesexproducts that can increase
inventory carrying costs. Alternatively, this foeesting difficulty could cause a shortage of productr materials used in our products,
could result in an inability to satisfy demand éar products and a loss of market share.

10




Table of Contents
Our leverage may limit our flexibility and increaseur risk of default.

As a result of our acquisition of Sealy, our laegm debt has increased substantially, which, in,thas increased our leverage
information regarding these topics, see “Managemadiscussion and Analysis” included in Part II|HWM 7 of this Report and Note 6 Debt
", in our Consolidated Financial Statements inctiigePart Il, ITEM 8 of this Report.

Our degree of leverage could have important coresazps to our investors, such as:

* increasing our vulnerability to adverse economiduistry or competitive developmet

* requiring a substantial portion of our cash flownfr operations to be dedicated to the payment ofcipal and interest on c
indebtedness, therefore reducing our ability to age cash flow to fund our operations, capital expeires and other busin
opportunities;

« making it more difficult for us to satisfy our oditions with respect to our indebtedn

e restricting us from making strategic acquisii@r investments or causing us to make siategic divestiture

« limiting our ability to obtain additional financingor working capital, capital expenditures, produtgvelopment, debt serv
requirements, acquisitions and general corporatth@mr purposes;

« limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reaatig to, changes in our business or the industry hilckvwe operate, placing us ¢
competitive disadvantage compared to our compstikdro are less highly leveraged and who therefoeg, be able to take advant
of opportunities that our leverage prevents us fexmloiting; and

e exposing us to variability in interest rates, aubstantial portion of our indebtedness is andlvélat variable rate

In addition, the instruments governing our debttaomfinancial and other restrictive covenants, chhlimit our operating flexibilit
and could prevent us from taking advantage of lassiropportunities and reduce our flexibility top@sd to changing business and econi
conditions, which could put us at a competitiveadigantage. Our failure to comply with these covénamay result in an event of defauli
such event of default is not cured or waived, wey rmaffer adverse effects on our operations, busimgsfinancial condition, includir
acceleration of our debt. For further discussiararding our debt covenants and compliance, reféMmagement’s Discussion and Analysis’
included in Part Il, ITEM 7 of this Report and Nde “ Debt ”,in our Consolidated Financial Statements include®art I, ITEM 8 of thi
Report.

Our sales growth is dependent upon our ability toplement strategic initiatives and actions takenit@arease sales growth may not be
effective.

Our ability to generate sales growth is dependpohwa number of factors, including the following:

e our ability to continuously improve our productsatfer new and enhanced consumer benefits andr opttdity;

» ability of our future product launches to increase sale

» the effectiveness of our advertising campaignsathdr marketing programs in building product analor awareness, driving traffic
our distribution channels and increasing sales;

» our ability to continue to successfully execute stuategic initiative:

» the level of consumer acceptance of our produaty

* general economic factors that negatively impacsuoarer confidence, disposable income or the avétiabf consumer financini

Over the last few years, we have had to managebosiness both through periods of rapid growth drel uncertain econon
environment. A source of our growth within this érframe has been through expanding distributioouofproducts into new stores, principi
furniture and bedding retail stores in the U.S. 8ahthese retail stores may undergo restructuriegserience financial difficulty or reali
their affiliations, which could decrease the numbgstores that carry our products. Our future saewth will increasingly depend on
ability to generate additional sales in our extatcounts in the Retail channel. If we are unébiacrease product sales in our existing r
accounts at a sufficient rate overall, our netsglewth could slow or decline.

We may seek to acquire an additional business sinbsses in order to increase sales growth, anéeguisition could be disrupti
to our ongoing business, create integration isgeeslire additional borrowings or share issuancesreate other risks for our business.
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We may be adversely affected by fluctuations intexege rates, which could affect our results of opéibns, the costs of our products a
our ability to sell our products in foreign markets

Approximately 27% of our net sales were generatddide of the United States in 2014. As a multiorzdi company, we conduct
business in a wide variety of currencies and aezefore subject to market risk for changes in fpreéxchange rates. If the U.S. dc
strengthened relative to the euro or other foreigmencies where we have operations, there woull tegative impact on our operating re:
upon translation of those foreign operating resulis the U.S. dollar. In 2014, foreign currencyclkange rate changes negatively impacte:
net income by approximately 7.5%. In 2015, we ekgeign exchange will continue to negatively irapaur results, and we expect
impact will be more significant in 2015 than in 20Changes in foreign currency exchange rates deaNg an adverse impact on our finar
condition, results of operations and cash flows.d&eot hedge the translation of foreign currenggrating results into the U.S. dollar.

We use foreign exchange forward contracts to maragertion of the exposure to the risk of the ewahnet cash inflows al
outflows resulting from foreign currency denomirthteansactions between our subsidiaries and thistomers and suppliers, as well as an
certain subsidiaries. The hedging transactions me&gucceed in managing our foreign currency exghaate risk.

Refer to “Management's Discussion and Analysisluded in Part Il, ITEM 7 of this Report andQuantitative and Qualitati
Disclosures About Market Riskihcluded in Part Il, ITEM 7A of this Report for filver discussion on the impact of foreign excharagesr o
our operations.

We operate in the highly competitive mattress ariltbps industries, and if we are unable to competecsessfully, we may lose customers
our sales may decline.

Participants in the mattress and pillow industdempete primarily on price, quality, brand nameogettion, product availability ar
product performance. Our mattresses compete witlmzber of different types of mattress alternativeall price categories, including stand
innerspring mattresses, viscoelastic mattressesn fimattresses, hybrid innerspring/foam mattredsésns, air beds and other awupporte
mattresses. These alternative products are sabdighra variety of channels, including furniture dretlding stores, department stores, |
merchants, wholesale clubs, Internet, telemarkeginograms, television infomercials and catalogs.

A number of our significant competitors offer ma#is and pillow products that compete directly wothr products. Any sut
competition by established manufacturers or newaets into the market could have a material adveffect on our business, financ
condition and operating results. The pillow indystr characterized by a large number of competiteose of which are dominant, but man
which have greater resources than us. The highhpetitive nature of the mattress and pillow indestmeans we are continually subject tc
risk of loss of significant new product launchesdwy competitors, market share, loss of significargtomers, reductions in margins, anc
inability to acquire new customers. Additionallizetmattress industry has placed increasing sigmifie on new product introductions from
mattress and pillow manufacturers. If we are unabl@rovide significant new product introductions a regular basis, our results may
adversely impacted.

Over the last several years, thmttress market has been more competitive thamyatime in our experience, which has adver
affected our results. In particular, competitorseh@xpanded into the nannerspring segments, which has adversely impastedTempu
North America segme’s market share and margins. In addition, hybridtraases sold by competitors can adversely imgEes f our non-
innerspring mattresses. The acquisition of Seadydnavided us additional tools allowing us to cotepaore effectively across the industry,
if this environment continues and our responseisaoccessful, our results would continue to besegbly affected.

12




Table of Contents

Because we depend on our significant customers, ecrdase or interruption in their business with usould reduce our sales at
profitability.

Our top five customers, collectively, account fppeoximately 35% of our net sales for 2014, witle @ustomer, whose net sales
included in both the Tempur North America and Sesdgments, accounting for more than 10% of oursakds. The credit environment
which our customers operate has been relativeblestaver the past few years. However, the contimaadagement of credit risk by finant
institutions has caused a decrease in the avitijabfl credit for mattress retailers. In certaistances, this has caused mattress retailers 1
the market or be forced into bankruptcy. Furtheemaenany of our customers rely in part on consumabdlity to finance their mattre
purchases with credit from third parties. If cusemare unable to obtain financing, they may dgdeir purchases. We expect that some ¢
retailers that carry our products may consolidatejergo restructurings or reorganizations, expeeéefinancial difficulty, or realign the
affiliations, any of which could decrease the numbgstores that carry our products or increaseddwaership concentration in the re
industry. An increase in the concentration of ales to large customers may negatively affect oofitpbility due to the impact of volume &
other incentive programs related to these custantame of these retailers may decide to carry anliynited number of brands of mattr
products, which could affect our ability to selbgucts to them on favorable terms, if at all. Astabtial decrease or interruption in busil
from these significant customers could result i lthss of future business and could reduce liquiglitd profitability. In addition, the timing
large purchases by these customers could haveearasingly significant impact on our quarterly safes and earnings.

We are subject to fluctuations in the cost of ravatarials, and increases in these costs would redageliquidity and profitability.

The bedding industry has been challenged by vitatit the price of petroleurbased and steel products, which affects the c«
polyurethane foam, polyester, polyethylene foam ste@l innerspring component parts. Domestic sappif these raw materials are bt
limited by supplier consolidation, the impact oe ttost of these products as a result of changtt®istrength of the dollar compared to o
currencies and other forces beyond our controltaferaw materials that we purchase for productioer chemicals and proprietary additi
which are influenced by oil prices. The price angikability of these raw materials are subject tarket conditions affecting supply &
demand. Given the significance of the cost of thesgerials to our products, volatility in the picef the underlying commodities ¢
significantly affect profitability. To the extentevare unable to absorb higher costs, or pass atytdgher costs to our customers, our ¢
margin could be negatively affected, which coulslitein a decrease in our liquidity and profitatlyili

We rely significantly on information technology andny failure, inadequacy, interruption or securitlapse of that technology could hai
our ability to effectively operate our business.

Our ability to effectively manage our business dhejsesignificantly on our information systems. Théure of our current systems,
future upgrades, to operate effectively or to irg with other systems, or a breach in securitthe$e systems could cause reduced effic
of our operations, and remediation of any suchufajl problem or breach could reduce our liquiditg @rofitability. Our current plans inclu
the replacement of enterprise resource planningvaoé systems in the U.S. and Canada. If we arblena successfully implement 1
replacement of the legacy systems, it could leaddsruption in our business.

Certain of Sealy systems are dated and require significant upgré&aly depends on accurate and timely informai@hnumerici
data from key software applications to aid its tlaxglay business, financial reporting and decision mgkind, in many cases, aged and cu
designed software is necessary to operate its bgduants. Sealy has put in place disaster recopkys for its critical systems. Sealy
however, dependent on certain key personnel anduttants as these applications are no longer stgapday the vendor. Any disruptic
caused by the failure of these systems could adlemnpact Sealy’s day-tday business and decision making and could havetaria
adverse effect on its performance. We are integgadind plan to continue to integrate Sealy into information systems and could su
disruptions during such process.

If we, or our service providers, are unable to adedely protect our information assets from cyl-based attacks or other security incider
our operations could be disrupted.

We are increasingly dependent on information tetdgyg including the Internet, for the storage, mssing, and transmission of
electronic, businesselated, information assets. We leverage our iafemmformation technology infrastructures, and thax our servic
providers, to enable, sustain, and support ourajlbbsiness interests. In the event that we osewvice providers are unable to prevent, de
and remediate cybdrased attacks or other security incidents in alyimr@anner, our operations could be disrupted omag incur financial ¢
reputational losses arising from the theft, alieratmisuse, unauthorized disclosure, or destroatiaits information assets.
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We are subject to a pending tax proceeding in Demkpand an adverse decision would reduce our ligitydand profitability.

We have received income tax assessments from thisiD@ax Authority (“SKAT”).We believe we have meritorious defenses ti
proposed adjustments and will oppose the assessmgmecessary in the appropriate Danish venuééliteve the litigation process to reac
final resolution of this matter could potentiallytend over a number of years. If we are not sudekessdefending our position that we owe
additional taxes, we could be required to pay ai@ant amount to SKAT, which could adversely impaur liquidity and profitability. For
description of these assessments and additionainiition with respect to these assessments andati@us related legal proceedings,
“Legal Proceedings” included in Part I, ITEM 3 d¢fig Report and Note 14 , “ Income Taxedr,our Consolidated Financial Statems
included in Part Il, ITEM 8 of this Report, and "Negement's Discussion and Analysis" included it RaTEM 7 of this Report.

We may be unable to sustain our profitability, whiccould impair our ability to service our indebtedss and make investments in ¢
business and could adversely affect the market erfior our stock.

Our ability to service our indebtedness dependwnability to maintain our profitability. We mayohbe able to maintain ¢
profitability on a quarterly or annual basis inuté periods. Further, our profitability will depengon a number of factors, including with
limitation:

» general economic conditions in the markets in whiehsell our products and the impact on consumedgetailers

» the level of competition in the mattress and pilioaustry

» our ability to successfully identify and responcetoerging trends in the mattress and pillow ingy

e our ability to successfully launch new produ

« our ability to effectively sell our products thrdugur distribution channels in volumes sufficiemtdrive growth and leverage our ¢
structure and advertising spending;

» our ability to reduce costs, including our abilibyalign our cost structure with sales in the éxgseconomic environmel

e our ability to absorb fluctuations in commaodity ts;

e our ability to maintain efficient, timely and steeffective production and utilization of our manufaing capacity

» our ability to maintain efficient, timely and steeffective delivery of our products; a

» our ability to maintain public association of ourabds, including overcoming any impact on our braadsed by some of ¢
customers seeking to sell our products at a digdousur recommended price.

Our new product launches may not be successful doneevelopment delays, failure of new products thigve anticipated levels of marl
acceptance and significant costs associated witlteth product introductions, which could adverseljfect our revenues and profitability.

Each year we invest significant time and resouitessearch and development to improve our prodfietings. In 2013 and 2014
had a large number of new product launches, anéxpect that trend to continue in 2015 and subseqesars. There are a number of r
inherent in our new product line introductions, lirting that the anticipated level of market accepgamay not be realized, which cc
negatively impact our sales. Also, introductiontspthe speed of the rollout of the product and ufesturing inefficiencies may be greater t
anticipated, which could impact profitability.

We may not be able to successfully integrate anthbime the legacy Tempur and Sealy businesses, whimhld cause our business to suffi

Our acquisition of Sealy was significant, and weréhantegrated the legacy Tempur and Sealy busieessenany areas of t
organization, especially in North America. If we dot successfully integrate the remaining North Aiog and International operatio
personnel and technology, we may experience imigams in our business activities, deterioratiomur employee and customer relationst
increased costs of integration and harm to ourtetjoun, all of which could have a material advesffect on our business, financial condii
and results of operations. Additionally, in 2016y integration activities include the startup afiew manufacturing and distribution cente
Indianapolis, IN and related closures of otherlféges. If we are unable to efficiently manage fireduction and distribution at this new facil
this could disrupt our product supply and incremsedistribution and other operating costs.

We may also experience difficulties in combining egacy cultures, maintaining employee morale eetdining key employees. T

integration may also impose substantial demandsuormanagement and our employees. There is noamssuthat improved operating res
will be achieved as a result of the Sealy Acqusitdr that the businesses will be successfullygiatied in a timely manner.
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Our advertising expenditures and customer subsidiray not result in increased sales or generate taeels of product and brand nar
awareness we desire and we may not be able to maag advertising expenditures on a cost-effectbhasis.

A significant component of our marketing strategydlves the use of direct marketing to generatad@vareness and sales. Fu
growth and profitability will depend in part on tleest and efficiency of our advertising expendisuriecluding our ability to create gree
awareness of our products and brand names andrde¢ethe appropriate creative message and medidanixture advertising expenditul
and to incent the promotion of our products.

Our operating results are increasingly subject tludtuations, including as a result of seasonalitywhich could make sequential quarter
guarter comparisons an unreliable indication of oyrerformance and adversely affect the market prafeour common stock.

A significant portion of our net sales are attrdhle to our Retail channel, particularly net sategurniture and bedding stores.
believe that our sales of bedding and other pradtecfurniture and bedding stores are subject asa®ality inherent in the bedding indus
with sales expected to be generally lower in tteosd and fourth quarters and higher in the first #oird quarters, and in Europe, lower in
third quarter. Our net sales may be affected irsingdy by this seasonality, particularly as our &lesales channel continues to grow |
percentage of our overall net sales and, to aresdent, by seasonality in our international mé&k®ur third quarter sales are typically hig
than other quarters. This seasonality means thatjaential quarter to quarter comparison may nat dgpeod indication of our performance o
how we will perform in the future.

In addition to seasonal fluctuations, the demanddiar products can fluctuate significantly based aomumber of other facto
including general economic conditions, consumerfidence, the timing and significance of new prodinttoductions or price increas
announced by us or our competitors and promotiansffer or offered by our competitors.

We are subject to risks from our international ogions, such as complying with U.S. and foreign lsyforeign exchange exposure, tarif
increased costs, political risks and our ability éxpand in certain international markets, which cttiimpair our ability to compete and o
profitability.

We are a global company, selling our products praximately 100 countries worldwide. We generatppraximately 27% of our n
sales outside of the United States in 2014, andaminue to pursue additional international oppuittas. We also participate in internatic
license and joint venture arrangements with inddpanthird parties. Our international operatiores subject to the customary risks of oper
in an international environment, including complyiwith U.S. laws affecting operations outside of ttnited States such as the For
Corrupt Practices Act; complying with foreign laasd regulations, including disparate asdiruption laws and regulations; risks associ
with varying local business customs; and the pakmiposition of trade or foreign exchange resiics, tariffs and other tax increas
fluctuations in exchange rates, inflation and upistgolitical situations and labor issues. We dse éimited in our ability to independen
expand in certain international markets where weelgranted licenses to manufacture and sell Sebbding products. Fluctuations in
rate of exchange between currencies in which weudiness may affect our financial condition or tessof operations.

If we are not able to protect our trade secretsmaintain our trademarks, patents and other intelteal property, we may not be able
prevent competitors from developing similar prodsair from marketing in a manner that capitalizes @ur trademarks, and this loss ol
competitive advantage could decrease our profitapiand liquidity.

We rely on trade secrets to protect the desigrhni@ogy and function of our products. To date, veéh not sought U.S.
international patent protection for our principabguct formula for TEMPUR®naterial and manufacturing processes. Accordingéymay nc
be able to prevent others from developing viscaielasaterial and products that are similar to ompetitive with our products. Our ability
compete effectively with other companies also ddpeto a significant extent, on our ability to ntain the proprietary nature of our owned
licensed intellectual property. We own a significammber of patents on aspects of our productsheave patent applications pending
aspects of our products and manufacturing proceskmgever, the principal product formula and maotféang processes for our TEMP@R
material and our products are not patented and ws maintain these as trade secrets in order tegrthis intellectual property. We own L
and foreign registered trade names and service skl have applications for the registration ofléarmames and service marks pen
domestically and abroad. We also license certda@llactual property rights from third parties.
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Our trademarks are currently registered in the drfsl registered or pending in foreign jurisdictioAd®wever, those rights could
circumvented, or violate the proprietary rightsotifiers, or we could be prevented from using theohdflenged. A challenge to our use of
trademarks could result in a negative ruling rejgy@ur use of our trademarks, their validity ogithenforceability, or could prove expens
and time consuming in terms of legal costs and Spent defending against such a challenge. Anydbssdemark protection could result i
decrease in sales or cause us to spend additiomeairds on marketing, either of which could decremgdiquidity and profitability. In additiol
if we incur significant costs defending our tradeksathat could also decrease our liquidity anditability. In addition, we may not have 1
financial resources necessary to enforce or dedemdrademarks. Furthermore, our patents may rmtigee meaningful protection and pate
may never issue from pending applications. It #dglossible that others could bring claims of mfament against us, as our principal pro
formula and manufacturing processes are not pateatel that any licenses protecting our intelldgwaperty could be terminated. If we w
unable to maintain the proprietary nature of otellactual property and our significant currentpooposed products, this loss of a compet
advantage could result in decreased sales or s@tle@perating costs, either of which would decreasdiquidity and profitability.

In addition, the laws of certain foreign countri@ay not protect our intellectual property rightslaonfidential information to t
same extent as the laws of the U.S. or the Europkedon. Third parties, including competitors, massert intellectual property infringemen
invalidity claims against us that could be uphéhdellectual property litigation, which could resin substantial cost to and diversion of el
by us, may be necessary to protect our trade seargiroprietary technology, or for us to defendiast claimed infringement of the rights
others and to determine the scope and validityttedrs’ proprietary rights. We may not prevail in any slitiation, and if we are unsuccess
we may not be able to obtain any necessary licemsesasonable terms or at all.

An increase in our product return rates or an inageacy in our warranty reserves could reduce ourdidity and profitability.

We allow consumers to return certain products @mfort reasons. As we expand our sales, our reaigs may not remain within ¢
historical levels. A downturn in general economanditions may also increase our product returnsrafen increase in return rates cc
significantly impair our liquidity and profitabiljt

We provide our consumers warranties on our prodiatging from 3 to 25 years. Due to the increaseei product introductions
recent years, we may still see significant warratéyms on products under warranty which are earlyeir product life cycles. As of March
2014, we shortened our Tempur North America segmmitress warranty coverage from 25 years to 10syeaalign with the indust
standard. Also, in line with our strategy, as wattwe to innovate to provide new products to oustemers, we could be susceptibl
unanticipated risks with our warranty claims, whaduld impair our liquidity and profitability.

Because not all of our products have been in usaubgustomers for the full warranty period, weyreh the combination of historic
experience and product testing for the developroémtur estimate for warranty claims. However, oatual level of warranty claims cot
prove to be greater than the level of warrantynetaive estimated based on our produptsformance during product testing. If our warri
reserves are not adequate to cover future warddaitys, their inadequacy could have a material es#veffect on our liquidity and profitabilit

We are vulnerable to interest rate risk with respéa our debt, which could lead to an increase merest expense.

We are subject to interest rate risk in connectigth the variable rate debt under our debt agred¢sndnterest rate changes cc
increase the amount of our interest payments amj tregatively impact our future earnings and dlasts. On August 8, 2011, we entered
a fouryear interest rate swap agreement to manage ihteosts and the risk of changing interest rateecated with a portion of ti
borrowings outstanding under our credit faciliti®@se outstanding notional principal amount of thes is $150.0 million as of December
2014. The interest rate swap expires on Decembegl@05. For information regarding our sensitivity thanges in interest rates, refe
“Quantitative and Quialitative Disclosures About MetrRisk” included in Part Il, ITEM 7A of this Rego
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Loss of suppliers and disruptions in the supply ofir raw materials could increase our costs of salsd reduce our ability to compe
effectively.

We acquire raw materials and certain components fsonumber of suppliers with manufacturing locati@mound the world. If v
were unable to obtain raw materials and certainpmrants from these suppliers, we would have to faplacement suppliers. Any substi
arrangements for raw materials and certain comgsmaight not be on terms as favorable to us. It we outsource the procuremen
certain goods and services from suppliers in foreiguntries. If we were no longer able to outsotihceugh these suppliers, we could sour
elsewhere, perhaps at a higher cost. In additfane of our major suppliers, or several of ourgiges, declare bankruptcy or otherwise ci
operations, or if any new suppliers fail to ramp ppduction as quickly as required, our supply cheould be materially disrupted. \
maintain relatively small supplies of our raw matksrand outsourced goods at our manufacturinditiasi and any disruption in the awoinc
shipment of supplies to us could interrupt producidf our products, which could result in a deceeafsour sales or could cause an increa
our cost of sales, either of which could decreasdiquidity and profitability.

We are dependent upon single source supplierseftain structural components or assembly of spepifdduct lines within the Se:
brand portfolio. These products are purchased uadrrpply agreement and are manufactured in aceoedaith proprietary designs join
owned by us and the supplier. If we experiencesa tw disruption in its supply of these products,may have difficulty sourcing substit
components on favorable terms. In addition, angraditive source may impair product performancesquire Sealy to alter the manufactu
process relating to these products, which coule lzavadverse effect on profitability.

Unexpected equipment failures, delays in deliverigsatastrophic loss delays may lead to productamtailments or shutdowns.

We manufacture and distribute products to our ensts from our network of manufacturing facilitiexated around the world. .
interruption in production capabilities at any bése manufacturing facilities could result in quahility to produce our products, which wao
reduce our net sales and earnings for the affgmeidd. In addition, we generally deliver our prottuonly after receiving the order from
customer or the retailer, and in certain facilities a just-inime basis, and thus do not hold significant lex#lfventories. In the event o
disruption in production at any of our manufactgrfacilities, even if only temporary, or if we exmnce delays as a result of events tha
beyond our control, delivery times could be sewewrdfected. For example, a third party carrier dopbtentially be unable to deliver «
products within acceptable time periods due tolerastrike or other disturbance in its businessy Aignificant delay in deliveries to ¢
customers could lead to increased returns or clatiogls and cause us to lose future sales. Anyeass in freight charges could increase
costs of doing business and affect our profitabi/e have introduced new distribution programetwease our ability to deliver products ¢
timely basis, but if we fail to deliver products antimely basis, we may lose sales which could ez our liquidity and profitability. O
manufacturing facilities are also subject to thek f catastrophic loss due to unanticipated evemth as fires, explosions or violent wea
conditions. Despite the fact that we maintain iagge covering the majority of these risks, we nrayhie future experience material pl
shutdowns or periods of reduced production aswtresequipment failure, delays in deliveries atastrophic loss.

We may not realize the growth opportunities thakaanticipated from our acquisition of Sealy.

The benefits we expect to achieve as a resulteoSealy Acquisition will depend, in part, on ouiligpto realize anticipated grow
opportunities. For example, in 2014 we introducedimber of Sealy products to retailers in certaindfean and Asian markets. Our succe
realizing these growth opportunities, and the tgniri this realization, depends on the successfebimation of Sealyg business and operatit
with our business and operations. Even if we ate @hintegrate our business with Sealpusiness successfully, this integration may esl
in the realization of the full benefits of the gritmopportunities we currently expect from this gregtion within the anticipated time frame o
all. While we anticipate that certain expenses Wwél incurred, such expenses are difficult to esBnacurately, and may exceed cur
estimates. In addition, certain retail customerswfcombined company could determine that the égoetbcompany's business has too n
exposure to that retail customer, and reduce foousur products or otherwise promote competitpreducts more aggressively, which cc
have a material adverse effect on the combined aogip sales and offset the expected from the Seadyisition. Accordingly, the benef
from the Acquisition may be offset by costs incdrier delays in integrating the companies, whichld¢aause our revenue and expe
assumptions to be inaccurate.
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We may not be able to achieve the full amount ofst@ynergies that are anticipated, or achieve thaestcsynergies on the sched
anticipated, from the Sealy Acquisition.

Although we currently expect to achieve in excdss7@.0 million of cumulative cost synergies by 80ihclusion of the projected ci
synergies in this Report should not be viewed @epeesentation that we in fact will achieve thesst synergies by 2016 or at all.

We currently expect cost synergies to be realipetthiee primary areas: sourcing and manufacturiragehouse and distribution, ¢
corporate and other SG&A expenses. Sourcing andifaeturing cost synergies are expected to resoh fincreased purchasing, supply cl
and manufacturing efficiencies, principally focusedduplicative efforts, such as lower cost sog@nd combined manufacturing costs a:
seek to leverage our combined capabilities and atwladion of purchasing across products. Wareharse distribution cost synergies
expected to result from consolidation of our andl$e product warehouses and distribution routes rieguih improved route efficiency a
distribution integration. Corporate and other SG&®st synergies are expected to be realized thraogisolidation of various corpori
expenses, including elimination of duplicative seeg and streamlining of corporate administration.

In order to identify areas for potential synergi@e,have undertaken the following efforts:

* senior management and functional area leadersreai@ved and continue to review functional areasssboth our operations, o
standalone basis and on a combined basis;

» senior management team members, together withdeutsbnsultants, conducted an analysis assessi@g afeduplication ar
projected growth, determining projected synergyelevirom the perspective of both senior managerardtfunctional area leade
and

* senior management teams conducted analyses tcs ahsesost savings opportunities related to distidim, supply chain, sourcir
manufacturing efficiencies and corporate expenSes.example, in the areas of distribution, each mamy assessed their respec
costs to deliver mattresses and foundations onrgigee basis throughout their U.S. operations #ied opportunity to levera
transportation capacity and improve service levesgsilting in an anticipated substantial savings @er piece delivery basis.

Through this process, we have identified targetedt csynergies in various operating functions inclgdmanufacturing ar
distribution. We continue to evaluate our estimatesost synergies to be realized and refine tremthat our actual cost synergies could ¢
materially from our current estimates. Actual ceghergies, the expenses required to realize thesyoergies and the sources of the
synergies could differ materially from these estesaand we cannot assure you that we will achilegegull amount of cost synergies on
schedule anticipated or at all or that these oostrgly programs will not have other adverse effeotsur business.

The assumption of unknown liabilities in the Seal\cquisition may harm our financial condition and mults of operations.

As a result of the Sealy Acquisition, we acquirezhl$ subject to all of its liabilities, includingoitingent liabilities. If there a
unknown obligations, our business could be matgraid adversely affected. We may learn additioni@mrmation about Sealg’business th
adversely affects us, such as unknown liabilit@sissues that could affect our ability to complithnapplicable laws. As a result, we car
assure you that the acquisition of Sealy will becgssful or will not, in fact, harm our businessn@ng other things, if Sealy'liabilities ar:
greater than expected, or if there are materidbatibns of which we are not currently aware, ousibess could be materially and adver
affected. If we become responsible for substantrahsured liabilities, such liabilities may haveraterial adverse effect on our finan
condition and results of operations.

We will continue to incur significant integration @sts in connection with the Sealy Acquisition.

We have incurred and expect to incur additionahifitant costs associated with completing the Sdalguisition and integrating tl
operations of the two companies. The substantigbnitya of these costs will be norecurring expenses resulting from the Sealy Actjon
related to facilities and systems consolidationtc@nd employmentklated costs. Additional unanticipated costs mayirzurred in th
integration of our businesses. Although we expleat the elimination of duplicative costs, as waelltlhe realization of other efficiencies rele
to the integration of the businesses, may offseteimental transaction and acquisition costs owvee tithis net benefit may not be achieve
the near term, or at all.
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As part of the Sealy Acquisition, we assumed a jmortof Seal's 8.0% Senior Secured Third Lien Convertible Noteége 2016 (“8.0% Sealy
Note¢"), which could impact our liquidity, and increasesur leverage and risk of default.

A portion of the 8.0% Sealy Notes remain outstagdifier completion of the Sealy Acquisition. Holslef the 8.0% Sealy Notes n
choose to convert to cash the amount outstanditigeatdiscretion prior to maturity. Upon conversiprior to maturity, we would be requi
to pay the holders within 3 business days afterdigeipt of the notice of conversion. The conversiban unusually large number of the 8
Sealy Notes prior to maturity could have a sigaific impact on our liquidity. For additional infortien regarding the 8% Sealy Noi
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis” includedPiart 1l, ITEM 7 of this Report and Note 6 , “ Dehtin our Consolidated Financ
Statements included in Part Il, ITEM 8 of this Repo

The loss of the services of any members of our semianagement team could impair our ability to exse our business strategy and a
result, reduce our sales and profitability.

We depend on the continued services of our senigragement team. As we integrate and combine Setilyowr business, we exp
that key senior management team members will IeBlve.loss of key personnel could have a materiatise effect on our ability to exec
our business strategy and on our financial conditiod results of operations. We do not maintain-engon insurance for members of
senior management team.

Deterioration in labor relations could disrupt oubusiness operations and increase our costs, whiduld decrease our liquidity ar
profitability.

As of December 31, 2014, we had approximately 6f0&ime employees. Approximately 35.0% of our emplayaee represent
by various labor unions with separate collectiveghaming agreements or government labor union eetgrfor certain international locatio
Our North American collective bargaining agreemewtsich are typically three years in length, exgtevarious times during any given th
year period. Due to the large number of collectbargaining agreements, we are periodically in riagohs with certain of the unio
representing our employees. We may at some poisuibgect to work stoppages by some of our emplogeds if such events were to oct
there may be a material adverse effect on our épasaand profitability. Further, we may not beetsd renew our various collective bargair
agreements on a timely basis or on favorable teonst all. Any significant increase in our labarsts could decrease our liquidity
profitability and any deterioration of employeeati#ns, slowdowns or work stoppages at any of ocations, whether due to union activit
employee turnover or otherwise, could result inegrdase in our net sales or an increase in ous,cesher of which could decrease
liquidity and profitability.

We may face exposure to product liability claimshieh could reduce our liquidity and profitability ad reduce consumer confidence in ¢
products.

We face an inherent business risk of exposuredduymt liability claims if the use of any of our plects results in personal injury
property damage. In the event that any of our prtsdprove to be defective, we may be required ¢alteredesign or even discontinue tr
products. We maintain insurance against produbtlitia claims, but such coverage may not continnid¢ available on terms acceptable t
or be adequate for liabilities actually incurredséccessful claim brought against us in excesvaifable insurance coverage could impair
liquidity and profitability, and any claim or produrecall that results in significant adverse ptibti against us could result in consun
purchasing fewer of our products, which would atepair our liquidity and profitability.
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Regulatory requirements, including, but not limited, trade, environmental, health and safety reqeiinents, may require costly expenditu
and expose us to liability.

Our products and our marketing and advertising ranmg are and will continue to be subject to regutain the U.S. by variol
federal, state and local regulatory authoritiesluding the Federal Trade Commission and the UoBdrand Drug Administration. In additic
other governments and agencies in other jurisdistiegulate the sale and distribution of our pre¢gluthese rules and regulations may ch
from time to time. Compliance with these regulasionay have an adverse effect on our business. Thayebe continuing costs of regulat
compliance including continuous testing, additiogahlity control processes and appropriate auditihgesign and process compliance.
example, the U.S. Consumer Product Safety CommisS§ioSPC”) has adopted rules relating to fire retardancy stedslfor the mattre
industry. We developed product modifications thiidva us to meet these standards. Required produacdlifioations have added cost to
products. Many foreign jurisdictions also regulite retardancy standards, and changes to theedastds and changes in our products
require compliance with additional standards waade similar risks. Further, some states and tl& Qongress continue to consider ¢
flame regulations for mattresses and bed setg@grial components that may be different or moiiegeint than the CPSC standard and we
be required to make different products for différstates or change our processes or distributiantiges nationwide. It is possible that s
states’'more stringent standards, if adopted and enforeeabluld make it difficult to manufacture a codeefive product in those jurisdictic
and compliance with proposed new rules and reguigatimay increase our costs, alter our manufactymiogesses and impair the perform
of our products. As we abide by certain new opamé regulations, our products and processes may\uerned more rigorously by cert
state and federal environmental and health andyssfendards as well as the provisions of CalifofAioposition 65 (the Safe Drinking W:
and Toxic Enforcement Act of 1986) and 16 CFR B683 (Standard for the Flammability (Open Flamellattress Sets).

Our marketing and advertising practices could d#lscome the subject of proceedings before regulatatiorities or the subject
claims by other parties and could require us terat end these practices or adopt new practiegsatie not as effective or are more expensive

In addition, we are subject to federal, state amchll laws and regulations relating to pollutionyviesnmental protection ai
occupational health and safety. We may not be imptete compliance with all such requirements atilés. We have made and will contil
to make capital and other expenditures to compth winvironmental and health and safety requireméhtsrelease of hazardous substa
occurs on or from our properties or any associafégite disposal location, or if contamination frgrior activities is discovered at any of
properties, we may be held liable and the amousuoh liability could be material. As a manufactwébedding and related products, we
and dispose of a number of substances, such aslgiuiating oil, solvents and other petroleumdurcts, as well as certain foam ingredie
that may subject us to regulation under numeroteido, federal and state laws and regulations gungrthe environment. Among other le
and regulations, we are subject in the United Staiehe Federal Water Pollution Control Act, then@rehensive Environmental Respo
Compensation and Liability Act, the Resource Coveisn and Recovery Act, the Clean Air Act and tedastate and local statutes
regulations.

Our operations could also be impacted by a numbpending legislative and regulatory proposalsddrass greenhouse gas emiss
in the U.S. and other countries. Certain countnege adopted the Kyoto Protocol. New greenhousegghasction targets have been establi
under the Kyoto Protocol, as amended, and certaimtcies, including Denmark, have adopted the neduction targets. This and ot
international initiatives under consideration coalfiect our International operations. These actionsld increase costs associated with
operations, including costs for raw materials, ydn control equipment and transportation. Becatuiseuncertain what laws will be enact
we cannot predict the potential impact of such law®ur future consolidated financial conditiorsuiés of operations, or cash flows.

The three legacy Tempiedic manufacturing locations are certified to I54D01:2004. This is a voluntary standard that plesi
framework for an environmental management systeacthETempur-Pedic facility sets s#pecific goals for continually improving
performance within this important area. Environmaérgoals may include reducing energy consumptiomproving water conservatic
generating less waste, and recycling. Our systeaudited by an independent third party to ensureasgemaking progress toward our st
goals. As part of the integration efforts, projemts ongoing at Sealy manufacturing facilitiestpliement similar environmental measures.
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We have made and will continue to make capital atiter expenditures to comply with environmental drehlth and safe
requirements. With respect to the acquisition oélgewe could incur costs related to certain remagaoi activities. In particular, Sealy
currently addressing the cleap-of environmental contamination at certain off@smer facilities. For additional information rediéng thes
remediation activities, Refer to Note 13 , “ Commeints and Contingencies ify our Consolidated Financial Statements include®art I
ITEM 8 of this Report for a discussion of Commitrteeand Contingencies. In the event of an adverselolement or decision by one or m
of the governing environmental authorities, addigibcontamination being discovered with respecth&se or other properties or any tl
parties bringing claims related to these or othieperties, these or other matters could have arrabédfect on our profitability.

Our pension plans are currently underfunded and wey be required to make cash payments to the plasducing our available cash.

We maintain a domestic noncontributory, defineddfi¢pension plan covering current and former hperhployees at four of Seaty’
active plants and eight previously closed faciités well as a Canadian noncontributory, definegtitepension plan covering the employee
a facility of Sealys Canadian operations. We record a liability asdedi with these plans equal to the excess of thefib@bligation over tr
fair value of plan assets. If the performance efdlssets in these pension plans does not meexpertations, or if other actuarial assumpt
are modified, our future cash payments to the plamdd be higher than expected. The domestic pengian is subject to the Employ
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA”")ntker ERISA, the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corpona(f®BGC”) has the authority
terminate an underfunded pension plan under limitesimstances. In the event the domestic pendamip terminated for any reason whil
is underfunded, we will incur a liability to the BE that may be equal to the entire amount of tlertfanding.

In addition, hourly employees working at certain ®alys domestic manufacturing facilities are covered umjon sponsore
retirement and health and welfare plans. Thesesplmver both active employees and retirees. If dicg@ating employer ceases
contributions to the plan, the unfunded obligatioh¢he plan allocable to the withdrawing employey be borne by the remaining particiy
employers. Further, if we withdraw from a mudtiaployer pension plan in which we participate, wayrbe required to pay those plan:
amount based on our allocable share of the undéeflistatus of the plan. Such events may significémpair our profitability and liquidity.

Changes in tax laws and regulations or other factocould cause our income tax rate to increase, ptdly reducing net income an
adversely affecting cash flows.

We are subject to taxation in various jurisdictiansund the world. In preparing financial statersente calculate our annual effec
income tax rate based on current tax laws and aégok and the estimated taxable income within eddhese jurisdictions. Our effecti
income tax rate, however, may be higher due to momsefactors, including changes in accounting, léaxs or regulations. A significan
higher effective income tax rate than currenthi@pated could have an adverse effect on our basijmesults of operations and liquidity.

Officials in some of the jurisdictions in which vd® business, including the United States, haveqs®g or announced that they
considering tax increases and other revenue ralaing and regulations. Any resulting changes inléas or regulations could increase
effective tax rate or impose new restrictions, sast prohibitions on our current practices and cedour net income and adversely affect
cash flows.

Challenges to our pricing policies could adverselffect our operations

Certain of our retail pricing policies are subjez@antitrust regulations in the U.S. and abroa@nliitrust regulators in any jurisdicti
in which we do business initiate investigation®iat challenge our pricing or advertising policiesr efforts to respond could force us to di
management resources and we could incur signifigaanticipated costs. If such an investigation weresult in a charge that our practice
policies were in violation of applicable antitrustother laws or regulations, we could be subjeaignificant additional costs of defending s
charges in a variety of venues and, ultimatelyhére were a finding that we were in violation ofittust or other laws or regulations, th
could be an imposition of fines, and damages fosqes injured, as well as injunctive or other felfeny requirement that we pay fines
damages could decrease our liquidity and profitgbé&nd any investigation or claim that requiremgicant management attention or cause
to change our business practices could disrupbparations or increase our costs, also resultirgdecrease in our liquidity and profitabil
An antitrust class action suit against us couldltea potential liabilities, substantial costs ahe diversion of our managemesntttention ar
resources, regardless of the outcome.
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Our stock price is likely to continue to be volailyour investment could decline in value, and wayrincur significant costs from cla:
action litigation.

The trading price of our common stock is likelyctintinue to be volatile and subject to wide pfloetuations. The trading price of ¢
common stock may fluctuate significantly in respois various factors, including but not limited to:

» actual or anticipated variations in our quarteghgiating results, including those resulting frorassal variations in our busine

» general economic conditions, such as unemploynuiianges in short-term and lotegm interest rates and fluctuations in both
and equity capital markets;

e introductions or announcements of technologicabvations or new products by us or our competi

» disputes or other developments relating to propmnetights, including patents, litigation mattesigd our ability to patent, or otherw
protect, our products and technologies;

» changes in estimates by securities analysts ofioancial performance or the financial performaof®ur competitors or stateme
by others in the investment community relatinguotsperformance;

» stock repurchase prograr

» bankruptcies of any of our major custom

» conditions or trends in the mattress industry galhe

e additions or departures of key persor

* announcements by us or our competitors of sigmfie@quisitions, strategic partnerships, joint vees$ or capital commitmen

* announcements by our competitors or our major austs of their quarterly operating results or anmeuments by our competitors
our major customers of their views on trends intibdding industry;

* regulatory developments in the U.S. and abi

e economic and political factol

e public announcements or filings with the SEC intizgthat significant stockholders, directors ofiadrs are buying or selling sha
of our common stock; and

e the declaration or suspension of a cash divic

In addition, the stock market in general has exgpeed significant price and volume fluctuationst thave often been unrelatec
disproportionate to operating performance. Thesadmarket factors may seriously harm the markeepf our common stock, regardles
our operating performance.

In the past, following periods of volatility in thearket price of a compars/securities, securities class action litigatios bfien bee
instituted. A securities class action suit agausstould result in potential liabilities, substahttosts, and the diversion of our managensen
attention and resources, regardless of the outcBe®:'Legal Proceedings” included in Part |, ITEMf3his Report.

Future sales of our common stock may depress oocktprice.

The market price of our common stock could dechisea result of sales of substantial amounts ofcoutmon stock in the pub
market, or the perception that these sales coudroén addition, these factors could make it maifeicult for us to raise funds through futt
offerings of common stock. All shares of our comnstock are freely transferable without restrictarrfurther registration under the Securi
Act, except for certain shares of our common stehich were purchased by our executive officerssators, principal stockholders, and st
related parties.

We have stockholders who presently beneficially amare than 5.0% of our outstanding capital sto@e$ or other dispositions
our shares by these major stockholders may depresstock price.
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Provisions of Delaware law and our charter documentould delay or prevent an acquisition of us, eviérthe acquisition would b
beneficial to you.

Provisions of Delaware law and our certificate n€drporation and by-laws could hamper a third partgcquisition of us,
discourage a third party from attempting to acqowatrol of us. You may not have the opportunitypsoticipate in these transactions. T}
provisions could also limit the price that investanight be willing to pay in the future for shatéur common stock.

These provisions include:

» our ability to issue preferred stock with rigeemnior to those of the common stock without amth&r vote or action by the holders of
our common stock;

» the requirements that our stockholders provide ackaotice when nominating our directors;
« the inability of our stockholders to convend@ckholders’meeting without the chairperson of the board, ttesipgent, or a majority ¢

the board of directors first calling the meeting.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The following table sets forth certain informatiegarding our principal Tempur Sealy facilitiedDsicember 31, 2014 .

Approximate

Square
Name Location Footage Title Type of Facility
Tempur North America
Tempur Production USA, LLC Albuquerque, New Mexico 800,000 Leased Manufacturing
Tempur Production USA, LLC Duffield, Virginia 540,000 Owned Manufacturing
Tempur-Pedic Management, LLC Lexington, Kentucky 128,000 Owned Office
Tempur International
Dan-Foam ApS Aarup, Denmark 517,000 Owned Manufacturing
Tempur Deutschland GmbH Steinhagen, German 121,000 Owned Warehouse
Sealy
Sealy Mattress Co. of Albany, Inc. Green Island, New York 257,000 Leased Manufacturing
Ohio-Sealy Mattress Manufacturing Co. Conyers, Georgia 278,000 Owned Manufacturing
Sealy Mattress Company of Illinois Batavia, Illinois 210,000 Leased Manufacturing
Sealy Texas Management, Inc. Brenham, Texas 220,000 Owned® Manufacturing
Sealy Mattress Manufacturing Co. Inc. Denver, Colorado 69,000 Owned® Manufacturing
Sealy Mattress Manufacturing Co. Inc. Trinity, North Carolina 151,000 Owned Manufacturing
Sealy Mattress Co. of Kansas City, Inc. Kansas City, Kansas 122,000 Leased Manufacturing
Sealy Mattress Company Medina, Ohio 142,000 Owned® Manufacturing
Sealy Mattress Manufacturing Co. Inc. Orlando, Florida 225,000 Owned® Manufacturing
Sealy Mattress Manufacturing Co. Inc. Phoenix, Arizona 252,000 Leased Manufacturing
Sealy Mattress Manufacturing Co. Inc. Richmond, California 240,000 Owned® Manufacturing
Sealy Mattress Manufacturing Co. Inc. South Gate, California 178,000 Leased Manufacturing
Sealy of Minnesota, Inc. St Paul, Minnesota 89,000 Owned® Manufacturing
Sealy of Maryland and Virginia, Inc. Williamsport, Maryland 144,000 Leased Manufacturing
Sealy Mattress Manufacturing Co. Inc. Plainfield, Indiana 614,000 Leased Manufacturing
Sealy Mattress Manufacturing Co. Inc. Lacey, Washington 134,000 Leased Manufacturing
The Ohio Mattress Company Licensing & Componel
Group, Inc. Mountain Top, Pennsylvan 210,000 Leased Manufacturing
Sealy Mattress Company Medina, Ohio 15,000 Leased Warehouse
Sealy Canada, Ltd Alberta, Canada 145,000 Owned® Manufacturing
Sealy Canada, Ltd Ontario, Canada 131,000 Leased Manufacturing
Sealy Canada, Ltd Quebec, Canada 76,000 Owned® Manufacturing
Sealy Argentina SRL Buenos Aires, Argentina 85,000 Owned Manufacturing
Sealy Mattress Company Mexico, S. de R.L. de C.V Toluca, Mexico 157,000 Owned Manufacturing
Sealy do Brasil, Limitada Sorocaba, Brazil 92,000 Owned® Manufacturing
Sealy Mattress Company of Puerto Rico Carolina, Puerto Rico 59,000 Owned® Manufacturing
Sealy Uruguay SRL Montevidea, Uruguay 40,000 Leased Manufacturing

(@) We have granted a mortgage or otherwise encumioereidterest in this facility as collateral for seed indebtednes
(b) This facility represents our former manufacturiagifity in Brazil which is currently being leaseala third party over a period of twelve ye

In addition to the properties listed above, we hatfeer facilities in other countries, the majorityder leases with one to ten y
terms. The manufacturing facility in AlbuquerquesMexico is leased as part of the related indaistévenue bond financing. We have
option to repurchase the property for one dollarrugermination of the lease.

We believe that our existing properties are su@dbl the conduct of our business, are adequatedoipresent needs and will
adequate to meet our future needs.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

(a) Norfolk County Retirement System, Individually amd behalf of all others similarly situated, Plafiitiv. TempurPedic
International Inc., Mark A. Sarvary and Dale E. Wdins; filed June 20, 201

Arthur Benning, Jr., Individually and on behalf af others similarly situated, Plaintiff v. TempBedic International Inc., Mark .
Sarvary and Dale E. Williams; filed June 25, 2012

On June 20 and 25, 2012, the above suits weredi@ihst the Company and twamed executive officers in the United States i3t
Court for the Eastern District of Kentucky, purgaty on behalf of a proposed class of stockholaers purchased the Compasystocl
between January 25, 2012 and June 5, 2012. Thelaimtspassert claims under Sections 10(b) and 2f(#)e Exchange Act, alleging, amc
other things, false and misleading statements amtealment of material information concerning thempanys competitive positio
projected net sales, earnings per diluted sharereladed financial performance for the Compang012 fiscal year. The plaintiffs st
damages, interest, costs, attorgefges, expert fees and unspecified equitablefitium relief. On November 2, 2012, the Court coiusiec
the two lawsuits and on March 6, 2013, plaintiffed a consolidated complaint. On March 31, 20b4, €ourt issued an Order granting
Companys motion to dismiss with prejudice the consolidatemnplaint. The Court issued its memorandum of iopirand entered fin
judgment on May 23, 2014. On June 6, 2014, thenpits filed a notice of appeal. The Company interid vigorously defend against
claims. The outcome of these matters is uncertaiwever, and although the Company does not cuyremplect to incur a loss with respec
these matters, the Company cannot currently prélgéctnanner and timing of the resolution of thd, saan estimate of a range of losses or
minimum loss that could result in the event of dwease judgment in this suit, or whether the Comgpmmapplicable insurance policies \
provide sufficient coverage for these claims. Adiogly, the Company can give no assurance thaetiredters will not have a material adw
effect on the Company’s financial position or réswaif operations.

(b) Sealy Mattress Company of NJ, Inc., David Hertdjvidually, as trustee of, respectively, the Alfisbindsay Hertz Trust, tl
Samuel Douglas Hertz Trust, the Sydney Lauren Hemust, the U/A DTD 08/21/97 Andrew Michael Marcdusist, the U/A DTD 08/21/¢
Julia Robyn Marcus Trust, and the U/A DTD 08/21ames Daniel Marcus Trust, and as executor of gtate of Walter Hertz, Lisa Marci
Rose Naiman, Michael Shoobs, and Diane Shoobgjidhdilly and as custodian of the Robert S. ShoobsIA NJ v. Sealy Corporation, fil
June 27, 2013.With respect to the Sealy Acquisition, holders pprximately 3.1 milliorshares of Sealy common stock sent notices to
purporting to exercise their appraisal rights icadance with the Merger Agreement executed oneBapdr 26, 2012. In order to prese
these appraisal rights, any such former stockholder required to commence an appraisal proceeditigei Delaware courts withit20 day
after March 18, 2013. Sealy has expressly resdtgathts to contest that any or all of such nedievere not delivered timely or otherwise
in the form required under Delaware law. On Jung2®3, an appraisal proceeding was commenceceilDéiaware Court of Chancery (
“Appraisal Action”). Sealy will be required to palye courtdetermined fair value of the Sealy common stockimty held by the former Se:
stockholders seeking the appraisal, plus interefiteastatutory rate. This could impact the Comparinancial condition and liquidity. T!
Company believes that the merger considerationfaiagnd the appraised value should be equal fess than the merger consideration
therefore, the case lacks merit. The Company iténdiefend against the claims vigorously. Thistemas at a very preliminary stage, and
outcome is uncertain. As a result, the Companynable to reasonably estimate the possible losarayer of losses, if any, arising from -
litigation, or whether the Company’s applicabletiraice policies will provide sufficient coverage fbese claims.

(c) Alvin Todd, and Henry and Mary Thompson, indivitjuaind on behalf of all others similarly situatdlaintiffs v. Tempur Sec
International, Inc., formerly known as Tem-Pedic International, Inc. and Temp@&edic North America, LLC, Defendants; filed OctoBé&i
2013

On October 25, 2013, a suit was filed against Tangealy International and one of its domestic dibsies in the United Stai
District Court for the Northern District of Califieia, purportedly on behalf of a proposed classcohSumers’as defined by Cal. Civ. Code
1761(d) who purchased, not for resale, a Tenrdic mattress or pillow in the State of Califorr@m November 19, 2013, the Company
served for the first time in the case but with ameaded petition adding additional class represeetafor additional states. The purpo
classes seek certification of claims under appleatate laws.
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The complaint alleges that the Company engagedfairubusiness practices, false advertising, anstepresentations or omissi
related to the sale of certain products. The gféénseek restitution, injunctive relief and allhet relief allowed under applicable state I
interest, attorneysfees and costs. The purported classes do not seeéges for physical injuries. The Company belid¢liescase lacks me
and intends to defend against the claims vigorougys matter is at a very preliminary stage, amel éutcome is uncertain. As a result,
Company is unable to reasonably estimate the deskibs or range of losses, if any, arising frons fitigation, or whether the Company’
applicable insurance policies will provide sufficiecoverage for these claims. Accordingly, the Campcan give no assurance that this m
will not have a material adverse effect on the Canys financial position or results of operations.

(d) German Regulatory InvestigatioThe German Federal Cartel Office (FCO) has conducteannounced inspections of
premises of several mattress wholesaler/manufastimeluding our German subsidiary. The order p#img the inspection and collection
records alleged “vertical price fixingThe FCO's review is ongoing but we have yet to ivecany statement of objections regarding
alleged claims against the Company. If claimsasgerted by the FCO, the Company intends to dedgadhst the claims vigorously. 1
outcome of the FCO's review is uncertain; howegaren the inherent uncertainties involved, theconte of this matter cannot be predi
and the amount of any potential loss cannot beoredsy estimated. A negative outcome in this casgdchave a material adverse effect or
Company.

(e) Environmental. The Company is currently conducting an environmlecieanup at a formerly owned facility in SouthuBswick
New Jersey pursuant to the New Jersey Industrial @covery Act. Sealy and one of its subsidiaaiesparties to an Administrative Cons
Order issued by the New Jersey Department of Enmiental Protection. Pursuant to that order, Seadyis subsidiary agreed to conduct
and groundwater remediation at the property. They@my does not believe that its manufacturing Eees were the source of contamina
The Company sold the property in 1997. The Compatained primary responsibility for the requirednesdiation. Previously, the Comps
removed and disposed of contaminated soil fromsike with the New Jersey Department of EnvironmeRtatection approval, and 1
Company has installed a groundwater remediatiotesyson the site. During 2005, with the approvaltloé New Jersey Department
Environmental Protection, the Company removed asdoded of sediment in Oakeys Brook adjoining tite. §he Company continues
monitor ground water at the site. During 2012, vtttk approval of the New Jersey Department of Bmwirental Protection, the Compi
commenced the removal and disposal of additionatacninated soil from the site. The Company hasroeEmb a reserve as a componer
other accrued expenses and other noncurrent tiabilin the accompanying Consolidated Balance Shestof December 31, 2014 for §
million associated with this remediation project.

The Company has also undertaken a remediation ibfisd groundwater contamination at an inactivelifsgclocated in Oakville
Connecticut. Although the Company is conducting teenediation voluntarily, it obtained Connecticutegartment of Energy a
Environmental Protection (“DEEP"approval of the remediation plan. In 2012, the Canypsubmitted separate closure reports tc
Connecticut DEEP for the lower portion of the sited the upper portion of the site. The ConnectEEP approved the Compasyelosur
report for the upper portion of the site and alawegconditional approval to the Companglosure report for the lower portion of the sifiehe
Company is continuing to work with the ConnectiEEP and is performing additional testing to obteliwsure for the lower portion of t
site. The Company has recorded a liability of agpnately $0.1 million associated with the complatiaf the closure of its remediation effc
at the site. The Company does not believe the ountdion on this site is attributable to the Comparmperations.

The Company cannot predict the ultimate timing asts of the South Brunswick and Oakville environtaematters. Based on fa
currently known, the Company believes that the @wadsrrecorded are adequate and does not believegbkition of these matters will hav
material effect on the financial position or futwperations of the Company. However, in the evdrdaroadverse decision by the agen
involved, or an unfavorable result in the New Jgraatural resources damages matter, these matbeid bave a material effect on
Company’s financial position or results of operasio

In 1998, the Company sold an inactive facility f@chin Putnam, Connecticut. In 2012, the Comparcgived a letter from t
attorney for the current owner of that propertyiroiag that the Company may have some responsilfdityan environmental condition on
property. The Company continues to investigate thater, but intends to vigorously defend the clafmthe current owner against
Company.
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() Income tax assessmenihe Company has received income tax assessmemstfre Danish Tax Authority (“SKAT”).The
Company believes it has meritorious defenses toptbposed adjustments and will oppose the assessnannecessary in the appropi
Danish venue. The Company believes the litigatimc@ss to reach a final resolution of this mattarld potentially extend over the next {
years. If the Company is not successful in defemdior position that the Company owes no additidémeds, the Company could be require
pay a significant amount to SKAT, which could impai reduce our liquidity and profitability. Fordescription of these assessments
additional information with respect to these assesds and the various related legal proceedings,Nsge 14 , “ Income Taxesih out
Consolidated Financial Statements included in RaTEM 8 of this Report.

(g) Other. The Company is involved in various other legal pextings incidental to the operations of its busindhe Compar
believes that the outcome of all such pending lpgateedings in the aggregate will not have a ristadverse effect on its business, finar
condition, liquidity, or operating results.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

None.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT' S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market for Registrars Common Equity
Our sole class of common equity is our $0p@t value common stock, which trades on the NewkY8iock Exchange (NYSE) unc
the symbol “TPX."Trading of our common stock commenced on the NY8Hecember 18, 2003. Prior to that time, there m@apublic

trading market for our common stock.

The following table sets forth the high and lowesaprices per common share, at closing, of our cmmstock as reported by -

NYSE.
Price Range
High Low
Fiscal 2013
First Quarter $ 51.02 $ 32.11
Second Quarter 50.4¢ 39.4¢
Third Quarter 47.8( 36.1-
Fourth Quarter 54.3¢ 37.2¢
Fiscal 2014
First Quarter $ 54.3¢ % 45 .6¢
Second Quarter 59.7( 46.7¢
Third Quarter 61.3¢ 54.2¢
Fourth Quarter 58.71 49.9¢
As of February 10, 2015 , we had approximatelyt®éldolders of record of our common stock.
Dividends

The Company did not pay any dividends in 2014 dr320The decision to pay a dividend in future periedeeviewed by our Board
Directors on a periodic basis. Further, the Comparsubject to certain customary restrictions oriddinds under its Indenture and the 2
Credit Agreement. See Note 6, "Dehtih our Consolidated Financial Statements, incluate@art 1, Item 8 of this Report, for a compl
discussion of the 2012 Credit Agreement and Indentu
Recent Sales of Unregistered Securi

There were no sales of unregistered securitiesigtne year ended December 31, 2014 .

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securit

There were no repurchases of our common stockhéotiiree months ended December 31, 2014 .
Equity Compensation Plan Informati

Equity Compensation Plan Information required kg ttem is incorporated by reference from PartITEM 12 of this Report.
Performance Grapl

The following Performance Graph and related infotima shall not be deemed to be “soliciting matetiat to be “filed” with the

Securities and Exchange Commission, nor shall sefoihmation be incorporated by reference into antufe filing under the Securities Act
Exchange Act, except to the extent that the Comgaegifically incorporates it by reference into kuiing.
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The following table compares cumulative stockholdgurns for the Company over the last five yearthé Standard & Po@’'(S&P
500 Stock Composite Index, and a peer group. The 580 Composite Index is a capitalization weighietex of 500 stocks intended to
representative sample of leading companies in hegitidustries within the U.S. economy, and are ehdsr market size, liquidity and indus
group representation. We believe the peer groupetjoreflects our business and, as a result, pesvideaningful comparison of st
performance.

The peer issuers included in this graph are s#t foglow:

Peer Group
Brunswick Corp. Harman International Industries, Inc. Newell Rubbermaid Inc.
Carter's, Inc. Hasbro, Inc. Polaris Industries Inc.
Columbia Sportswear Co. Jarden Corp. Select Comfort Corp.
Deckers Outdoor Corp. Leggett & Platt, Inc. Stasé Inc.
Dorel Industries Inc. Lexmark International, Inc. Tupperware Brands Corp.
Fossil Group, Inc. Mattress Firm Holding Corp. deén Armour, Inc.
Gildan Activewear Inc. Herman Miller, Inc. Williams-Sonoma, Inc.
Hanesbrands Inc. Mohawk Industries, Inc. Wolweiorld Wide, Inc.
COMPARISON OF 5§ YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
3350
$300
$250
$200 - - ' __.---f.
. 4 =
o
B150 - \ A
Y B = A e " -_F‘-_}_f-—-"
L
$100 |
S50 T T T T T T
12/0% 1210 12711 12412 12713 1214
Tempur Sealy Internatienal. Ine. —l— S&P 500
Peer Group
12/31/2009 12/31/2010 12/31/2011 12/31/2012 12/31/2013 12/31/2014
Tempur Sealy International, Inc. $ 100.0¢ $ 169.5! $ 22230 % 133.2¢ $ 2283 $ 232.37
S&P 500 100.0¢ 115.0¢ 117.4¢ 136.3( 180.4« 205.1:
Peer Group 100.0¢ 137.9: 135.9: 176.47 273.9: 319.3¢
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth our selected histakiconsolidated financial and operating data far periods indicated. We he
derived our statements of income and balance statatas of and for the years ended December 34, 29013 , 2012 , 2011 and 20ft6m
our audited financial statements. Our financialesteents as of December 31, 2014 and 2ixiBfor each of the three years in the period €
December 31, 2014 are included in ITEM 15, undet Réof this Report.

(in millions, except per common share amounts)

Statement of Income Data: 2014 2013® 2012 2011 2010
Net sales $ 2,989.¢ $ 24640 $ 1,402¢ $ 1,417¢ $ 1,105
Cost of sales 1,839.- 1,449.. 688.: 674.¢ 550.(
Gross profit 1,150.¢ 1,014.¢ 714.¢ 743.1 555.¢
Operating expense 874.1 771.1 466.2 402.¢ 309.t
Operating income 276.% 243.¢ 248.: 340.t 245.¢
Interest expense, net 91.¢ 110.¢ 18.€ 11.¢€ 14.%
Loss on disposal, net 23.2 — — — —
Other (income) expense, net (13.9) 5.C 0.3 0.2 0.5
Income before income taxes 174.¢ 128.( 229.2 328.¢ 230.¢
Income tax provision (64.9) (49.) (122.9 (108.¢) (73.7)
Net income before non-controlling interest 110.C 78.¢ 106.¢ 219.€ 157.Z
Less: income attributable to non-controlling intre 1.1 .3 — — —
Net income attributable to Tempur Sealy Internatipmc. $ 108.¢ $ 78.6 $ 106.¢ $ 219.¢ $ 157.2

Balance Sheet Data (at end of period):

Cash and cash equivalents $ 625 % 81.C $ 179.5  $ 1112 $ 53.€
Total asset® 2,662.¢ 2,729.¢ 1,319t 838.2 716.(
Total debt? 1,574.¢ 1,808.¢ 1,025.( 585.( 407.(
Capital leases 27.1 27.¢ — — —
Redeemable non-controlling interest 12.€ 11t — — —
Total stockholders' equity 202.7 118.¢€ 22.% 30.¢ 126.(
Other Financial and Operating Data:
Dividends per common share $ — 3 — 8 — $ — —
Depreciation and amortizatiéh 89.7 91t 42.C 51.C 44.C
Net cash provided by operating activities 225.% 98.t 189.¢ 248.% 184.1
Net cash used in investing activities (10.9 (1,213.0) (55.0 (36.1) (37.5)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (238.)) 1,013. (70.9) (148.9 (106.4)
Basic earnings per common share 1.7¢ 1.3C 1.74 3.27 2.2¢%
Diluted earnings per common share 1.7¢ 1.2¢ 1.7¢ 3.1¢ 2.1¢
Capital expenditures 47.F 40.C 50.5 29.5 18.1

(1) Includes Sealy results of operations from March2l8,3 through December 31, 2013. Information preskfor periods prior to March 18, 2013
not include Sealy and as a result, the informati@y not be comparable. Refer to Note 3 , “ Acquisi and Divestitures ih our Consolidate
Financial Statements included in Part Il, ITEM &t Report for additional information regardig tSealy Acquisition.

(2) Includes issuance of $375.0 million of Senior Nate®ecember 2012, with cash proceeds held in @satoDecember 31, 2012. The net proc
from the Senior Notes were used as part of then&img for the Sealy Acquisition. Refer to Note“tDQebt ” in our Consolidated Financial Statem:
included in Part Il, ITEM 8 of this Report for atidnal information regarding the Senior Notes.

(3) Includes $13.4 million , $16.9 million , $5cillion , $16.7 million , and $11.6 million in norash stockkased compensation expense relatt
restricted stock units, performance restrictedlstoits, deferred stock units and stock optiongdth4 , 2013, 2012 , 2011 , and 2010 , respectively
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis should bedr&a conjunction with ITEM 6 under Part 1l of thReport and the audit
consolidated financial statements and accompangotgs thereto included elsewhere in this Reportetimotherwise noted, all of the finan
information in this Report is consolidated finarddiaformation for the Company. The forwalabking statements in this discussion regan
the mattress and pillow industries, our expectatioegarding our future performance, liquidity anapital resources and other ndristorical
statements in this discussion are subject to nuoerisks and uncertainties. See “Special Note RaiggrForward-Looking Statementsinc
ITEM 1A under Part | of this Report. Our actual ués may differ materially from those containediny forwarclooking statements.

In this discussion and analysis, we discuss anthexthe consolidated financial condition and resof operations for the years en
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, including tHevidhg topics:

* an overview of our business, including the asifjoin of Sealy Corporation and its historical ddizgies (“Sealy”)that closed @
March 18, 2013 ("Sealy Acquisition™);

» the effect of the foregoing on our overall finahgarformance and conditic

» our net sales and costs in the periods presentedlhas changes between periods;

e expected sources of liquidity for future operati

Business Overview
General

We are the world's largest bedding provider. Weetlgy, manufacture, market, and distribute beddioglycts, which we sell global
Our brand portfolio includes many of the most hygrdcognized brands in the industry, including TEMI®, Tempur-Pedic®, Sealy@ealy
Posturepedic®, Optimum™, and Stearns & Fosté&d® comprehensive suite of bedding products oféexsriety of products to consum
across a broad range of channels.

We sell our products through three distributionrofels in each operating business segment: Retaili{fire and bedding retaile
department stores, specialty retailers and wareholus); Direct (e-commerce platforms, compamyred stores, and call centers); and C
(third party distributors, hospitality and healtheaustomers).

Business Segmer

We have three reportable business segments: TeRgotit America, Tempur International, and Sealy. Séheeportable segments
strategic business units that are managed separ@et Tempur North America segment consists of th&. manufacturing facilities and «
Tempur North America distribution subsidiaries. Q@mpur International segment consists of our maetufing facility in Denmark, who
customers include all of our distribution subsigiarand third party distributors outside our Templarth America and Sealy segme
Additionally, in 2014 our Tempur International segmacquired the Sealy brand rights for contineBtabpe and Japan from Sealy licens
Net sales from the Sealy products we have introdluoethese markets are included in our Tempur hatisnal segment results. Our St
segment consists of compaawned and operated bedding and manufacturing tiasiliocated around the world, along with distribo
subsidiaries, joint ventures, and licensees. Weiat@segment performance based on net sales analtiog income.

Strategy

We are the world largest bedding provider and the only providehwgiobal scale. For a complete overview of ouritess, includin
a description of our segments, see "Business” uRderl, ITEM | of this Report. We believe our fegugrowth potential is significant in ¢
existing markets and through expansion into newkatar Our goal is to improve the sleep of more psogvery night, all around the world
is our goal to become the share leader in evermtcpuve compete in. In order to achieve our ldagn growth potential while managing
current economic and competitive environment, wi facus on investing in our brands, developing uimerpreferred products, expand
distribution and striving for highest dealer advocaand, where appropriate, making strategic acipisi. In addition, we will focus ¢
improving our cost competitiveness to fund our Btagents, expand margins and grow stockholder v&ue.strategy will focus on the k
strategic growth initiatives described below:
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Brands

We will increase our investment in advertising amarketing for each of our key brands to increasesemer awareness, prefere
and loyalty. We will also invest in istore marketing and direct sales to maximize ol@ssapportunity driven from national brand and itet
advertising.

Products

We will continue to invest in research and develeptto leverage the combined technologies of omprehensive portfolio
products to deliver a stream of innovative, consupmeferred products in each element of our portfdlar goal is to provide consumers
best bed and best sleep of their life and to pewdr retailers a complete and optimal offeringoasrbrands, products, and prices to ¢
growth. We will also pursue opportunities to erdedevelop new product categories.

Distribution

We will expand distribution globally, in existinghé new markets, and strive for highest dealer aglwpdy investing in ar
supporting our brands and products, and providiqpsor service.

Acquisitions

We may pursue strategic acquisitions of complemgrdampanies from time to time, including existilngensees, joint ventures &
third party distributors, as well as other stratégternational brands in existing markets.

Factors That Could Impact Results of Operations

The factors outlined below could impact our futvesults of operations. For more extensive discassidhese and other risk factc
please refer to "Risk Factors”, under Part |, ITEMin this Report.

General Business and Economic Conditions

Our business has been affected by general busames®conomic conditions, and these conditions cbalkk an impact on futt
demand for our products. The global economic enwrent continues to be challenging, and we expestuthcertainty to continue. \
continued to make strategic investments, includingoducing new products; investing in increasing global brand awareness; extending
presence and improving our Retail account proditgtand distribution; investing in our operatingrastructure to meet the requirement
our business; and taking other actions to furttrengthen our business.

Exchange Rate

As a multinational company, we conduct our busiriasa wide variety of currencies and are therefeubject to market risk f
changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign currercllange rate movements also create a degreskdfyriaffecting the U.S. dollar value
sales made and costs incurred in foreign currengéesuse foreign exchange forward contracts to gp@maportion of the exposure to the
of the eventual net cash inflows and outflows r@sglfrom foreign currency denominated transactibesween our subsidiaries and t
customers and suppliers, as well as among certdisidiaries. These hedging transactions may natesacin managing our foreign curre
exchange rate risk. Consequently, our reportedregsrand financial position could fluctuate matkyias a result of foreign exchange gain
losses. Should currency rates change sharply, esults could be negatively impacted. In 2014, fpreturrency exchange rate char
negatively impacted our net income by approximate%. In 2015, we expect foreign currency excharage changes will continue
negatively impact our results of operations, anslithpact will be more significant in 2015 thanZ@14.

Competition

Participants in the bedding industry compete pritmam price, quality, brand name recognition, protlavailability, and produ
performance. We compete with a number of differigpes of mattress alternatives, including standangrspring mattresses, viscoela
mattresses, foam mattresses, hybrid innerspring/ioattresses, futons, air beds and othes@dported mattresses. These alternative prc
are sold through a variety of channels, includingniture and bedding stores, department storess rmeeschants, wholesale clubs, Inter
telemarketing programs, television infomercialgvesion advertising and catalogs.

32




Table of Contents

Our Tempur North America segment competes primamihe noninnerspring mattress category as well as hybridness categorie
and contributed 33.2% of our net sales for the yeated December 31, 20140ur Sealy segment competes across the industoptim the
innerspring and non-innerspring categories andritaried 51.0% of our net sales for the year endedeimber 31, 2014 . The namerspring
and innerspring mattress categories are highly etithge, with many competitor products supporteddmgressive marketing campaigns
promotions. As a result of this competition, owsuks could be impacted.

Gross Margins

Our gross margin is primarily impacted by the riglatamount of net sales contributed by our busiseggnents. The Sealy segn
operates at a significantly lower gross margin ttten Tempur North America and Tempur Internatisedments. Our Sealy segment of
mattress products which range from value to prenpuced offerings. Gross margins are typically lggbn premium compared to value pri
mattresses. Our Tempur North America and Tempuarational segments offer exclusively premium mticeattresses. Additionally, ¢
Tempur North America gross margin has historichfgn lower than that of our Tempur Internationghsent.

We acquired Sealy on March 18, 2013, and 2014 haéirst fiscal year that included a full year afaBy results. Sealy's net sales v
51.0% and 45.2%f our total net sales for the years ended Dece®be?014 and 2013, respectively. Due to Sealgiease as a percentag
our total net sales in 2014, our gross margin wagel in 2014 as compared to 2013. We expect thigthee impact on gross margin
continue in the future, primarily resulting frometlanticipated growth of Sealy products sold throaghTempur International segment, wt
will continue to unfavorably impact our gross matgi

Our gross margin is also impacted by fixed costfage; the cost of raw materials; operational iefficy; product, channel a
geographic mix; volume incentives offered to certagtail accounts; and costs associated with nadyat introductions. Future increase
raw material prices could have a negative impaatiangross margin if we are unable to offset therough price increases or cost product
initiatives. Our gross margin can also be impadigdour operational efficiencies, including the parar levels of utilization in ot
manufacturing facilities. If we increase our ndesasignificantly, the effect of this operating éeage could have a positive impact on our ¢
margin. Conversely, if we experience decreasesiimet sales, the effect of this operating deleyereould have a significant negative im|
on our gross margin. Our margins are also impalsiethe growth in our Retail channel as sales inRetrail channel are at wholesale pr
whereas sales in our Direct channel are at refigiép.

In 2015, we expect gross margin to benefit from cost petiglity and synergies, pricing and leverage, offsgtinvestments in ne
products, product and channel mix and the effeathainges in foreign exchange rates. We also eXpezign exchange to negatively imp
our gross margin, due to our foreign subsidiariben a significant portion of their material comte denominated in U.S. dollars.

New Product Development and Introduct

Each year we invest significant time and resouncgssearch and development to improve our prodffetings. There are a numl|
of risks inherent in our new product line introdaos, including that the anticipated level of mdrkeceptance may not be realized, w
could negatively impact our sales. Also, produtitoiduction costs, the speed of the rollout of thedpct and manufacturing inefficiencies r
be greater than anticipated, which could impacfitadality.

Financial Leverage and Liquidit

As of December 31, 2014 , we had $1,602.3 millibrde@bt outstanding, and our stockholders’ equitys B202.7 million. Highe
financial leverage makes us more vulnerable to ig¢melverse competitive, economic and industry @, There can be no assurance
our business will generate sufficient cash flownfroperations or that future borrowing will be agbile. As of December 31, 2014ur ratio o
funded debt less qualified cash to adjusted EBITMS 3.89 times within the covenant in our debt agreements whirolits this ratio to 4.7
times for the year ended December 31, 2014 . Faermdormation on this noBAAP measure, please refer to the section set foethw
“Non-GAAP Financial Measures”.
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Sealy Integration

Our Sealy Acquisition is significant, and we mayt lie able to successfully complete the integratimwl combination of tt
operations, personnel and technology of Sealy with operations. Because of the size and complefitgealys business, if we do r
successfully manage integration, we may experién@gruptions in our business activities, a detation in our employee and custol
relationships, increased costs of integration aadnhto our reputation, all of which could have atenial adverse effect on our busin
financial condition and results of operations. Wayralso experience difficulties in combining comer cultures, maintaining employee ma
and retaining key employees. The integration mag ahpose substantial demands on our managemeerte Thno assurance that impro
operating results will be achieved as a resulhef$ealy Acquisition or that the businesses wilsbecessfully integrated in a timely manner.

Sealy Acquisition

On March 18, 2013, we completed the Sealy AcqoisitRefer to Note 3 , “ Acquisitions and Divestésr”, in our Consolidate
Financial Statements included in Part I, ITEM &t Report for a discussion of the Sealy AcqigritPursuant to the merger agreement,
share of common stock of Sealy issued and outstgridimediately prior to the effective date of trealy Acquisition was canceled and (o
than shares held by Sealy or Tempadic or their subsidiaries or Sealy stockholdens wroperly exercised their appraisal rights) cotes
into the right to receive $2.20 in cash. The tgaichase price was $1,172.9 million, which was &ddsing available cash and financ
consisting of our 2012 Credit Agreement and SeNiates. Refer to Note 6 , “ Debtif)y our Consolidated Financial Statements incluaeBar
II, ITEM 8 of this Report for the definition of tee terms and further discussion. The purchase pfi€ealy, including debt assumed, consi
of the following items:

(in millions)

Cash consideration for stock $ 231 @
Cash consideration for share-based awards 142 @
Cash consideration for 8.0% Sealy Notes 442.1 ©
Cash consideration for repayment of Sealy SenideNo 260.7 @
Cash consideration for repayment of Sealy 2014 Note 276.¢ ©
Total consideration 1,225.:
Cash acquired (52.2) ©®
Net consideration transferred $ 1,172.¢

(1) The cash consideration for outstanding shaféealy common stock is the product of the agigemh cash per share price of $2.20 and total
shares of 105.1 million.

(2) The cash consideration for share-based awsutti® product of the agreegbon cash per share price of $2.20 and the totabeu of restricted sto
units (“RSUs”) and deferred stock units (“DSUs”"}standing and the “in the money” stock optionsafahe weighted average exercise price.

(3) The cash consideration for 8.0% Sealy Notes isréselt of applying the adjusted equity conversiaterto the 8.0% Sealy Notes tenderec
conversion and multiplying the result by the agrepdn cash per share price of $2.20. The 8.0% S¢algs that were converted representes
right to receive the same merger consideration wuatld have been payable to a holder of 201.0 onilshares of Sealy common stock, subje
adjustment in accordance with the terms of the lempgntal indenture governing the 8.0% Sealy Notes.

(4) The cash consideration for Sealy’s 10.875% @d¥otes due 2016 (“Sealy Senior Notegjlects the repayment of the outstanding oblige

(5) The cash consideration for Sealy’s 8.25% SeBigbordinated Notes due 2014 (“Sealy 2014 Notesflpcts the repayment of the outstan
obligation.

(6) Represents the Sealy cash balance acquired asdimn
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Results of Operations
A summary of our results for the year ended Decer@bhe2014 include:

» Earnings per diluted common share (“EPS”) fa thil year 2014 were $1.75 compared to EPS of&pe? diluted share for the f
year2013. The 2014 results reflect a loss on the dispok#he Sealy innerspring component facilities, imgggn costs associal
with the continued alignment of the business, amdamn nonrecurring items, including financing costs and mmeofrom a parti
settlement of a legal dispute. The 2013 resultbude results for Sealy from March 18, 2013, theudgition date, and also refl
transaction and integration costs related to tlggiigition of Sealy, financing costs related to te#nancing of our Term A and Termr
loans under our 2012 Credit Agreement, as welhagtovision adjustments related to the repatmiatibforeign earnings utilized
connection with the Sealy Acquisition.

» Adjusted EPS were $2.65 for the full year 2054campared to adjusted EPS $2.38 for the full &3 . Unfavorable foreig
exchange impacted adjusted EPS by $0.15 for tHey&adr 2014 as compared to the full year 2013. 0452 we expect forei
exchange will continue to negatively impact adjdsPS, and the impact will be more significant @12 than it was in 2014. Fo
discussion and reconciliation of EPS to adjuste8,B#hich is a non-GAAP measure, refer to the B@AP financial information s
forth below under the heading “Non-GAAP Financrablrmation”.

* Net income for the full yee2014 was $108.9 million as compared to net incofrf&78.6 million for the full year 2013Adjusted ne
income was $164.6 million for the full year 2014casnpared to adjusted net income of $146.4 milfamthe full year 2013 For ¢
discussion and reconciliation of net income to ajd net income, which is a non-GAAP measure, reféhe noncAAP financia
information set forth below under the heading “NBAAP Financial Information”.

* Net saledincreased 21.3% to $2,989.8 million for the fulay@014 compared to $2,464.3 million for the fidhy 2013 On a consta
currency basis, net sales for the full year 20t4eiased 23.0%. The net sales increase was driv&edly's results being reflected
the full year ended December 31, 2014 as comparéuket postacquisition period of March 18, 2013 through Decenibl, 2013, ¢
well as growth in each of our three business setgném 2015, we expect foreign exchange will camtirto negatively impact r
sales, and the impact will be more significant@12 than it was in 2014.

e Gross margin for the full year 2014 was 38.5%@mpared to 41.2% for the full year 201Bhe gross margin decreased primarily
result of lower gross margins in each of our tHoasiness segments, and the inclusion of Sealy,hMés lower margins than -
Tempur North America and Tempur International segsiefor the full year ended December 31, 2014 aaapared to the post-
acquisition period of March 18, 2013 through Decenti, 2013.

e Operating income for the full year 2014 was $3#@illion as compared to $243.8 million for thdl ftear 2013. Operating income fi
the full year 2014 and 204i8cluded $43.8 million integration and financingst®and $44.6 million of integration and transactost:
related to the Sealy Acquisition, respectively. 2015, we expect foreign exchange will continue ématively impact operatii
income, and the impact will be more significanBil5 than it was in 2014.

We may refer to net sales or earnings or otheotiéstl financial information on a “constant currgngasis”, which is a noGAAP
measure. These references to constant currency tasiot include operational impacts that couldiltedsom fluctuations in foreign curren
rates. To provide information on a constant curydasis, the applicable financial results are adpidased on a simple mathematical m
that translates current period results in locatency using the comparable prior year peoclirrency conversion rate. This approach is
for countries where the functional currency is lbeal country currency. This information is provilso that certain financial results car
viewed without the impact of fluctuations in foreigurrency rates, thereby facilitating periodgeriod comparisons of business performe
Constancy currency information is not recognizedasrJ.S. GAAP, and it is not intended as an altdragdo U.S. GAAP measures. Refe
ITEM 7A under Part Il of this Report.
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The following table sets forth the various compdresf our Consolidated Statements of Income, amtemses each component

percentage of net sales:

Year Ended December 31,

(in millions, except per common share amounts)

Net sales $

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling and marketing expenses

General, administrative and other

Equity income in earnings of unconsolidated afté&
Royalty income, net of royalty expense

Operating income

Other expense, net:

Interest expense, net

Loss on disposal, net

Other (income) expense, net

Total other expense

Income before income taxes
Income tax provision

Net income before non-controlling interest

Less: Net income attributable to non-controlling
interest

Net income attributable to Tempur Sealy
International, Inc.

Earnings per common share:

Diluted $

Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Diluted

2014 2013 2012

2,989.¢ 1000 % $ 2,464 1000 % $  1,402.¢ 100.0 %
1,839. 61. 1,449 58.¢ 688. 49.1
1,150.- 38. 1,014.¢ 412 714.¢ 50.¢
619.¢ 20.7 522.¢ 21.2 319.1 22.1
280.¢€ 9.4 266. 10.€ 147.: 10.

(8.9 0.9 (4.4) 0.2) — —
(18.1) (0.6) (13.9) (0.6) — —
276.: 2 243.¢ 10.C 248.: 17.7
91.¢ 3.1 110.¢ 4.E 18.€ 1.2
23.2 0.8 — — — —
(13.9) (0.9) 5. 2 0.2 —
101.2 3.5 115.¢ 7 19.1 1.2
174.€ 5.€ 128.C 2 229.: 16.
(64.9 (2.2) (49.1) 2.0 (122.9) 8.7)
110.C 3.6 78.¢ 3.2 106.¢ 7.7

1.1 — 0.2 — — —
108.¢ 3.6% $ 78.€ 32% $  106.€ 7.7%
1.7¢ $ 1.2¢ $ 1.7¢

62.1 61.6 62.

36




Table of Contents
CONSOLIDATED SUMMARY

Net sales and gross profit

Percentage change

Percentage change

(in millions, except percentages) 2014 2013 2012 2014 vs. 2013 2013 vs. 2012
Net sales 2,989.¢ 2,464. $ 1,402.¢ 21.2% 75.7%
Net sales by segment:
Tempur North America 993.2 910.( 964.2 9.1% (5.6%
Tempur International 472.C 439.¢ 438.¢ 7.4% 0.2%
Sealy 1,524.¢ 1,114.° — 36.€ % — %
Gross profit 1,150. 1,014.¢ 714.€ 13.4% 42.L%
Gross margin 38.5% 41.2% 50.% (2.9% (9.1%

Costs associated with net sales are recorded ino€@sles and include the costs of producing, ghigy warehousing, receiving
inspecting goods during the period, as well as el@ption and amortization of loriyed assets used in the manufacturing process
principal factors impacting gross profit and grosargin for each segment are discussed below irefective segment discussions.

Year ended December 31, 2014 compared to year dbelegimber 31, 2013

Net sales increased $525.5 million , or 21.3¥he increase was due to Sealy's results beitected for the full year ended Decerr
31, 2014 as compared to the pastiuisition period March 18, 2013 through Decenfir2013, and growth in each of our three repog
business segments. On a constant currency basialae for the full year 2014 increased 23.0%.

Gross profit increased $135.5 million , or 13.4@ross margin declined 270 basis points. Sealg'ssgorofit increase$109.2 millior
due to Sealy's results being reflected for the yelr ended December 31, 2014 as compared to Bteapquisition period March 18, 2(
through December 31, 2013. Sealy's gross margithéoyear ended December 31, 2014 was 30.@%ich unfavorably impacted consolids
gross margin by 100 basis points. The Sealy segopsrates at a lower gross margin than the TempuwhMmerica and Tempur Internatio
segments. Therefore, our gross margins have begatinely impacted as Sealy's net sales have ineteas percentage of our consolidater
sales. Consolidated gross margin was also impdayednfavorable product and channel mix of 210 basisits and unfavorable forei
exchange impact of 80 basis points, partially dafflsemanufacturing and sourcing improvements ob&8is points.

Effective January 1, 2015, we realigned our orgational structure. As a result of these changeswilleoperate in two busine
segments: North America and International. Northefioa includes results for the U.S. and Canada,latednational includes results for
subsidiaries outside the U.S. and Canada. Corpogaeating expenses will not be included in eitbiethe segments and will be presel
separately as a reconciling item to consolidatedIte.

Year ended December 31, 2013 compared to year ddeesimber 31, 2012

Net sales increased $1,061.4 million, or 75.7%. iflcecase was due to the inclusion of Seahet sales of $1,114.7 million for
post-acquisition period from March 18, 2013 to Dmber 31, 2013.

Gross profit increased $300.3 million, or 42.0%0€& margin decreased 9.7%. The increase in grofis\was due to the inclusion
Sealy’s gross profit of $352.4 million at a grosargin of 31.6% for the postequisition period from March 18, 2013 through Deber 31
2013. Sealys gross profit also included an incremental co77 million associated with the revaluation ofished goods inventory relatec
the purchase price allocation of the Sealy AcdoisitThe increase in gross profit was also offsefTempur North America gross prof
decrease of $56.6 million and gross margin dealin®.4%. The Sealy segment operates at a lowersgragin than the Tempur No
America and Tempur International segments. Theeefmur gross margins were negatively impacted aly/Senet sales increased as percel
of our consolidated net sales.
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OPERATING EXPENSES

Selling and Marketing Expense
Percentage change Percentage change

(in millions, except percentages) 2014 2013 2012 2014 vs. 2013 2013 vs. 2012
Total selling and marketing $ 619.¢ $ 522.¢ % 319.1 18.€ % 63.€ %
As a percent of net sales 20.7% 21.2% 22.1% (0.55% (1.5%
Advertising expenses 326.% 2742 164.5 19.1% 66.7 %
As a percent of net sales 10.9% 11.1% 11.7% (0.2)% (0.60%
Selling and marketing other 293.2 248.7 154.¢ 17.€% 60.€ %
As a percent of net sales 9.8% 10.1% 11.(% (0.9% (0.99%

Selling and marketing expenses include advertiaimdymedia production associated with the promatifoour brands, other marketi
materials such as catalogs, brochures, videos,uptaghmples, direct customer mailings and poinpwfchase materials, and sales fi
compensation. We also include in selling and mange¢xpense certain new product development costhjding market research and r

product testing.
Year ended December 31, 2014 compared to year ddeesimber 31, 2013

Selling and marketing expenses increased $97.@millor 18.6% , and decreased 0.5% as a perceotam sales.

Our advertising expenses increased $52.5 million19.1%, and remained relatively flat as a percentageebfsales. The increase
advertising was primarily due to the $49.7 millioarease in the Sealy segment's advertising exdenslee full year ended December 31, 2
compared to the post acquisition period March Dd,3through December 31, 2013. The Tempur North dgaesegment advertising exper
increased $3.4 million and decreased slightly aermentage of net sales. In 2015, we plan to mairaconsistent level of marketing ¢

advertising investments as a percentage of net.sale

All other selling and marketing expenses increg®&etl5 million , or 17.9% , and decreas#idhtly as a percentage of net sales.
increase to other selling and marketing expenses pwenarily due to the $23.1 million increase ire tBealy segment's other selling
marketing expenses for the full year ended Decer@beP014 compared to the p@stquisition period March 18, 2013 through Decen8ie
2013. Additionally, the Tempur International segmether selling and marketing expenses increasei8%million, driven primarily b
additional openings of compamwned stores and integration costs associated mvdbtketing and distributing Sealy products in ca

international markets.
Year ended December 31, 2013 compared to year ddeesimber 31, 2012

Selling and marketing expenses increased $2031®mibr 63.9%, and decreased 1.5% as a perceofaget sales. Our advertisi
expenses increased $109.7 million, or 66.7%, arthireed relatively flat as a percentage of net s&8eslys selling and marketing expen
were $204.5 million for the post-acquisition perfooin March 18, 2013 through December 31, 2013.

All other selling and marketing expenses incregg@®1 million, or 60.9%, and decreased 0.9% asreeptage of net sales. Sealy’
other selling and marketing expenses were $79.milor the post-acquisition period from March 2813 through December 31, 2013.
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General, Administrative and Other Expenses

Percentage change Percentage change

(in millions, except percentages) 2014 2013 2012 2014 vs. 2013 2013 vs. 2012

General, administrative and other

expenses $ 280.6 % 266.: % 147.% 5.4% 80.9%
As a percent of net sales 9.4% 10.8% 10.5% (1.9% 0.2%

General, administrative and other expenses inclsdlaries and related expenses, information techgplprofessional fee
depreciation and amortization of lotiged assets not used in the manufacturing proeeggnses for administrative functions and reseanc
development costs.

Year ended December 31, 2014 compared to year dbeeeimber 31, 2013

General, administrative and other expenses incde$f$é.3 million , or 5.4% The increase was primarily due to the $13.7 ot
increase in the Sealy segment's general, admitivgtrand other expenses for the full year endedebBder 31, 2014 compared to the pos
acquisition period March 18, 2013 through Decenier2013. Other general, administrative and otliperses also increased $19.3 mil
primarily due to increased salaries, professioaakfand other costs related to the expanding lassifi@e increase in general, administr:
and other expenses were partially offset by an#hd@llion decrease in Sealy Acquisition transacteéxpenses, which were not incurres
2014.

Research and development expenses for 2014 weré g#llion compared to $21.0 million for 2013 , emrease of $0.6 million ot
2.9% .

Year ended December 31, 2013 compared to year ddeesimber 31, 2012

General, administrative and other expenses incde$%&9.1 million, or 80.9%. The increase was prilpatue to the inclusion «
Sealy’s $97.3 million of general, administrativedasther expenses for the p@atguisition period from March 18, 2013 through Daber 31
2013.

Research and development expenses for 2013 wer@ #2llion compared to $15.6 million for 2012, arciease of $5.4 million,
34.6%.

OPERATING INCOME

(in millions, except Percentage change  Percentage change

percentages) 2014 2013 2012 2014 vs. 2013 2013 vs. 2012

Operating income $ 276.2 $ 243.¢ $ 248.3 13.5% 1.8%
Operating margin 9.2% 9.€% 17.7% (0.9% (7.9%

Year ended December 31, 2014 compared to year ddeesimber 31, 2013

Operating income increased $32.5 million , or 13.3%d was primarily impacted by the factors disedsabove. On a const.
currency basis, operating income for the full y2@t4 increased 18.6%. During the full year 20&4uity income in earnings of unconsolid:
affiliates and royalty income, net of royalty experincreased $3.9 million and $4.4 milliprespectively as a result of the 2013 results
including the post-acquisition period of March P13 through December 31, 2013. Our royalty incasbased on sales of Sealy#ic
Stearns & Foster@®randed products by various licensees and is dffsetyalty expenses we pay to other entitieshlierdse of their names
our Sealy branded products. Our equity income iniegs of unconsolidated affiliates represents®0% interest in the earnings of our Asia
Pacific joint ventures whose purpose is to devetapkets for Sealy branded products.
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During the full year 2014 , we incurred $43.8 roffliof integration and financing costs in connectiothwthe Sealy Acquisitio
During the full year 2013 we incurred $18.7 million of transaction expenard $25.9 million of integration expenses in carios with the
Sealy Acquisition. Integration expenses includealegnd other professional fees, domestic distrilbuthetwork transition expenses, ¢
associated with the introduction of Sealy prodirctsur Tempur International segment, employeleted transition expenses and other exp:
incurred to facilitate the integration and alignmen the legacy Tempur and Sealy businesses. Werly expect integration activities
continue through 2016 as we transition the domedistribution network and continue to introduce dealy products in the Temj
International segment. However, we expect the lef/@itegration expense to decrease over this piered.

Year ended December 31, 2013 compared to year ddeesimber 31, 2012

Operating income decreased $4.5 million, or 1.886l was primarily impacted by the factors discusakdve. During the full ye
2013, we also recorded royalty income, net of nyyekpense, of $13.7 million and equity income @mnings of unconsolidated affiliates
$4.4 million.

During the full year 2013, we incurred $18.7 mifliof transaction expenses and $25.9 million ofgragon expenses in connect
with the Sealy Acquisition. During the full yearZ8) we incurred $8.9 million of transaction expenaad $3.7 million of integration expen
in connection with the Sealy Acquisition.

INTEREST EXPENSE, NET

Percentage change Percentage change
(in millions, except percentages) 2014 2013 2012 2014 vs. 2013 2013 vs. 2012

Interest expense, net $ 91¢ $ 1108 $ 18.¢ (17.)% 489.4%

Year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the yeldeDecember 31, 2013

Interest expense, net, decreased $18.9 milldue to lower average debt levels and interestriat effect during 2014 as compare
2013. This was offset by $3.3 million in acceledagamortization of deferred financing costs afterobuntary prepayment of the Term A ¢
Term B loans under our 2012 Credit Agreement. Reféote 6 , " Debt, in our Consolidated Financial Statements inctuohePart Il, ITEM ¢
for additional information regarding the voluntgmepayment of debt.

Year ended December 31, 2013 compared to the yelmdeDecember 31, 2012

Interest expense, net, increased $92.0 millio2013, we incurred $19.9 million of incremental iet&t expense and fees on the Se
Notes and our 2012 Credit Agreement for the pepidor to March 18, 2013, commitment fees associatigh financing for the closing of tl
Sealy Acquisition, and write off of deferred finamg costs associated with the 2011 Credit Facilityaddition, we incurred $8.7 million
prepayment fees related to the refinancing of @mirB Facility in the second quarter of 2013. Theaining increase was due to higher
levels as a result of the Sealy Acquisition.

LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF BUSINESS
Year ended December 31, 2014 compared to year dbeeeimber 31, 2013

Effective June 30, 2014, we completed the saleuotlree U.S. innerspring component productionlifaes and equipment, along w
associated working capital, to L&P for total coresiation of approximately $47.8 million. The wor§icapital adjustment period ended in
quarter ended September 30, 2014, which resultedciash payment to L&P of $2.8 million, reduced tiftal consideration received to $4
million. The carrying amount of the net assets gnlthis transaction, including an allocation opoeting unit goodwill determined using -
relative fair value method, was approximately $6&i8ion. As a result, a loss on disposal of bess was recorded for $23.2 million for
year endedDecember 31, 2014 , which included $1.4 millionrahsaction costs and the $2.8 million working ta@djustment.
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INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES

Percentage change  Percentage change
(in millions, except percentages) 2014 2013 2012 2014 vs. 2013 2013 vs. 2012

Income before income taxes $ 174¢  $ 128.C $ 229.2 36.6% (44.2)%

Year ended December 31, 2014 compared to year dbeeeimber 31, 2013

Income before income taxes increased $46.9 million36.6%. This increase was a result of the factors dismisbove, as well
$15.6 million of other income from certain othema@curring items, including income from a parsattlement of a legal dispute.

Year ended December 31, 2013 compared to year ddeesimber 31, 2012

Income before income taxes decreased $101.2 milioA4.2%. This decrease was a result of the facliscussed above.

INCOME TAXES
(in millions, except Percentage change Percentage change
percentages) 2014 2013 2012 2014 vs. 2013 2013 vs. 2012
Income tax $ 64 $ 49.1 §$ 122.¢ 32.2% (59.9%
Effective tax rate 37.1% 38.4% 53.2% (1.9% (15.0%

Income tax provision includes income taxes assediatith taxes currently payable and deferred taaed,includes the impact of |
operating losses for certain of our foreign operadi

Year ended December 31, 2014 compared to year ddeesimber 31, 2013

Our income tax provision increased $15.8 milliord awur effective tax rate decreased p@rcentage points. During 2013,
undertook a taxable transaction as part of theySkedjuisition in which we recognized current taxabicome based on the earnings of ce
of our foreign subsidiaries and increased the taxipusly accrued associated with this transactioi2014, upon the filing of our various 2(
U.S. federal and state income tax returns, weifiedlthe calculation of the tax on this transactor we recognized an incremental $
million current income tax expense for this trangarcto reflect tax positions taken on the varimome tax returns when filed.

Year ended December 31, 2013 compared to year ddeesimber 31, 2012

Our income tax provision decreased $73.3 million aur effective tax rate decreased 15.0 percenpages. During 2012, w
recorded $48.1 million of additional income tax erpe related to our undistributed earnings fromdd operations, which increased
effective tax rate by 21.0%. During 2013, we unagigkta taxable transaction as part of the Sealy &déun in which we recognized curre
taxable income based on the earnings of certainuofforeign subsidiaries and increased the taxipusly accrued associated with 1
transaction by $3.6 million.
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(in millions, except

TEMPUR NORTH AMERICA SEGMENT SUMMARY

Percentage change

Percentage change

percentages) 2014 2013 2012 2014 vs. 2013 2013 vs. 2012
Net sales 993.2 $ 910.( $ 964.: 9.1% (5.6%
Net sales by channel:
Retail 939.t 845.¢ 876.t 11.1% (3.5%
Direct 41.C 49.2 76.2 (16.71% (35.9%
Other 12.7 15.2 11.€ (16.9% 31.(%
Net sales by product:
Bedding 930.t 830.¢ 882.: 12.1% (5.9%
Other products 62.7 79.€ 82.C (21.2)% (2.99%
Gross profit 413.¢ 392.7 449.% 5.4% (12.%
Gross margin 41.7% 43.2% 46.€% (1.5% (3.9%
Operating income 84.¢ 67.€ 144« 25.€ % (53.9%
Operating margin 8.5% 7.4% 15.(% 1.1% (7.€%

Year ended December 31, 2014 compared to year ddeesimber 31, 2013

Tempur North America net sales increased $83.4anill or 9.1% . The increase was primarily due £180.1 million increasa ne
sales of Bedding products, driven primarily by neneduct introductions and the increased sales phdjustable base products. This incr:
was offset by a $16.9 million decreadrenet sales of Other products resulting primaftigm the decline in our pillow business. Retail cha
net sales increased $93.9 million , or 11.df%en by the continued success of our new proghticiductions. Additionally, in the fourth quar
of 2014, certain customers elected to increase thechases to qualify for higher rebate tierstfa full year 2014. Direct channel net s
decreased $8.2 million , or 16.7% .

Operating income increased $17.3 million , or 25,6%d was primarily impacted by the following farst

» Gross profit increased $21.2 million , or 5.4%ross margin declined 13fasis points. The decline in gross margin was @
unfavorable product mix of 290 basis points, relatethe increased sale of our adjustable baseupteédnd unfavorable channel |
of 150 basis points, which includes the impact ighhbr floor model discounts and rebates. Theseofaaere partially offset t
manufacturing and sourcing improvements of 320sbpsints.

» Operating expenses increased $3.9 million td@¥Billion in 2014 , as compared to $325.1 milliarthe same period of 2013he
increase is driven by a $13.5 million increasealases and benefits to support the expanded bssigned variable sales compensa
and a $3.4 million increase in advertising expensesupport our increased net sales. This increaseoffset partially by decreas
professional fees of $12.5 million, driven primgiily reduced transaction costs associated witis#aly Acquisition.

» We have historically included in our Tempur Nortinérica segment certain corporate operating expetmesediately following th
Sealy Acquisition in March 2013, we began to transiversight of certain Sealy segment corporatetfons to personnel within @
Tempur North America segment. This transition hastioued throughout 2014. As a result, the majodtycorporate operatit
expenses are included in our Tempur North Amerigreent, which increased operating expenses in eomptir North Americ
segment and decreased operating expenses in olyr seegnent.This transition increased operating Bges in our Tempur Nol
America segment by approximately $15.0 million fbe year ended December 31, 2014 as compared foetied March 18, 20:
through December 31, 2013. This transition unfablyranpacted our Tempur North America operating giaby 150 basis points.
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Year ended December 31, 2013 compared to year ddeesimber 31, 2012

Tempur North America net sales decreased $54.8milbr 5.6%. The decline was driven by a decréasedding net sales of $5.

million, or 5.9%. Retail channel net sales decré®89.9 million, or 3.5%. Direct channel net sak® decreased $27.0 million, or 35.4%.

Operating income decreased $76.8 million, or 53.286, was primarily impacted by the following fastor

Gross profit decreased $56.6 million, or 12.6%. $Srmargin decreased 340 basis points. The decirea@gess margin was due
unfavorable product mix of 530 basis points, whiobludes the impact of initiatives implemented tdve net sales growt
Unfavorable product mix was partially offset byianrease of 220 basis points as a result of lowarcing costs and improved sup
chain and manufacturing efficiencies.

Operating expenses were $325.1 million for the yalhr 2013, as compared to $304.8 million for thk year 2012, and increas
4.2% as a percentage of net sales due to incressdllg and marketing activities, as well as prefesal fees and stodbase:
compensation expense incurred following the Sealgusition.
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(in millions, except

TEMPUR INTERNATIONAL SEGMENT SUMMARY

Percentage change

Percentage change

percentages) 2014 2013 2012 2014 vs. 2013 2013 vs. 2012
Net sales 472.( $ 439.¢ $ 438.¢ 7.4% 0.2%
Net sales by channel:
Retail 360.t 344.: 351.k 47% (2.00%
Direct 67.1 49t 37.C 35.€ % 33.£%
Other 44 4 45.¢ 50.1 (3.1)% (8.6%
Net sales by product:
Bedding 354.7 327.7 332.¢ 8.2% 1.9%
Other products 117.2 111.¢ 106.2 4.£% 5.4%
Gross profit 274.¢ 269.¢ 265.2 1.% 1.7%
Gross margin 58.2% 61.2% 60.5% (3.29% 0.€%
Operating income 91.€ 107.t 103.¢ (14.9% 3.E%
Operating margin 19.4% 24.5% 23.7% (5.)% 0.8%

Year ended December 31, 2014 compared to year ddeesimber 31, 2013

Tempur International net sales increased $32.4amill or 7.4%. On a constant currency basis, our Tempur Intemalt net sale
increased approximately 8.3%. Retail channel nessacreased $16.2 million , or 4.79%primarily due to solid performance in Asia andih
America. Direct channel net sales increased $17ll&m, or 35.6%, due to expanding our points of distribution ttghuan increase in t
number of company-owned stores andoeamerce. In 2015, we plan to expand the distraoutif our Sealy brand products and invest in :
and marketing to support the distribution and Séaaind awareness. Additionally, in 2015 we expat#sgrowth from these investments,
we anticipate the growth will be largely offset tnyfavorable foreign exchange.

Operating income decreased $15.9 million , or 14,8¥td was primarily impacted by the following farst

» Gross profit increased $5.1 million and grossgimadeclined 32(asis points. The decline in gross margin was diraguily to

unfavorable product and geographic mix of 240 basisits, driven by the introduction of Sealy progu@nd unfavorable forei
exchange of 100 basis points.

Operating expenses increased $21.0 million t83% million as compared to $162.3 million for tekame period in 2013 anc
increased 1.9%s a percentage of net sales. This increase iratpgrexpenses is driven primarily by an $8.8 wiillincrease |
salaries and benefits related to the expandingibasi a $7.0 million increase in costs associatddexpanding points of distributi
through an increase in the number of company-ovwsierks and eommerce, and marketing and distribution costs500 $nillion
associated with the introduction of Sealy prodirctsertain international markets.

In 2014, we acquired the Sealy brand rights fortioental Europe and Japan from Sealy licenseesufjinout 2014, we introduce:
number of Sealy products to retailers in certaimofaan markets. We also transitioned customerioaktiips and began integrat
operations in Japan. Net sales from the Sealy ptedue have introduced to these markets are indlid®ur Tempur Internatior
segment results. While the contribution from thbssnd rights acquisitions in 2014 was not significdahe growth opportunities a
revenue synergies could be significant in futurarge
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Year ended December 31, 2013 compared to year ddeesimber 31, 2012

Tempur International net sales remained flat. @orestant currency basis, our Tempur Internatioelsales increased approxima
1.0%. Retail channel net sales decreased $7.2miltir 2.0%, primarily due to macroeconomic pressarEurope, which was partially off.
by growth in our Asia-Pacific and Latin Americansinesses. Direct channel net sales increased #1ilicn, or 33.8%.

Operating income increased $3.6 million, or 3.5%a was primarily impacted by the following factors:

» Gross profit increased $4.6 million, bi7%. Gross margin increased 0.9%. The increageoss margin was due to a 1.8% incr:
related to favorable product mix and a 0.9% deerealated to floor model discounts for new prodotbductions.

» Operating expenses were $162.3 million for the yakr 2013 and $161.3 million for the full year 20temaining flat as a percent

of net sales.
SEALY SEGMENT SUMMARY
(in millions, except Percentage change  Percentage change
percentages) 2014 2013 2012 2014 vs. 2013 2013 vs. 2012
Net sales $ 1,524.¢ $ 1,114.° $ — 36.€ % —%

Net sales by channel:

Retalil 1,462. 1,041.c — 40.£% —%
Direct 19.7 20. — (B.9% —%
Other 42¢ 52. — (18.9% —%

Net sales by product:

Bedding 1,441 1,040.: — 38.E% —%
Other products 83.2 74.£ — 12.(% —%
Gross profit 461.¢ 352.¢ — 31.(% —%
Gross margin 30.2% 31.6% —% (1.9% —%
Operating income 99.¢ 68.7 — 45.2 % —%
Operating margin 6.5% 6.2% —% 0.2% —%

Year ended December 31, 2014 compared to year dbeleeimber 31, 2013

Sealy net sales increased $409.9 million , 6r8% . On a constant currency basis, our Sealy net $atesased approximate
39.8%. The increase is due primarily to the priearyresults reflecting only the pastquisition period of March 18, 2013 through Decet
31, 2013. Sealy’s net sales increased $316.5 milliche first quarter of 2014 as compared to th&t-pcquisition period in the first quarter
2013.

Operating income increased $31.1 million , or 458% was primarily impacted by the following factor

* Gross profit increased $109.2 million , and grosargin declined 13@asis points. Gross margin was impacted by unféle
manufacturing and sourcing costs of 90 basis pa@intsunfavorable foreign exchange of 110 basistpoirhese factors were partic
offset by favorable product mix of 50 basis points.

» Operating expenses increased $86.4 million 88&3millionas compared to the same period in 2013. The ineligatue primarily t
the prior year results reflecting only the postuastjion period of March 18, 2013 through DecemB&r 2013. Sealy's operat
expenses increased $76.9 million in the first qerasf 2014 as compared to the post-acquisitioroperi the first quarter of 2013.
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» Equity income in earnings of unconsolidatedliafies and royalty income, net of royalty experisereased $3.9 million an$i4.
million , respectively. The increase is due prifyatd the prior year results reflecting only thespacquisition period March 18, 20
through December 31, 2013.

* We have historically included in our Tempur Nortinérica segment certain corporate operating expelmesediately following th
Sealy Acquisition in March 2013, we began to transfversight of certain Sealy segment corporatetfons to personnel within o
Tempur North America segment. This transition hastioued throughout 2014. As a result, the majootycorporate operatit
expenses are included in our Tempur North Amerigreent, which increased operating expenses in eomptir North Americ
segment and decreased operating expenses in dyrsgégaent.This transition decreased operating resgeein our Sealy segment
approximately $15.0 million for the year ended Daber 31, 2014 as compared to the period March @83 2hrough December
2013. This transition favorably impacted our Segdgrating margin by 100 basis points.

Year ended December 31, 2013 compared to year ddeesimber 31, 2012

Sealy’s 2013 results are only presented for thé-@oguisition period from March 18, 2013 to Decembg 2013.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Liquidity

Our principal sources of funds are cash flows froperations, borrowings made pursuant to our cifeditities and cash and cz
equivalents on hand. Principal uses of funds coasipayments of principal and interest on our deltlities, business combinations, cag
expenditures and working capital needs. At DecerBhe014 , we had working capital of $228.1 milliadncluding cash and cash equivals
of $62.5 million as compared to working capital$#86.0 million including $81.0 million in cash awdsh equivalents as @fecember 3:
2013. This decrease was primarily driven by increaseadcounts payable, accrued expenses and the tpodion of our long term del
These increases were partially offset by increasesccounts receivable and inventory. Accounts plyincreases are driven primarily
increased costs of goods sold to support the iserkaet sales, in addition to the timing of payrséatvendors. Accrued expenses increase
also driven by increased expenses which suppotintreased net sales. The current portion of oug erm debt increased due to increas
the scheduled quarterly payments made in accordaithehe 2012 Credit Agreement. Accounts receigahtreases are driven primarily
increases in net sales, in addition to timing o$tomer collections. Inventory increased primarilyedo the buildip associated with ne
product introductions.

The table below presents net cash provided by (igexperating, investing and financing activitfes the full years 2014 , 2013 and

2012 .

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012

Net cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities $ 2252 % 98t % 189.¢
Investing activities (20.9 (1,213.0) (55.0
Financing activities (238.)) 1,013. (70.9)

Cash provided by operating activities increased6$12nillion in 2014 as compared to 2013 he increase in cash provided
operating activities was favorably impacted by therease in net income before non-controlling ieserand increases in certain noast
expenses. Our cash flow provided by operating #ietivwas also favorably impacted by the timingrafome tax and certain other paym
associated with the Sealy Acquisition during 2013.

Cash used in investing activities decreased $162®2lion in 2014 as compared to 2013his improvement in cash used by inves
activities is primarily related to the Sealy Acqticn. Refer to Note 3 , “ Acquisitions and Diveates ", in our Consolidated Financ
Statements included in Part Il, ITEM 8 for furthgiscussion of the Sealy Acquisition. Additionallyash provided by investing activit
benefited from the sale of our three U.S. innergpdomponent production facilities and equipmeltng with associated working capital,
L&P for cash consideration of approximately $43.8iam.
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Cash from financing activities decreased $1,25lilBom in 2014 as compared to 2013 his decrease is primarily due to the fun
of our Senior Notes and 2012 Credit Agreement, Wiimded in 2013 in connection with the Sealy Asgign. Additionally in 2013, w
refinanced portions of our 2012 Credit AgreemembcBeds from the Senior Notes and 2012 Credit Agese were used to fund the Se
Acquisition and to repay the 2011 Credit FacilRefer to Note 6 , “ Debt 'in our Consolidated Financial Statements incluaeBart Il, ITEM
8 for further discussion of our debt.

Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures totaled $47.5 million for gremr ended December 31, 2014 and $40.0 milliortiferyear ende®ecember 3.
2013 . We currently expect our 20t&pital expenditures to be approximately $65.0iam|l which relate primarily to continued strate
investments in productivity projects associatechvaitir U.S. distribution network and manufacturiagifities, which we believe will suppt
our future growth plans to improve performance eost efficiency.

Non-GAAP Financial Information

We provide information regarding adjusted net inepdjusted earnings per share, earnings befozeegtf taxes, depreciation
amortization (“EBITDA”"), adjusted EBITDA, consolidated funded debt and clidated funded debt less qualified cash, which and
recognized terms under U.S. GAAP and do not purfmobe alternatives to net income as a measur@afating performance or total debi
reconciliation of our adjusted net income and adjisearnings per share is provided below. We belidat the use of these n@AAP
financial measures provides investors with addéiomseful information with respect to the impactioas costs associated with the S
Acquisition. A reconciliation of our net income EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA, and a reconciliationtofal debt to consolidated funded ¢
less qualified cash are also provided below. Wéebelthe use of EBITDA, adjusted EBITDA, consolettfunded debt and consolide
funded debt less qualified cash also provide irusstvith useful information with respect to thensrof our 2012 Credit Facility and «
compliance with key financial covenants. Becauseatiocompanies use identical calculations, thessgntations may not be comparabl
other similarly titted measures of other companies.
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Reconciliation of net income to adjusted net inc

The following table sets forth the reconciliatiohowir reported net income to the calculation ofuatgd net income for the year en
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively:

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
(in millions, except per share amounts) 2014 2013
Net income $ 108¢ % 78.€
Plus:
Loss on disposal of business, net oftax 16.7 —
Transaction costs, net of t& — 13.2
Integration costs, net of t&k 30.€ 37.2
Financing costs, net of t& 34 6.5
Other income, net of td% (11.9 —
Adjustment of taxes to normalized ré&te 16.2 10.¢
Adjusted net income $ 164.€¢ $ 146.4
Earnings per share, diluted $ 178 % 1.2¢
Loss on disposal of business, net oftax 0.27 —
Transaction costs, net of t& — 0.21
Integration costs, net of t&x 0.4¢ 0.60
Financing costs, net of t&X 0.0t 0.11
Other income, net of td% (0.1¢) —
Adjustment of taxes to normalized ré&te 0.27 0.18
Adjusted earnings per share, diluted $ 268 $ 2.3¢
Diluted shares outstanding 62.1 61.6

(1) Loss on disposal of business represents costsiatbwith the disposition of the three U.S. inpeirsgy component facilities and related equipr

(2) Transaction and integration represents costs, ditgjulegal fees, professional fees and other clsatgealign the businesses related to the ¢
Acquisition.

(3) Financing costs represent costs incurred in coioreatith the amendment and refinancing of our 2@r2dit Agreement in 2014 and 20
respectively.

(4) Other income includes certain other necurring items, including partial settlement dégal dispute

(5) Adjustment of taxes to normalized rate represeditssaments associated with the aforementioned iemdsother discrete income tax eve

Debt Service

Our debt decreased to $1,602.3 million as of Deegrith, 2014 from $1,836.5 million as of DecemberZ113 . As oDecember 3:
2014, after giving effect to $58.5 million in borrowiagunder the revolver portion of the 2012 Credit éggnent and letters of cre
outstanding of $18.2 million , total availabilityder the revolver was $315.8 million . Refer to &l6t, “ Debt ",in our Consolidated Financ
Statements included in Part Il, ITEM 8 for furtltiscussion of our debt.

As of December 31, 2014ve were in compliance with all of the financiavenants in our debt agreements. The table belts\feet
the calculation of our compliance with the coveniarthe 2012 Credit Agreement that requires thatwvaéntain a ratio of less than 4.75 time
consolidated funded debt less qualified cash tosae§l EBITDA from October 1, 2014 through Septenm@r2015. During 2015, we
required to maintain this ratio at less than: 4i#tes through September 30, 2015; and 4.50 tines Beptember 30, 2015 through Decer
31, 2015. Both consolidated funded debt and adjus®ITDA are terms that are not recognized und&.  GAAP and do not purport to
alternatives to net income as a measure of opgraemformance or total debt. In the first quarte2015, we will be required to pay $1¢
million as a result of the covenant in the 2012d@ragreement that requires we make prepaymentscas excess cash flow amounts.

Reconciliation of net income to EBITDA and adjuse&ITDA
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The following table sets forth the reconciliatiohoair reported net income to the calculation of EBA and adjusted EBITDA for tt
year endeDecember 31, 2014 :

Year Ended
December 31,
(in millions) 2014
Net income attributable to Tempur Sealy Internatlpmc. $ 108.¢
Interest expense 91.¢
Income taxes 64.¢
Depreciation & amortization 89.7
EBITDA $ 355.2
Adjustments for financial covenant purposes:
Loss on disposal of busing8s 23.2
Integration cost& 40.2
Financing cost8 1.3
Other incomé? (15.6)
Adjusted EBITDA $ 404.€

(1) Loss on disposal of business represents costsiategbevith the disposition of the three U.S. inpeirsy component production facilities and rel:
equipment.

(2) Integration costs represent costs, including léggd, professional fees and other charges to #ilgbusiness related to the Sealy Acquisi

(3) Financing costs represent costs incurred in coioreatith the amendment of our 2012 Credit Agreen

(4) Other income includes certain other mendrring items, including partial settlement dégal dispute

Reconciliation of lon-term debt to consolidated funded debt less gedlifiash
The following table sets forth the reconciliatiohooir reported debt to the calculation of consdkdaunded debt less qualified cas
of December 31, 2014 . “Consolidated funded dehtf ‘@ualified cash’are terms used in our 2012 Credit Agreement fopqsgs of certa

financial covenants.

As of December 31,

(in millions, except ratio) 2014
Total debt $ 1,602.:
Plus:

Letters of credit outstanding 18.2
Consolidated funded debt 1,620.*
Less:

Domestic qualified cas® 25.¢

Foreign qualified casf 21.¢
Consolidated funded debt less qualified cash $ 1,572

(1) Qualified cash as defined in our 2012 Credjteéement equals 100.0% of unrestricted domestlt glas 60.0% of unrestricted foreign cash. For
purposes of calculating leverage ratios, qualitiash is capped at $150.0 million.
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Calculation of consolidated funded debt less gigalitash to Adjusted EBITDA

The following table calculates our consolidateddeah debt less qualified cash to adjusted EBITDAfd3ecember 31, 2014 :

(in millions) As of December 31, 2014

Consolidated funded debt less qualified cash $ 1,572.7

Adjusted EBITDA 404.€
3.89 time:

(1) The ratio of consolidated debt less qualifiedh to adjusted EBITDA was 3.89 timasithin our covenant, which requires this ratioless than 4.7
times at December 31, 2014.

Stockholder’ Equity
Share Repurchase Program.

We did not repurchase any shares of our commork shméng 2014 or 2013, and we do not expect thatwillecomplete any addition
share repurchases for the foreseeable future. @@@12, we purchased 5.0 million shares of our commstock for a total cost of $15
million pursuant to authorizations made by our Bloaf Directors. On January 23, 2012, our Board @k@ors terminated the existi
authority under the July 2011 authorization, asraied in October 2011, and approved a new sharealegse authorization of up to $25
million of our common stock. Share repurchases uttde authorization may be made through open ntarkesactions, negotiated purchi
or otherwise, at times and in such amounts as neamegt and a committee of the Board deem approptiaee repurchases may be funde
operating cash flows and/or borrowings under olt derangements. This share repurchase programjsct to certain limitations in certain
our debt agreements, and may be limited, suspesidisdminated at any time without notice.

Future Liquidity Source

Our primary sources of liquidity are cash flow fraperations and borrowings under our 2012 CrediteAment. We expect tt
ongoing requirements for debt service and capkpépditures will be funded from these sources. APecember 31, 2014 , we hakl ,602..
million in total debt outstanding, and our stockless’ equity was $202.7 million Our debt service obligations could, under ce
circumstances, have material consequences to auritseholders. Total cash interest payments rdlateour borrowings are expected tc
approximately $70.0 million in 2015. With respeatthe Term A Facility, the scheduled quarterly payts are $13.5 milliorfrom March 31
2015 through December 31, 2017. Upon maturity, gtiecipal payment due is $323.0 millionWith respect to the Term B Facility,
scheduled quarterly payments are $1.5 millionough December 31, 2019. Upon maturity, the prircgzyment due is $564.1 million
Interest expense in the periods presented alsadaslnon-cash amortization of deferred financirgijscand accretion on the 8.0% Sealy Notes

On October 17, 2014, we entered into an amendneemut existing 2012 Credit Agreement. The amendnpeavides us wit
flexibility in the acquisition of existing and futel licensees, distributors and joint ventures dé agethe potential acquisition of other strat
international brands in existing Tempur Sealy merkg, among other things, providing for increaaequisition baskets and certain except
from such acquisition baskets and greater flexibilvith respect to the requirements for guarantyting obligations under the 2012 Cr
Agreement by certain existing joint ventures. Irdiidn, the amendment provides for flexibility umdéie maximum consolidated total
leverage ratio going forward as well as additicihatibility in the making of certain investmentsdarestricted payments and the paymel
junior indebtedness through, among other thingavailable amount basket that includes a $50.0aniltarter portion

In connection with the income tax assessments ffmmDanish Tax Authority (“SKAT"with respect to the tax years 2001 thrc
2008 relating to the royalty paid by certain of Tem Sealy Internationad’ U.S. subsidiaries, we were notified that SKAT baanted th
deferral of the requirement to post a cash depogther form of security for taxes that have bassessed for such period. With respect t
income tax assessment made by SKAT for 2008, we wetified that SKAT has granted the deferral ta80f the requirement to post a ¢
deposit or other form of security for such taxebe Tumulative total tax assessment for all yea@p@oximately $215.1 million includii
interest and penalties. We are currently contegtiegmatter through the Danish National Tax TridbuR&fer to Note 14 , “ Income Taxesr’
our Consolidated Financial Statements includedsirt P, ITEM 8 of this Report for further discussiof the matter.
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As of December 31, 2014 , the fair value of th&88ealy Notes was $110.7 million . As of DecemtierZd14, the 8.0% Sealy Notes ha
carrying value of $104.7 million , which include8.% million of accreted discount less conversion payments riatlelders of certain 8.0
Sealy Notes that were tendered for conversion. étsldf the 8.0% Sealy Notes may choose to convarash the amount outstanding at |
discretion prior to maturity. Upon conversion priormaturity, we would be required to pay the haddeithin 3 business days after the rec
of the notice of conversion. The conversion ofgmniicant number of the 8.0% Sealy Notes prior ttumity could have a significant impact
our liquidity. Refer to Note 6 , " Debt in our Consolidated Financial Statements inctude Part 1l, ITEM 8 for additional informatic
regarding the 8.0% Sealy Notes.

Based upon the current level of operations, weelbelithat cash generated from operations and amawaitable under our 2012 Cre
Agreement will be adequate to meet our anticipaletit service requirements, capital expenditures, \working capital needs for t
foreseeable future. There can be no assurance,veowthat our business will generate sufficienthcllew from operations or that futt
borrowings will be available under our debt fa@kt or otherwise enable us to service our indele®siror to make anticipated caf
expenditures.

At December 31, 2014 , total cash and cash eqnt@were $62.5 million , of which $25.9 milliomas held in the U.S. anfi36.¢
million was held by subsidiaries outside of the U.S. Tiheunt of cash and cash equivalents held by subiEdiautside of the U.S. and
readily convertible into other major foreign curcas, or the U.S. Dollar, is not material to ouerall liquidity or financial position. As
December 31, 2014 we intend to reinvest the easn@iigour lower tier foreign subsidiaries back itihe operations of those subsidiaries
such, no deferred taxes have been recorded rdtatbe book to tax basis difference in such subsigs. The exception to this is our prirr
Danish entity, whose earnings are not reinvestett bao its operations. Such earnings can be Histeid taxfree to its parent, our first ti
foreign subsidiary. As such, no deferred taxes lieen recorded on the book to tax basis differémtais subsidiary.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We occupy premises and utilize equipment under atjpey leases that expire at various dates thro0g3.2In accordance wi
generally accepted accounting principles, the altiligns under those leases are not recorded onatamde sheet. Many of these leases prt
for payment of certain expenses and contain renawdlpurchase options. During the year ended Deee8i) 2014, we recognized lea
expenses of $32.3 million .

We are involved in a group of joint ventures to elep markets for Sealy branded products arounavtitéd. These joint ventures «
not considered to be variable interest entities anedtherefore not consolidated for financial stetet purposes. We account for our intere
the joint ventures under the equity method, andnetiinvestment of $12.9 million is recorded a®mponent of other noodrrent assets with
the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 20tbelieve that any possible commitments ariiom these joint ventures will not
significant to our consolidated financial positionresults of operations.

Contractual Obligations

Our contractual obligations and other commerciahgitments as of December 31, 2014 are summarizZegvbe

(in millions) Payment Due By Period
After Total

Contractual Obligations 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2019 Obligations
Long-term debf? $ 59.6 $ 1648 $ 59.¢ $ 345.1 % 6.C $ 939.« % 1,574.¢
Letters of credit 18.2 — — — — — 18.2
Interest paymentg 68.¢ 67.2 65.¢ 58.% 56.7 40.4 357.¢
Operating leases 29.1 27.C 24.¢ 21.2 15.C 44.£ 161.2
Capital leases 6.€ 2.1 2.4 2.€ 2.¢ 11.1 27.7
Pension obligations 0.€ 1.C 1.C 1.1 1.2 41.¢ 47.1

Total $ 183f $  261¢ $ 153« $  428¢ $ 8Le $ 1,077. $ 2,186.¢

(1) Longterm debt excludes capital lea:

(2) Interest payments represent obligations undetong-term debt outstanding as of December 8142 applying December 31, 20itMerest rates ai
assuming scheduled payments are paid as agreedhrpagh maturity.
(3) Uncertain tax positions are excluded from thisdafzen the timing of payments cannot be reasonedtiynatec
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our management is responsible for our financigkstents and has evaluated the accounting policiég tused in their preparati
Our management believes these policies are reagoaatl appropriate. The following discussion idiédi those accounting policies that
believe are critical in the preparation of our fin&l statements, the judgments and uncertainffestang the application of those policies
the possibility that materially different amountslwe reported under different conditions or usiifferent assumptions.

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith U.S. GAAP requires that management makenadés and assumptions t
affect the reported amounts of assets and ligdslitind disclosure of commitments and contingeratiéise date of the financial statements
the reported amounts of revenues and expensegdhgmeporting period. Our actual results couftedirom those estimates.

Revenue RecognitiarSee Note 1Summary of Significant Accounting Policiea our Consolidated Financial Statements, inabith
Part Il, ITEM 8 of this Report, for a complete dission of our revenue recognition policies. Safegroduct are recognized when persua
evidence of an arrangement exists, title passesisomers and the risks and rewards of ownersligransferred, the sales price is fixe:
determinable, and collectability is reasonably emguWe extend volume discounts to certain custerard reflect these amounts as a redu
of net sales.

We recognize revenue, net of estimated returnsnwuie risks and rewards of ownership are transl@weur customers. We estim
the liability for sales returns at the time of sdlased on our level of historical sales returns.albw returns following a sale, depending or
channel and promotion. Our level of sales retuifierd by channel, with our Direct channel typigadixperiencing the highest rate of returns.

We record an allowance for doubtful accounts resfglr for amounts due from third parties that wendbd expect to collect. W
estimate the allowance based on historical woffeexperience and current economic conditions aisg consider factors such as custc
credit, past transaction history with the custoraad changes in customer payment terms when detegnimhether the collection of
receivable is reasonably assured. Historicallys than 1.0% of net sales ultimately prove to beliactible.

Our revenue recognition accounting methodology a@iastuncertainties because it requires managerengke assumptions anc
apply judgment to estimate the amount and timinfutifre sales returns and uncollectible accounts. &3timate of the amount and timing
sales returns and uncollectible accounts is basedhply on historical transaction experience.

We have not made any material changes in the atiogumethodology we use to measure the estimaadity for sales returns a
exchanges or doubtful accounts during the pasetfiseal years. We do not believe there is a reasierlikelihood that there will be a mate
change in the future estimates or assumptions weausstablish the liability for sales returns amdhanges and doubtful accounts. Howev
actual results are not consistent with our estimateassumptions, we may be exposed to lossesr tiat could be material.

Acquisitions and Divestituresin accordance with accounting for business acqgoist we allocate the purchase price of an acq
business to its identifiable assets and liabilibased on estimated fair values. The excess giuhehase price over the amount allocated t
assets and liabilities, if any, if recorded to gadd

Our purchase price allocation methodology contaimsertainties because it requires management t@ msgumptions and to ap
judgment to estimate the fair value of acquirecesand liabilities. Management estimates thevialue of assets and liabilities based
qguoted market prices, the carrying value of theuaeq assets and widely accepted valuation teclesigmcluding discounted cash flows
market multiple analyses. Unanticipated events imumstances may occur which could affect the ammurof our fair value estimat
including assumptions regarding industry economatdrs and business strategies.

If actual results are materially different than #esumptions we used to determine fair value ofadeets and liabilities acquil
through a business combination, it is possible #ldistments to the carrying values of such ass®tdiabilities will have an impact on our
earnings. As a result, during the measurement gheribich may be up to one year from the acquisitiate, we record adjustments to the a
acquired and liabilities assumed with the corresjpon offset to goodwill. Upon the conclusion of tmeeasurement period or fil
determination of the values of assets acquiredatilities assumed, whichever comes first, any sgbent adjustments are recorded tc
consolidated statements of operations. Refer t@ [8gt" Acquisitions and Divestituresity our Consolidated Financial Statements incluch
Part Il, ITEM 8 of this Report for the acquisitioalated information associated with significantaisdions in the last three years.
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Cooperative Advertising, Rebate and Other Promatid?rograms.See Note 1Summary of Significant Accounting Policie® oul
Consolidated Financial Statements, included in RAITEM 8 of this Report, for a complete discumsiof our cooperative advertising, ret
and other promotional program policies. We entén mgreements with our customers to provide fumdsafivertising and promotion of ¢
products. We also enter into volume and other eepedgrams with our customers. When sales are toathese customers, we record liabili
pursuant to these agreements. We periodically sislsese liabilities based on actual sales and sléndetermine whether all of the coopere
advertising earned will be used by the customewlether the customer will meet the requirementsetive rebate funds. We gener
negotiate these agreements on a customeubiemer basis. Some of these agreements extends@weral periods. Estimates are require
any point in time with regard to the ultimate reutnfement to be claimed. Subsequent revisions to asitmates are recorded and charg
earnings in the period in which they are identified

Our estimate of the liability for cooperative adiging, rebate, and promotional programs coulddeesely affected if our net sale:
customers differ materially from our expectatiose have not made any material changes in the atogumethodology we use to meas
the estimated liability for cooperative advertisingbate, and promotional programs during the these fiscal years. We do not believe the
a reasonable likelihood that there will be a mateshange in the future estimates or assumptiongsgdo establish the liability for coopera
advertising, rebate, and promotional programs. Henef actual customer sales are not consistetit wir estimates or assumptions, we
be exposed to losses or gains that could be mhiteria

Warranties.See Note 1Summary of Significant Accounting Policiem our Consolidated Financial Statements, inaugePart I
ITEM 8 of this Report, for a complete discussioroaf policies to account for product warranties. pvevide warranties ranging from 10 to
years for mattresses and 3 years for pillows. Egtuoh future obligations related to these productspaovided by charges to operations in
period in which the related revenue is recognized.

Our estimate of the liability for product warrarstiss based on our historical claims experience extensive product testing that
perform from time to time. Because the majorityoaf products have not been in use by our custofoethe full warranty period, we rely
the combination of historical experience and prodesting for the development of our estimate farnanty claims.

Our estimate of the liability for product warrartieould be adversely affected if our historical erignce differs materially from t
performance of the product in our product testifg. have not made any material changes in the atiogumethodology we use to measure
estimated liability for product warranty claims thg the past three fiscal years. We do not beltbeee is a reasonable likelihood that there
be a material change in the future estimates armagtions we use to establish the liability for prodwarranty claims. However, if act
warranty claims are not consistent with our estésatr assumptions, we may be exposed to lossesrar thhat could be material.

Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangible Asse@Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite kvare evaluated for impairm:
annually as of October 1 and whenever events cuistances make it more likely than not that impaimt may have occurred.

We test for goodwill impairment at the reportingtdavel, which is at the operating segment leVée determined that our report
units are our Tempur North America, Tempur Inteioral and Sealy operating segments.

In conducting the impairment evaluation for ouragmg units, we compare the fair value of eactorépg unit to its carrying valu
including goodwill. If the fair value exceeds tharrying amount, then no impairment exists. If tl@rging amount exceeds the fair va
further analysis is performed to measure the innpait loss.

The fair value of each reporting unit is determitgdusing an income approach, which uses a combmaf a discounted cash flc
approach and market approach. Significant managejmggment is necessary to evaluate the impacpefating and macroeconomic char
on each reporting unit. The significant estimatesl assumptions include projected sales growth,sgmsfit rates, selling, general ¢
administrative rates, working capital requiremewtpital expenditures and terminal growth ratescalint rates per reporting unit, and
selection of peer company multiples. We determiseatint rates separately for each reporting unitguthe weighted average cost of cag
which includes a calculation of cost of equity, ahiis developed using the capital asset pricing ehatdd comparable company beta
measure of systemic risk), and cost of debt. We a$& comparable market earnings multiple dataoananarket capitalization to corrobor
our reporting unit valuations.

We have not made any material changes in the atiogumethodology we use to assess impairment losgamdwill and othe
intangible assets during the past three fiscalsyear
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The most recent annual impairment tests perfornseaf &®ctober 1, 201dn each of our reporting units, indicated thatfdievalues a
each of our reporting units and indefiniiged intangible assets were substantially in egcefstheir carrying values. Despite that exc
however, impairment charges could still be requiifed divestiture decision were made or other digant economic event were made
occurred with respect to one of our reporting urfisbsequent to our October 1, 2Qidrhual impairment test, no indications of impairt
were identified.

We do not believe there is a reasonable likelihibad there will be a material change in the futesdmates or assumptions we us
test for impairment losses on goodwill and othemangible assets. However, if actual results are awstsistent with our estimates
assumptions, we may be exposed to an impairmengethat could be material.

Income Taxes Accounting for income taxes requires recognitafndeferred tax liabilities and assets for the expe future ta
consequences of events that have been includdetifinancial statements or tax returns. Under ridshod, deferred tax assets and liabil
are determined based on the difference betweefindugcial statement and tax bases of assets apitities. These deferred taxes are meas
by applying the provisions of tax laws in effectta¢ balance sheet date.

We recognize deferred tax assets in our Consotidetdance Sheets, and these deferred tax assétallypepresent items deduc
currently from operating income in the financiahtetments that will be deducted in future periodsaix returns. A valuation allowance
recorded against certain deferred tax assets taeeithe consolidated deferred tax asset to an antibatwill, more likely than not, be realiz
in future periods. The valuation allowance is bagrgart, on our estimate of future taxable incothe expected utilization of foreign and s
tax loss carryforwards, and credits and the expimadlates of such tax loss carryforwards. Significassumptions are used in developing
analysis of future taxable income for purposes etermining the valuation allowance for deferred &esets which, in our opinion,
reasonable under the circumstances.

Our consolidated effective tax rate and relatedréserves are subject to uncertainties in the egpdin of complex tax regulatic
from numerous tax jurisdictions around the worlde Yécognize liabilities for anticipated taxes ie 11.S. and other tax jurisdictions base:
our estimate of whether, and the extent to whielie$ are and could be due. This liability is estadebased on a prescribed recogn
threshold and measurement attributes for the fimhstatement recognition and measurements of pdaiion taken or expected to be take
a tax return. The resolution of tax matters foraamunt that is different than the amount reservedlevbe recognized in our effective tax
during the period in which such resolution occurs.

Our effective income tax rate is also affected bgrges in tax law, the tax jurisdiction of new stoor business ventures, the levt
earnings and the results of tax audits. Our ligbfbr unrecognized tax benefits contains uncetiggnbecause management is required to
assumptions and to apply judgment to estimate Hposures associated with our various filing posgioAlthough we believe that 1
judgments and estimates discussed herein are @aepmctual results could differ, and we may beosed to losses or gains that coul
material.

We have received income tax assessments from thisiDdaax Authority (“SKAT”)with respect to the tax years 2001 through :
relating to the royalty paid by certain of Temp@a$y Internationa$ U.S. subsidiaries to a Danish subsidiary. The8200ome tax assessm
was received in March 2014. The cumulative totalassessment for all years through 2008 is apprateiyn $215.1 million including intere
and penalties. We were granted a deferral to 2@1Feorequirement to post a cash deposit or ottvan fof security for taxes that have b
assessed for the period 2001 through 2007 andeardefo 2018 of the requirement to post a castosiepr other form of security for taxes t
have been assessed for 2008. We maintain an uincéataliability associated with this matter, thm@unt of which is based on a roy:
methodology and royalty rates that we consideretodflective of arm's length transactions. It Bs@nably possible the amount of unrecogr
tax benefits may change in the next twelve mongtrs.estimate of the amount of such change cannanhaée at this time. If we are |
successful in defending its position before théoimial or in the Danish courts, we could be requicepay significant amounts to SKAT. Re
to Note 14 , “ Income Taxes i our Consolidated Financial Statements includedart Il, ITEM 8 of this Report for further infoatior
associated with this tax assessment.

To the extent we prevail in matters for which alility has been established, or are required togragunts in excess of our estimi
liability, our effective income tax rate in a givénancial statement period could be materialleaféd. An unfavorable tax settlement gene
would require use of our cash and may result inngnease in our effective income tax rate in theiqueof resolution. A favorable ti
settlement would be recognized as a reduction ireffactive income tax rate in the period of retiol
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Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Refer to ITEM 8 under Part Il of this Report fofudl description of recent accounting pronouncerseimcluding the expected date:
adoption and estimated effects on results of ofpermaind financial condition, which is incorporateztein by reference.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK
Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

We manage a portion of our exposure in foreignenay transactions through the use of foreign exghdorward contracts. Re
to Note 8 , " Derivative Financial Instrumeritto the accompanying consolidated financial statets for a summary of our foreign exchs
forward contracts as of December 31, 2014 .

As a result of our global operations, our earniagsexposed to changes in foreign currency exchaatgs. Approximately 27% of ¢
net sales were generated outside of the Unite@sStat2014. Many of our foreign businesses opénafignctional currencies other than the |
dollar. If the U.S. dollar strengthened relative to theoearr other foreign currencies where we have oparatithere would be a negative imj
on our operating results upon translation of thfoseign operating results into the U.S. dollar2Bi4, foreign currency exchange rate cha
negatively impacted our net income by approximate8#c. We do not hedge the translation of foreigrmency operating results into the U
dollar.

We hedge a portion of our currency exchange exgoselating to foreign currency transactions witlefgn exchange forwa
contracts. A sensitivity analysis indicates theeptial loss in fair value on foreign exchange famvaontracts outstanding Btecember 3:
2014, resulting from a hypothetical 10.0% adverse ckangall foreign currency exchange rates agairesiils. dollar, is approximately $1
million. Such losses would be largely offset byngafrom the revaluation or settlement of the undiegl assets and liabilities that are be
protected by the foreign exchange forward contracts

Interest Rate Risk

We are exposed to changes in interest rates. Gt 2@edit Agreement has a variable rate compo@mtugust 8, 2011, we ente
into a new fouryear interest rate swap agreement to manage int@sis and the risk of changing interest ratescaated with a portion of tl
borrowings outstanding under our credit facilitiekder this swap, we pay at a fixed rate and recpayments at a variable rate. The ¢
effectively fixes the floating LIBORased interest rate to 1.25% on $250.0 millionhef dutstanding balance as of December 31, 2012
our 2012 Credit Agreement, with the outstandingabeé declining over time. The outstanding notigmmadcipal amount of the swap reduce
$150.0 million on December 31, 2013. The interagt swap expires on December 30, 2015. We seledtIBOR-based rate on the hed;
portion of our 2012 Credit Agreement during thertesf the swap. The effective portion of the changealue of the swap is reflected ¢
component of other comprehensive income and rezedras interest expense, net as payments are mpadtmied. The remaining gain or |
in excess of the cumulative change in the presahtevof the future cash flows of the hedged itee,,(the ineffective portion), if any,
recognized as interest expense, net during themuperiod.

Interest rate changes generally do not affect theket value of such debt but do impact the amodirduo interest payments a
therefore, our future earnings and cash flows, rgsy other factors are held constant. On DecembgP@14, after giving effect to our intere
rate swap agreement, we had variable-rate debtppfoaimately $972.5 million Holding other variables constant, including level
indebtedness, a one hundred basis point increaatenest rates on our variahiate debt would cause an estimated reduction ioniecbefor
income taxes for the next year of approximately’ $8illion .
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Tempal International, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Tempur Sealy International, Inc. amosBliaries as of December 31, 2
and 2013, and the related consolidated statemémgame, comprehensive income, stockholders' ggaitd cash flows for each of the tt
years in the period ended December 31, 2014. Qditsaalso included the financial statement schetisied in the Index at Item 15(a). Th
financial statements and schedule are the resghtysitif the Company's management. Our responsgybi to express an opinion on th
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversightuBiogUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the finastiééments are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digidg in the financial statements. An @
also includes assessing the accounting princigded and significant estimates made by managenmemtelhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referrecabove present fairly, in all material respedts, tonsolidated financial position of Tem
Sealy International, Inc. and Subsidiaries at Ddsan31, 2014 and 2013, and the consolidated resfittseir operations and their cash flc
for each of the three years in the period endece®éer 31, 2014, in conformity with U.S. generaltgepted accounting principles. Also
our opinion, the related financial statement scheedwhen considered in relation to the basic fimanstatements taken as a whole, pre
fairly in all material respects the information fath therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Blofldnited States), Tempur Se
International, Inc. and Subsidiaries' internal coinbver financial reporting as of December 31, £04ased on criteria established in Inte
Controlintegrated Framework issued by the Committee oihSpong Organizations of the Treadway Commissidi&Framework) and o
report dated February 13, 2015, expressed an ufigdalpinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Louisville, Kentucky
February 13, 2015
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TEMPUR SEALY INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(in millions, except per common share amounts)

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Net sales $ 2,989.6 $ 2,464.. $ 1,402.¢
Cost of sales 1,839.. 1,449.. 688.<
Gross profit 1,150.¢ 1,014.¢ 714.¢
Selling and marketing expenses 619.¢ 522.¢ 319.1
General, administrative and other expenses 280.¢ 266.% 147.2
Equity income in earnings of unconsolidated aftéd&a (8.3 4.9 —
Royalty income, net of royalty expense (18.7) (23.7) —
Operating income 276.: 243.¢ 248.:
Other expense, net:

Interest expense, net 91.¢ 110.¢ 18.¢

Loss on disposal, net 23.2 — —

Other (income) expense, net (13.7) 5.C 0.2

Total other expense 101.¢ 115.¢ 19.1

Income before income taxes 174.¢ 128.( 229.2
Income tax provision (64.9 (49.7) (122.9

Net income before non-controlling interest 110.C 78.¢ 106.¢
Less: net income attributable to non-controllingest 1.1 0.2 —
Net income attributable to Tempur Sealy Internatlpinc. $ 108.¢ $ 78 $ 106.¢
Earnings per common share:

Basic $ 17¢ $ 13C $ 1.74

Diluted $ 178 ¢ 128 % 1.7
Weighted average common shares outstanding:

Basic 60.€ 60.2 61.5

Diluted 62.1 61.€ 62.¢

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financetke8tents are an integral part of these statements.
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TEMPUR SEALY INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(in millions)
Year Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012

Net income before non-controlling interest $ 1100 $ 78¢ % 106.¢

Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net)f ta (38.9 (10.6) 8.2
Net change in unrecognized (loss) on interestawatgp, net of tax 0.7 1.2 1.7
Pension and other post retirement benefits, nebof (5.6) 3.2 —
Unrealized loss on cash flow hedging derivatives,af tax 1.2 — —
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax (42.0 (6.2) 7.1
Comprehensive income 68.C 72.¢ 113.¢
Less: Comprehensive income attributable to nonrodimty interest 1.1 0.2 —
Comprehensive income attributable to Tempur SeaBriational, Inc. $ 66 $ 728 8 113.

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financetk8tents are an integral part of these statements.
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TEMPUR SEALY INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in millions)
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 625 $ 81.C
Accounts receivable, net 385.¢ 349.2
Inventories 2172 199.2
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 56.5 53.7
Deferred income taxes 44.L 444
Total Current Assets 766.4 727.5
Property, plant and equipment, net 355.€ 411.¢
Goodwill 736.k 759.¢
Other intangible assets, net 727.1 750.1
Deferred income taxes 8.€ 10.¢
Other non-current assets 68.£ 70.2
Total Assets $ 2,662.t % 2,729.¢
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 226.2 % 191.2
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 233.% 208.4
Deferred income taxes 0.2 0.8
Income taxes payable 12.C 1.t
Current portion of long-term debt 66.£ 39.¢
Total Current Liabilities 538.: 441:*
Long-term debt 1,535.¢ 1,796.¢
Deferred income taxes 258.¢ 286.1
Other non-current liabilities 114.% 75.5
Total Liabilities 2,447 2,599.¢
Redeemable non-controlling interest 12.€ 11t

Stockholders' Equity
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 300.0 shares aatd)rd9.2 million shares issued as of December 31,

2014 and 2013 1.C 1.C
Additional paid in capital 411.¢ 396.t
Retained earnings 1,036.¢ 927.¢
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (55.7) (13.7)
Treasury stock at cost; 38.3 and 38.6 shares @sadmber 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively (1,191.) (1,193.)
Total Stockholders’ Equity 202.7 118.€
Total Liabilities, Redeemable Non-Controlling Ireet and Stockholders’ Equity $ 2,662. $ 2,729.¢

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financete8tents are an integral part of these statements

60




Table of Contents

TEMPUR SEALY INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(in millions)

Tempur Sealy International, Inc. Stockholders' Equty

Common Shares Treasury Shares

Redeemable Accumulated
non- Additional Other Total
controlling Shares Shares Paid in Retained Comprehensive Stockholders'
interest Issued At Par Issued At Cost Capital Earnings (Loss) Income Equity

Balance, December 31, 2011 $ = 99.z $ 1.C 354 $(1,059.) $ 361¢ $ 742F % 149 $ 30.¢
Net income 106.¢ 106.¢
Derivative instruments accounted fo
as hedges, net of tax of $(0.7) 1.2 1.9
Foreign currency adjustments, net of
tax of $(2.7) 8.2 8.2
Exercise of stock options 0.9 10.4 1.C 11.4
Tax adjustments related to stock
compensation 10.t 10.5
Treasury stock repurchased 5.C (150.0) (150.0
Amortization of unearned stock-based
compensation 5.7 5.7
Balance, December 31, 2012 $ = 99.2 % 1.cC 39.E $(1,199.9 $ 379.C $ 849 $ (7€) $ 72.E
Acquisition of redeemable non-
controlling interest 11.2
Net income 78.€ 78.€
Net income attributable to non-
controlling interest 0.3
Adjustment to pension liability, net ¢
tax of ($2.0) 3.z 3.2
Derivative instruments accounted for
as hedges, net of tax of $(0.8) 1.z 1.3
Foreign currency adjustments (10.€) (10.€)
Exercise of stock options (0.€) 6.¢ 1. 8.7
Issuances of PRSUs, RSUs, and
DSUs (0.9 6.4 (6.4 —
Tax adjustments related to stock
compensation 5.2 5.2
Treasury stock repurchased (7.0 (7.0
Amortization of unearned stock-based
compensation 16.¢ 16.¢
Balance, December 31, 2013 $ 11t 99.2 % 1.c 38.€ $(1,193.) $ 396t $ 927.¢ $ (137 $ 118.€
Net income 108.¢ 108.¢
Net income attributable to non-
controlling interest 11
Adjustment to pension liability, net of
tax of ($3.4) (5.6 (5.6
Derivative instruments accounted fo
as hedges, net of tax of $(0.9) 2.C 2.C
Foreign currency adjustments (38.9) (38.9
Exercise of stock options (0.2) 2t 1. 4.3
Issuances of PRSUs, RSUs, and
DSUs 0.7 1t 1.5 —
Tax adjustments related to stock
compensation 1.7 17
Treasury stock repurchased (2.2) 2.2
Amortization of unearned stock-bas
compensation 13.4 13.4
Balance, December 31, 2014 $ 12.€ 99.2 $ 1.c 382 $(1,191) $ 411¢ $ 1,086¢ $ (55.9) $ 202.7

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financetk8tents are an integral part of these statements.

61




Table of Contents

TEMPUR SEALY INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in millions)
Year Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income before non-controlling interest $ 110.( $ 78.¢ $ 106.¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 76.% 74.€ 36.2
Amortization of stock-based compensation 13.¢ 16.€ 5.7
Amortization of deferred financing costs 12.5 7.4 1.4
Write-off of deferred financing costs _ 47 _
Bad debt expense 4.¢ .3 2.t
Deferred income taxes (27.2) (49.7) 38.4
Dividends received from unconsolidated affiliates 2.C 2E —
Equity income in earnings of unconsolidated afféd& 8.3 (4.4 —
Non-cash interest expense on 8.0% Sealy Notes 5.1 3.7 —
Loss on sale of assets 3.c 0.8 0.2
Loss on disposal of business 232 _ _
Foreign currency adjustments and other 1.€ 0.1 1.
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, neffett of business acquisitions:
Accounts receivable (58.¢) (30.7) B2
Inventories (34.0 (34.5) 0.1
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 4.9 27.¢ (29.9)
Accounts payable 47.€ 28.1 14.:
Accrued expenses and other 56.7 4.4 11.€
Income taxes payable 10.€ (34.7) (5.2)
Net cash provided by operating activities 225.% 98.t 189.¢
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired (8.5) (1,172.9 4.5)
Proceeds from disposition of business 43.t — —
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (47.5) (40.0 (50.5)
Other 21 (0.) —
Net cash used in investing activities (10.9) (1,213.0 (55.0)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from 2012 credit agreement 271 2,992.¢ _
Repayments of 2012 credit agreement (510.9) (1,658.9) —
Proceeds from issuance of senior notes _ 375.( _
Proceeds from 2011 credit facility —_ 46.5 352.(
Repayments of 2011 credit facility — (696.5) (287.0)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 4.5 8.7 11.2
Excess tax benefit from stock based compensation 1.7 5.4 10.5
Treasury shares repurchased 2.2) (7.0 (152.¢)
Payments of deferred financing costs 3.3 (52.0) (2.9
Other 0.€ (1.0 (2.9)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (238.7) 1,013.¢ (70.9)
NET EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASEQUIVALENTS 4. 2.8 3.€
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (18.5) (98.9) 67.¢

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of period 81.C 179.c 111.¢




CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of period $ 628 % 81 % 179.%

Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid during the period for:
Interest $ 738 % 921  $ 37.1

Income taxes, net of refunds $ 56.2 $ 96.4 $ 80.1
The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financetke8tents are an integral part of these statements.
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TEMPUR SEALY INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND CONSOLIDATED S UBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Presentation and Description of Busindssmpur Sealy International, Inc., a Delaware camion, together with i
subsidiaries, is a U.S. based, multinational comp@he term “Tempur Sealy Internationaéfers to Tempur Sealy International, Inc. onlyd
the term “Company” refers to Tempur Sealy Interai, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries.

The Company develops, manufactures, markets atsb@elding products, which include mattresses,dations and adjustable ba:
and other products, which include pillows and otheressories. The Company also derives income rfoyaities by licensing the Sealy&c
Stearns & Foster®rands, technology and trademarks to other manufast Additionally, the Company participates imes@l joint ventures
the Asia-Pacific region, as well as a joint ventimethe U.S. with Comfort Revolution Internation&ll. C (“Comfort Revolution”). The
Company sells its products through three salesreflanRetail, Direct and Other.

On March 18, 2013, the Company completed the aitipmsof Sealy Corporation and its historical sulievies (“Sealy”),which
manufactures and markets a broad range of matsressk foundations under the Sealy®, Sealy Postdie®e Optimum™ and Stearns ¢
Foster® brands. The Company’s acquisition of Sé&galy Acquisition”) is more fully described in 03 , “ Acquisitions and Divestitures
The 2014 and 2013 results of operations for Seayeported within the ComparsySealy reportable segment and include resultthéoyea
ended December 31, 2014 and the period of MarcRAB3 to December 31, 2013, respectively.

As a result of the Sealy Acquisition, the Compan@onsolidated Financial Statements include theltsesf Comfort Revolution,
45.0% owned joint venture. Comfort Revolution cdogts a variable interest entity (“VIETpr which the Company is considered to be
primary beneficiary due to the Company's disprdpogte share of the economic risk associated wsthduity contribution, debt financing ¢
other factors that were considered in the relgi@dy analysis surrounding the identification oé thrimary beneficiary. The operations
Comfort Revolution are not material to the Compangonsolidated Financial Statements. Refer to N6te “ Redeemable Nooentrolling
Interest ” for further discussion.

(b) Basis of ConsolidatioriThe accompanying financial statements include toawants of Tempur Sealy International andli#®.0%
owned subsidiary companies and Comfort Revolutintercompany balances and transactions have bé&emaied. The equity method
accounting is used for joint ventures and investsmi@nassociated companies over which the Compasyshynificant influence, but does
have effective control and consolidation is noteotvise required under the Financial Accounting &ads Board’s (“FASB”jauthoritativ
guidance surrounding the consolidation of VIEs. Tmmpanys equity in the net income and losses of thesestments is reported in eqL
income in earnings of unconsolidated affiliatethi@a accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income.

(c) Use of EstimatesThe preparation of financial statements in confoymiith United States Generally Accepted Accour
Principles (*U.S. GAAP equires management to make estimates and assusit@t affect the reported amounts of assetsiabitities ant
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiethatdate of the financial statements and the redaimounts of revenue and expenses durir
reporting period. Actual results could differ frotihhose estimates. The Compasiyesults are affected by economic, political, skgive
regulatory and legal actions. Economic conditisissh as recessionary trends, inflation, interest monetary exchange rates, governt
fiscal policies and changes in the prices of raviemias, can have a significant effect on operation

(d) Fair Value Measurement$he Company applies fair value accounting forialhficial assets and liabilities and nfimancial asse
and liabilities that are recognized or disclosefhatvalue in the financial statements on a raéagrbasis. The Company defines fair value a
price that would be received from selling an assepaid to transfer a liability in an orderly tracsion between market participants at
measurement date. When determining the fair valeasmrements for assets and liabilities, the Commamgiders the principal or m
advantageous market in which the Company wouldstreinand the markétased risk measurements or assumptions that mpaketipant
would use in pricing the asset or liability, suchigherent risk, transfer restrictions and credk.r
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TEMPUR SEALY INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND CONSOLIDATED S UBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CON TINUED)

The Company estimates fair value of its finanaiatiuments utilizing an established thteeel hierarchy. The hierarchy is based L
the transparency of inputs to the valuation of ssetor liability as of the measurement date dsvist

» Level 1 —Valuation is based upon unadjusted quoted priceslémtical assets or liabilities in active mark

* Level 2 —Valuation is based upon quoted prices for simikgets and liabilities in active markets, or ottmguits that are observa
for the asset or liability, either directly or iméctly, for substantially the full term of the fimeial instruments.

e Level 3 —-Vvaluation is based upon other unobservable infatisare significant to the fair value measurem

(e) Foreign CurrencyAssets and liabilities of nob-S. subsidiaries, whose functional currency isltical currency, are translated i
U.S. dollars at periognd exchange rates. Income and expense itemsaastated at the average rates of exchange preayadiliring the perio
The adjustments resulting from translating therfsial statements of foreign subsidiaries are inetlioth accumulated other comprehensive
(“OCL"), a component of stockholderstuity, and included in net earnings only upon saliquidation of the underlying foreign subsidian
affiliated company. Foreign currency transactiomgand losses are recognized in net earnings lmasdidferences between foreign exchai
rates on the transaction date and on the settleta¢at

(f) Derivative Financial Instrument3he Company records derivative financial instruraemt the consolidated balance sheets as
an asset or liability measured at its fair valubafges in a derivative's fair value (i.e., unrealigains or losses) are recorded each per
earnings or other comprehensive loss ("OCL"), ddpenon whether the derivative is designated areffesctive as a hedged transaction,
on the type of hedging relationship.

For derivative financial instruments that are deatgd as a hedge, unrealized gains and lossesdétathe effective portion are eit
recognized in income immediately to offset the imsal gain or loss on the hedged item, or are dadeand reported as a componer
accumulated OCL in stockholders' equity and subsefiyi recognized in net income when the hedged #éfects net income. The chang:
fair value of the ineffective portion of a deriwagifinancial instrument is recognized in net incamenediately. For derivative instruments !
are not designated as hedges, the gain or logedatathe change in fair value is also recordetktaincome immediately.

Derivative financial instruments are used in thenmad course of business to manage interest ratdaaain currency exchange ris
In order to manage risks related to borrowings uritgecredit facilities, the Company entered into iaterest rate swap agreement.
Company designated this interest rate swap ashafttag hedge of floating rate borrowings. The Compananages the risk associated '
fluctuations in foreign currencies related to intenpany and third party inventory purchases denateihin foreign currencies through fore
exchange forward contracts designated as cashHexges. The Company does not apply hedge accouwtitige foreign currency forwa
contracts used to offset currenjated changes in foreign currency denominateetsissd liabilities. These contracts are adjusidtiir fail
value through earnings. Refer to Note 8 , “ DerivaFinancial Instruments ” for further discussion.

(g) Cash and Cash Equivalent€ash and cash equivalents consist of all highlyidignvestments with initial maturities of thi
months or less.

(h) Inventories.Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or miarédletermined by the first-in, firstat method and consist of -
following:

December 31,

(in millions) 2014 2013
Finished goods $ 134.C % 126.7
Work-in-process 11.4 10.C
Raw materials and supplies 71.¢ 62.5
$ 2172 $ 199.2
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TEMPUR SEALY INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND CONSOLIDATED S UBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CON TINUED)

(i) Property, Plant and Equipmerfroperty, plant and equipment are carried at dost@uisition date and are depreciated using tiaggsi-
line method over their estimated useful lives dioves:

Estimated
Useful Lives

(in years)
Buildings 25-30
Computer equipment and software 3-5
Leasehold improvements 4-7
Machinery and equipment 3-7
Office furniture and fixtures 5-7

The Company records depreciation and amortizatiarost of sales, for lonlived assets used in the manufacturing processwéhah
each line item of operating expenses for all otbhag-ived assets. Leasehold improvements are amortzed the shorter of the life of t
lease or seven years.

Property, plant and equipment, net consisted ofdhewing:

December 31,

(in millions) 2014 2013
Machinery and equipment $ 243t $ 270.¢
Land and buildings 247.1 261.¢
Computer equipment and software 69.2 72.5
Furniture and fixtures 54.¢ 56.7
Construction in progress 39.4 28.¢
$ 654.1 $ 690.¢
Accumulated depreciation (298.5) (279.0
$ 355.6 $ 411.¢

Depreciation expense, which includes depreciatigerse for capital lease assets, for the Compasy$sa.7 million $59.4 millior
and $30.9 million for the years ended Decembef814 , 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

() Long-Lived Assetd.ong-ived assets are reviewed for impairment whenevents or changes in circumstances indicate th:
carrying amount of an asset may not be recover&#eoverability of londived assets is assessed by a comparison of thgrgaamount ¢
the asset to the estimated future undiscountectat flows expected to be generated by the assgtoop of assets. If estimated ful
undiscounted net cash flows are less than theingrmount of the asset or group of assets, thet &ssonsidered impaired and an expen
recorded in an amount required to reduce the cagrgimount of the asset to its then fair value. alue generally is determined fr
estimated discounted future net cash flows (foetzdseld for use) or net realizable value (for &sleld for sale).

(k) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assetatangible assets with finite useful lives are atized over their respective estimated us
lives to their estimated residual values and reg\for impairment whenever events or changes tunistances indicate an impairment |
have occurred. The Company performs an annual ineait test on all existing goodwill and other iridé€ lived assets on October 1 of e
year and whenever events or circumstances makerd fikely than not that impairment may have ocedrThe Company reviewed good»
for impairment based on its identified reportingitsinwhich are the Compars/Tempur North America, Tempur International andly
operating segments. In conducting the impairmesitfte the Tempur North America, Tempur Internadiband Sealy operating segments
fair value of each of the Compasyreporting units is compared to its respectiveyiiag amount including goodwill. If the fair valuexceed
the carrying amount, then no impairment existthéf carrying amount exceeds the fair value, furtmalysis is performed to assess impairn
The Companys determination of fair value of the reporting arig based on a discounted cash flow approach,amitappropriate risk adjus
discount rate, and a market approach. Any identifigpairment would result in an adjustment to tlwen@Pany’s results of operations.

65




Table of Contents
TEMPUR SEALY INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND CONSOLIDATED S UBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CON TINUED)

The Company also tests its indefiniteed intangible assets, principally the Tempur &ehly trade names. The Company teste
Sealy trade names for impairment using a “reliefifrroyalty” method. Significant assumptions inherent in thehm@éologies are employ
and include such estimates as royalty and discoatas. The Company tested its Tempur trade nanwaighra qualitative analysis wh
considered indicators of impairment to evaluatetiwiethe fair value was more likely than not ines of its carrying value.

The Company performed its annual impairment tegfoafdwill and indefinite-lived intangible asset2i®14 , 2013 and 2012hone o
which resulted in the recognition of impairment ies. For further information on goodwill and othetangible assets refer to Note 4
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets ”.

() Accrued Sales Returnshe Company allows product returns through cerales channels and on certain products. Estimates
returns are provided at the time of sale basedistorital sales channel return rates. Estimatedréubbligations related to these product:
provided by a reduction of sales in the period hal the revenue is recognized. Accrued salesnetare included in accrued expenses
other current liabilities in the accompanying Cditaded Balance Sheets.

The Company had the following activity for accrigades returns from December 31, 2012 to Decemhet(BHY :

(in millions)

Balance as of December 31, 2012 5.1
Amounts accrued 104.¢
Liabilities assumed as a result of Sealy Acquisitio 19.¢
Returns charged to accrual (101.7

Balance as of December 31, 2013 $ 28.7
Amounts accrued 127.¢
Returns charged to accrual (123.9

Balance as of December 31, 2014 $ 32.8

(m) Warranties.The Company provides warranties on certain progdudtgch vary based by segment, product and brastimates ¢
warranty expenses are based primarily on histodieans experience and product testing. Estimatéaté obligations related to these prod
are charged to cost of sales in the period in whitgh related revenue is recognized. In estimatiagvarranty obligations, the Comp:
considers the impact of recoverable salvage valusarranty costs by segment in determining itsvestie of future warranty obligations.

The following summarizes the Company’s warrantyntefor mattresses and pillows:

Segment Product/Brand Warranty Term (in years)
Tempur North America Mattresses 10 - 25, prorated
Tempur North America Pillows 3

Tempur International Mattresses 5 - 15, proratet?
Tempur International Pillows 3
Sealy Mattresses 10 - 25, prorate

(1) Products have various warranty terms, genenalh-prorated for the first 10 to y®ars and then prorated for the balance of theantyiterm
(2) The last 10 years of warranty period are geat@n a straighitne basi:
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The Company had the following activity for warrastfrom December 31, 2012 to December 31, 2014 :

(in millions)

Balance as of December 31, 2012 $ 4.8
Amounts accrued 22.7
Liabilities assumed as a result of Sealy Acquisitio 21.4
Warranties charged to accrual (22.¢)

Balance as of December 31, 2013 26.1
Amounts accrued 34.z2
Warranties charged to accrual (29.0

Balance as of December 31, 2014 $ 31

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, $16.1 milliod &h4.9 million, respectively, are included as a component ofusttexpens:
and other current liabilities and $15.2 million adill.2 million are included in other non-curremtbiiities on the Compang’accompanyir
Consolidated Balance Sheets, respectively.

(n) Income TaxesDeferred tax assets and liabilities are recogniftedthe future tax consequences attributable topteary
differences between the financial statement cagrgimounts of existing assets and liabilities amir ttespective tax bases. Deferred tax a
and liabilities are measured using enacted taxs r@tpected to apply to taxable income in the yaamghich those temporary differences
expected to be recovered or settled. Deferreddagta are also recognized for the estimated fetifieets of tax loss carry forwards. The ef
of changes in tax rates on deferred taxes is rézedrn the period in which the enactment datesighaValuation allowances are establis
when necessary on a jurisdictional basis to rediaferred tax assets to the amounts expected t@dlzed. The Company accounts
uncertain foreign and domestic tax positions utitiza proscribed recognition threshold and measen¢rattributes for the financial staterr
recognition and measurement of a tax position takerxpected to be taken in a tax return.

(o) Revenue RecognitioBales of products are recognized as revenue whengsive evidence of an arrangement exists, titbses t
customers and the risks and rewards of ownerslaptransferred, the sales price is fixed or deteabliy and collectability is reasona
assured. The Company extends volume discountsrt@irteustomers, as well as promotional allowanfiesy sample discounts, commissi
paid to retail associates and slotting fees, afidats these amounts as a reduction of sales dintigerevenue is recognized based on histc
experience. The Company also reports sales neixadigsessed by qualifying governmental authorifiege. Company extends credit base!
the creditworthiness of its customers. No colldteraequired on sales made in the normal courdmisiness.

The allowance for doubtful accounts is the Compsulgst estimate of the amount of probable cred#ds in the Compars/existing
accounts receivable. The Company regularly revidhves adequacy of its allowance for doubtful accoufitse Company determines
allowance for doubtful accounts based on histonedde-off experience and current economic conditions alsd considers factors suct
customer credit, past transaction history withahstomer and changes in customer payment terms @dtermining whether the collection ¢
customer receivable is reasonably assured. Acdmlahces are charged off against the allowance a@fteecasonable means of collection
been exhausted and the potential for recoverynsidered remote. The allowance for doubtful acceimtiuded in accounts receivable, ne
the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets véas #iillion and $19.3 million as of December 3112@&nd 2013, respectively.

The Company reflects all amounts billed to custanfer shipping and handling in net sales and thescimcurred from shipping a
handling product in cost of sales. Amounts inclugtedet sales for shipping and handling were appnately $14.7 million , $12.5 millioanc
$4.9 million for the years ended December 31, 202@13 and 2012respectively. Amounts included in cost of satasshipping and handli
were $169.2 million , $142.5 million and $99.7 moitl for the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2082642 , respectively.

During the period ended December 31, 2014 , the faom recognized other income, net of expense, 6f6btnillion from certait
other non-recurring items, including the partidtleenent of a legal dispute.
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(p) Cost of Sales Costs associated with net sales are recordedsinot sales. Cost of sales includes the costea#iving, producin
inspecting, warehousing, insuring, and shippingdgoduring the period, as well as depreciation andrtization of longlived assets used
these processes. Cost of sales also include shigwid handling costs associated with the delivéryoods to customers and costs assoc
with internal transfers between plant locations.

(q) Cooperative Advertising, Rebate and Other Promatidtrograms.The Company enters into agreements with custorngueotvide
funds for advertising and promotions. The Compdseg anters into volume and other rebate progrants euistomers. When sales are ma
these customers, the Company records liabilitiesyant to these agreements. The Company periogiaafiesses these liabilities base
actual sales and claims to determine whether dh@ttooperative advertising earned will be usethkeycustomer or whether the customer
meet the requirements to receive rebate funds.Cldimpany generally negotiates these agreementscastamer-bysustomer basis. Some
these agreements extend over several periods fi§agriestimates are required at any point in tmith regard to the ultimate reimbursemer
be claimed by the customers. Subsequent revismrsith estimates are recorded and charged to gariminthe period in which they
identified. Rebates and cooperative advertisingciassified as a reduction of revenue and presentttdn net sales on the accompany
Consolidated Statements of Income. Certain cooperatlvertising expenses are reported as componéstling and marketing expense
the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Indmrause the Company receives an identifiable hesnadi the fair value of the advertis
benefit can be reasonably estimated.

(r) Advertising CostsThe Company expenses advertising costs as incexeebt for production costs and advance paymeritigh
are deferred and expensed when advertisementsrtimef first time. Direct response advance paymargsieferred and amortized over the
of the program. Advertising costs are included éflisg and marketing expenses in the accompanyiogs@lidated Statements of Incol
Advertising costs charged to expense were $32dlibmj $274.2 million and $164.5 million for theegrs ended December 31, 2014 , 2848
2012, respectively. Advertising costs include expern@itufor shared advertising costs that the Compamghurses to customers undei
integrated and cooperative advertising program&p€mtive advertising costs paid to customers ecerded as a component of selling
marketing expenses within the Consolidated Statésrmrincome to the extent of the estimated falu@avhen the customer provides proc
advertising. The Company periodically assessetighdities recorded for cooperative advertising®d on actual sales and claims to deter
whether all of the cooperative advertising earndtlb& used by the customer. Advertising costs eteand included in prepaid expenses
other current assets in the accompanying ConselidBalance Sheets were $9.7 million and $8.5 milis of December 31, 2014 and 2013
respectively.

(s) Research and Development Expen&esearch and development expenses for new proaieexpensed as they are incurred
are included in general, administrative and othgreases in the accompanying Consolidated Stateroéht€ome. Research and developr
costs charged to expense were $21.6 million , $2dillon and $15.6 million for the years ended Deter 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012
respectively.

(t) Deferred Financing CostsThe Company capitalizes costs associated with sheance of debt and amortizes these cos
additional interest expense over the lives of tebtdnstruments using the effective interest methidiese costs are recorded as defi
financing costs within other naturrent assets in the accompanying ConsolidateanBal Sheets and interest expense, net in the aeogmg
Consolidated Statements of Income. Upon the prepayof the related debt, the Company acceleragessttognition of an appropriate amc
of the costs.

(u)Royalty Income and Expendéhe Company recognizes royalty income based os sdlBealy® and Stearns & Fostepganded produc
by various licensees. The Company also pays regatth other entities for the use of their namegpmuucts produced by the Compse
Royalty income, net of royalty expense, was $18illian and $13.7 million for the years ended Decem81, 2014 and 2013respectively
The Company did not record royalty income or expefos the year ended December 31, 2012.
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(v) Stock-Based Compensatidrhe Company accounts for stob&sed payment transactions in which the Compargives employe
services in exchange for equity instruments of Gleenpany. Stock-based compensation cost for restristock units (“RSUs”)performanc
restricted stock units (“PRSUs”) and deferred staclits (“DSUs”) is measured based on the closing rfaarket value of the Comparsy’
common stock on the date of grant. Stock-based eosgtion cost for stock options is estimated agthat date based on each option’s fai
value as calculated by the Black-Scholes optionipgi model. The Company recognizes stbelsed compensation cost as expense for a
other than its PRSUSs ratably on a straight-lindsbager the requisite service period. The Compa&@tpgnizes stockased compensation c
associated with its PRSUs over the requisite serp@riod if it is probable that the performanceditons will be satisfied. The Company v
recognize a benefit from stoddased compensation in additional paid in capitahiincremental tax benefit is realized by follogvihe orderin
provisions of the tax law. Further information redjag stock-based compensation can be found in Mdte" Stock-based Compensation .”

(w) Treasury StockSubject to Delaware law, and the limitations in @@mpany's 2012 Credit Agreement, the Board of dins ma
authorize share repurchases of the Company’s constomk (“Share Repurchase AuthorizationShare Repurchase Authorizations ma
made through open market transactions, negotiatezhpse or otherwise, at times and in such amasitise Company, and a committee o
Board, deem appropriate. Shares repurchased undee Repurchase Authorizations are held in treafwurygeneral corporate purpos
including issuances under various employee shased award plans. Treasury shares are accoumtaedder the cost method and reported
reduction of stockholders’ equity. Share Repurchfagorizations may be suspended, limited or teatdd at any time without notice.

(x) Self-InsuranceThe Company is self-insured for certain lossestedl@ medical claims with excess loss coveraggOof millior
per claim per year. The Company also utilizes latgductible policies to insure claims related toegal liability, product liability, automobil
and workers’ compensation. The Company'’s recorididlity for workers’ compensation represents an estimate of the ultioegeof claim
incurred as of the balance sheet date. The estinvabekers' compensation liability is undiscounted & established based upon analys
historical and actuarial estimates, and is revielwedhe Company and third party actuaries on atqtgrbasis to ensure that the liability
appropriate. As of December 31, 2014 and 20138 #dllion and $5.4 million respectively, of the recorded undiscounted ligbis includec
in accrued expenses and other current liabilitied $10.0 million and $9.5 million are included ither noneurrent liabilities within th
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

(y) Environmental CostEnvironmental expenditures that relate to currgrdrations are expensed or capitalized, as appteptiade
the FASBS authoritative guidance on environmental remeatiatiabilities. Expenditures that relate to an 8Rg condition caused by p
operations and that do not provide future beneafiésexpensed as incurred. Liabilities are recovdaeh environmental assessments are me
the requirement for remedial efforts is probableq @he costs can be reasonably estimated. Thediminaccruing for these remediat
liabilities is generally no later than the competiof feasibility studies. The Company has an amganonitoring and identification proces:
assess how the activities, with respect to the knewposures, are progressing against the accrugdesbmates, as well as to identify o
potential remediation sites that are presently omkn

(z) Pension ObligationsThe Company has a noncontributory, defined bermditsion plan covering current and former hc
employees at four of its active Sealy plants agthtgdreviously closed Sealy U.S. facilities. Se@hnada, Ltd. (a 100.0%wned subsidiary
the Company) also sponsors a noncontributory, ddfinenefit pension plan covering hourly employeesree of its facilities. Both pla
provide retirement and survivorship benefits basedhe employees' credited years of service. Th@pany's funding policy provides !
contributions of an amount between the minimum ireguand maximum amount that can be deducted fieréé income tax purposes. -
funded status is measured as the difference bettieefair value of plan assets and the benefitgaltibn at December 31, the measurel
date. The benefit obligation is the projected bi¢rudfligation (“PBO”). The PBO represents the actuarial present valuenéfiis expected
be paid upon retirement based on estimated futmgensation levels. The measurement of the PB@sedon the Compargyestimates al
actuarial valuations. The fair value of plan assetgesents the current market value of assets thelah irrevocable trust fund for the <
benefit of participants. These valuations refléwt terms of the plans and use participggeific information such as compensation, age
years of service, as well as certain assumptioaisréguire significant judgment, including estinsaté discount rates, expected return on
assets, rate of compensation increases, inteeditiog rates and mortality rates.

(aa)Supply Agreement$he Company from time to time enters into long teupply agreements with its customers to sellisgsmber
products to customers in exchange for minimum satégme or a minimum percentage of the customat&ssor space on the retail floor. S
agreements generally cover a period of two to years. Initial cash outlays by the Company for sagieements are capitalized and amor
generally as a reduction of sales over the lifetr@f contract. The majority of these cash outlays ratably recoverable upon cont
termination. Such capitalized amounts are inclutegrepaid expenses and other current assets amdument assets in the Compa
Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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(2) Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standargsldie (“ASU”) No. 2014-09Revenue From Contracts With Custometisa
outlines a single comprehensive model for entitiease in accounting for revenue arising from cacts with customers and supersedes
current revenue recognition guidance, includingustdyspecific guidance. This ASU is based on the cofiacjple that an entity shot
recognize revenue to depict the transfer of prothpeods or services to customers in an amountréfigicts the consideration to which
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for thgseds or services. This ASU also requires disckssgufficient to enable users to unders
the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of nese and cash flows arising from contracts with emgtrs, including qualitative a
guantitative disclosures about contracts with qusts, significant judgments and changes in judgmemd assets recognized from the co:
obtain or fulfill a contract. Entities have the iopt of using either a full retrospective or a maatifretrospective approach for the adoption o
new standard. This ASU is effective for fiscal yebeginning after December 15, 2016, includingrintgeriods within that reporting peric
The Company is currently evaluating this ASU toedetine the Company's adoption method and the imipagll have on the Company
Consolidated Financial Statements.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-PBesentation of Financial Statements — Going Camd&ubtopic 20%H0:
Disclosure of Uncertainties About an Entity's Aljilto Continue as a Going Concer. This ASU addresses managememgsponsibility t
evaluate whether there is substantial doubt abowndity’s ability to continue as a going concern and toige related footnote disclosur
Managemens evaluation should be based on relevant conditiors events that are known and reasonably knowabthe date that tl
financial statements are issued. This ASU is dffedor fiscal years beginning after December 1Bl& including interim periods within tt
reporting period, with early adoption permitted eT@ompany does not expect to early adopt this AsiUdmes not believe that the adoptio
this ASU will have a material impact on the Compargonsolidated Financial Statements.

(3) Acquisitions and Divestitures
Sealy Acquisition

On March 18, 2013, the Company completed the Skedpisition. Pursuant to the merger agreement, ehahe of common stock
Sealy issued and outstanding immediately priohéodffective time of the Sealy Acquisition was adled and (other than shares held by £
or Tempur Sealy International or their subsidiageSealy stockholders who properly exercised thppraisal rights) converted into the rigt
receive $2.20 in cash. The total purchase price $1a%72.9 million, which was funded using available cash and fimanconsisting of tt
Company’s 2012 Credit Agreement and Senior Notes (Sote 6 , “ Debt for the definition of these terms and further di&sian). Th
purchase price of Sealy consisted of the followiags:

(in millions)

Cash consideration for stock $ 231.. @
Cash consideration for share-based awards 14z @
Cash consideration for 8.0% Sealy Notes 4421 O
Cash consideration for repayment of Sealy SenidefNo 260.7 @
Cash consideration for repayment of Sealy 2014 Note 276.¢ O
Total consideration 1,225.:
Cash acquired (52.2) ©
Net consideration transferred $ 1,172

(1) The cash consideration for outstanding shafé&3ealy common stock is the product of the agrgssh cash per share price of $2@ total Sea
shares of 105.1 million .

(2) The cash consideration for share-based avisttie product of the agreed-upon cash per share pf $2.20and the total number of RSUs and D:
outstanding and the “in the money” stock optionsai¢he weighted average exercise price.

(3) The cash consideration for Sealy’s 8.0% Se8mrured Third Lien Convertible Notes due 2016.098 Sealy Notes”js the result of applying tl
adjusted equity conversion rate to the 8.0% SealiedNtendered for conversion and multiplying theulteby the agreedpon cash per share price
$2.20 . The 8.0%ealy Notes that were converted represented thé tagreceive the same merger consideration thaidvoave been payable t
holder of 201.0 milliorshares of Sealy common stock, subject to adjustineatcordance with the terms of the supplementignture governing tl
8.0% Sealy Notes.

(4) The cash consideration for Sealy’s 10.875% @d¥otes due 2016 (“Sealy Senior Notegjlects the repayment of the outstanding oblige

(5) The cash consideration for Sealy’s 8.25% SeSBigbordinated Notes due 2014 (“Sealy 2014 Notesflpcts the repayment of the outstan
obligation.
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(6) Represents the Sealy cash balance acquired asdim

The Company incurred $18.7 million and $8.9 millioh transaction costs for the years ended Decemfer2G13 and 201
respectively. There were ni@nsaction expenses incurred in 2014. These eostmcluded in general, administrative and othxgeases in tt
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Incomaddition, the Company incurred $19.9 milliohincremental interest expense for the
ended December 31, 2013. This includes interestotimer fees on the Senior Notes and the 2012 Chagtitcement for the period prior
March 18, 2013. The incremental interest expense aicluded commitment fees associated with finagndor the closing of the Sei
Acquisition, and the write off of deferred finanginosts associated with the 2011 Credit Facility.

The Company accounted for the Sealy Acquisitiomgighe acquisition method. The allocation of thechase price is based
estimates of the fair value of assets acquirediabdities assumed as of March 18, 2013. The camepés of the final purchase price alloca
are as follows:

(in millions)
Accounts receivable $ 185.(
Inventory 75.1
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 22.¢
Accounts payable (77.9
Accrued expenses (137.9
Property, plant and equipment 242.¢
Other assets 32.€
Identifiable intangible assets:
Indefinite-lived trade names 521.2
Contractual retailer/distributor relationships 91.1
Developed technology, including patents 87.1
Customer databases 3.9
Optimum™ trade name 2.3
Deferred income taxes, net (232.9
8.0% Sealy Notes (96.2)
Redeemable non-controlling interest (11.9)
Other liabilities (77.5)
Goodwill 541.¢
Net consideration transferred $ 1,172

The excess of the purchase price over the estinfatedalue of the tangible net assets and ideattié intangible assets acquired
recorded as goodwill. The factors contributing lhe recognition of the amount of goodwill are basedseveral strategic and synergi
benefits that are expected to be realized fromSbaly Acquisition. These benefits include a comensive portfolio of iconic branc
complementary product offerings, enhanced globatpidnt, and attractive synergy opportunities amdlig creation. None of the goodwil
expected to be deductible for income tax purposdssentirely allocated to the Sealy reportablgnsent.
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The following unaudited pro forma information pretethe combined financial results for the Compasyf the Sealy Acquisition h
been completed at the beginning of the Companyts gear, January 1, 2013. Prior to the Sealy Asitjon, Sealy used a 52 - 5&ek fisca
year ending on the closest Sunday to November @0nd later than December 2. The pro forma findrini@armation set forth below for tl
year ended December 31, 2013 includes ¢s pro forma information for the combined twelve ttoperiod from December 3, 2012 throl
March 3, 2013 and April 1, 2013 through DecemberZ2d 3.

Year Ended
December 31,
(in millions, except earnings per common share) 2013
Net sales $ 2,757.:
Net income $ 90.¢
Earnings per common share — Diluted $ 1.4¢

The information above does not include the pro #oradjustments that would be required under RegulatsX for pro forme
financial information, and does not reflect futenents that may occur after December 31, 2013 pr@erating efficiencies or inefficienc
that may result from the Sealy Acquisition and tedafinancing. Therefore, the information is notessarily indicative of results that wo
have been achieved had the businesses been conthinied the periods presented or the results tmatGompany will experience goi
forward.

Other Acquisitions and Divestitures

Effective June 30, 2014, the Company completedsée of its thre®).S. innerspring component production facilitiesl @guipmen
along with associated working capital, to L&P fotal consideration of approximately $47.8 milliohe working capital adjustment per
ended in the quarter ended September 30, 2014 hwbgulted in a cash payment to L&P of $2.8 millioreduced the total considerat
received to $45.0 million The carrying amount of the net assets sold is tiEinsaction, including an allocation of reportingt goodwil
determined using the relative fair value methods approximately $66.8 millionAs a result, a loss on disposal of business wesrded fc
$23.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2@iHich included $1.4 million of transaction costsdahe $2.8 milliorworking capita
adjustment.

Effective July 1, 2014, the Company acquired certgsets from a thirgarty licensee relating to its business in Japde {bta
purchase price was $8.5 millignsubject to customary working capital adjustmeifitse Company accounted for this business combin
using the acquisition method. The preliminary akian of the purchase price is based on estimdtd®dair value of assets acquired as of
1, 2014. The excess of the purchase price oveegtimated fair value of the tangible net assetsid@tifiable intangible assets acquired
recorded as goodwill, which is non-deductible fezdme tax purposes and is entirely allocated ta#mapur International reportable segment.

(4) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The following summarizes changes to the Company&dwill, by reportable segment:

Tempur Tempur
(in millions) Total North America International Sealy
Balance as of December 31, 2012 $ 216.1 $ 108¢ $ 107z $ =
Goodwill resulting from Sealy Acquisition 541.¢ — — 541.¢
Foreign currency translation adjustments 1.7 1.2 0.1 2.8
Balance as of December 31, 2013 759.¢€ 107.7 107.c 544 .¢
Disposal of business (21.9 — — (21.9
Goodwill resulting from acquisitions 2.3 — 2.3 —
Foreign currency translation adjustments (4.0 (1.5 (1.2) 1.9
Balance as of December 31, 2014 $ 7365 $ 106.2  $ 1084  $ 521.¢

The following table summarizes information relatboghe Company’s other intangible assets, net:
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(% in millions) December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Useful Gross Net Net
Lives Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying
(Years) Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount

Unamortized indefinite life
intangible assets:

Trade names $ 569.C $ — 3% 569.C $ 575.2  $ — % 575.c
Amortized intangible assets:
Contractual distributor

relationships 15 $ 88.z $ 102 % 776 $ 90.C % 47 % 85.2
Technology and other 4-10 92.¢ 32.¢ 60.C 93.2 25t 67.7
Patents, other trademarks, and

other trade names 5-20 27.2 14.¢ 12.7 27.L 12.2 15.2

Customer databases,
relationships and reacquired
rights 2-5 24.1 16.5 7.€ 21.C 14.4 6.€

Total $ 801z $ 741 % 7271 % 806.¢ $ 56.6 $ 750.1

Amortization expense relating to intangible as$etshe Company was $18.5 million , $15.2 millionda$5.4 millionfor the year
ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 20i@spectively, and is recorded in general, adratise and other expenses in the Compi
Consolidated Statements of Income. No impairmehtgoodwill or other intangible assets have adjudtes gross carrying amount of th
assets in any period.

Estimated annual amortization of intangible asse¢xpected to be as follows:

(in millions)

Year Ending December 31,

2015 $ 18.2
2016 17.¢
2017 16.€
2018 15.€
2019 15.4
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(5) Unconsolidated Affiliate Companies

The Company has ownership interests in a groupstd-Racific joint ventures, as a result of the Sealyguisition, to develop marke
for Sealy® branded products in those regions. Toea@any’s ownership interest in these joint ventises0.0%and is accounted for under
equity method. The Company’s net investment of $Xillion and $7.8 million at December 31, 2014 @&@43, respectively, is recorded
other non-current assets within the accompanyings@lidated Balance Sheets. The Companshare of earnings for the year er
December 31, 2014 and 20&3ecorded in equity income in earnings of unctidated affiliates in the accompanying Consolidafdtemen

of Income.

The tables below present summarized financial médron for joint ventures as of and for the yeardesl December 31:

(in millions)
Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Equity

(in millions)

Revenues

Gross profit

Income from operations
Net income

(6) Debt

Debt for the Company consists of the following:

(in millions)
$375.0 million Senior Notes, interest at 6.875% Becember 15, 2020

Revolving credit facility, interest at Base Ratagpépplicable margin of 2.25% or LIBOR plus apieamargin of
3.00% as of December 31, 2014 and 3.25% as of Demed1, 2013, commitment through and due Marct2Q83

Term A Facility, interest at LIBOR plus applicalieargin of 2.25% as of December 31, 2014 and 2.50% a
December 31, 2013, commitment through and due M&8¢2018

Term B Facility, interest at LIBOR, subject to %% floor plus applicable margin of 2.75% as of &aber 31,
2014 and December 31, 2013, commitment throughdaedviarch 18, 2020

8.0% Sealy Notes, due July 15, 2016
Capital lease obligations and other

Less current portion

2012 Credit Agreement

2014 2013
$ 49.1 % 39.1
5.1 5.7
29.7 31.7
25.1 131
2014 2013
$ 99.z $ 67.€
62.1 45.C
16.€ 10.€
13.1 8.9

December 31,

December 31,

2014 2013
3750 $ 375.(

16.C 74.E

484.¢ 522.
594, 7375
104.7 99.€

27.1 27.€
1,602. 1,836.1
(66.9) (39.6)
1,535.( $ 1,796.¢

On December 12, 2012, Tempur Sealy International eertain subsidiaries of Tempur Sealy Internafioa® borrowers ar
guarantors, entered into a credit agreement (as@ade the “2012 Credit Agreementfjith a syndicate of banks. The 2012 Credit Agred
initially provided for (i) a revolving credit fagiyy of $350.0 million (the “Revolver”), (i) a ternd facility of $550.0 million (the Term A
Facility”) and (iii) a term B facility of $870.0 rfion (the “Term B Facility”). The Revolver includes a sublimit for letters of diteanc
swingline loans, subject to certain conditions mits. The Revolver and the Term A Facility willature on March 18, 2018 and the Ter
Facility will mature on March 18, 2020. The Revalvihe Term A Facility and the Term B Facility obasand funded in connection with

Sealy Acquisition on March 18, 2013.
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Borrowings under the 2012 Credit Agreement will gatly bear interest, at the election of Tempurl\Bé&gernational and the otr
subsidiary borrowers, at either (i) LIBOR plus tggplicable margin or (ii) Base Rate plus the aplie margin. For the Revolver and the T
A Facility, (a) the initial applicable margin folBROR advances was 3.00p&r annum and the initial applicable margin for 8&ate advanc
was 2.00%per annum, and (b) thereafter following the deljvef financial statements for the first full fiscquarter after closing, su
applicable margins are determined by a pricing geded on the consolidated total net leverage otibe Company. The Term B Facility v
initially subject to a LIBOR floor of 1.00% . Theplicable margin for the Term B facility was initia4.00% per annum for LIBOR advanc
and 3.00% per annum for Base Rate advances. OnlBla&3013, the applicable margin on the Term B Rgaitas reduced to 2.75%er annur
for LIBOR advances and 1.75% per annum for Base Rdvances, and the LIBOR floor was reduced t0%.@btil maturity. On July 1:
2013, the applicable margin on the Term A Faciltys reduced by 0.75%r each pricing level on the pricing grid basedtla consolidate
total net leverage ratio of the Company.

Obligations under the 2012 Credit Agreement araantaed by Tempur Sealy Internatiosagxisting and future direct and indit
wholly-owned domestic subsidiaries, subject to certainegtions; and the 2012 Credit Agreement is secuned Isecurity interest
substantially all Tempur Sealy International’'s @hd other subsidiary borrowerdbmestic assets and the domestic assets of easldiguy
guarantor, whether owned as of the closing or #ftee acquired, including a pledge of 100.@¥the equity interests of each subsid
guarantor that is a domestic entity (subject tdaderimited exceptions) and 65.086 the voting equity interests of any direct fitigtr foreigr
entity owned by a subsidiary guarantor. The 2012d@rAgreement requires compliance with certairaficial covenants providing 1
maintenance of a minimum consolidated interest @mee ratio and maintenance of a maximum consolid&ital net leverage ratio. T
consolidated total net leverage ratio is calculatsithg consolidated funded debt less qualified c&sinsolidated funded debt includes «
recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets & oéporting date, plus letters of credit outstagdind shorterm other debt. The Compe
is allowed to exclude from consolidated funded d&l81.0% of the domestic qualified cash and 60di%6reign qualified cash, the aggregat
which cannot exceed $150.0 million at the end efrporting period. As of December 31, 2014 , daimegialified cash was $25.9 millicanc
foreign qualified cash was $21.9 million .

The 2012 Credit Agreement contains certain custgnmeggative covenants, which include limitations ens, investment
indebtedness, dispositions, mergers and acquisijttbe making of restricted payments, changesdaméture of business, changes in fiscal '
transactions with affiliates, use of proceeds, gyepents of certain indebtedness, entry into bu@®esagreements and changes to gove
documents and other junior financing documents. 202 Credit Agreement also contains certain cuatgraffirmative covenants and eve
of default, including upon a change of control.

Tempur Sealy International is required to pay amament fee on the unused portion of the Revolwdrich initially was 0.50%pel
annum and which steps down to 0.375% per annuhreitonsolidated total net leverage ratio is leas tr equal to 3.50 : 1.Q0This unuse
commitment fee is payable quarterly in arrears amdhe date of termination or expiration of the coitments under the Revolver. Tem
Sealy International and the other borrowers alsogoatomary letter of credit issuance and othes fewler the 2012 Credit Agreement.

On October 17, 2014, the Company entered into aendment to its existing 2012 Credit Agreement. aheendment provides t
Company with flexibility in the acquisition of exisg and future licensees, distributors and joimtures as well as the potential acquisitic
other strategic international brands in existingnpany markets by, among other things, providingroreased acquisition baskets and ce
exceptions from such acquisition baskets and grdiatability with respect to the requirements fguarantying the obligations under the 2
Credit Agreement by certain existing joint venturksaddition, the amendment provides for flexiilunder the maximum consolidated t
net leverage ratio going forward as well as addéldlexibility in the making of certain investmerdnd restricted payments and the payme
junior indebtedness through, among other thingsvailable amount basket that include$50.0 million starter portion.

As of December 31, 2014 , the Revolver total LIBAIRs applicable margin interest rate was 3.18% of December 31, 2014he
Revolver total Base Rate plus applicable margieregt rate was 5.25% . During the year ended bieee31, 2014 , borrowings wef&271.t
million and repayments were $330.0 million . Tasatstanding borrowings under the Revolver werks.8 million atDecember 31, 20:
with letters of credit outstanding of $18.2 mitlipand total availability under the Revolver wé315.8 million as of December 31, 2014 .
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As of December 31, 2014 , the Term A Facility tat#BOR plus applicable margin interest rate wag22. The Term A Facility i
subject to scheduled quarterly payments in accaelavith the 2012 Credit Agreement. The scheduleattgtly payments aré&13.5 millior
from March 31, 2015 through December 31, 2017.rUpwmturity, the principal payment due is $323.0liom . During the year ende
December 31, 2014 , repayments with respect td ¢nm A Facility were $38.0 million , which inclusle$9.1 million of prepayments made
a result of the excess cash flow covenant in tHe Zlredit Agreement.

As of December 31, 2014 , the Term B Facility tatBBOR plus applicable margin was 3.50% he Term B Facility is subject
scheduled quarterly payments in accordance with2@#2 Credit Agreement. The scheduled quarterlymams are $1.5 millionthrougt
December 31, 2019. Upon maturity, the principalmpest due is $564.1 million . During the year end@elcember 31, 2014repayments wit
respect to the Term B Facility were $142.9 milliowhich includes $12.8 milliorof prepayments made as a result of the excessfloag
covenant in the 2012 Credit Agreement.

On September 30, 2014, the Company voluntarily guice$123.1 million on the Term B Facility and .$nillion on the Term ,
Facility. In conjunction with the voluntary prepagm, the Company recorded accelerated amortizaifo$3.3 million of the associatt
deferred financing costs, which is recorded inriegeexpense in the Consolidated Statements ofrlaco

The Company is in compliance with all applicableemants at December 31, 2014 .
Senior Notes

On December 19, 2012, Tempur Sealy Internatiosaleid $375.0 million aggregate principal amount.876%senior notes due 20
(the “Senior Notes”) to qualified institutional beng pursuant to Rule 144A of the Securities Act@83 ("Securities Act"), and to certain non
U.S. persons in accordance with Regulation S utiterSecurities Act. The Senior Notes were issuaduaunt to an indenture, dated a
December 19, 2012 (the “Indenture”), among the Camgpcertain subsidiaries of Tempur Sealy Inteomati as guarantors (the “GuarantQrs”
and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.&s trustee (the “Trusteehe Senior Notes are general unsecured senioratiolig
of Tempur Sealy International and are guaranteed sanior unsecured basis by the Guarantors. ThierSgotes mature on December
2020, and interest is payable seaniually in arrears on each June 15 and Decembdrefinning on June 15, 2013. The gross proceeds
the Senior Notes, were funded into escrow and thes#s were released from escrow on March 18, 20itBused as part of the funding of
Sealy Acquisition. Following the completion of t&ealy Acquisition, Sealy and certain of its sulmigis became Guarantors of the Se
Notes.

Tempur Sealy International has the option to redaélror a portion of the Senior Notes at any tinmeas after December 15, 20
Starting on this date the initial redemption prieel03.438%of the principal amount, plus accrued and unpaer@st, if any. The redempti
price will decline to 101.719% on December 15, 2@hd to 100.0%0f the principal amount beginning on December XB.& In additior
Tempur Sealy International has the option at ame tprior to December 15, 2016 to redeem some @fadlie Senior Notes at 100.0856 the
original principal amount plus a “make-wholpfemium and accrued and unpaid interest, if anydie Sealy International may also red:
up to 35.0%0f the Senior Notes prior to December 15, 2015,eurwbrtain circumstances with the net cash procé&eds certain equit
offerings, at 106.875%f the principal amount plus accrued and unpaieredt, if any. Tempur Sealy International may mskeh redemptior
only if, after any such redemption, at least 65dfhe original aggregate principal amount of tlemiSr Notes issued remains outstanding.

The Indenture restricts the ability of Tempur Sdalgrnational and the ability of certain of itsbsidiaries to, among other things:
incur, directly or indirectly, debt; (ii) make, ditly or indirectly, certain investments and reséidl payments; (i) incur or suffer to ex
directly or indirectly, liens on its properties assets; (iv) sell or otherwise dispose of, direotlyndirectly, assets; (v) create or otherwisese
or suffer to exist any consensual restriction anribht of certain of the subsidiaries of Tempual@énternational to pay dividends or make
other distributions on or in respect of their cap#tock; (vi) enter into transactions with affiea; (vii) engage in saleaseback transactio
(viii) purchase or redeem capital stock or subathd indebtedness; (ix) issue or sell stock ofrictetl subsidiaries; and (x) effec
consolidation or merger. These covenants are siojecnumber of exceptions and qualifications.
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Also in conjunction with the issuance and salehaf $enior Notes, Tempur Sealy International and@barantors agreed throug
Registration Rights Agreement to exchange the $eNimtes for a new issue of substantially identisahior notes registered under
Securities Act. Tempur Sealy International and@uarantors would have been required to pay additimterest if the Senior Notes were
registered within the time periods specified withile Registration Rights Agreement. Tempur Sedgrirational filed a registration staterr
on Form S4 on July 12, 2013 in connection with the registrabf the Senior Notes, and the registration stetg was declared effective by
Securities and Exchange Commission on July 26, 20b&h was within the specified time period.

8.0% Sealy Notes

In conjunction with the Sealy Acquisition, Sealybligations under its 8.0%ealy Notes were amended. As a result of the
Acquisition, the 8.0% Sealy Notes became convertiialely into cash, in an amount that declinedhdlljgevery day during the Maké/hole
Period (as defined under the Supplemental Indergaxerning the 8.0%ealy Notes) that followed the Sealy Acquisitiondahen becan
fixed thereafter. The Make-Whole Period effectivelypired on April 12, 2013. As of April 12, 2013moximately 83.0% of all th8.0%
Sealy Notes outstanding prior to the Sealy Acquisitvere converted into cash and paid to the helddolders of the 8.0%ealy Notes wt
converted on March 19, 2013 received approxima$fy325.43 per $1,000 Accreted Principal Amount lué 8.0% Sealy Notes beir
converted. The holders of the 8.0% Sealy Notes edmvert after April 12, 2013 will receive $2,200r |$4.,000Accreted Principal Amount
the 8.0% Sealy Notes being converted. The Compaltplated the fair value of the remaining 8.@%aly Notes as part of its purchase ¢
allocation by first calculating the future payotitloe remaining 17.0% aggregate principal amourthef8.0%Sealy Notes still outstanding &
the cumulative sermannual interest payments at the July 15, 2016 ritgtand then calculated the present value usintpeket discount rat
which resulted in a fair value of $96.2 millionMarch 18, 2013, the date the Sealy Acquisitionetb#s of December 31, 2014he carryin
value of the 8.0% Sealy Notes is $104.7 millionhick includes $8.7 million of accreted discounteTdiscount is accreted through ncast
interest expense over the life of the 8.0% Sealiedlasing the effective interest method. As of Dawmer 31, 2013 , the 8.0%ealy Notes had
carrying value of $99.6 million , which includes.%3nillion of accreted discount less conversionrpagts made to holders of cert&id%
Sealy Notes that were tendered for conversion.

The 8.0% Sealy Notes mature on July 15, 2016 aad ib&erest at 8.0% per annum accruing sanmiually in arrears on January
and July 15 of each year. Sealy does not pay sttérecash to the holders of the 8.@#aly Notes, but instead increases the principaluaio
the 8.0% Sealy Notes by an amount equal to theuadcinterest for the interest period then endecif-Kind” or “PIK interest”). The
amount of the accrued interest for each interegbgas calculated on the basis of the accretedcpal amount as of the first day of s
interest period. PIK interest accrued on the mesémnt interest period then ended on the 832%ly Notes converted between interest pay
dates is forfeited.

All material negative covenants (apart from thenlieovenant and related collateral requirements)ewaiminated from tt
supplemental indenture governing the 8.8%aly Notes, as well as certain events of defawdtcertain other provisions. In addition, Ten
Sealy International and its non-Sealy subsidiatiaot provide any guarantees of any obligatiorth véspect to the 8.0% Sealy Notes.

Capital Leases

The Company is party to capital leases as of Deee®b, 2014 and 2013. The approximate remainimgdifthe leases is Mears a
of December 31, 2014.

Deferred Financing Cost

As a result of the Company’s issuance of the SeNmtes and in conjunction with entering into thel2@redit Agreement$54.:
million of deferred financing costs were capitalized in 2@hd 2012 and will be amortized as interest expangr the respective di
instrument period, ranging from 5 toy8ars, using the effective interest method. In @ociion with the voluntary prepayment on Septet
30, 2014 on amounts outstanding under the 2012itCAggdeement, the Company recorded accelerated tamation of $3.3 million of the
associated deferred financing costs. On OctobeR0¥4, the Company capitalized $3.1 milliohdeferred financing costs in connection \
the amendment to the existing 2012 Credit Agreengrgse deferred financing costs will be amortiasdnterest expense over the remairing
to 6 years of the debt instrument period, in codfiom with the initial deferred financing costs #afized in 2013 and discussed above.
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In conjunction with the repayment of all outstargdborrowings on the 2011 Credit Facility, the Comparote off the associatei#l.7
million of deferred financing costs in 2013.

Interest Rate Swap Agreem

On August 8, 2011, the Company entered into a fpear interest rate swap agreement to manage ihtarets and the risk associe
with changing interest rates associated with végigdortions of the Company’s debt outstanding. RéfeNote 8 , “Derivative Financit
Instruments ,” for additional information regarditi;ge Company’s interest rate swap agreement.

Future Obligations

As of December 31, 2014, the scheduled maturitiderm-term debt outstanding, including capital leasegailons, for each of tl
next five years and thereafter are as follows:

(in millions) Amount

2015 $ 66.4
2016 166.¢
2017 62.2
2018 347.7
2019 8.9
Thereafter 950.t
Total $ 1,602.:

(7) Fair Value Measurements

The classification of fair value measurements witlie established thrdevel hierarchy is based upon the lowest levehpfit that i
significant to the measurement. There were no feandetween levels for the year ended Decembe2@®14 and 2013. Abecember 31, 20:
and 2013, the Company had an interest rate swaemgnt and foreign exchange forward contracts decbat fair value. The fair value of
interest rate swap agreement is calculated usarglatd industry models based on observable foryiatd curves. The Company also utili
foreign currency forward contracts to manage tls& Essociated with exposures to foreign currensly rélated to intercompany debt .
associated interest payments. The fair value ofdregn exchange contracts is calculated usingdstad industry models based on obsen
forward points and discount curves. The fair valoésll derivative instruments are adjusted fordareisk and restrictions and other te
specific to the contracts. The fair value of thieiast rate swap and the foreign exchange forwamttact were not material for the years er
December 31, 2014 or 2013.

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalentxuats receivable and accounts payable approxifaatealue because of the short:
term maturity of those instruments. Borrowings unife 2012 Credit Agreement are at variable interates and accordingly their carry
amounts approximate fair value. The fair valuehef $enior Notes was approximately $398.4 milliod $405.0 million aDecember 31, 20:
and 2013 , respectively. The fair value of the 8 8&aly Notes was approximately $110.7 million af@.8 million at December 31, 20hhc
2013, respectively. The fair value of the Seniotds and the 8.0%ealy Notes were based on Level 2 inputs such etedunarket prices
estimated using discounted cash flows and mdrséd expectations for interest rates, credit @sld the contractual terms of the ¢
instruments.
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(8) Derivative Financial Instruments

In the normal course of business, the Company sed to certain risks related to fluctuationsnitetiest rates. The Company
interest rate swaps to manage risks from theseanétctuations. The financial instruments usedtiyy Company are straight-forward, non
leveraged instruments. The counterparties to tliesecial instruments are financial institutionsthwistrong credit ratings. The Compi
maintains control over the size of positions emténto with any one counterparty and regularly nonsi the credit ratings of these institutic
The Company also utilizes foreign exchange spotfarvdard contracts to manage the risk associatélul exposures to foreign currency risk
addition, certain foreign exchange forward consaeflated to risks associated with intercompanymery purchases and are designate
cash flow hedging instruments. Certain forward exdge forward contracts relate to intercompany @elot associated interest payments
certain accounts receivable and accounts payabl@m@nconsidered to be economic hedges. The fhie vd the interest rate swap and fore
exchange forward contracts is calculated as destiito Note 7 , " Fair Value Measuremeritsaking into consideration foreign currency r:
and the current creditworthiness of the counteigmdr the Company, as applicable.

Interest Rate Swap Agreem

The Company is exposed to changes in interest matdéts variable rate debt. In order to manage tisis, on August 8, 2011, t
Company entered into a foyrear interest rate swap agreement to manage intsts and the risk associated with changingéstenates. Tt
Company designated this interest rate swap agrdeasea cash flow hedge of floating rate borrowiagsl expects the hedge to be hi
effective in offsetting fluctuations in the desiggdinterest payments resulting from changes irbreehmark interest rate. The gains and I¢
on the designated interest rate swap agreementffgét losses and gains on the transactions esdged. The Company formally docume:
the effectiveness of this qualifying hedge instraingoth at the inception of the interest rate s\agpeement and on an ongoing basi:
offsetting changes in cash flows of the hedgedstiation. The fair value of the interest rate swaye@ment is calculated as described in
7, Fair Value Measurements tgking into consideration current interest rated #re current creditworthiness of the counterparte th
Company, as applicable.

As a result of this interest rate swap agreembatQompany pays interest at a fixed rate and resgiayments at a variable rate w|
began on December 30, 2011. As of this date, tteedst rate swap agreement effectively fixed tbatfhg LIBOR-based interest rate*@5%
plus the applicable margin on $250.0 million tleé outstanding balance under the Compangriable rate debt. On December 30, 201:
outstanding notional principal amount of the ingtn@ate swap agreement reduced to $150.0 millibne interest rate swap agreement ex
on December 30, 2015. The Company has selectddB@R-based rate on the hedged portion of the Capgavariable rate debt during
term of the interest rate swap agreement. The tafeeportion of the change in value of the intereste swap agreement is reflected
component of comprehensive income and recognizedtaest expense, net as payments are paid onextcihe remaining gain or loss
excess of the cumulative change in the presenewailihe future cash flows of the hedged itemny &.e., the ineffective portion) or hec
components excluded from the assessment of eféess are recognized as interest expense, negydharcurrent period. These amounts
immaterial to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Foreign Exchange Forward Contrac
Cash Flow Hedges

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risateel to intercompany and third party inventory pases denominated in fore
currencies. To manage the risk associated withuatmons in foreign currencies related to thesasaations, the Company enters into for
exchange forward contracts. As of December 31, 2@lid Company had foreign exchange forward corgrdesignated as cash flow hedge
buy U.S dollars and to sell Canadian dollars withoional amount outstanding of $46.5 milliohese foreign exchange forward contr
have maturities ranging from January 2015 to De@r@b15. The Company designates certain foreighange forward contracts as hed
instruments, and the contracts qualify as cash Hedges. The effectiveness of the cash flow hedgeacts, excluding time value, is asse
prospectively and retrospectively on a monthly asing regression analysis, as well as using oiiéng and probability criteria. To rece
hedge accounting treatment, all hedging relatiggsshare formally documented at the inception ofltbdges and must be highly effectivi
offsetting changes to future cash flows on hedgadsactions. The effective portion of the cash flewdge contracts' gains or losses rest
from changes in the fair value of these hedgesitiglly reported, net of tax, as a component afussulated other comprehensive income
the underlying hedged item is reflected in the Canys accompanying Consolidated Statements of lacatwhich time the effective amo
in accumulated other comprehensive income is reified to cost of sales in the accompanying Codsatéid Statements of Income. -
Company expects to reclassify a gain of approximaie.4 million , net of tax, over the next 12 masibased on December 31, 2@kthang
rates.
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In the event that the gains or losses in accundilatieer comprehensive income are deemed to beetiaf, the ineffective portion
gains or losses resulting from changes in fair &aluany, is reclassified to other expense, nethenaccompanying Consolidated Statemer
Income. During the current reporting period, afeftasted transactions occurred and, thereforeg there no such gains or losses reclassifi
other expense, net. These amounts are immatetia¢ tGonsolidated Financial Statements.

Economic Hedges

The Company is also exposed to foreign currendy midated to intercompany debt and associated dstgrayments and cert
accounts receivable and accounts payable. To mathagdask associated with fluctuations in foreigmrencies related to these assets
liabilities, the Company enters into foreign exaparforward contracts. The Company considers thesgracts to be economic hed
Accordingly, changes in the fair value of thesdrimsents affect earnings during the current peridtese foreign exchange forward contr
protect against the reduction in value of foreah$teeign currency cash flows resulting from paytsen foreign currencies. The fair value
foreign exchange forward contracts are estimatedessribed in Note 7 , “ Fair Value Measurementsaking into consideration forei
currency rates and the current creditworthinesshef counterparties or the Company, as applicabhesd& amounts are immaterial to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

(9) Retirement Plans
401(k) Plan

The Company has a defined contribution plan (“tB&(K) Plan”) whereby eligible employees may conttibup to 15.0%f their pa
subject to certain limitations as defined by thé %D Plan. Employees are eligible to participatéhia 401(k) Plan after 90 dagsd are eligibl
to receive matching contributions upon one yeagrployment with the Company. The 401(k) Plan presid 100.0% match of the fiiZi0%
and 50.0% of the next 2.0% of eligible employeetdbuations. All matching contributions vest immetdily. The Company incurrefi5.C
million , $1.7 million and $1.5 million of expensassociated with the 401(k) Plan for the years érdecember 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012
respectively.

Defined Contribution Plan

Substantially all employees in the Company's Sealg Tempur North America reportable segments anrered by define
contribution profit sharing plans, where specifinaunts (as annually established by the Company3etraside in trust for retirement bene
Profit sharing expense was $1.7 million and $4.lionifor the year ended December 31, 2014 and 20&8pectively.

Company Defined Benefit Pension Plans

The Company has a noncontributory, defined beipefitsion plan covering current and former hourly keyges at fouof its active
Sealy plants and eight previously closed Sealy @&lities. Sealy Canada, Ltd. (a 100.@4ned subsidiary of the Company) also spons
noncontributory, defined benefit pension plan covghourly employees at orté its facilities. Both plans provide retirementdasurvivorshi
benefits based on the employees’ credited yeasgmwice. The Company’funding policy provides for contributions of am@unt between tt
minimum required and maximum amount that can beicted for federal income tax purposes.

Pension plan assets consist of investments in warammmon/collective trusts with equity investmstrategies diversified acrc
multiple industry sectors and company market chipéttion within specific geographical investmentstgies, fixed income common/collect
trusts, which invest primarily in investment-graated highyield corporate bonds and U.S. treasury securigiesvell as money market mut
funds. The fixed income investments are diversifisdo ratings, maturities, industries and othetoia. The plan assets contain no signifi
concentrations of risk related to individual setiesi or industry sectors. The plan has no diregtstment in the Company's common stock.

The long-term rate of return for the plans is basedhe weighted average of the plains’estment allocation and the historical reti
for those asset categories. Because future comjgeméavels are not a factor in these plabshefit formula, the accumulated benefit oblige
is equal to the projected benefit obligation awresgl below. The discount rate is based on thengton longterm bonds in the private sec
and incorporates a long-term inflation rate. Sunirearinformation for the plans follows:
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Expenses and Stat

Components of net periodic pension cost includedhin accompanying Consolidated Statements of Inctamehe years end
December 31 were as follows:

(in millions) 2014 2013
Service cost $ 0c $ 0.9
Interest cost 1.8 1.2
Expected return on assets (2.2 (1.5)
Curtailment loss 0.1 —
Amortization of net gain (0.2) —
Net periodic pension cost $ 0€ $ 0.7

The other changes in plan assets and benefit dibiigarecognized in accumulated other comprehensise for the years enc
December 31 were:

(in millions) 2014 2013
Net loss (gain) $ 9.C $ (6.2
Amortization of prior service cost 0.2 1.C
Amortization of net gain 0.1 —
New prior service cost 0.1 —
Total recognized in other comprehensive income $ 9C $ (5.2

The following assumptions, calculated on a weightegrage basis, were used to determine net peripelsion cost for tt
Company’s defined benefit pension plans for theyeaded December 31.:

2014 2013
Discount rateé? 4.01% 4.2%
Expected long term return on plan assets 7.0(% 6.92%

(@) Due to current economic differences in the interatgs in the jurisdictions of the retirement plahe discount rates used in 2014 to determin
expenses for the United States retirement planGanhdian retirement plan were 3.94% and 5.008spectively. The discount rates used in 20
determine the expenses for the United States matine plan and Canadian retirement plan were 4.2%/#a800% , respectively.
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Obligations and Funded Status

The measurement date for all of the Company’s @dfivenefit pension plans is December 31. The fustids of the defined benefit
pension plans as of December 31 were as follows:

(in millions) 2014 2013

Change in Benefit Obligation:

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 364 $ 39.¢
Service cost 0.¢ 0.¢
Interest cost 1.8 1.3
Plan changes 0.2 0.5
Actuarial loss (gain) 9.2 (4.9)
Curtailments (0.2) —
Benefits paid (0.7) (0.5)
Expenses paid (0.2 (0.9
Foreign currency exchange rate changes (0.9 (0.€)

Projected benefit obligation at end of year $ 471 % 36.4

Change in Plan Assets:

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 30t $ 26.2
Actual return on assets 2.2 2.8
Employer contribution 1.C 2.8
Plan settlements — (0.9)
Benefits paid (0.7) (0.5)
Expenses paid 0.2 (0.9
Foreign currency exchange rate changes (0.9) 0.2

Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 328 % 30.t

Funded status $ (146 $ (5.9

The Company’s defined benefit pension plan for &&aly employees is underfunded. As of Decembe2@14, the projected bene
obligation and fair value of plan assets were $48ilfion and $28.8 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2013, the ptegdenef
obligation and fair value of plan assets were $38ifion and $26.7 million , respectively. The Coamy’s defined benefit pension plan
employees of Sealy Canada, Ltd. is overfunded.fA3ezember 31, 2014the projected benefit obligation and fair valdglan assets for tl
Sealy Canada Ltd. pension plan were $3.4 millicsh 8.7 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2013, the ptegtbenefit obligation ai
fair value of plan assets for the Sealy Canadapddsion plan were $3.1 million and $3.8 milliespectively.

The following table represents amounts recordetiénConsolidated Balance Sheet:

December 31,
(in millions) 2014 2013
Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance tShee

Non-current portion of benefit liability $ 14¢ $ 6.7
Non-current benefit asset 0.2 0.8
Accumulated other comprehensive income 9.C (5.9

The following assumptions, calculated on a weightagtrage basis, were used to determine benefitailditgs for the Company’
defined benefit pension plans as of December 31.:

2014 2013

Discount raté? 5.0(% 5.0(%

(&) The discount rates used in 2014 and 2013 to daterthie benefit obligations for the United Statefinge benefit pension plan and Canadian de
benefit pension plan were both 5.00% .
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No material amounts are expected to be reclasdifted accumulated other comprehensive loss to begrézed as components of
income during 2015 .

Plan Contributions and Expected Benefit Paym
During 2015, the Company expects to contribut® $dillion to the Company's pension plans from ke cash and equivalents.

The following table presents estimated future biepafyments:

(in millions)

Fiscal 2015 $ 0.
Fiscal 2016 1.C
Fiscal 2017 1.C
Fiscal 2018 1.1
Fiscal 2019 1.2
Fiscal 2020- Fiscal 2024 8.4

Pension Plan Asset Informatit

Investment Objective and StrategiThe Company's investment objectives are to minirthizevolatility of the value of the Company's pen
assets relative to pension liabilities and to emsissets are sufficient to pay plan benefits. Tage actual asset allocations are as follows:

2014 2014
Target Actual
Common/collective trust consisting primarily of:
Equity securities 60.0(% 76.8(%
Debt securities 40.0(% 21.7%
Other —% 1.31%
Total plan assets 100.0(% 100.0(%

Investment strategies and policies reflect a balarigisk-reducing and returseeking considerations. The objective of minimizing
volatility of assets relative to liabilities is ag@dsed primarily through asset diversification. éissare broadly diversified across many ¢
classes to achieve rigdjusted returns that, in total, lower asset Viithatrelative to liabilities. The Company's polidp rebalance tt
Company's investment regularly ensures that aeligdations are in line with target allocationsagpropriate.

Strategies to address the goal of ensuring sufiti@éssets to pay benefits include target allocatiore broad array of asset classes
provide return, diversification and liquidity.

The plan investment fiduciaries are responsiblesieiting asset allocation targets, and monitorisgetallocation and investm
performance. The Comparsypension investment manager has discretion to geanasets to ensure compliance with the assetatiioe
approved by the plan fiduciaries.

Significant Concentrations of Risk
Significant concentrations of risk in the Compampfan assets relate to equity, interest rate, gredading risk. In order to ensure as
are sufficient to pay benefits, a portion of plasets is allocated to equity investments that mpeaed, over time, to earn higher returns

more volatility than fixed income investments whitlore closely match pension liabilities. Within t@mmon/collective trusts, the plan as
contain no significant concentrations of risk rethto individual securities or industry sectors.
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In order to minimize asset volatility relative teetliabilities, a portion of plan assets are alledao fixed income investments that
exposed to interest rate risk. Rate increasesgaiflerally result in a decline in fixed income assghile reducing the present value of
liabilities. Conversely, rate decreases will inaefixed income assets, partially offsetting tHatesl increase in the liabilities.

Operating risks primarily include the risks of ieggiate diversification and insufficient oversighd. mitigate this risk, investments
diversified across and within asset classes in@upd investment objectives. Policies and pragtitteaddress operating risks include ong
oversight, plan and asset class investment guikelimnd periodic reviews to these guidelines torensdherence.

Expected Lon-Term Return on Plan Assets

The expected long-term return assumption at Decefthe2014 was 7.00%or the United States defined benefit pension @at
6.00% for the Canadian defined benefit pension.pldme expected lonterm return assumption is based on historical aofepted rates
return for current and planned asset classes iplrés investment portfolio. The assumption considersoua sources, primarily inputs frc
advisors for longerm capital market returns, inflation, bond yieldad other variables, adjusted for specific agpetbur investment strate
by plan.

The investments in plan assets primarily consisinatual funds and money market funds. Investmantsiitual funds and mon
market funds are valued at the net asset valushaee or unit multiplied by the number of sharesrits held as of the measurement date.
fair value of the Company’s pension benefit plasess at December 31 by asset category was as follow

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets Significant Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable

(in millions) 2014 Assets (Level 1) Inputs (Level 2) Inputs (Level 3)
Asset Category
Common/collective trust

U.S. equity $ 19¢6 $ —  $ 196 $ —

International equity 5.2 — 5.2 —
Total equity based funds 24.¢ — 24.¢ —

Common/collective trust - fixed income 7.C — 7.C —

Money market funds 0.7 — 0.7 —

Total $ 328 % — % 328 % —

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets Significant Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable

(in millions) 2013 Assets (Level 1) Inputs (Level 2) Inputs (Level 3)
Asset Category
Equity

Mutual funds—U.S. companies $ 131 $ 131 $ — 3 —

Mutual funds—International companies 5.¢ 5.¢ — —
Total equity funds 19.C 19.C — —

Mutual funds—fixed income 10.t 10.5 — —

Money market funds 1.C 1.C — —

Total $ 308 % 30 % — 3 —
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Common/collective trusts are valued at the nettasskie ("NAV") per share multiplied by the numbefr shares held as of t
measurement date. The determination of net asket f@ the common/collective trusts includes magkicing of the underlying assets as \
as broker quotes and other valuation techniqudasépaesent fair value as determined by the reameatiministrator of the common/collect
trust. Management has determined that the NAV iagpropriate estimate of the fair value of the cangted investments funds at Decen
31, 2014 and 2013, based on the fact that the covtuoléective trusts are audited and accounted ffdaia value by the administrators of
respective common/collective trusts. If the Comyphas the ability to redeem its investment in thgpective alternative investment at the
asset value with no significant restrictions onb@emption at the consolidated balance sheet thet€ompany has categorized the altern
investment as a Level 2 measurement in the famevdlierarchy. The methods described above may peodufair value that may not
indicative of net realizable value or reflective fofture fair value. Furthermore, while the Compdwslieves its valuation methods
appropriate and consistent with other market ppdits, the use of different methodologies or aggians to determine the fair value of cer
financial instruments could result in a differestimate of fair value at the consolidated balatesesdates.

Multi ~-Employer Benefit Plans

Approximately 68.0% of the Comparsy’domestic employees are represented by varioum labions with separate collect
bargaining agreements. Hourly employees workingjgttt of the Compang’ domestic manufacturing facilities are coveredibypn sponsore
retirement plans. Further, employees working a¢ahof the Companyg’ domestic manufacturing facilities are coveredubjon sponsore
health and welfare plans. These plans cover bdilieaemployees and retirees. Through the healthvegifare plans, employees recei
medical, dental, vision, prescription and disapiibverage. The Comparsytost associated with these plans consists obgiercontribution
to these plans based upon employee participatioa.ekpense recognized by the Company for suchibatitns for the years ended Decen
31 were as follows:

(in millions) 2014 2013
Multi—employer retirement plan expense $ 47 $ 3.2
Multi-employer health and welfare plan expense 2.2 2.2

The risks of participating in mukemployer pension plans are different from the riskparticipating in singleemployer pensic
plans in the following respects: 1) Assets conteluo the multiemployer plan by onemployer may be used to provide benefits to empale
of other participating employers; 2) If a partidipg employer ceases its contributions to the plaa,unfunded obligations of the plan alloci
to the withdrawing employer may be borne by theaiming participant employers and 3) If the Comparithdraws from the multiemploye
pension plans in which it participates, the Compamgy be required to pay those plans an amount baseits allocable share of 1
underfunded status of the plan.
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The following table presents information regardihg mult-employer pension plans that are significant toGoenpany for the ye
ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively:

(in millions)

Year
Contributions to

Pension Expiration Date Plan Exceeded
Protection Act FIP/RP Status Contributions of of Collective More than 5
EIN/Pension Plan  Zone Status® Pending/Implemented the Company Surcharge Bargaining Percent of Total
Pension Fund Number 2014 @ 2014 Imposed® Agreement Contributions
United Furniture Workers
Pension Fund A’ 13-551187M01 Red Implemented $ 0.€ Yes, 10.0% 2016 and 2017 2013, 2014
Pension Plan of the
National Retirement
Fund 13-6130178301 Red Implemented $ 1.1 Yes, 10.0% 2016 N/A
Central States, Southeast &
Southwest Areas
Pension Plan 36-6044243301 Red Implemented $ 0.4 Yes, 10.0% 2015 N/A
(in millions)
Year
Contributions to
Pension Expiration Date Plan Exceeded
Protection Act FIP/RP Status Contributions of of Collective More than 5
EIN/Pension Plan  Zone Status® Pending/Implemented the Company Surcharge Bargaining Percent of Total
Pension Fund Number 2013 @ 2013 Imposed® Agreement Contributions
United Furniture Workers
Pension Fund A’ 13-551187M01 Red Implemented $ 0.7 Yes, 10.0% 2014 and 2016 2013
Pension Plan of the
National Retirement
Fund 13-6130178301 Red Implemented $ 0.7 Yes, 10.0% 2014 N/A

(1) The Pension Protection Act of 2006 ranks thedéd status of multi-employer pension plans deijpgnabon a plars current and projected funding
plan is in the Red Zone (Critical) if it has a @nt funded percentage less than 65.08plan is in the Yellow Zone (Endangered) if &sha currel
funded percentage of less than 80.0% , or progectedit balance deficit within sevgerars. A plan is in the Green Zone (Healthy) Has a currel
funded percentage greater than 80.0% and doesametaprojected credit balance deficit within seyears. The zone status is based on the plar
year end rather than the CompasnyThe zone status listed above is based on infmmthat the Company received from the plan anzkitified by
the plan’s actuary for the most recent year avkilab

(2) Funding Improvement Plan or Rehabilitation Pladefined in the Employment Retirement Security Aict®74 has been implemented or is penc

(3) Indicates whether the Company paid a surchargeetplain in the most current year due to fundingtéits and the amount of the surcha

(4) The Company represented more than S0%e total contributions for the most recent pjaar available

(10) Stockholders' Equity

Tempur Sealy International has 300.0 million auttert shares of common stock with $0.01 per sharevalue and0.01 millior
authorized shares of preferred stock with $0.01spare par value. The holders of the common stoelestitled to on&ote for each share hi
of record on all matters submitted to a vote otktmlders. Subject to preferences that may be gk to any outstanding preferred st
holders of common stock are entitled to receivahigtsuch dividends as may be declared from timime by the Board of Directors out
funds legally available for that purpose. In themwvof liquidation, dissolution or winding up, thelders of common stock are entitled to s
ratably in all assets remaining after paymentatfilities, subject to prior distribution rights pfeferred stock, if any, then outstanding.
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The Board of Directors is authorized, subject tg Emitations prescribed by law, without furthertecor action by the stockholders
issue from time to time shares of preferred stockne or more series. Each such series of prefetmek will have such number of sha
designations, preferences, voting powers, qualifioa, and special or relative rights or privileges determined by the Board of Direct
which may include, among others, dividend rightsting rights, redemption and sinking fund provisiptiquidation preferences, convers
rights and preemptive rights.

(11) Other Items

(a) Accrued expenses and other current liabilities.

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities isted of the following:

December 31, December 31,

(in millions) 2014 2013
Wages and benefits $ 60.C $ 59.2
Advertising 41.¢ 29.7
Sales returns 32.c 28.7
Rebates 22.¢ 23.C
Warranty 16.1 14.¢€
Other 60.5 52.¢

$ 233: % 208.2

(b) Accumulated other comprehensive loss.
Accumulated other comprehensive loss consisteleofdllowing:
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Year Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Foreign Currency Translation
Balance at beginning of period $ (15.¢) $ 5.0 $ (13.2)
Other comprehensive (loss) income:
Foreign currency translation adjustmefits (38.9 (13.9) 10.¢
Tax benefit (expensé) — 2.7 (2.7
Balance at end of period $ 540 $ (15.¢) $ (5.0

Interest Rate Swap Agreement

Balance at beginning of period $ 14 $ 27 $ (2.6
Other comprehensive income:
Net change from period revaluations: 3.C 5.2 2.7
Tax expense (1.2 (1.5 0.5)
Total other comprehensive income before reclassifios, net of tax 1.8 3.7 2.2
Net amount reclassified to earnirfgs 1.9 (3.2 (4.0
Tax benefit? 0.8 0.8 0.7
Total amount reclassified from accumulated oth@enmehensive loss, net of tax (1.3 (2.9) 3.9
Total other comprehensive income (loss) 0.7 1.3 (2.3
Balance at end of period $ 07 $ 1.9 $ (2.7

Pension Benefits

Balance at beginning of period $ 32 % — 3 =
Other comprehensive (loss) income:
Net change from period revaluations: (9.0 5.2 —
Tax benefit (expense) 34 (2.0 —
Total other comprehensive income before reclassifios, net of tax $ 5.6 $ 32 % =

Net amount reclassified to earnings — — -
Tax benefit? = — —

Total amount reclassified from accumulated othenp@hensive income, net of tax $ — — 3 —
Total other comprehensive income (5.6 3.2 —
Balance at end of period $ 2.9 $ 3.2 % —

Foreign Exchange Forward Contracts

Balance at beginning of period $ — ¢ — 3 —
Other comprehensive income:
Net change from period revaluations: 34 — —
Tax expense (0.9) — —
Total other comprehensive income before reclassifios, net of tax $ 28 % — 3 =
Net amount reclassified to earnings (1.6 — —
Tax benefit? 0.4 — —
Total amount reclassified from accumulated othenm@hensive income, net of tax$ 12 $ — 3 —
Total other comprehensive income 1.2 — —
Balance at end of period $ 12§ — 8 —

(1) In 2014 and 2013, there were no tax impadsae to foreign currency translation adjustments @o amounts were reclassified to earnings. 2201
a $2.7 million tax impact was recorded which regdrs 2013.

(2) These amounts were included in the income tax pi@mvion the accompanying Consolidated Statemeritsecofme

(3) This amount was included in interest expense, néhe accompanying Consolidated Statements of Iex
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(12) Stock-based Compensation

Tempur Sealy International has two stock-based emsgtion plans which provide for grants of mpralified and incentive sto
options, stockappreciation rights, restricted stock and stock amiards, performance shares, stock grants andrpeahce based awards
employees, noemployee directors, consultants and Company advidtre plan under which equity awards may be gdaimt¢he future is tt
2013 Equity Incentive Plan (the "2013 Plan"). Ithe policy of the Company to issue stock out esury shares upon issuance or exerci
sharebased awards. The Company believes that awardpuantiases made under these plans better aligmtigrests of the plan participa
with those of its stockholders.

The 2013 Plan was adopted on May 22, 2013 by thmpaays Board of Directors, and provides for grants afcktoptions t
purchase shares of common stock to employees amdtatis of the company. The 2013 Plan may be adtermsid by the Compensat
Committee of the Board of Directors, by the Boamgatly, or, in certain cases, by an executiveceifior officers of the Company design:
by the Compensation Committee. The shares issué¢d loe issued under the 2013 Plan may be eithéodréd but unissued shares of
Company’s common stock or shares held by the Coynjpeits treasury. Tempur Sealy International ieue a maximum of 5.1 millicshare
of common stock under the 2013 Plan, subject taiceadjustment provisions.

The Amended and Restated 2003 Equity Incentive ,Pdanamended (the “2003 Planilas administered by the Compense
Committee of the Board of Directors, which, togethéth the Board of Directors, had the exclusivehauity to administer the 2003 Pl
including the power to determine eligibility to ed¢e awards, the types and number of shares ok stoject to the awards, the price
timing of awards and the acceleration or waiveamyf vesting and performance of forfeiture reswits, in each case subject to the terms ¢
2003 Plan. Any of the Company’s employees, poployee directors, consultants and Company adyiserdetermined by the Compens:
Committee, were eligible to be selected to pardit@gn the 2003 Plan. Tempur Sealy Internatiodalhad a maximum of 11.5 millioshares ¢
its common stock under the 2003 Plan to be issnelllay 2013 the Company's Board of Directors adopteesolution that prohibited furt
grants under the 2003 Plan.

In 2010, the Board of Directors approved the teofna LongTerm Incentive Plan ("LTIP") established under 2083 Plan. In 201
the Board of Directors approved the terms of andtleag-Term Incentive Plan established under thE32@lan. Awards under both LoAgrr
Incentive Plans have typically consisted of a mixstwck options and PRSUs. Shares with respechéoPRSUs will be granted and \
following the end of the applicable performanceigiand achievement of applicable performance o®#as determined by the Compens:
Committee of the Board of Directors.

The Company’s stock-based compensation expengbdoyear ended December 31, 20dduded PRSUs, stock options, RSUs
DSUs. A summary of the Company’s stock-based cosgtem expense is presented below:

December 31,

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012

PRSU expense (benefit) $ BIGHN 3C ¢ 0.9
Stock option expense 7.C 8.2 4.4
RSU/DSU expense 2.8 5.€ 2.2
Total stock-based compensation expense $ 134 § 16 $ 5.7

The Company granted PRSUs during the years endeéniimer 31, 2014 , 2013 and 201Zctual payout under the PRSU:s
dependent upon the achievement of certain finamuals. The Company recorded a benefit in the apaoying Consolidated Statement:
Income of $3.0 million and $10.3 million , for tgears ended December 31, 2014 and 2012, respgctaftdr reevaluation of the probabili
of meeting certain required performance goals atdrchining that the performance goals would natie¢

The following table shows the PRSUs granted unae2013 Plan and LTIP during the year ended DeceBhe2014 :
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Target shares Weighted-average
(shares in millions) Performance period granted fair value per share
Year ended 2019 January 1, 2014 — December 31, 2015 0.15 $ 51.8
Year ended 2016 January 1, 2014 - December 31, 2016 0.15 $ 51.8

(1) At the end of the performance period, the @chwumber of shares issuable can range from ze&D@0%of the target shares granted, whic
assumed to be 100.0% .

(2) At the end of the performance period, the alchumber of shares issuable can range from zeBD@0%of the target shares granted, whic
assumed to be 100.0% .

A summary of the Company’s PRSU activity and relatgdormation for the years ended December 31, 281d 2013s presente

below:
Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair
(shares in millions) Shares Value
Awards unvested at December 31, 2012 02 $ 58.52
Granted 0.3 39.3¢
Vested — —
Forfeited 0.3 56.92
Awards unvested at December 31, 2013 03 $ 39.0¢
Granted 0.3 51.87
Vested 0.C 37.0¢
Forfeited 0.3 39.3¢
Awards unvested at December 31, 2014 03 § 53.4¢

During the year ended December 31, 2014 , PRSUs amtaggregate intrinsic value of $1.4 millimere issued from treasury st
following the satisfaction of certain financial me$ over the ongear performance period. The PRSUs were issued freasury stock
100.0%of the target award, the maximum payout. During year ended December 31, 2013, PRSUs granted ifi 2@h an aggrega
intrinsic value of $14.9 milliorwere issued from treasury stock following the $atison of certain financial metrics over the penfianct
period. The PRSUs were issued from treasury sto2B20% of the target award, out of a maximum p&yd 300.0% The aggregate intrins
value of PRSUs outstanding as of December 31, 2@54$13.9 million .

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricindeatto calculate the fair value of stock options grdnfEhe assumptions usec
the Black-Scholes pricing model for the years endedember 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2@t& set forth in the following table. Expected it
is based on the unbiased standard deviation of Tie®galy Internationad’ common stock over the option term. The expedfed the option
represents the period of time that the Company @ggbe options granted to be outstanding. Thefresk rate is based on the U.S. Trea
yield curve in effect at the time of the grant bé toption for the expected term of the instrum@&he dividend yield reflects an estimate
dividend payouts over the term of the award. Then@any uses historical data to determine these asgms.

Year Ended
December 31,
2014 2013 2012
Expected volatility range of stock 56.7% - 66.5% 63.0% - 72.8% 49.0% - 73.0%
Expected life of option, range in years 2-4 2-3 2-4
Risk-free interest range rate 0.4% - 1.4% 0.3% - 0.6% 0.3% - 0.7%
Expected dividend yield on stock 0.6% - 0.7% 0.6% - 0.9% 0.0% - 1.3%
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A summary of the Company’s unvested shares reldtirgtock options as of December 31, 2014 and 2G#®1 changes during
years endeDecember 31, 2014 and 2013 , are presented below:

Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair

(shares in millions) Shares Value
Options unvested at December 31, 2012 0¢ % 23.4¢
Granted 0.€ 39.77
Vested (0.9 19.71
Forfeited 0.7 39.62
Options unvested at December 31, 2013 0€ $ 42.1¢
Granted 0.2 52.0¢
Vested (0.3 42.4¢
Forfeited 0.C 50.5:
Options unvested at December 31, 2014 05 $ 46.2¢

A summary of the Company’s stock option activitydanthe 2003 Plan and 2013 Plan for the years ebéegmber 31, 2014dnc
2013, is presented below:

Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining
Average Exercise Contractual Aggregate
(shares in millions) Shares Price Term (Years) Intrinsic Value
Options outstanding at December 31, 2012 2¢ % 17.0C
Granted 0.6 39.7%
Exercised (0.6) 14.5¢
Terminated 0.3 39.62
Options outstanding at December 31, 2013 28 % 21.7:
Granted 0.2 52.0¢
Exercised (0.2 20.8:
Terminated 0.C 50.5:%
Options outstanding at December 31, 2014 28 $ 24.1¢ 5.13 $ 84.2
Options exercisable at December 31, 2014 23 % 19.2( 435 § 82.¢

The aggregate intrinsic value of options exercidadng the years ended December 31, 2014 , 20126128 was $6.7 million$17.1

million and $29.8 million , respectively.

A summary of the Company's RSU and DSU activity agldted information for the years ended Decembter2®14 and 2018

presented below:
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Weighted
Average Aggregate
(in millions, except release price and years) Shares Release Price Intrinsic Value
Awards outstanding at December 31, 2012 0z $ 32.0¢
Granted 0.2 45.5¢
Vested (0.2) 30.4¢
Terminated — —
Awards outstanding at December 31, 2013 0z $ 47.0(
Granted 0.C 54.5¢
Vested (0.2) 44.47
Terminated 0.C 46.7
Awards outstanding at December 31, 2014 01 % 5041 $ 5.

The Company granted 0.02 million DSUs and 0.0liomlRSUs during the year ended December 31, 2@tdDecember 31, 2014
the Company had 0.1 millionf unvested DSUs/RSUs. The aggregate intrinsic evadfi RSU and DSUs vested during the year e
December 31, 2014 was $5.5 million .

A summary of total unrecognized stoblised compensation expense based on current parfoenestimates related to the opti
DSUs, RSUs and PRSUs granted during the year ebdeember 31, 2014 is presented below:

Weighted
Average
Remaining
December 31, Vesting Period
(in millions, except years) 2014 (Years)
Unrecognized stock option expense $ 315 2.17
Unrecognized DSU/RSU expense 0.8 2.11
Unrecognized PRSU expense 9.2 1.56
Total unrecognized stock-based compensation expense $ 13.2 1.76

Cash received from options exercised under allkshased compensation plans, including cash recein@d bptions issued fra
treasury shares for the years ended December 34,,2013 and 2012 was $4.3 million , $8.7 milliand $11.4 million , respectively.

(13) Commitments and Contingencies
(a) Lease Commitments The Company has various operating leases thatfaaknnual rental payments due in equal mor
installments and a lease with a rent free occupaeciod. The Compang’policy is to recognize expense for lease paymeaitiding thos

with escalating provisions and rent free periodsacstraight-line basis over the lease term. Opgratase expenses were $32.3 milli#5.5
million , and $9.5 million for the years ended Dexdxer 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectively.
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Future minimum lease payments at December 31, A6ddr these non-cancelable leases are as follows:

(in millions)

Year Ended December 31,

2015 $ 29.1

2016 27.C

2017 24.£

2018 21.5

2019 15.C
Thereafter 44.£

$ 161.2

The Company has the option to renew certain plpetaiing leases, with the longest renewal periddraiing through 2043. Cert:
of the operating leases provide for increased tierugh increases in general price levels. The Gompecognizes rent expense in ti
situations on a straight-line basis over the |¢asa.

(b) Purchase CommitmentsS'he Company will, from time to time, enter intmited purchase commitments for the purchase din
raw materials. Amounts committed under these prograre not significant to the Company as of Decer8hbe2014 and December 31, 2013 .

(c) Norfolk County Retirement System, Individually amd behalf of all others similarly situated, Plaifiitiv. TempurPedic
International Inc., Mark A. Sarvary and Dale E. Wdins; filed June 20, 201

Arthur Benning, Jr., Individually and on behalf af others similarly situated, Plaintiff v. TempBedic International Inc., Mark .
Sarvary and Dale E. Williams; filed June 25, 2012

On June 20 and 25, 2012, the above suits weredi@ihst the Company and twamed executive officers in the United States i3t
Court for the Eastern District of Kentucky, purgaty on behalf of a proposed class of stockholaers purchased the Compasystocl
between January 25, 2012 and June 5, 2012. Thelaimspassert claims under Sections 10(b) and 2ff(#)e Exchange Act, alleging, amc
other things, false and misleading statements amtealment of material information concerning thempanys competitive positio
projected net sales, earnings per diluted sharereladed financial performance for the Compang012 fiscal year. The plaintiffs st
damages, interest, costs, attorgefges, expert fees and unspecified equitablefitium relief. On November 2, 2012, the Court coiusiic
the two lawsuits and on March 6, 2013, plaintiffed a consolidated complaint. On March 31, 20b4, €ourt issued an Order granting
Companys motion to dismiss with prejudice the consolidatemnplaint. The Court issued its memorandum of iopirand entered fin
judgment on May 23, 2014. On June 6, 2014, thenpits filed a notice of appeal. The Company interid vigorously defend against
claims. The outcome of these matters is uncertaiwever, and although the Company does not cuyremplect to incur a loss with respec
these matters, the Company cannot currently préagcanner and timing of the resolution of thessuin estimate of a range of losses ol
minimum loss that could result in the event of dwease judgment in this suit, or whether the Comgpmmapplicable insurance policies \
provide sufficient coverage for these claims. Adiogly, the Company can give no assurance thaetiresdters will not have a material adw
effect on the Company’s financial position or réswaif operations.
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(d) Sealy Mattress Company of NJ, Inc., David Hertdjvidually, as trustee of, respectively, the Alfisbindsay Hertz Trust, tl
Samuel Douglas Hertz Trust, the Sydney Lauren Hemst, the U/A DTD 08/21/97 Andrew Michael Marcdusist, the U/A DTD 08/21/¢
Julia Robyn Marcus Trust, and the U/A DTD 08/21ames Daniel Marcus Trust, and as executor of gtate of Walter Hertz, Lisa Marci
Rose Naiman, Michael Shoobs, and Diane Shoobgjidhdilly and as custodian of the Robert S. ShoobsIA NJ v. Sealy Corporation, fil
June 27, 2013.With respect to the Sealy Acquisition, holders pprximately 3.1 milliorshares of Sealy common stock sent notices to
purporting to exercise their appraisal rights icadance with the Merger Agreement executed onefdptr 26, 2012. In order to prese
these appraisal rights, any such former stockholdex required to commence an appraisal proceedittgei Delaware courts withib?0 day
after March 18, 2013. Sealy has expressly resdtgatjhts to contest that any or all of such negievere not delivered timely or otherwise
in the form required under Delaware law. On June2P13, an appraisal proceeding was commenceceib#taware Court of Chancery (
“Appraisal Action”). Sealy will be required to palye courtdetermined fair value of the Sealy common stockngnty held by the former Se:
stockholders seeking the appraisal, plus intereteastatutory rate. This could impact the Compsuriinancial condition and liquidity. T
Company believes that the merger considerationfaiagnd the appraised value should be equal less than the merger consideration
therefore, the case lacks merit. The Company ist¢ndlefend against the claims vigorously. Thistenas at a very preliminary stage, and
outcome is uncertain. As a result, the Companyniable to reasonably estimate the possible losargger of losses, if any, arising from
litigation, or whether the Company’s applicableirace policies will provide sufficient coverage fbese claims

(e) Alvin Todd, and Henry and Mary Thompson, indivitijuaind on behalf of all others similarly situatddaintiffs v. Tempur See
International, Inc., formerly known as Tem-Pedic International, Inc. and Tempé&edic North America, LLC, Defendants; filed OctoBé&i
2013

On October 25, 2013, a suit was filed against Tangealy International and one of its domestic dibges in the United Stai
District Court for the Northern District of Califieia, purportedly on behalf of a proposed classcohSumers’as defined by Cal. Civ. Code
1761(d) who purchased, not for resale, a Tenifrdic mattress or pillow in the State of Califorr@m November 19, 2013, the Company
served for the first time in the case but with ameaded petition adding additional class represeetafor additional states. The purpo
classes seek certification of claims under appleatate laws.

The complaint alleges that the Company engagedfairubusiness practices, false advertising, anstepresentations or omissi
related to the sale of certain products. The gfsnseek restitution, injunctive relief and allhet relief allowed under applicable state Iz
interest, attorneysees and costs. The purported classes do not see&gks for physical injuries. The Company belidliescase lacks me
and intends to defend against the claims vigorougys matter is at a very preliminary stage, amel dutcome is uncertain. As a result,
Company is unable to reasonably estimate the deskibs or range of losses, if any, arising frons fitigation, or whether the Compaisy’
applicable insurance policies will provide sufficiecoverage for these claims. Accordingly, the Campcan give no assurance that this m
will not have a material adverse effect on the Canys financial position or results of operations.

(f) German Regulatory Investigationhe German Federal Cartel Office (FCO) has condugteannounced inspections of the pren
of several mattress wholesaler/manufacturers imeiuthe Company's German subsidiary. The order igmmthe inspection and collection
records alleged “vertical price fixingThe FCO's review is ongoing but the Company hagto/etceive any statement of objections regai
any alleged claims against the Company. If claimsasserted by the FCO, the Company intends emdefgainst the claims vigorously. -
outcome of the FCO's review is uncertain; howegemn the inherent uncertainties involved, thecoate of this matter cannot be predi
and the amount of any potential loss cannot beoreddy estimated. A negative outcome in this casddchave a material adverse effect or
Company.
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(g9) Environmental. The Company is currently conducting an environmakecieanup at a formerly owned facility in SouthuBswick
New Jersey pursuant to the New Jersey Industrial @covery Act. Sealy and one of its subsidiaaiesparties to an Administrative Cons
Order issued by the New Jersey Department of Enmiental Protection. Pursuant to that order, Seadyis subsidiary agreed to conduct
and groundwater remediation at the property. They@my does not believe that its manufacturing Eses were the source of contamina
The Company sold the property in 1997. The Compatained primary responsibility for the requirednesliation. Previously, the Comps
removed and disposed of contaminated soil fromsike with the New Jersey Department of EnvironmieRtatection approval, and 1
Company has installed a groundwater remediatiotesyson the site. During 2005, with the approvaltloé New Jersey Department
Environmental Protection, the Company removed asdoded of sediment in Oakeys Brook adjoining tite. §he Company continues
monitor ground water at the site. During 2012, vtttk approval of the New Jersey Department of Bmwirental Protection, the Compi
commenced the removal and disposal of additionatacninated soil from the site. The Company hasroeEmb a reserve as a componer
other accrued expenses and other noncurrent tiabilin the accompanying Consolidated Balance Shestof December 31, 2014 2.5
million associated with this remediation project.

The Company has also undertaken a remediation ibfuisd groundwater contamination at an inactivelitgclocated in Oakville
Connecticut. Although the Company is conducting teenediation voluntarily, it obtained Connecticutegartment of Energy a
Environmental Protection (“DEEP"approval of the remediation plan. In 2012, the Canypsubmitted separate closure reports tc
Connecticut DEEP for the lower portion of the sited the upper portion of the site. The ConnectEEP approved the Compasyelosur
report for the upper portion of the site and alawegconditional approval to the Companglosure report for the lower portion of the sifiehe
Company is continuing to work with the ConnectiEEP and is performing additional testing to obteliwsure for the lower portion of t
site. The Company has recorded a liability of agpnately $0.1 millionassociated with the completion of the closure ©fémediation effor
at the site. The Company does not believe the ountdion on this site is attributable to the Comparmperations.

The Company cannot predict the ultimate timing asts of the South Brunswick and Oakville environtakmatters. Based on fa
currently known, the Company believes that the @wadsrrecorded are adequate and does not believegbkition of these matters will hav
material effect on the financial position or futwperations of the Company. However, in the evdrdaroadverse decision by the agen
involved, or an unfavorable result in the New Jgreatural resources damages matter, these matbeid bave a material effect on
Company’s financial position or results of operasio

In 1998, the Company sold an inactive facility f@chin Putnam, Connecticut. In 2012, the Comparcgived a letter from t
attorney for the current owner of that propertyiroiag that the Company may have some responsilfdityan environmental condition on
property. The Company continues to investigate thater, but intends to vigorously defend the clafmthe current owner against
Company.

(h) Income Tax Assessmenthe Company has received income tax assessmembstfi® Danish Tax Authority (“SKAT”")The
Company believes it has meritorious defenses toptbposed adjustments and will oppose the assessn@nnecessary in the appropi
Danish venue. The Company believes the litigatimt@ss to reach a final resolution of this mattarld potentially extend over the neite
years. If the Company is not successful in defegdior position that the Company owes no additiémeds, the Company could be require
pay a significant amount to SKAT, which could impar reduce our liquidity and profitability. Fordescription of these assessments
additional information with respect to these assesds and the various related legal proceedings,Nsge 14 , “ Income Taxesih our
Consolidated Financial Statements included in PaTEM 8 of this Report.

(i) Other. The Company is involved in various other legal pextings incidental to the operations of its busndhe Compar

believes that the outcome of all such pending lpgateedings in the aggregate will not have a nataedverse effect on its business, finar
condition, liquidity, or operating results.
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(14) Income Taxes

The Companys effective income tax provision differs from thea@unt calculated using the statutory U.S. federabine tax rat
principally due to the following:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Percentage of Percentage of Percentage of

Income Income Income
Before Income Before Income Before Income

(dollars in millions) Amount Taxes Amount Taxes Amount Taxes
Statutory U.S. federal income tax $ 61.2 35.(% $ 44.¢ 35.(% $ 80.2 35.C %
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 1.1 0.€% 1.7 1.2% 4L 2C%
Foreign repatriation, net of foreign tax credits 13t 7.7% (16.0 (12.€)% 48.1 21.C%
Foreign tax differential (12.¢) (7.2)% (12.3) (9.6% (9.7 (4.2%
Change in valuation allowances (7.7) (10.0% 20.£ 15.€% (2.9 (1.2)%
Uncertain tax positions 10.¢ 6.1% 4.7 3.7% 2.€ 11%
Subpart F income 1.¢ 1.1% 175 1.2% 4.1 1.8%
Manufacturing deduction 3.7 (2.1)% 0.1 — % 3.9 2.7%
Goodwill on disposal of business 7.t 4.2 % — — % — — %
Permanent and other 2.6 1.7% 4.2 3.E% (0.8 (0.49%
Effective income tax provision $ 64.¢ 37.1% $ 49.1 384% $ 122.¢ 53.4%

Subpart F income represents interest and royataesed by a foreign subsidiary as well as salesrbgccertain foreign subsidiar
outside of their country of incorporation. Undee tinternal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (tbde€'Q, such income is taxable to Temn
Sealy International as if earned directly by TemPaaly International.

In conjunction with the Sealy Acquisition, the Ccany repatriated substantially all of its currentl @ccumulated foreign earnir
associated with the legacy Tempur foreign subsielan a taxable transaction. The Company had pusiy tax effected those earnings ar
December 31, 2012 had recorded a $48.1 millleferred tax liability on such earnings. As a resitilthe Sealy Acquisition, the Compe
recognized the benefit of certain foreign tax drediributes associated with Sealy’s foreign subsigls’ earnings. These foreign tax cre
could not be taken into account in calculating @@mpanys tax on the book to tax basis difference of iteifjn subsidiaries until the Se
Acquisition closed. As a result of the taxable s@tion and taking into consideration the applicatof these foreign tax credits, as
December 31, 2014 the Company has recognized ctivaultax on the repatriation transaction of appmuadely $63.9 million. At
December 31, 2014, the Company’s tax basis irofidier foreign subsidiary exceeds the Comparngok basis. Accordingly, no deferred
has been recorded related to this basis differaageis not apparent that the difference will mseein the foreseeable future. As it relates ti
book to tax basis difference with respect of tlelstof each of the Comparsylower tier foreign subsidiaries, as a generatenathe book bas
exceeds the tax basis in the hands of the foraifpsidiary shareholder. By operation of the tax lafshe various countries in which st
subsidiaries are domiciled, earnings of lower faeign subsidiaries are not subject to tax, innadlterial respects, when distributed to
foreign shareholder. It is the Compasyintent that the earnings of each lower tier fymesubsidiary, with the exception of its Dar
subsidiary, will be permanently reinvested in itgnooperations. As it relates to the Danish subsydids earnings may be distributed with
any income tax impact in any case. Thus, no taxasided for with respect to the book to tax bakfference of its stock.

The Company has received income tax assessmemsSKAT with respect to the tax years 2001 throug8&relating to the royal
paid by one of Tempur Sealy Internatiosdl.S. subsidiaries to a Danish subsidiary. Theltgys paid by the U.S. subsidiary for the rigb
utilize certain intangible assets owned by the Blarsubsidiary in the U.S. production processestslrassessment, SKAT asserts thai
amount of royalty rate paid by the U.S. subsidiaryhe Danish subsidiary is not reflective of amstength transaction. Accordingly, the
assessment received from SKAT is based, in par @3%royalty rate which is substantially higher thantthatorically used or deem
appropriate by the Company.
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The 2008 income tax assessment was received inhM20d4. The cumulative tax assessment for all yéarsugh 2008
approximately $215.1 milliomcluding interest and penalties. The Company ftietkly protests with the Danish National Tax Tl (the
“Tribunal”) challenging the tax assessments. The Tribunal filyragreed to place the Danish tax litigation oridhpending the outcome o
Bilateral Advance Pricing Agreement (“Bilateral ABAbetween the United States and SKAT. A Bilateral AR¥olves an agreement betw:
the Internal Revenue Service (“IRSENd the taxpayer, as well as a negotiated agreemignbne or more foreign competent authoritieseu
applicable income tax treaties. During the thiréier of 2008, the Company filed the Bilateral AR#h the IRS and SKAT. SKAT and t
IRS met several times since 2011, most recentlyeibruary 2013, to discuss the matter. At the camtuof the February 2013 meeting,
IRS and SKAT concluded that a mutually acceptaigile@ment on the matter could not be reached aral r@sult, the Bilateral APA proce
was terminated. The matter is now before the T @huhhe Tribunal is a branch of SKAT that is indegent of the discussions and negotiat
that have taken place to date. If the Tribunal dugisrule to the satisfaction of one or both pattidne party seeking redress may choo
litigate the issue in the Danish court system. 0132 the Company was notified by SKAT that SKAT ijesl the deferral to 2017 of 1
requirement to post a cash deposit or other forraeairity for taxes that have been assessed fopdtied 2001 through 2007. During
quarter ended June 30, 2014, the Company was gdrardeferral to 2018 of the requirement to posashaeposit or other form of security
taxes that have been assessed for 2008. The Conhgdiryes it has meritorious defenses to the pregph@sijustments and will oppose
assessments before the Tribunal and in the Darusints; as necessary. The impact of terminating Bhateral APA program has be
considered by the Company in its December 31, 28tidhate of unrecognized tax benefits.

The Company maintains an uncertain tax position@ased with this matter, the amount of which isdzhon a royalty methodola
and royalty rates that the Company considers tefhective of arms length transactions. It is reasonably possi®eatihhount of the recogniz
tax benefits may change in the next twelve morinsestimate of the amount of such change cannatdse at this time. If the Company is
successful in defending its position before thebdmial or in the Danish courts, the Company coulddugiired to pay significant amounts
SKAT, which could impair or reduce its liquidity @mprofitability. In conjunction with the tax exanaition discussed below, during the y
ended December 31, 2013 the Company received pomdence from SKAT requesting information regarding royalty for the years 20
through 2011. The correspondence indicated thatlSKAuld be evaluating the royalty paid for eachtaf years under examination in addi
to other issues normally evaluated in a tax exatimnaThe Company has responded to SK&Tequest for information. During the th
months ended December 31, 2013, the Company and $igfeed that the examination of the royalty idemehe years 20092011 would b
placed on hold pending the outcome of the Tribymatess relating to the years 2001 through 2008it Adates to SKAT's examination
other items, particularly transactions betweenGbenpanys Danish subsidiary and its foreign distributiobsidiaries, the Company believe
has meritorious defenses for all items reportedhan Danish income tax returns. Through December2814, the Company has not b
contacted by SKAT in response to the informatiooviated by the Company.

The aggregate amount of uncertain tax benefitsafomatters as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 wére6Smillion and$26.1
million , respectively. The unrecognized tax betsefis of December 31, 2014 and 2013 were $44.6omidind $22.2 million respectively
which would impact the effective rate if recogniz&tie Company had approximately $10.3 million afd.8of accrued interest and penal
at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, resglgct

The Company or one of its subsidiaries files incatae returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, avafious states and forei
jurisdictions. During the twelve months ended DebenB1, 2013, the Company concluded the tax exdiomaf the U.S. federal income 1
return for the years 2008 and 2009. During 2014Gbmpany was advised by the IRS that the years 26d(®011 would not be examined
that 2012 would be examined. That examination igrogress. With few exceptions, the Company isamyér subject to tax examinations
the U.S. state and local municipalities for peripdsr to 2006, and in nobkS. jurisdictions for periods prior to 2001. Agélates to Sealy f
years prior to the Sealy Acquisition, Sealy or ofhds subsidiaries was required to file income taturns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, :
various states and foreign jurisdictions. Seal.S. federal income tax returns and with few pkoas its foreign income tax returns are
longer subject to examination for years prior t@&0Generally Sealg’ state and local jurisdiction income tax returres o longer subject
examination for years prior to 2010.

Additionally, the Company is currently under exaatian by various tax authorities around the woflde Company anticipates i
reasonably possible an increase or decrease amtbent of unrecognized tax benefits could be madeé next twelve months as a result o
statute of limitations expiring and/or the examioma$ being concluded on these returns. HoweverCitiapany does not presently anticij
that any increase or decrease in unrecognizedetagfibs will be material to the consolidated finahstatements.
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The following sets forth the amount of income @sf) before income taxes attributable to eachefbmpanys geographies for t
years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and :

Year Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Income before income taxes:
United States $ 6. 3 45 3 126.2
Rest of the world 128.( 132.5 103.(
$ 174¢  $ 128.C $ 229.2

U.S. GAAP prescribes a recognition threshold andsuement attribute for the accounting and findratetement disclosure of 1
positions taken or expected to be taken in a taxmeThe evaluation of a tax position is a tatep process. The first step requires the Conr
to determine whether it is more likely than nottthatax position will be sustained upon examinati@sed on the technical merits of
position. The second step requires the Compangdognize in the financial statements each tax ipasthat meets the more likely than
criteria, measured at the largest amount of bettedit has a greater than 50.0% likelihood of beegjized. A reconciliation of the beginn
and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits ioldows:

(in millions)

Balance as of December 31, 2012 $ 12.€
Additions attributable to Sealy on date of acqigsit 9.2
Additions based on tax positions related to 2013 2.3
Additions for tax positions of prior years 7.2
Settlements of uncertain tax positions with taxhatities (5.5

Balance as of December 31, 2013 26.1
Additions based on tax positions related to 2014 24.2
Additions for tax positions of prior years 0.t
Expiration of statutes of limitations 3.2
Settlements of uncertain tax positions with tahatities (0.2

Balance as of December 31, 2014 $ 47.€

The amount of unrecognized tax benefits that wimlglact the effective tax rate if recognized woulddpproximately $47.6 million
Interest and penalties related to unrecognizedtésmefits are recorded in income tax expense. Duhagears ended December 31, 20281,
and 2012 , the Company recognized approximatel§y #dllion , $1.8 million , and $3.0 milliom interest and penalties, respectively, in inc
tax expense. The Company had approximately $10l®mj $11.0 million , and $5.8 million of accruéaterest and penalties Becember 3:
2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively.

The Company has the following gross income taxoaites available at December 31, 2014 and 2013ctisply (in millions):

2014 2013
U.S. federal net operating loss (“FedNOLs”) $ — 19.€
State net operating losses (“SNOLS") 145.% 135.€
U.S. federal foreign tax credits (“FTCs”) 7.€ 20.4
U.S. state income tax credits ("SITCs") 1.€ 0.7
Foreign net operating losses (“FNOLS") 442 67.1
Charitable contribution carryover ("CCCs") 8.4 —

The SNOLs, FTCs, FNOLs, SITCs and CCCs generaliyrexn 2021, 2023, 2023, 2023 and 2019, respdgtive
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Management believes that, based on a number ajrf&adhe available objective evidence creates @afft uncertainty regarding 1
realizability of certain of the SNOLs, FTCs, SITE\OLs, CCCs and certain other deferred tax asseédted to certain foreign operatit
(together, the “Tax Attributes”)ln assessing the realizability of deferred tax @s¢mcluding the Tax Attributes), management cdes
whether it is more likely than not that some poartiof all of such deferred tax assets will not balired. Accordingly, the Company
established a valuation allowance for Tax Attrisut€he ultimate realization of deferred tax asgetiependent upon the generation of fL
taxable income during the periods in which the terapy differences become deductible or creditalilanagement considers the sched
reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projectedufiet taxable income and tax planning strategiesaking this assessment. Based upon the le'
historical taxable income and projections for fettaxable income, management believes it is mkedylthan not the Company will realize
benefits of the deferred tax assets, other thasetmelated to some or all of the Tax Attributeslssussed above. However, there can t
assurance that such assets will be realized ificistances change.

The income tax provision includes federal, state] foreign income taxes currently payable and tlieferred or prepaid becaust
temporary differences between financial statemadttax bases of assets and liabilities. The Compaogrds income taxes under the liab
method. Under this method, deferred income taxesegognized for the estimated future tax effeftdiiferences between the tax base
assets and liabilities and their financial repgrtamounts based on enacted tax laws.

The income tax provision consisted of the following

Year Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Current provision
Federal $ 50.7 % 486 % 49.¢
State 4.t 7.2 7.8
Foreign 36.€ 425 26.2
Total current $ 921 $ 98.z $ 84.C
Deferred provision
Federal $ (25.2) $ 47.00 % 37.1
State 1.2 0.4 4.2
Foreign (0.8 (2.5 (2.9)
Total deferred (27.2) (49.]) 38.4
Total income tax provision $ 64 §$ 49.1 § 122.
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The net deferred tax assets and liabilities reasghin the accompanying Consolidated Balance Skeetssted of the following:

December 31,

(in millions) 2014 2013
Deferred tax assets:
Stock-based compensation $ 122 $ 10.C
Accrued expenses and other 57.¢ 53.7
Net operating losses, foreign tax credits and tdialg contribution carryforward 30.¢ 55.¢
Inventories 4.5 4.€
Intangible assets 14t 9.C
Property, plant and equipment 4.C 3.¢
Total deferred tax assets 123.¢ 136.5
Valuation allowances (21.9) (39.9
Total net deferred tax assets $ 1022 $ 97.1
Deferred tax liabilities:
Transaction costs $ (258.) $ (261.9
Property, plant and equipment (45.7) (62.5)
Accrued expenses and other (4.5 4.3
Total deferred tax liabilities (308.9) (328.9)
Net deferred tax liabilities $ (206.) $ (231.9

(15) Major Customers

The top five customers accounted for approxiryatg$.9% , 27.5% and 24.0% of the Companyét sales for the years en
December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectivady shlles from one customer (Mattress Firm HoldingoQ represented more than 10.0%6
net sales for the year ended December 31, 201Hichware recognized in the Tempur North America Sa@dly segments. The tdjye
customers also accounted for approximately 32d%@ 26.4% of accounts receivable as of DeceBibe2014 and 2013, respectively.

(16) Redeemable Non-controlling Interest

The Company is party to a put and call arrangemétfit respect to the common securities that repitegen’55.0% norcontrolling
interest in Comfort Revolution. The call arrangein@iay be exercised by the Company on June 12, 20&&wise, the put arrangement n
be exercised by Comfort Revolution on June 12, 20t#® redemption value for both the put and thé amngement is equal to 7tines
EBITDA, as defined in the related LLC agreementCainfort Revolution for the preceding If®onths, adjusted for net debt outstanding
multiplied by the 55.0% ownership interest not higydthe Company. Due to the existing put and aafiregements, the narentrolling interes
is considered to be redeemable in accordance Wwéhrélated authoritative accounting guidance andeésrded on the balance sheet
redeemable non-controlling interest outside of @meremt equity. The redeemable nmmtrolling interest is recognized at the higherlpthe
accumulated earnings associated with the cmntrolling interest or 2) the redemption valuefthe balance sheet date. The Company rec
redeemable non-controlling interest using the aadatad earnings basis associated with the cwntrolling interest as of December 31, 2
and 2013.
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(17) Earnings Per Common Share

Year Ended December 31,
(in millions, except per common share amounts) 2014 2013 2012

Numerator:
Net income attributable to Tempur Sealy Internatlpmc. $ 108.¢ $ 786 $ 106.¢

Denominator:

Denominator for basic earnings per common share-ghted average shares 60.¢ 60.2 61.
Effect of dilutive securities:

Employee stock based compensation 1. 1. 1.4
Denominator for diluted earnings per common shardjusted weighted average shares 62.1 61.¢ 62.¢
Basic earnings per common share $ 1.7¢  $ 1.3C $ 1.74
Diluted earnings per common share $ 178§ 128 $ 1.7¢

The Company excluded 0.3 million , 0.3 million @@ million shares issuable upon exercise of outstanding sioténs for the yea
ended December 31, 2014 , 2013, and 20%&2pectively, from the diluted earnings per comrabare computation because their exercise
was greater than the average market price of Ter@paly International’s common stock or they weteeowrise anti-dilutive. Holders of non-
vested stock-based compensation awards do notoding rights or rights to receive any dividendstba shares covered by the awards.

(18) Business Segment Information

The Company operates in thiegsiness segments: Tempur North America, Temparrational and Sealy. These reportable segt
are strategic business units that are managedagelyarThe Tempur North America reportable segneensists of the twdJ.S. manufacturin
facilities and the Tempur North America distributisubsidiaries. The Tempur International reportaglgment consists of the manufactu
facility in Denmark, whose customers include altlé distribution subsidiaries and third party dsttors outside the Tempur North Amel
reportable segment. The Sealy reportable segmersiste of compangwned and operated bedding and component manufagtizcilities
located around the world, along with distributionbsidiaries, joint ventures, and licensees. ThdySesportable segment became a
reportable segment in 2013 as a result of the Seedyisition. The Company evaluates segment peidioca based on net sales and oper
income.

The Company has historically included in its Temporth America reportable segment certain corpoigierating expenst
Immediately following the Sealy acquisition in Mar2013, the Company began to transfer oversightedfain Sealy reportable segnr
corporate functions to personnel within the Temporth America reportable segment. The transitioa bantinued throughout 2014. A
result, the majority of corporate operating expsrse included in the Tempur North America repdeiaegment and a portion of corpo
operating expenses are included in the Sealy segmen

The transition of the Company's corporate functioas increased operating expenses in the Temptin anerica reportable segm:
and decreased operating expenses in the Sealytablgoisegment. Corporate operating expenses irttludehe Tempur North Ameri
reportable segment for the year ended Decembe2®¥ , 2013 and 2012 were $75.5 million , $83.0iomland $58.0 million respectively
Corporate operating expenses included in the Sealyrtable segment for the year ended Decembe2(®@H and 2013 were $22.0 milliamc
$26.9 million, respectively. There were no material allocatiohgorporate operating expenses from the TemputhiNamerica reportab
segment to the Tempur International or Sealy rapdetsegments during the years ended Decembef34,,2013 and 2012 .

Effective January 1, 2015, the Company realigngaiganizational structure. As a result of thesengles, information that our ch
operating decision maker regularly reviews for msgs of allocating resources and assessing penmicenghanged. Therefore, beginnin
fiscal year 2015, the Company will report its fical reporting based on new reportable segmentghMemerica and International. Corpor
operating expenses will not be included in eithérthe reportable segments and will be presentecratgy as a reconciling item
consolidated results.
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The Companys Tempur North America, Tempur International andlpeeportable segment assets include investmergahisidiarie
which are appropriately eliminated in the Compangscompanying Consolidated Financial Statemente fémaining intesegmer
eliminations are comprised of intercompany accovetgivable. The effect of the elimination of theéstments in subsidiaries is include
the inter-segment eliminations as shown below.

The following table summarizes total assets by najde segment:

December 31,

(in millions) 2014 2013
Tempur North America 2,431 $ 2,110.7
Tempur International 463.1 4777
Sealy 2,000.¢ 1,956.¢
Inter-segment eliminations (2,232.9) (1,815.)

Total assets 2,662.t $ 2,729.¢

The following table summarizes long-lived assetsdportable segment:

December 31,

(in millions) 2014 2013
Tempur North America 1371 $ 132.¢
Tempur International 49.2 53.2
Sealy 169.3 225.¢

Total long lived assets 3556 $ 411.¢

The following table summarizes long-lived assetgbggraphic region:

Year Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2014 2013
United States $ 287.:  $ 335.¢
Canada 8.C 9.3
Other International 60.2 66.4
$ 3556 $ 411.¢
Total International $ 68.5 $ 75.7

The following table summarizes net sales by gedycamgion:
Year Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012
United States 2,188.. $ 1,736.6 $ 923.¢
Canada 216.4 190.Z 40.¢
Other International 584.7 537.: 438.7
2,989.( $ 2,464.. $ 1,402.¢
Total International 801.1 $ 7275 $ 479.5

The following table summarizes reportable segmefiormation:




Year Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012

Net sales to external customers:
Tempur North America
Bedding $ 930t $ 830.¢ $ 882.%
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Other products

Tempur International
Bedding
Other products

Sealy
Bedding
Other products

Inter-segment sales:
Tempur North America
Tempur International
Sealy
Intercompany eliminations

Gross profit:
Tempur North America
Tempur International
Sealy

Operating income:
Tempur North America
Tempur International
Sealy

Income (loss) before income taxes:

Tempur North America
Tempur International
Sealy

Depreciation and amortization (including stock-lshsempensation amortization):

Tempur North America
Tempur International
Sealy

Intercompany royalties:
Tempur North America
Tempur International

103

62.7 79.6 82.C
993.c 910. 964.
354.7 327.7 332.4
117.: 111.€ 106.2
472.( 439.¢ 438.¢

1,441 1,040.: —

83.2 74.. _
1,524.¢ 1,114. —
2,989.¢ 2,464.: 1,402.¢

3.8 0.2 0.
0.6 0.6 1.5
22.€ 5.9 —
(27.2) (6.7) (2.4)
413.¢ 392.7 449.:
274.¢ 269.¢ 265.
461.€ 352.4 —

1,150.: 1,014.¢ 714.¢

84.¢ 67.€ 144.2

91.€ 107. 103.¢
99.¢ 68.7 —
276.: 243.¢ 248.:

19.€ (33.9) 126.:

88. 102.€ 103.C

66.€ 59.2 —
174.¢ 128.( 229..

31.7 42.( 30.€

13.7 12.€ 11.2

44.7 36.7 —

89.7 91.f 42.(

6.1 5.8 12.7
(6.1) (5.9) (1279
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Sealy — — —
$ — 3 — 3 =

Capital expenditures:
Tempur North America $ 20z % 207 % 36.¢
Tempur International 14.4 10.1 13.7
Sealy 12.¢ 9.2 —
$ 475 % 40.C $ 50.5

(19) Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)

Quarterly results of operations for the years enbDedember 31, 2014 and 2013vhich include Sealy's results of operations
March 18, 2013 through December 31, 2013, are suinethbelow:

First Second Third Fourth
(in millions, except per share amounts) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2014
Net sales $ 701¢  $ 715 % 827« % 745.%
Gross profit 269.t 268.% 318.t 294.1
Operating income 62.4 50.2 87.1 76.5
Net income (loss) 27.2 (2.2 37.1 46.€
Basic earnings (loss) per common share $ 0.4t % 0.0 % 061 $ 0.77
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share $ 04 % 0.0 % 0.6C $ 0.7t
2013
Net sales $ 390.1 % 660.t $ 7355 $ 678.1
Gross profit 188.4 254.¢ 298.7 272.¢
Operating income 44 44.C 81.z 74.1
Net income 12.t (2.€) 40.2 27.5
Basic earnings (loss) per common share $ 0.21 % (0.0 $ 0.6€ $ 0.4t
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share $ 020 % (0.05 % 065 $ 0.4¢

The Company's earnings were negatively impactédarsecond quarter of 2014 due to the sale ofiieetU.S. innerspring compon
production facilities and equipment, along withasated working capital, which resulted in a lossdisposal of business. In the fourth qu
of 2014, the Company recognized other income framam other non recurring items, including thetiparsettlement of a legal dispt
Additionally, the Company's earnings were negayivieipacted in the second quarter of 2013, primadile to the Sealy Acquisition &
associated transaction fees. The sum of the qlyae@mings per common share amounts may not ¢heannual amount reported becaus:
share amounts are computed independently for eaahtey and for the full year based on respectivightedaverage common sha
outstanding and other dilutive potential commorrebaThe Compang’quarterly operating results fluctuate as a resfudeasonal variations
the Company’s business.
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(20) Guarantor/Non-Guarantor Financial Information

The Senior Notes are general unsecured senioratiolics of Tempur Sealy International and are faliyl unconditionally guarante
on a senior unsecured basis, jointly and severiajhyall of Tempur Sealy International’s 1006ectly or indirectly owned current and fut
domestic subsidiaries (the “Combined Guarantor tBidrges”). The foreign subsidiaries (the “Combinébn-Guarantor Subsidiarigs”
represent the foreign operations of the Company dmahot guarantee the Senior Notes. A subsidiagrantor will be released from
obligations under the indenture governing the SeNimes when: (a) the subsidiary guarantor is solgells all or substantially all of its ass
(b) the subsidiary is declared “unrestricted” unttier indenture governing the Senior Notes; (c)stitesidiarys guarantee of indebtedness ui
the 2012 Credit Agreement (as it may be amenddihareed or replaced) is released (other than ehdige through repayment); or (d)
requirements for legal or covenant defeasance shdrge of the indenture have been satisfied. Timeipal elimination entries relate
investments in subsidiaries and intercompany bala@nd transactions, including transactions with@ompany’s whollyewned subsidial
guarantors and non-guarantor subsidiaries. The @oynpas accounted for its investments in its sudrs@$ under the equity method.

The following financial information presents Coridated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2014 andniber 31, 2013and th
related Consolidated Statements of Income and Cemepisive Income and Cash Flows for the years eDdedmber 31, 2014 , 2013 akd1-
for Tempur Sealy International, Combined Guaraiobsidiaries and Combined N@uarantor Subsidiaries. Sealy financial informatéwe
included from March 18, 2013 through December 8142and are not included in financial information 2012.
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Supplemental Consolidated Statements of Income ar@omprehensive Income

Net sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling and marketing expenses

General, administrative and other expenses
Equity income in earnings of unconsolidated affd&
Royalty income, net of royalty expense

Operating (loss) income

Other expense, net:
Third party interest expense, net
Intercompany interest expense (income), net
Interest expense, net
Loss on dispsoal, net
Other (income) expense, net

Total other expense

Income from equity investees

Income before income taxes
Income tax benefit (provision)
Net income

Less: net income attributable to non-controllingiest
Net income attributable to Tempur Sealy Internatlpinc.

Comprehensive income

Year Ended December 31, 2014
(in millions)

Tempur Sealy

International, Combined Combined
Inc. (Ultimate Guarantor Non-Guarantor
Parent) Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
$ — 3 2,229 % 802.¢ $ (42.¢) 2,989.¢
— 1,465. 416.7 (42.€) 1,839.¢
— 764.2 386.2 — 1,150.¢
2.4 431.2 186.< — 619.¢
13.2 200.t 66.7 — 280.¢
— — 8.9 — (8.3
— (18.7) — — (18.7)
(15.¢) 150.€ 141k — 276.3
27.C 62.4 2.E — 91.¢
32.7 (34.¢) 1.¢ — —
59.7 27.¢ 4.4 — 91.c
— 23.2 — — 23.2
— (17.2) 315 — (23.7)
59.7 33.¢ 7.6 — 101.¢
159.2 98.7 — (257.9 —
83.7 215k 133.¢ (257.9 174.¢
26.2 (56.9) (34.9 — (64.9
110.C 159.2 98.7 (257.9 110.C
1.1 1.1 — 1.1 1.1
$ 108¢ $ 158.1 $ 98.7 % (256.9) 108.¢
$ 66.¢ $ 163 $ 60.2 S (223.9) 66.¢
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Supplemental Consolidated Statements of Income ar@omprehensive Income
Year Ended December 31, 2013
(in millions)

Tempur Sealy

International, Combined Combined
Inc. (Ultimate Guarantor Non-Guarantor
Parent) Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
Net sales $ — 3 1,758.:0 $ 728.1 $ (220 $ 2,464.:
Cost of sales — 1,110t 360.¢ (22.0) 1,449..
Gross profit — 647.% 367.2 — 1,014.¢
Selling and marketing expenses 2.4 358.1 162.4 — 522.¢
General, administrative and other expenses 17.1 181.€ 67.€ — 266.2
Equity income in earnings of unconsolidated affd& — — (4.9 — (4.9
Royalty income, net of royalty expense — (23.7) — — (13.9)
Operating (loss) income (19.5) 121.% 141.€ — 243.¢
Other expense, net:
Third party interest expense, net 27.5 81.t 1.8 — 110.¢
Intercompany interest expense (income), net 32.7 (34.3) 1.4 — —
Interest expense (income), net 60.2 47 .4 3.2 — 110.¢
Other (income) expense, net — 0.9 5.6 — 5.C
Total other expense 60.2 46.5 9.1 — 115.¢
Income from equity investees 133.¢ 93.€ — (227.0) —
Income before income taxes 53.7 168.¢ 132.t (227.0) 128.(
Income tax benefit (provision) 25.2 (35.9) (38.9 — (49.)
Net income 78.¢ 133.¢ 93.€ (227.0) 78.¢
Less: net income attributable to non-controllingeiest 2 .3 — 0.3 0.3
Net income attributable to Tempur Sealy Internatipmc.  $ 78€ $ 1331 % 93€ $ (226.7) $ 78.€
Comprehensive income $ 725 $ 133¢ $ 86.2 $ (220.00 $ 72.5
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Year Ended December 31, 2012
(in millions)

Tempur Sealy

International, Combined Combined
Inc. (Ultimate Guarantor Non-Guarantor
Parent) Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
Net sales $ — 3 947.¢  $ 481.C $ (259 $ 1,402.¢
Cost of sales — 509.( 205.2 (25.9 688.:
Gross profit — 438.¢ 275.¢ — 714.¢
Selling and marketing expenses 2. 191.¢ 124.% — 319.1
General, administrative and other expenses 4.¢ 96.4 45.¢ — 147.2
Equity income in earnings of unconsolidated affd& — — — — —
Royalty income, net of royalty expense = = = = =
Operating (loss) income (7.9) 150.t 105.2 — 248.:
Other expense, net:
Third party interest expense, net — 18.: 0.t — 18.¢
Intercompany interest expense (income), net 31t (315 — —
Interest expense (income), net 31.t (13.2) 0.t — 18.¢
Other expense, net — — K — 0.2
Total other expense (income) 31t (13.2 0.8 — 19.1
Income from equity investees 134.¢ 81.C — (215.9) —
Income before income taxes 95.¢ 244 104.¢ (215.9 229.2
Income tax benefit (provision) 10.¢ (209.9 (23.9) — (122.9
Net income 106.¢ 134.¢ 81.C (215.9 106.¢
Less: net income attributable to non-controllingeiest — — — — —
Net income attributable to Tempur Sealy Internatipmc.  $ 106.¢ $ 134.¢ % 81.C $ (2155 $ 106.¢
Comprehensive income $ 113¢ $ 136.¢ $ 86.C $ (222.9 $ 113.¢
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ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Income taxes payable

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Deferred income taxes
Total Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment, net
Goodwill
Other intangible assets, net
Deferred tax asset
Other non-current assets
Net investment in subsidiaries
Due from affiliates
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Deferred income taxes

Income taxes payable

Current portion of long-term debt
Total Current Liabilities

Long-term debt

Deferred income taxes

Other non-current liabilities

Due to affiliates
Total Liabilities

Redeemable non-controlling interest

Total Stockholders’ Equity
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

TEMPUR SEALY INTERNATIONAL, INC.

Supplemental Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31, 2014

(in millions)
Tempur Sealy
International, Combined Combined
Inc. (Ultimate Guarantor Non-Guarantor
Parent) Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
$ 04 $ 258 % 366 $ — 3 62.5
— 241 144.¢ — 385.¢
— 158.: 58.¢ — 217.2
144.1 — — (144.)) —
— 28.2 28.5 — 56.5
12.2 26.€ 5.2 — 44 .4
156.¢ 480.( 273.€ (144.) 766.4
— 287.% 68.5 — 355.¢
— 557.2 179.: — 736.5
— 611.¢ 115.2 — 727.1
— — 8.€ — 8.€
& 46.4 15.7 — 68.4
1,808. — — (1,808.9) —
51.¢ 2,226.( 58 (2,282.) —
$ 2,023.( % 4,208.8 $ 666.C $ (4,235.9) $ 2,662.¢
$ — 3 170« $ 56.C $ — % 226.2
14 166.1 65.€ — 233.C
— — 0.2 — 0.2
— 163.( 6.9 (144.7) 12.C
— 61.€ 4.€ — 66.4
14 561.% 119.7 (144.7) 538.:
375.( 1,160.¢ — — 1,535.¢
— 229.1 29.7 — 258.¢
— 109.: 5.C — 114.%
1,431. 340.2 849.¢ (2,620.9 —
1,807. 2,400.¢ 1,003.¢ (2,765.() 2,447
12.€ 12.€ — (12.6) 12.€
2025 1,795. (337.9) (1,457.¢) 202.7
$ 2,023.( % 4,208.8 $ 666.C $ (4,235.9) $ 2,662.¢
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TEMPUR SEALY INTERNATIONAL, INC.
Supplemental Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2013

(in millions)

Tempur Sealy

International, Combined Combined
Inc. (Ultimate Guarantor Non-Guarantor
Parent) Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents — 3 30 $ 50.1 $ — 9 81.C
Accounts receivable, net — 192.¢ 156.¢ — 349.2
Inventories — 147.5 51.7 — 199.2
Income tax receivable 118.¢ — — (118.9 —
Prepaid expenses and other current assets — 26.2 27.4 — 53.7
Deferred income taxes 10.C 29.c 5.1 — 44 .4
Total Current Assets 128.« 426.€ 290.¢ (118.9 727.F
Property, plant and equipment, net — 335.¢ 75.7 — 411.¢
Goodwill — 577.2 182.¢ — 759.¢
Other intangible assets, net — 624.¢ 125t — 750.1
Deferred tax asset — — 10.€ — 10.€
Other non-current assets 7.€ 47.C 15.€ — 70.2
Net investment in subsidiaries 756.( — — (756.0 —
Due from affiliates 1,299.¢ 2,306.t 0.c (3,607.9) —
Total Assets 2,191¢ $ 4317¢ $ 701¢ $ 4,481.°) $ 2,729.¢
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable — 3 1408 $ 507 % — 191.2
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 1.4 144.% 62.¢ — 208.¢
Deferred income taxes — — 0.8 — 0.8
Income taxes payable — 115.2 4.7 (118.9 1’5
Current portion of long-term debt — 36.€ 3.C 39.€
Total Current Liabilities 1.4 436.5 122.( (118.9 441k
Long-term debt 375.( 1,421.¢ — — 1,796.¢
Deferred income taxes — 252.¢ 33.2 — 286.1
Other non-current liabilities — 69.1 6.2 — 75.2
Due to affiliates 1,685. 1,381t 940.t (4,007.9) —
Total Liabilities 2,061.¢ 3,561.¢ 1,102.( (4,125.9 2,599.¢
Redeemable non-controlling interest 11t 115 — (11.5) 11t
Total Stockholders’ Equity 118.¢ 744.% (400.7) (344.9 118.¢
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity 2,191.¢  § 4317¢  $ 701¢  $ (4481.) $ 2,729.¢
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TEMPUR SEALY INTERNATIONAL, INC.
Supplemental Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31, 2014

(in millions)

Tempur Sealy

International, Combined Combined
Inc. (Ultimate Guarantor Non-Guarantor

Parent) Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities $ (62.7) $ 1918 $ 96.4 $ — 9 225.%
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of business, net of cash acquired $ — 3 — ¢ 8L $ — (8.5)
Proceeds from disposition of business — 43.F — — 43.F
Purchases of property, plant and equipment — (31.9) (16.2) (47.5)
Other — 3.C (0.9 — 2.1
Net cash used in investing activities — 15.2 (25.6) — (10.9)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from 2012 Credit Agreement — 271t — — 271t
Repayments 2012 Credit Agreement — (510.9 — — (510.9
Net activity in investment in and advances (to)rfro
subsidiaries and affiliates 59.2 32.1 (91.9 — —
Payment of deferred financing costs — (3.3 — — (3.2
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 2 — — — 4.3
Excess tax benefit from stock based compensation 1.7 — — — 1.7
Treasury stock repurchased (2.2) — — — (2.2)
Other — ()] | — 0.€
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 63.1 (212.7 (89.7) — (238.))
NET EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — — 4.8 — 4.8
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 0.4 (5.9 (13.5) — (18.5)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF
PERIOD — 30.€ 50.1 — 81.C
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOD  $ 04 % 255§ 36.6 $ — 62.
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TEMPUR SEALY INTERNATIONAL, INC.
Supplemental Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31, 2013

(in millions)

Tempur Sealy

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of business, net of cash acquired
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Other

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from 2012 Credit Agreement
Repayments of the 2012 Credit Agreement
Proceeds from issuance of Senior Notes
Proceeds from the 2011 Credit Facility

Repayments of the 2011 Credit Facility

Net activity in investment in and advances fron) (to
subsidiaries and affiliates

Payment of deferred financing costs

Proceeds from exercise of stock options

Excess tax benefit from stock based compensation
Treasury stock repurchased

Other

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

NET EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Increase in cash and cash equivalents

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGININNG OF
PERIOD

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOD

International, Combined Combined
Inc. (Ultimate Guarantor Non-Guarantor
Parent) Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
$ (66.1) $ 80 $ 837 $ — % 98.t
— (1,035.) (137.6) — (2,172.9
— (28.9) (11.7) — (40.0
— (54.7) 54.€ — 0.7
— (1,118.) (94.7) — (1,213.0
$ — 3 2,992¢ $ — % — % 2,992.¢
— (1,658.9) — — (1,658.9)
375.( — — — 375.(
— 46.5 — — 46.5
— (696.5) — — (696.5)
(772.9 874.¢ (102.)) — —
(8.4) (43.€) — — (52.0
8.7 — — — 8.7
5.4 — — — 5.4
458.; (465.2) — — (7.0)
— .9 0.2 — (1.0
66.1 1,049.: (101.9 — 1,013
— — 2.8 — 2.8
— 11.7 (110.0 — (98.9)
— 19.2 160.1 — 179.2
$ — 3 30 % 50.1 $ — 81.C
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TEMPUR SEALY INTERNATIONAL, INC.
Supplemental Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31, 2012

(in millions)

Tempur Sealy

International, Combined Combined

Inc. (Ultimate Guarantor Non-Guarantor

Parent) Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities $ (43.6) $ 1405 $ 93.C $ — % 189.¢
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of business, net of cash acquired — — (4.5) — (4.5)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment — (36.7) (13.9) — (50.5)
Other — (0.3 0.1 — —
Net cash used in investing activities — (36.¢) (18.2) — (55.0
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from 2012 Credit Agreement $ — 3 — 3 — % — % —
Repayments of the 2012 Credit Agreement — — — — —
Proceeds from the 2011 Credit Facility — 352.( — — 352.(
Repayments of the 2011 Credit Facility — (287.0 — — (287.0
Net activity in investment in and advances fron) (to
subsidiaries and affiliates 187.( (270.9 (16.2) — —
Payment of deferred financing costs (2.2) — (0.2 — (2.9
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 11.¢ — — — 11.4
Excess tax benefit from stock based compensation — 10.t — — 10.t
Treasury stock repurchased (152.¢ — — — (152.¢
Other — — (2.8 — (2.9)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 43.¢ (95.9) (19.9) — (70.8)
NET EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — — 3.8 —
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents — 8.4 59.t — 67.€
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGININNG OF
PERIOD — 10.€ 100.¢ — 111.¢
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOD  $ — 3 192 160.1 $ — 1792
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

An evaluation was performed under the supervisiod &ith the participation of our management, inahgdour Chief Executiv
Officer (principal executive officer) and Chief Rincial Officer (principal financial officer), of ¢éheffectiveness of our disclosure controls
procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) andlB%e]} under the Exchange Act, as of the end op#red covered by this Report. Basec
that evaluation, our management, including our Chieecutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer,raduded that our disclosure controls
procedures were effective as of December 31, 2@idl designed to ensure that information requdek disclosed by us in reports that we
or submit under the Exchange Act, is recorded, ggsed, summarized and reported within the timeg@srspecified in the rules and form:
the Securities and Exchange Commission and thét isfiermation is accumulated and communicated tonsanagement, including our Ct
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, ggeopriate to allow timely decisions regarding riega disclosure.

Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingraathtaining adequate internal control over finahoégorting as defined in Rul
13a-15(f) and 15d5(f) under the Exchange Act. Our internal conwekr financial reporting is designed to provideswaable assurar
regarding the reliability of financial reportingdthe preparation of financial statements for exakepurposes in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @étnisstatements. Therefore, e
those systems determined to be effective can peawidy reasonable assurance of achieving theiralooibjectives.

Under the supervision and with the participatioroof management, including our Chief Executive €ffi(CEO) and Chief Financ
Officer (CFO), we evaluated the effectiveness afiaternal control over financial reporting as oéd@mber 31, 201dased on the framewc
in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2018sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiohshe Treadway Commissi
(COSO0). Based on our assessment and those critei@gement believes that we maintained effectitegrial control over financial reporti
as of December 31, 2014 .

Our independent registered public accounting fiimst & Young LLP, has issued a report on the Camfsinternal control ovi
financial reporting as of December 31, 2014 . Thabrt appears on page 115 of this Report.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There have not been any changes in our internatalayver financial reporting during the quarteded December 31, 201#at haw
materially affected, or are reasonably likely totenglly affect, our internal control over finantiaporting.

114




Table of Contents

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Tempal{ International, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited Tempur Sealy International, Ind. &uabsidiariesinternal control over financial reporting as of Batber 31, 2014, based
criteria established in Internal Contiotegrated Framework issued by the Committee ofnSpong Organizations of the Tready
Commission (2013 Framework) (the "COSO criterialgmpur Sealy International, Inc. and Subsidiari@sinagement is responsible
maintaining effective internal control over finaakireporting, and for its assessment of the effeaiss of internal control over finan
reporting included in the accompanying "ManagensAthnual Report on Internal Control Over Finan&alporting.”Our responsibility is 1
express an opinion on the company’s internal cbotrer financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statglof the Public Company Accounting Oversight @ nited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting w
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal cordgrar financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, testing and etiafpthe design and operating effectiveness ofriratiecontrol based on the assessed risk
performing such other procedures as we considezeessary in the circumstances. We believe thahadit provides a reasonable basis fol
opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranaeiregthe reliability of financi:
reporting and the preparation of financial stateisidor external purposes in accordance with gelyeeslcepted accounting principles
companys internal control over financial reporting inclgddose policies and procedures that (1) pertatheéanaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositions of the assetseotdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assui
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accor@amdgth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withosizations of management :
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanalssurance regarding prevention or timely deteatiounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or détmisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Tempur Sealy International, Incda®ubsidiaries maintained, in all material respeetfective internal control over financ
reporting as of December 31, 2014, based on theGCO&eria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@wnited States), the consolids
balance sheets of Tempur Sealy International,dnd. Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2014 and 201Bthe related consolidated stater
of income, comprehensive income, stockholderglity, and cash flows for each of the three yaathe period ended December 31, 2014
our report dated February 13, 2015 expressed amalifigd opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP
Louisville, Kentucky
February 13, 2015
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART llI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE

The information required by this Item is incorpaditherein by reference from our definitive proxgtement for the 2018nnua
Meeting of Stockholders (the "Proxy Statement") emithe sections entitled “Proposal One—Electio®wéctors,” and “Board of Directors’
Meetings, Committees of the Board and Related Mmtt€orporate Governance,” — "Committees of the Bgar—"Policies Governin
Director Nominations,” and “Executive Compensatiomd Related Information—Section 16(a) Beneficialm@vship Reporting Compliance.”

Information relating to executive officers is inporated herein by reference from our Proxy Statémeder the section entitl
“Proposal One—Election of Directors—Executive Oéfis.”

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
The information required by this Item is incorpectby reference from the Proxy Statement undeiséeions entitled Executive
Compensation and Related Information” and “Boardakctors’ Meetings, Committees of the Board arelaled Matters-Compensatic

Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation.”

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Equity Compensation Plan Informati

The following table sets forth equity compensatitam information as of December 31, 2014 :

Number of securities

Number of securities remaining available for
to be issued upon Weighted-average future issuance under
exercise of exercise price of equity compensation plans
outstanding options,  outstanding options, (excluding securities
Plan category warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column (a))
(@ (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by securityérstd

2003 Amended and Restated Equity Incentive Plan 2,648,47. $ 21.4f —
2013 Equity Incentive PldA 1,004,51 51.1Z 4,183,84.
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechotglers — — —
Total 3,652,98. $ 29.61 4,183,84

(1) In May 2013, our Board of Directors adopted a nethoh that prohibited further grants under the 2803ended and Restated Equity Incentive F
The number of securities to be issued upon exedfiseitstanding stock options, warrants and rigsgsed under the 2003 Amended and Res
Equity Incentive Plan includes 64,063 of restricséatk units and deferred stock units. These ptsttiand deferred stock units are excluded fror
weighted average exercise price calculation above.

(2) The number of securities to be issued upon exedfismitstanding stock options, warrants and rigbésied under the 2013 Equity Incentive |
includes 40,967 of restricted stock units and detestock units. Additionally, this number includ&ks,032 performance restricted stock units w
reflects a maximum payout of the awards grante@s&hrestricted, deferred and performance restrgtsek units are excluded from the weigl
average exercise price calculation above.

For information regarding the material featuregach of the above plans see Note 12 , “ Stock-b@setpbensation ”, in our
Consolidated Financial Statements included in RaTEM 8 of this Report.

All other information required by this Item is imporated by reference from the Proxy Statement uthgesection entitledPrincipa
Security Ownership and Certain Beneficial Owners.”

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
The information required by this Item is incorpeditby reference from the Proxy Statement underséotion entitled Executive
Compensation and Related Information—Certain Ratatiips and Related Transactions” aBddrd of Directors' Meetings, Committees of

Board and Related matters—Directors’ Independence.”
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ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item is incorpetby reference from the Proxy Statement underséotions entitled Propose
Two— Ratification of Independent Auditors—Fees liodependent Auditors During fiscal years Ended Dewmer 31, 2013 and 2014” and-
Policy on Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Audit aN@n-Audit Services of Independent Auditor.”
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE

(@)

(b)

21
3.1
3.2
3.3
4.1
4.2
4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

1. The following is a list of the financidhtements of Tempur Sealy International, Inc. ideldiin this Report, which are
filed herewith pursuant to ITEM 8:

Report of Independent Registered Public Aatiog Firm

Consolidated Statements of Income for thes/eaded December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensiveniecior the years Ended December 31, 2014, 2012612
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of Decemh&03% and 2013

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders'tidai the years ended December 31, 2014, 20128h2
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows foyé@as ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Financial Statement Schedule:
Schedule Il—Valuation of Qualifying Accourged Reserves

All other schedules have been omitted becauseatreinapplicable, not required, or the informat®imcluded elsewhere
in the consolidated financial statements or ndieseto.

3. Exhibits:

The following is an index of the exhibits includiedthis Report or incorporated herein by reference.

EXHIBIT INDEX

Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of &dpe 26, 2012 (filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the RegistsaCurrent Report on Form8-as
filed on September 27, 201%).

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorpamatf TempurPedic International Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.1 tonandment No. 3 to tt
Registrant’s registration statement on Form S-le(Rb. 333-109798) as filed on December 12, 2003).

Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation aripur-Pedic International Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3o the Registrarg’ Current Repo
on Form 8-K as filed on May 24, 20138).

Fifth Amended and Restated By-laws of Tempealys International, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.2 teetRegistrang Current Report ¢
Form 8-K as filed on May 24, 2013Y.

Specimen certificate for shares of commonks(bied as Exhibit 4.1 to Amendment No. 3 to thegistrants registration statement
Form S-1 (File No. 333-109798) as filed on Decenit#r2003)®

Indenture dated as of December 19, 2012 (el xhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Current Reporform 8K as filed on December 1
2012).@

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of Bbes 19, 2012 (filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the RegisfsaCurrent Report on Form 8-as
filed on December 19, 2012Y.

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March2083, among TempuPedic International Inc., the additional Guaranimasty theret
and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.As Trustee (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Regidtsa@urrent Report on For
8-K as filed on March 18, 2013Y.

Indenture, dated as of July 10, 2009, by and an®ea)y Mattress Company, the Guarantors named tharel The Bank of Ne
York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee, widspect to Guaranteed Debt Securities (filed astibdhil to Sealy Corporatios’
Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 333-117081jilesl July 16, 2009)

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 10, 269%nd among Sealy Mattress Company, Sealy Coiporahe Guarantors nam
therein and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust CompaN.A., as Trustee and Collateral Agent, withpexs to 8% Senior Secur
Third Lien Convertible Notes due 2016 (filed as bith.2 to Sealy Corporation’s Current Report anr 8-K (File No. 333t17081;
as filed July 16, 2009y

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Mar¢ch2@83, by and among Sealy Mattress Company, S€alyoration, th
Guarantors named therein and The Bank of New Yoekdvi Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee and CollatAgent, with respect t
8% Senior Secured Third Lien Convertible Notes 20&6 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibitef the Registrarg’ Curren
Report on Form 8-K as filed on March 18, 2018).
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4.8

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Marchi2083, by and among Sealy Mattress Company, Seafydtation, the Guarantc
named therein and The Bank of New York Mellon Tr@smpany, N.A., as Trustee and Collateral Agenthwéspect to 8% Seni
Secured Third Lien Convertible Notes due 2016 (ipotcated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.5 toRegistrants Current Report ¢
Form 8-K as filed on March 18, 201%).

Amendment No. 2 dated December 12, 2012, to thiéineAmended and Restated Credit Agreement degext dune 28, 2012 (file
as Exhibit 10.3 to Registrant’s Annual Report omrFrd0-K as filed on February 1, 2018).

Commitment Letter dated September 26, 20ided(fs Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’'s Currenp®® on Form & as filed or
September 27, 2012

Credit Agreement dated as of December 122 Zfiled as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Cutr&eport on Form & as filed or
December 12, 2012§

Purchase Agreement dated December 12, 20&8 &s Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’'s Currenp&# on Form & as filed or
December 19, 2012y

Escrow and Security Agreement dated as oééer 19, 2012 (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Regigfs Current Report on Formig-
as filed on December 19, 2018).

Amendment No. 1, dated as of March 13, 2013, tbdbgain Credit Agreement, dated as of DecembeRQ22 (filed as Exhibit 10.
to Amendment No. 1 to the Registrant’s registratitatement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-189063) aslfin July 12, 2013
Amendment No. 2, dated as of May 16, 2013, tod¢kahin Credit Agreement, dated as of Decembe2Q?? (filed as Exhibit 10.7 |
Amendment No. 1 to the Registrant’s registrati@teshent on Form S-4 (File No. 333-189063) as fieduly 12, 2013
Amendment No. 3, dated as of July 11, 2013, to ¢katain Credit Agreement, dated as of DecembeP@22, as amended (filed
Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on F@&K as filed on July 12, 2013}

Amendment No. 4, dated as of October 17, 2014abdertain Credit Agreement, dated as of DecerhBeR012, as amended (fil
as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’'s Current Report omir8-K as filed on October 17, 2014).

Bond Purchase Agreement, dated October 26, 200&ntéyamong Tempur World LLC, Tempur Production US%, and Bernalillc
County (filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant'snial Report on Form 10-K as filed on March 14,

2006).®

Trust Indenture, dated September 1, 2005, by ahsele® Bernalillo County and The Bank of New Yorlku3r Company, N.A., ¢
Trustee (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrafttsiual Report on Form 10-K as filed on March 140@0®

Mortgage, Assignment, Security Agreement and Fectkiting, dated as of October 27, 2005, by and betwBernalillo County ar
Tempur Production USA, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 18othe Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-Kikesifon March 14, 2006}

Lease Agreement, dated September 1, 2005, by amcede Bernalillo County and Tempur Production USAG. (filed as Exhibi
10.3 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 18siled on March 14, 2006Y.

Non-Employee Director Deferred Compensafitam (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’'s Qedy Report on Form 1@ as filec
on July 28, 2010)Y@

Tempur Sealy International, Inc. Amended BRedtated Nof=mployee Director Deferred Compensation Plan, whichudes a
Exhibit A the Form of Acknowledgement and Award Agment and as Exhibit B the Election Form undeh ®lan (filed as Exhib
10.2 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Fof¥Qlas filed on November 8, 2013)®@

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the TempurdySkrernational, Inc. 2013 Equity Incentive Pldbirector) (filed as Exhibi
10.3 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Fof¥Qlas filed on November 8, 2013)®

Tempur Sealy International, Inc. 2013 Loregrl Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Regist’s Current Report on Formi8as
filed on October 23, 2013)®

Tempur Sealy International, Inc. Severaama Retention Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Regists Current Report on Formkas
filed on October 23, 2013)®@

Amended and Restated Tempur-Pedic Intem@dtlac. 2003 Equity Incentive Plan (filed as ApgenB to the Registrant’ Definitive
Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A (File No. 001-3)192Z%iled on March 25, 2009)®

First Amendment to the Amended and Res@168 Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Appendix Athe Registrans Registration Prox
Statement on Schedule 14A (File No. 001-31922)led 6n March 25, 20091V®

Tempur-Pedic International Inc. 2013 Equitgentive Plan (filed as Appendix A to the Registta Definitive Proxy Statement
Schedule 14A (File No. 001-31922) as filed on Ap#l| 2013)®@

Tempur-Pedic International Inc. Long-termdmtive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registisa Current Report on Form I8-as
filed on February 19, 2010%)@

Amended and Restated Annual Incentive B&tas for Senior Executives (filed as Exhibit 10lthie Registran$’ Quarterly Repo
on Form 10-Q as filed on April 27, 201$)@
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Employment Agreement dated September 12, 2003,deetwempur International Limited and David Montgoyn@iled as Exhibi
10.13 to Amendment No. 1 to the Registrant’s regiigtn statement on Form S-4 ((File No. 333-10902%as filed on October 3
2003).0@

Employment Agreement dated as of July 1862tetween TempuPedic International Inc. and Richard Anderson dfites Exhibi
10.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 1@s(iled November 7, 20069

Amended and Restated Employment Agreeméati ddarch 5, 2008 by and among Tempadic International Inc., Tempur Wor
LLC and Dale E. Williams (filed as Exhibit 10.1 Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K as filedréfa?, 2008)M@

Employment and Noncompetition Agreement dlae June 30, 2008, between TemPpadic International Inc. and Mark Sarv
(filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’'s Current Remm Form 8-K as filed on June 30, 2008%

Employment and Non-Competition Agreemeniahy between Tempwedic International Inc. and Lou Hedrick Jones diate of
June 1, 2009) (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Regists Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q as filed ory 2d, 2009) V@

Employment and Non-Competition Agreementamd between Tempuredic International Inc. and Brad Patrick datedoé
September 1, 2010) (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to thgiReant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q as filedQctober 28, 2010§@

Employment and Noncompetition Agreementdiateof February 4, 2013, between Tempadic International Inc. and W. Timot
Yaggi (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’srzunt Report on Form 8-K as filed on February 4,
2013).0@

Employment and Retention Agreement entered intp 2uP013 between Sealy Corporation and Lawrenéoders and, for certa
purposes, Tempur-Pedic International Inc., Effectas of March 18, 2013 (filed as Exhibit 10.4 te Registrans Quarterly Repo
on Form 10-Q as filed August 2, 20182

Employment and Noncompetition Agreement dated aduggust 28, 2014, between Tempur Sealy Internakioing. and Barn
Hytinen (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrar@sarterly Report on Form 10-Q as filed on Novemher
2014).0@

Employment and Noncompetition Agreementalateof November 18, 2014, between Tempur Seadyriational,
Inc. and Jay Spenchiaf.

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the32BQuity Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.9 ted#strants Quarterly Report on For
10-Q as filed August 8, 2006y

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Amended Rastated 2003 Equity Incentive Plan (Executifildd as Exhibit 9.1 t
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K as filedvay 19, 2008) V@

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Amended Rastated 2003 Equity Incentive Plan (Directoifpdf as Exhibit 10.40 t
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K as filedr@bruary 12, 2009)1@

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the32Bquity Incentive Plan (Executivé?.
Form of Performance Restricted Stock UnitfdvAgreement under the 2013 Equity Incentive Baecutive®

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Unitedg€§iom Approved Share Option Sub Plan to the 2003t§qcentive Plan (filec
as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly ReportfFamm 10-Q as filed on April 30, 2009y

Form of Performance Restricted Stock Unit Award égnent under the Amended and Restated 2003 Equigntive Plan (filed €
Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant's Current Reportramm 8-K as filed on February 19, 2010

Form of Stock Option Agreement under Amended anstaed 2003 Equity Incentive Plan (Executive) (filss Exhibit 10.4 to tr
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K as filedrafruary 19, 201010@

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Amended Rastated 2003 Equity Incentive Plan (Directoiipdf as Exhibit 10.2 t
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q as fadeduly 28, 2010yY®@

Stock Option Agreement dated June 28, 2@d&den TempuRedic International Inc. and David Montgomery (ilas Exhibit 10.
to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q ksdfidugust 8, 20069

Stock Option Agreement dated June 28, 2@d&den TempuPRedic International Inc. and Dale E. Williams (@ilas Exhibit 10.8 t
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q as femjust 8, 2006)>?®

Stock Option Agreement dated February 582@&tween Tempuredic International, Inc. and Richard Andersoreffias Exhibi
10.2 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 1asJiled on May 6, 2008)Y®@

Stock Option Agreement dated June 30, 2@d&den TempuRedic International Inc. and Mark Sarvary (filed Bshibit 10.2 tc
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K as filedJane 30, 2008)V®@

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the32Bfjuity Incentive Plan (Director) (filed as Exhildi0.3 to Registrand’ Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q as filed on November 8, 20135,

Amended and Restated Sealy Benefit Equalization &4ed December 18, 2008 (filed as Exhibit 10048¢aaly Corporation's Annt
Report on Form 10-K as filed on January 15, 2009).

Subsidiaries of Tempur Sealy Internationad, |
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23.1
31.1

31.2
32.1

101

@)
@)
©)

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer, pulant to Securities Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(d)1&id14(a), as adopted pursuan
Section 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer, muant to Securities Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(d)1&u14(a), as adopted pursuant
Section 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and ChiEfnancial Officer, , pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Secti@50, as adopted pursuant
Section 906 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2082.

The following materials from Tempur-Pedic migional Inc.'s Annual Report on Form KOfor the year ended December 31, 2(
formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Reportingngaage): (i) the Consolidated Statements of Incofiethe Consolidate
Balance Sheets, (iii) the Consolidated Statemein®arkholders' Equity, (iv) the Consolidated Staents of Cash Flows, and (v)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementgetd@s blocks of text.

Incorporated by referenc

Indicates management contract or compensatorygslarrangemer

This exhibit shall not be deemed “fileftit purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exgkaict of 1934 or otherwise subject to the lialatitof tha
Section, nor shall it be deemed incorporated bgresefce in any filings under the Securities Act 883 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1!
whether made before or after the date hereof aedpective of any general incorporation languagainfilings.
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TEMPUR SEALY INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 , 2013 AND 21

SCHEDULE Il
(in millions)
Additions
Balance at Charges to Charged to Balance at
Beginning of Costs and Other End of
Description Period Expenses Accounts Deductions Period
Allowance for doubtful accounts:
Year Ended December 31, 2012 $ 6.6 2.E — 11y $ 8.2
Year Ended December 31, 2013 $ 8.2 1.3 — 98 % 19.c
Year Ended December 31, 2014 $ 19.2 4.6 — 47 $ 19.5
Additions
Balance at Charges to Charged to Balance at
Beginning of Costs and Other End of
Description Period Expenses Accounts Deductions Period
Valuation allowance deferred tax assets:
Year Ended December 31, 2012 $ 2.¢ — — 29 $ 0.1
Year Ended December 31, 2013 $ 0.1 20.4 18.¢ — 3 39.4
Year Ended December 31, 2014 $ 39.4 2.2 — (19.9 $ 217
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this Repol
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thecedully authorized.

TEMPUR SEALY INTERNATIONAL, INC.

(Registrant)
Date: February 13, 2015 By: /S/ MARK SARVARY
Mark Sarvary

President and Chief Executive Officer
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this Report has been signed bbiothe following persons on t
13™of February, 2015, on behalf of the registrant iantthe capacities indicated.

Signature

Capacity

/S MARK SARVARY

President, Chief Executive Officer (Principal Ex&ee Officer) and

Mark Sarvary

/SI DALE E. WILLIAMS

Director

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offiferincipal

Dale E. Williams

/SI BHASKAR RAO

Financial Officer)

Chief Accounting Officer and Senior Vice PresidEmance (Principal

Bhaskar Rao

/S/ EVELYN S. DILSAVER

Accounting Officer)

Director

Evelyn S. Dilsaver

/SI FRANCIS A. DOYLE

Director

Francis A. Doyle

/S/ JOHN A. HEIL

Director

John A. Heil

/SI PETER K. HOFFMAN

Peter K. Hoffman

IS/ SIR PAUL JUDGE

Director

Sir Paul Judge
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As Adopted May 22, 20:

TEMPUR SEALY INTERNATIONAL, INC.
NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTOR
DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

AMENDED AND RESTATED EFFECTIVE MAY 22, 2013

1. Purpose; Effective Date; Sttan; Definitions.

(a) _PurposeThe Board of Directors (the * Boatllof Tempur Sealy International, Inc. (the “Comggnhas approved
compensating Directors (as defined below) in pathe form of deferred restricted stock units (“UB3). The Board has further authorized
Directors to make certain elections as to the tifngayment under any such DSUs as well as the &@rpayment of any part of their
compensation otherwise payable in cash (whichredtere forms may include the grant of additionald3Sr payment in the form of shares of
the Company’s common stock, $0.01 par value peegtiZ€ommon StocK)). The Board initially adopted this Non-EmployB@ector
Deferred Compensation Plan to set out the termganditions of the elections available to Direct@nsd the terms of payment of any such
DSUs. Effective as of May 22, 2013, the Board aereded and restated this Non-Employee Director iedeCompensation Plan (as
amended and restated, the “Plan”) for the purpbgeaviding that shares issued under DSUs wouléseed under the Company’s 2013
Equity Incentive Plan, as amended from time to t{the “ 2013 EIP’) and for certain other limited purposes. The Némployee Director
Deferred Compensation Plan as originally adoptéetgfe May 4, 2010 is referred to as the “OrigiRén”, and any awards granted prior to
May 22, 2013 will continue to be governed by théeg®al Plan.

(b) _Effective Date The Plan was originally effective as of May 4100As amended and restated, this Plan is effeave
of May 22, 2013 (the " Effective Dat$.

(c) Relationship to 2013 Equity Incentive Pldfrom the Effective Date, this Plan is maintaineder the Compang’2013 EIP, an
any shares of Common Stock to be delivered purdoahis Plan shall be issued under the 2013 EIP.

(d) Definitions. Capitalized terms used but not defined hereitl Bhae the meaning assigned under the 2013 EIRisRd in this
Plan, the following terms shall have the followimganings:

(i) “Award Agreemeritshall mean an award agreement under the 2013nEdBbstantially the form attached hereto as
Exhibit A , or such other form approved from time to timethoy Committee.

(i) “ Board Year shall mean the term of service for a member efBloard commencing upon election or re-electiciheat
Company’s Annual Meeting of Stockholders or upopaiptment of a Director during a calendar year, anding at the next Annual
Meeting of Stockholders.

(i) “ Committe€ shall mean the Compensation Committee of the &oar

(iv) “ Director” shall mean a non-employee member of the Board.

(v) “Election Form” shall mean the election form in substantially them attached hereto as Exhibit, Br such other form
approved from time to time by the Committee.

(viy “Fees” shall mean all retainer and committee fees pay#&dh Director for service on the Board for anyaibYear.
(vii) “ Participant” shall mean any Director.

(viii) “ Separation from Serviceshall mean a Participant’s death, retirementtbeptermination of association with the
Company providedthat such separation constitutes a separation $emice for purposes of Section 409A of the Code.

2. Eligibility . Only Directors shall be eligible to participatethis Plan.
3. Deferral Election Each DSU granted to a Director for service foupnoming Board Year or, for a Director appointed
during a calendar year, for the balance of the therent Board Year, including any DSU granted pars to a




Director’s election under Section 4, is subjectesting as set forth in the applicable Award AgreemAll such DSUs which become vested
shall be paid under the terms of this Plan an®@13 EIP on the third (3rd) anniversary of the Gidate applicable to each DSU, as specifiec
in the applicable Award Agreement, unless a Dineetects to defer payment until the latér

(i) the third (3rd) anniversary of the Grant &and

(i) the_earlierof the Director’'s Separation from Service, andxedi date after the third (3rd) anniversary of thar® Date,
which must be May 1 of the year designated by pptieable Director.

This election shall be made by submitting an Eteciorm to the Company in accordance with Sectibergof. Election Forms shall not carry
over from year to year but instead a new ElectiommFmust be submitted by the applicable deferrabitiee in Section 5 hereof.

4, Equity Election.
(a) _Fee ElectionWith respect to Fees otherwise payable for sesverformed during a Board Year, a Participant may

elect to receive all or a portion of his or her $etherwise payable in cash either:
(i) in cash, to be paid as determined by ther@oaer the Board Year and subject to the Direstoontinued service;

(ii) in shares of Common Stock equal to theatollalue of the Fees to be paid in the form of Cami@tock at any time
divided bythe closing price of the Company’s Common StockhenNew York Stock Exchange (the “ NY3Fon the date of payment,
rounded to the nearest whole share, and payalletasmined by the Board over the Board Year angestto the Directos continued servict
or

(i) as DSUs granted under an Award Agreemeavarded at the beginning of the applicable BoardrYeaportion thereof)
equal to the dollar value of the Fees to be paitiénform of DSUs divided bthe closing price of the Company’s Common StockhenNYSE
on the Grant Date under the Award Agreement, rodndé¢he nearest whole share, subject to the irasctontinued service.

These elections shall be made by submitting antiéle&orm to the Company in accordance with SecdioBlection Forms shall not
carry over from year to year but instead a newtiflad-orm must be submitted by the applicable defeteadline in Section 5 hereof.

(b) Treatment of DSUsIf a Participant elects to take all or a portadrhis or her Fees as DSUs pursuant to Section éh@)
provisions of Section 3 (including any electiont@she time of payment) shall apply to his or respective DSUSs.

5. Election Form Deadlines
(a) General RuleExcept as provided in Section 5(b) below, thedtira for any election under Sections 3 and 4
be the last day of the calendar year prior to tharB Year which starts in the following calendaarye
(b) Special Rule for Initial Elections
() Any Director who first becomes a Director afthe Effective Date may make initial elections unde

Sections 3 and 4 with respect to (i) Fees payaivléhe Board Year in which he or she becomes acliireand (ii) Fees payable for a Board
Year that begins on or after, but in the same calegear, as the date he or she becomes a Diréttese elections may be made within thirty
(30) days after becoming a Director. However, reztbn under Section 3, and no election under Seetito convert Fees otherwise payable il
cash to DSUs, shall be allowed under these timitggrif the Director has been eligible to partitépi any other nonqualified deferred
compensation plan of the Company or any entitytéibas a single employer with the Company undeti@ex414(b) or (c) of the Code other
than as an employee, which other nonqualified deflecompensation plan is an account balance plawiap the deferral of compensation at
the election of the Director (each, an “ Aggrega®tah”). An Aggregated Plan shall not be taken into agtdor purposes of this Section 5(b)
(i) after the Director ceased to be eligible toadtefompensation thereunder (other than througldberial of earnings), provided either (i) all
amounts due the Director under the Aggregated IRdar been paid to him or her, or (ii) he or sherfseen eligible to defer compensation
thereunder (other than through the accrual of agm)ifor a period of at least twenty-four (24) ntmnt

(i) Elections made pursuant to the special rufehis Section 5(b) either (A) to change the tinigpayment
of vested DSUs or (B) to convert any part of theebior's Fees otherwise payable in cash into D$®tdg, only apply to those Fees for the
Director’s services attributable to the portiortleé Board Year remaining after the Company’s reagfiphe Director’s Election Form
(including for this purposes the date the Compamgives the Election Form, the




“ PostElection Period). For a Board Year which begins prior to but esdbsequent to the Company’s receipt of a Diregtoitial Election
Form under this Section 5(b) the Fees payable nggpect to the Post-Election Period will be an amegual to (i) the total Fees payable to
such Director for the applicable Board Year tinfig@sa fraction, the numerator of which is the latamber of days in the Post-Election Period
and the denominator of which is the total numbedafs in the relevant Board Year after the Effexidate or after the Director is elected
(including for purposes of this sentence the dageliirector is elected with respect to such Boagdryand assuming that the applicable Boarc
Year will end 365 days after the prior Annual Magtbf Stockholders). The proration rule set forthhie preceding sentence does not apply tc
a Director’s election to convert any part of thedator's Fees otherwise payable in cash into stEr€®@mmon Stock and instead any such
election pursuant to the special rule of this Sec&(b) shall apply to all amounts of his or hee$the Director has timely elected to convert
into shares of Common Stock.

(c) _Election Forms Not Returnedf no Election Form is timely submitted by a Giter with respect to his or her
compensation for any Board Year or part thereofhehe shall be deemed to have elected (i) tawve@ayment for any DSUs granted for his
or her services for such period which vest in adance with the terms of the applicable Award Agreeton the third (3rd) anniversary of the
applicable Grant Date and (ii) to receive in casbfehis or her Fees otherwise payable in cashstmh period, to be paid as determined by the
Board over the Board Year and subject to the Darkstontinued service.

(d) _Elections IrrevocableElections under Sections 3 and 4 and made pursudme general rule of Section 5(a) shall
become irrevocable on the last day on which a \&@édtion could be made pursuant to Section 5(a)tiens under Sections 3 and 4 and mad
pursuant to the special rule of Section 5(b) shetiome irrevocable on the Company’s receipt ofiinector’s Election Form, duly completed.

6. Accounts

(a) Accounts The Company shall establish on its books an adg@un “ Account’) for each Participant,
denominated in DSUs, each representing a conditiggta to a share of Common Stock. DSUs granteden an Award Agreement shall be
credited to the Participant’s Account based omtlmaber of shares of Common Stock specified in thvawl Agreement. For the avoidance of
doubt, it is not intended that the Account wouldeeintained as a record of any shares of Commork$ite Director has elected to receive in
lieu of Fees otherwise payable in cash.

(b) Dividend Credits As of each date for payment of any dividend @ieodistribution on the Company’s Common
Stock, each Participant's Account shall be creditétl a number of shares of Common Stock equal) tiné total amount of any such dividend
or distribution that would have been paid on thmhbar of vested DSUs recorded in the balance ofRhaticipant’s Account as of the record
date for such dividend divided lf¥) the value of a share of Common Stock on thgpent date for such dividend, based on the clogiigg of
Company Common Stock on the NYSE on such paymeat daunded up or down to the nearest whole sisdrares credited in lieu of
dividends or distributions shall be subject to shene vesting provisions, and time of payment detetions, as the DSUs in respect of which
such additional credits are made.

(c) Vesting of DSUs DSUs credited to a Participant’s Account shathaa subject to a Risk of Forfeiture in
accordance with the terms and conditions of thdiegdgle Award Agreement as well as the provisiohSection 10 below (including any
provision for accelerated vesting on certain chargfeontrol pursuant to Section 9 of the 2013 EN®jtwithstanding any provision of this
Plan to the contrary, no Participant or other persall have any right or claim under this Plarhwéspect to a DSU credited to the
Participant’s Account but forfeited in accordandéwthe terms and conditions of the applicable Advagreement.

(d) Effect of Corporate Transaction on Stock Acdsurf at any time subsequent to the Effective Dtte,
outstanding shares of Common Stock (or any ottarrges covered by this Plan by reason of thermjaplication of this Section) are adjusi
modified, increased, decreased, or exchangedddfeaent number or kind of shares, securitiestbeo property (including cash), as a result o
a merger or consolidation, reorganization, recéipétion, reclassification, or stock dividend, &aplit, or reverse stock split, an appropriate
and proportionate adjustment will be made in acaoncé with Section 8 of the 2013 EIP in the numb8WUB credited to Accounts under this
Plan.

(e) Statement of AccountAt the end of each Board Year, and at such ather or dates during a year as the
Company may determine, the Company shall issuball cause to be issued to each Participant anséatesetting forth the balance of the
Participant’s Account under this Plan.

7. Payment of Benefits

€) In General Subject to the balance of Section 7, distribigioha Participant's Account under this Plan shall
made in accordance with the time of distributioplagable to each DSU credited thereto, either ikoagance with the elections of the Director
timely made under Section 3 or under the defaldt puovided in Section 5(c) if applicable.

(b) Timing of Distribution to Satisfy Applicable ka. The Committee or Board may delay any distributiamt an
Account if it reasonably anticipates that the mgkarfi the distribution will violate federal secues laws or other applicable laws until the
earliest date that the Committee or Board reasgraatticipates that the making of such distributigh not cause such a violation. If advisable
to avoid exposing a Participant to a claim for reag of short swing




profits under Section 16(b) of the Securities ExgjeaAct of 1934, as amended (the “ Exchange”Agdrior to the payment of the amount
reflected in the Participant’s Account, such paytmeast be approved in advance by the Board or axdtiee comprised solely of “non-
employee directors” as defined in Rule 16(b)-3(b}3der the Exchange Act.

(c) Form of PaymentsDistribution shall be made in the form of wholeages of Common Stock equal to the humbe
of DSUs credited to the Participant's Account athefrelevant date. Each Participant or beneficdmnees that prior to any distribution under
this Plan, he or she will make such representatimasexecute such documents as are deemed by thei@ee or Board to be necessary to
comply with applicable laws.

(d) Delays or Acceleration in Paymenfshe Company may elect to accelerate the paynferyoAccount, in
respect of vested DSUSs, in the circumstances atldwe and subject to the conditions required bya$r&keg. 81.409A-3(j)(4), including but
not limited to in connection with the issuance ofreestic relations orders, for payment of employntaxés or upon income inclusion under
Section 409A of the Code, as an offset for indefxtsd or in settlement of bona fide disputes agighato a payment.

(e) Designation of Beneficiaries; DeatBach Participant shall have the right, at anyetito designate any person or
persons as the Participant’s beneficiary or beragfes (both primary as well as secondary) to wistiawres in respect of DSUs under this Plan
shall be delivered in the event of the Participmdgath prior to complete distribution of the bésefue under this Plan. Each beneficiary
designation shall be in written form prescribediy Company and will be effective only if filed withe Company during the Participant’s
lifetime. Such designation may be changed by thiédizant at any time without the consent of a bieiery. If no designated beneficiary
survives the Participant, the balance of the Hpetitt’s shares in respect of vested DSUs shalkfigeded to the Participant’s surviving spouse
or, if no spouse survives, to the Participant’siestUpon the death of a Participant, any sharessipect of DSUs shall be delivered, within
forty-five (45) days after the Participant’s dedtha single distribution.

8. Administration.

(a) Committee DutiesThis Plan shall be administered by the Committdech shall have all of the authority
expressly granted to the Committee and the Compadgr this Planprovided, howeverthat at any time and on any one or more occasie
Board may itself exercise any of the powers angaesibilities assigned to the Committee under Bi#s and when so acting shall have the
benefit of all of the provisions of this Plan pémtag to the Committee’s exercise of its autholigreunder. The Committee shall have
responsibility for the general administration aftRlan and for carrying out its intent and prasis. The Committee shall have plenary
authority in its discretion to interpret this Plaa;prescribe, amend and rescind rules and regakatelating to it; to determine the terms of the
Election Forms and Award Agreements executed afidedled under this Plan, including such terms aravisions as shall be requisite in the
judgment of the Committee to conform to any chaingeny law or regulation applicable thereto; andehsuch powers and duties as may
necessary to discharge its responsibilities. Then@ittee may, from time to time, employ other agemd delegate to them such administra
duties as it sees fit, and may from time to timestot with counsel, who may be counsel to the Camipa

(b) Binding Effect of DecisionsThe decision or action of the Committee in respéany question arising out of or
in connection with the administration, interpretatand application of this Plan and the rules agtilations promulgated hereunder shall be
final and conclusive and binding upon all persoangifiig any interest in this Plan.

9. Amendment and Termination of this Plan

(a) Amendment The Committee may at any time amend this Plamhiale or in part subject to any restrictions on
modifications or amendments as provided in the ZBIR3 provided, howevethat no amendment shall affect the terms of anyiposly
deferred DSUs or the terms of any irrevocable Eadform or Award Agreement of any Participant.

(b) Termination The Committee or Board may at any time termitlaite Plan, provided the termination does not
occur proximate to a downturn in the financial tiealf the Company and there are then being termihadbnqualified deferred compensation
plans which would be Aggregated Plans if the saoreamployee individual were eligible to participatehis Plan and all such plans. In the
event of a termination of this Plan under this Bec®(b), this Plan shall continue to operate fpesod selected by the Board or Committee of
at least twelve (12) months from the date the Baar@ommittee takes irrevocable action to termithig Plan and this Plan shall continue to
pay benefits otherwise payable under the termbisfRlan absent termination of this Plan. On a datected by the Board or Committee that is
more than twelve (12) months from the date the BaarCommittee took irrevocable action to termirthais Plan, this Plan shall cease to
operate and the Company shall determine the balainegch Participant’s Account as of the closeusfihess on such date and the Company
shall pay out such Account balances to the Paatitgin a single distribution as soon as practealter such date, but in no event shall such
distribution be made later than twenty-four (24)ntihs after the date the Board or Committee tooloadbd terminate this Plan. In the event of
termination of this Plan under this Section 9(b €ompany shall not establish another nonqualdefdrred compensation plan providing
elective deferrals on the part of Directors if #fzene non-employee individual were eligible to pgvtte in this Plan and such plan within three
(3) years of the Board or Committee taking irrexaeaction to terminate this Plan.

(c) _Termination on Change in Contrdthe Committee or Board may also terminate thésiBly irrevocable action at any
time within thirty (30) days prior to or within twee (12) months following a “change of control” (@sfined for purposes of Section 409A of
the Code), provided there are then being terminalleiggregated Plans as to any




Participant affected by the change of controlhie ¢vent of a termination of this Plan under th@st®n 9(c), on a date selected by the Board ¢
Committee that is no more than twelve (12) montbmfthe date the Board or Committee took actioretminate this Plan, this Plan shall
cease to operate, the Company shall determineafaade of each Participant’s Account as of theectifbusiness on such date and the
Company shall pay out such Account balances t@#rdcipants in a single distribution as soon agficable after such date, but in no event
later than twelve (12) months after the date tharB@r Committee took action to terminate this Plan

10. Certain Remedies
(a) If at any time within two (2) years after termation of a Participant’s association with the Campand its
Affiliates any of the following occur:
0] the Participant unreasonably refuses to comtl lawful requests for cooperation made by the
Company, its Board, or its Affiliates;
(i) the Participant accepts employment or a cdirsyilor advisory engagement with any Competitive
Enterprise (as defined in Section 10(c)) of the @any or its Affiliates or the Participant otherwisegages in competition with the Company
or its Affiliates;

(iii) the Participant acts against the interestthef Company and its Affiliates, including recrogior
employing, or encouraging or assisting the Paici[s new employer to recruit or employ an emplogkethe Company or any Affiliate
without the Company’s written consent;

(iv) the Participant fails to protect and safeguatdle in his or her possession or control, or snder to the
Company upon termination of the Participarassociation with the Company or any Affiliatesach earlier time or times as the Company ¢
Board or any Affiliate may specify, all documermscords, tapes, disks and other media of every &mbdescription relating to the business,
present or otherwise, of the Company and its Afils and any copies, in whole or in part therebgtiver or not prepared by the Participant;

(v) the Participant solicits or encourages any @erw enterprise with which the Participant has had
business-related contact, who has been a custditteg Gompany or any of its Affiliates, to terminats relationship with any of them; or
(vi) the Participant breaches any confidentialiyigations the Participant has to the Company or an

Affiliate, the Participant fails to comply with ttpolicies and procedures of the Company or itslidfés for protecting confidential informatic
the Participant uses confidential information a¢f ompany or its Affiliates for his or her own béner gain, or the Participant discloses or
otherwise misuses confidential information or miatsrof the Company or its Affiliates (except aguiged by applicable law); then
(1) All of the DSUs credited to the Participant’sadunt shall terminate and be cancelled effective
as of the date on which the Participant enteremlsath activity, unless terminated or cancellecheoby operation of another term or
condition of this Plan or the 2013 EIP;
(2 any Stock acquired and held by the Participamsuant to this Plan during the Applicable

Period (as defined below) may be repurchased bgZdmpany at a purchase price of $0.01 per shace; an

3) any gain realized by the Participant from thke ©f Stock acquired pursuant to this Plan during
the Applicable Period shall be paid by the Paréinipto the Company.

(b) The term “ Applicabléeriod” shall mean the period commencing on the laterefitite of an Award Agreem:
or the date which is one year prior to the Paréioifs termination of association with the Compangioy Affiliate and ending two years from
the Participant’s termination of association whie Company or any Affiliate.

(c) The term “ Competitiv&nterprise’ shall mean a business enterprise that engages awns or controls a
significant interest in, any entity that engagedtie manufacture, sale or distribution of matteessr pillows or other bedding products or othe
products competitive with the Company’s productsmpetitive Enterprise shall include, but not beitéd to, the entities set forth gxppendix
A hereto, which may be amended by the Company froma to time upon notice to the Participant. At ametthe Participant may request in
writing that the Company make a determination wlethparticular enterprise is a Competitive EniegprSuch determination will be made
within fourteen (14) days after the receipt of gidéint information from the Participant about theezprise, and the determination will be valid
for a period of ninety (90) days from the date efadmination.

11. Right of Set Off The Company may deduct from any amounts the Coynpaany Affiliate owes the Participant from
time to time, any amounts the Participant owesdbmpany under Section 10 above, provided thatstti®ff right may not be applied against
wages, salary or other amounts payable to thedimatit to the extent that the exercise of sucloffaight would violate any applicable law. If
the Company does not recover by means of set-effulhamount the Participant owes the Company;utated as set forth above, the
Participant agrees to pay immediately the unpaldrza to the Company upon the Company’s demand.

12. Nature of Remedies

€)) The remedies set forth in Sections 10 and dYeahre in addition to any remedies available éoGompany and
its Affiliates in any non-competition, employmengnfidentiality or other agreement, and all sugihts are




cumulative. The exercise of any rights hereundemaler any such other agreement shall not corestitnitelection of remedies.

(b) The Company shall be entitled to place a legemeny certificate evidencing any Stock acquirpdruthis Plan
referring to the repurchase right set forth in ®&ci0(a) above. The Company shall also be entilédsue stop transfer instructions to the
Companys stock transfer agent in the event the Comparigyss that any event referred to in Section 10és)dccurred or is reasonably lik
to occur.

13. Compliance with Laws

(a) Government Requlationg his Plan, and the election of securities in iétrees and the deferral of DSUs
thereunder, and the obligation of the Companysodssell and deliver shares, as applicable, uhée2013 EIP, shall be subject to all
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

(b) Compliance with Section 409A of the CadEo the extent applicable, it is intended thas #ilan comply with th
provisions of Section 409A of the Code. This Plaallsbe administered in a manner consistent withitttent, and any provision that would
cause this Plan to fail to satisfy Section 4094hef Code shall have no force and effect until aredrid comply with Section 409A of the Cc
(which amendment may be retroactive to the exterijited by Section 409A of the Code and may beenmdthe Board without the consent
of the Participants in this Plan). Notwithstandihg foregoing, no particular tax result for a Raptnt with respect to any income recognized
by the Participant in connection with this Plagisranteed under this Plan, and the Participatfittshaesponsible for any taxes imposed on
the Participant in connection with this Plan.

14. Miscellaneous

(a) No Interest in AssetsThe Accounts shall be established solely forpingose of determining the number of
DSUs owed to Participants or beneficiaries undierRfan. Participants and their beneficiaries,hauccessors and assigns shall have no leg
or equitable rights, interest or claims in any @ndy or assets of the Company. No assets of thep@oynshall be held under any trust for the
benefit of the Participants, their beneficiariesir$, successors or assigns, or held in any waplégeral security for the fulfilling of the
obligations of the Company under this Plan. The gamy’s obligation under this Plan shall be thaamfunfunded and unsecured promise to
deliver shares in respect of DSUs in the future, the rights of Participants and beneficiariesIdb@aho greater than those of unsecured ge
creditors of the Company. Nothing in this Plan Ehaldeemed to give any member of the Board ary t@gparticipate in this Plan, except in
accordance with the provisions of this Plan.

(b) Nonassignability. Neither a Participant nor any other person diealke the right to commute, sell, assign,
transfer, pledge, anticipate, mortgage or other@isaimber, transfer, hypothecate or convey in ativahactual receipt the shares in respe
any DSUs, if any, deliverable hereunder, or any thereof, which are, and all rights to which anepressly declared to be non-assignable anc
nontransferable. No part of the shares deliverabtespect of any DSUs shall, prior to actual delyy be subject to seizure or sequestration fo
the payment of any debts, judgments, alimony oas#p maintenance owed by a Participant or any p#rson, nor be transferable by
operation of law in the event of a Participant’saay other person’s bankruptcy or insolvency.

(c) Governing Law The provisions of this Plan shall be construediiaterpreted according to the laws of the State
of Delaware, without regard to the conflicts of lpvinciples thereof.
(d) Validity . In case any provision of this Plan shall be likddal or invalid for any reason, said illegaliy

invalidity shall not affect the remaining parts &efi, but this Plan shall be construed and enfoaseifl such illegal and invalid provisions had
never been inserted herein.

(e) Notice. Any notice or filing required or permitted to beven to the Company or the Committee under thas PI
shall be sufficient if in writing and hand delivdreor sent by registered or certified mail, to 8exretary of the Company. Such notice shall be
deemed given as of the date of delivery or, ifudglf is made by mail, as of the date shown on d®tmpark on the receipt for registration or
certification.

) SuccessorsThe provisions of this Plan shall bind and intréhe benefit of the Company and its successats an
assigns. The term “successors” as used hereinishkitle any corporate or other business entityctvishall, whether by merger, consolidation
purchase or otherwise acquire all or substantalllpf the business and assets of the Companysarckessors of any such corporation or othel
business entity.

*** Exhibit A

TEMPUR SEALY INTERNATIONAL, INC.
2013 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN
AMENDED AND RESTATED NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTOR
DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

Acknowledgement and Award Agreement
[Insert Board Member]




This Acknowledgement and Award Agreement (the “éement’), dated as of _,20_], is between Tengealy
International, Inc., a corporation organized urttierlaws of the State of Delaware (the “* Compgngnd the individual identified below,
residing at the address there set out (the “Retipie

1. Award of Deferred Stock Units.Pursuant and subject to the Company’s 2013 Equdgritive Plan, as the same may be
amended from time to time, (the “ 2013 E)Pthe Company grants the Recipient an award {theard ") for [ Insert total of Mandatory DSL
and/or Elective DSUs, if anlydeferred stock units (* DSU$ of the common stock, par value $0.01 per shafrthe Company (the * Stock
as compensation for the Recipient’s service asrabee of the board of directors of the Company {tBeard”). This Award is granted as of

[ _ ,20_](theGrant Ddfe

2. Rights of Deferred Stock Units.The DSUs granted in this Agreement shall be crdditehe Recipient’'s account under the
Company’s Amended and Restated Non-Employee Dir&xtferred Compensation Plan (as the same may baded from time to time, the “
Deferred Compensation Plan All of the Recipient’s rights in or as a consece of this grant of DSUs, to the extent the D& as
determined in accordance with Section 3 below,| shateafter be determined under the Deferred Coateon Plan. As provided in the
Deferred Compensation Plan, the Recipient shak mevrights to receive shares of Common Stock esa consequence of DSUs which do
not vest as determined accordance with Sectiondwbhexcept as provided in Section 4 below.

3. Vesting Period and Rights; Delivery Date; and Filigs. The Award will vest in [four] installments as folls:

Number of Shares Percentage
in Each Installment of the Award .
E—— Vesting Date
[ 1] [25]% 20
L] [25]% 20
[ 1] [25]% 20
[ | [25]% _,20

Subject to the provisions of Section 4 below, thsting is subject to the Recipient’s continued iseren the Board of the_Company on the
applicable vesting date as set forth above (thestwigDate™).

The Recipient is responsible for any filings regdiunder Section 16 of the Securities ExchangeoAt®34 and the rules thereunder.

4. Termination of Service.If the Recipient's membership with the Board of @@mpany ends for any reason, the Recipient
forfeits all rights and interest in any unvested3Srovided, howeverif the Recipient dies or the Recipient's membagrstith the Board
ends due to the Recipient’s long-term disabilitytitim the meaning of Section 409A of the Code)oéllhe DSUs that have not become vestec
pursuant to Section 3 as of the date of deathsability shall immediately vest.

5. Acceleration in Certain Cases In lieu of the Change of Control provisions otfen 9 (a) and (b) of the 2013 EIP and
notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary {€hange of Control occurs this Agreement shaikia in full force and effect in accordance
with its terms subject to the following. In the evef such Change of Control, any Risk of Forfat(as defined in the 2013 EIP) applicable to
the DSUs shall lapse with respect to 50% of the BSIil subject to such Risk of Forfeiture immedlgtprior to the Change of Control. For
purposes of this Agreement, “ Change of Coritsitall have the meaning set forth in the 2013 plByided, that no event or transaction shall
constitute a Change of Control for purposes of Agseement unless it also qualifies as a chang®utrol for purposes of Section 409A of the
Code.

6. Incorporation of Plan Terms; AcknowledgementsExcept as provided in Section 5, this Award is tgdrsubject to all of the
applicable terms and provisions of the 2013 EIPtAedDeferred Compensation Plan. Without limitihg enerality of the foregoing, the
Recipient acknowledges that under the terms 02€188 EIP and Deferred Compensation Plan:

(@) The Company may recover any payment undebD#ferred Compensation Plan if within two yearthef Recipient’s termination
of service with the Company he or she fails compityh certain covenants (including but not limitedmpeting with the Company and its
Affiliates). By executing this Agreement, the Reeit consents to a deduction from any amounts tragany or any Affiliate owes the
Recipient from time to time, to the extent of timeaunts the Recipient owes the Company under saiticBe 10 and 11 of the Deferred
Compensation Plan (provided that the set-off right




will not be applied against wages, salary or otlrapunts payable to the Recipient to the extentttigaéxercise of such set-off right would
violate any applicable law) and agrees that if@loenpany does not recover by means of set-off tharfuount the Recipient owes the
Company, calculated as set forth above, the Rettipidl pay immediately the unpaid balance to then®any upon the Company’s demand.

(b) The Company is not liable for the non-issteaar nontransfer, nor for any delay in the issuance ordfienof any shares of Sto
due to the Recipient with respect to vested DSUsvesults from the inability of the Company tdaib, from each regulatory body having
jurisdiction, all requisite authority to issue oarisfer shares of Stock of the Company if courteiife Company deems such authc
necessary for the lawful issuance or transfer gfsaarcth shares. Acceptance of this Award constitiiefRecipient’s agreement that the shares
of Stock subsequently acquired hereunder, if amlynat be sold or otherwise disposed of by theiRieat in violation of any applicable
securities laws or regulations.

(c) The DSUs are subject to this Agreement aedgtent’'s acceptance hereof shall constitute theigent’'s agreement to any
administrative regulations of the Compensation Cdttem of the Company’s Board (the * Committg¢eln the event of any inconsistency
between this Agreement and the provisions of tH8ZIP or Deferred Compensation Plan, the provis@frsuch plans shall prevail.

(d) All decisions of the Committee upon any diogss arising under the 2013 EIP or Deferred Corspgan Plan or under these
terms and conditions are conclusive and binding.

(e) During the Recipient’s lifetime, no rightsder the Deferred Compensation Plan related té\thard, the DSUs or any
underlying Stock payable in satisfaction of vedd&Us, shall be transferable except by will or #ned of descent and distribution.

() The Company makes no representation or vagyrras to the tax treatment of this Award, incligdirpon the issuance of the Stock
or upon the Recipient’s sale or other dispositibthe Stock. The Recipient should rely on his o@xadvisors for such advice.

(g) All Stock earned and delivered pursuanhie Agreement and the Deferred Compensation Pimtended to be paid in
compliance with, or on a basis exempt from, Secti@®A of the Code. This Agreement, and all terns @nditions used herein, shall be
interpreted and construed consistent with thahintdowever, the Company does not warrant all aagments will be exempt from, or paid in
compliance with, Section 409A of the Code. The Biecit bears the entire risk of any adverse fedstale or local tax consequences and
penalty taxes which may result from payments mada basis contrary to the provisions of SectionM6Bcomparable provisions of any
applicable state or local income tax laws.

7. Miscellaneous.Capitalized terms used but not defined herein stale the meaning assigned under the 2013 EIPhand t
Deferred Compensation Plan. This Agreement shatdnstrued and enforced in accordance with the tdvilse State of Delaware, without
regard to the conflict of laws principles therenflashall be binding upon and inure to the bendfitny successor or assign of the Company
any executor, administrator, trustee, guardiamtioer legal representative of the Recipient. Thgse®ment may be executed in one or more
counterparts all of which together shall constitute instrument.

[ Remainder of page intentionally left blahk

In Witness Whereof, the parties have executedAgieement as of the date first above written.




TEMPUR SEALY INTERNATIONAL, INC.
By:
Name:

RECIPIENT

Name:
Recipient’'s Address:

Exhibit B
TEMPUR SEALY INTERNATIONAL, INC.
AMENDED AND RESTATED NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTOR DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN
ELECTION FORM
Director Information

Director Name:
Last First Initial

Director Address:
Street
City State Zip

Director SSN:

Background and Purpos

The Board of Directors (the “ Boary upon recommendation of the Compensation Commiti€ Tempur Sealy International, Inc. (the
Company”), has approved payment of part of the compensdbto the service of noemployee directors of the Board in the form of defe
restricted stock units (* Mandatory DSUs Mandatory DSUs are subject to the terms of@loenpany’s Amended and Restated Nemployet
Director Deferred Compensation Plan (as the samebmamended from time to time, the “ Deferred Cengation Plar)) and the Company’
2013 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended from timénte (the “ 2013 EIP). Mandatory DSUs vest in accordance with the termasnoAwar
Agreement issued under the 2013 EIP and underwnjddt to the terms of the Deferred Compensatiam Bhd are payable, if vested, three
years after the date of grant unless the diredext® a later date of payment under the Deferrethfismsation Plan. The Board has
approved the issuance of shares of the Companyim@m Stock, or the grant of additional deferrealstanits (“_ DSUS’) subject to the tern
of the Deferred Compensation Plan and the 2013tBE* Elective DSUS), at the election of the noemployee director and in lieu of som
all of the cash compensation otherwise approvetth®&Board as compensation for the non-employeetdire service.




The purpose of this Election Form is to solicit fbeegoing elections, as follows:

« A" Deferral Election” enabling a noremployee director to elect to defer payment of iandatory DSUs and any Elective DSU
the laterof:

(i) the third (3rd) anniversary of the Grant &and

(i) the_earlierof his or her Separation of Service (as defineth@nDeferred Compensation Plan) and a fixed daée tfe third (3rc
anniversary of the Grant Date, which must be May the year designed by the Director; and/or

« An “ Equity Election,” enabling a noremployee director to elect to receive some orfdlli® or her compensation otherwise payah
cash in the form of either shares of Common Stocklective DSUs.

Capitalized terms used but not defined herein $taale the meaning assigned such terms under ti&E®land Deferred Compensation Plan.
Deferral Election

By checking the box, | hereby elect to defer anynpent in respect of Mandatory and Elective DSUsitgd to me during the [20X20XX]
Board Year, until the latesf

(i) the third (39) anniversary of the Grant Date specified in theafadvAgreement pertaining to those DSUs; or

(i) the_earlierof my Separation of Service and the following fixégte: May 1, 20__. Insert a May 1 that falls after third (3rd
anniversary of the Grant Date.

| understand that if | do not make the deferrat@éda set forth above, payment of Mandatory ancttile DSUs will be made on the third (3
anniversary of the applicable Grant Date. | furthederstand these DSUs will vest as determinedruh@eapplicable Award Agreement
my receipt of vested DSUs is subject to my contihservice on the Board during the Board Year arddtfer terms and conditions of
Deferred Compensation Plan. | understand if myiseren the Board ends during the [20020XX] Board Year, | will forfeit any unvest
DSUs, except as provided in Section 4 of the applee Award Agreement.

Equity Election

| hereby elect to take my annual cash fees (inodlioth Board and committee fees, as applicabl)wiould otherwise be payable to me
services rendered during the [20XX-20XX] Board Y.ear

% in cash payable as determined by the Bodttkiaction approving such compensation; and

% in shares of common stock of the Company mumber equal to the percentage of the cash adepayable that | ha
indicated divided by the closing price of the Compa common stock on the NYSE on the date or datss@scash would otherw
be payable, rounded down to the nearest whole spl®a cash payment in the amount of any fraatishare of Common Stock tf
otherwise distributable, issuable as determinethbyBoard in the action approving such compensatiod

% in Elective DSUs, in a number equal to thegrgage of the cash otherwise payable that | radieated divided b
the closing price of the Compasgytommon stock on the NYSE on the Grant Date utigeapplicable Award Agreement (which \
be a date on or abut the beginning of the applkcBblard Year).

| understand receipt of either cash fees or ComBtogk is subject to my continued service on therBakuring the Board Year, and that
Elective DSUs will vest, if ever, as determined enthe applicable Award Agreement. | understandeegipt of vested DSUs is subject to
continued service on the Board during the Boardréea the other terms and conditions of the Defe@empensation Plan. | understand if
service on the Board ends during the [20X0XX] Board Year, | will forfeit any unearned orwested cash, Common Stock, or DSUs, e
as provided in Section 4 of the applicable DSU AdvAgreement.

Acknowledgement and Authorizatio

| understand that any elections on this Form wipblgt only to compensation payable for services as aeraployee director to be renderei
the portion of 2013 following the effective datetb& Deferred Compensation Plan (or my submissidhi®




election, if later) and subject to the adoptionthaf Deferred Compensation Plan by the Board. h&urtinderstand that all elections on this F
are irrevocable. | hereby certify that the abovaipipant information is true, accurate and compl@TD: Paragraph to include for the ini
election.

| understand that any elections on this Form wiplgt only to compensation payable for services as aeraployee director to be renderei
the portion of [_insert specific Board Yepfollowing my submission of this election. | fughunderstand that all elections on this Forn
irrevocable. | hereby certify that the above p@stiat information is true, accurate and complefEDNParagraph to include for new directors.

| understand that any elections on this Form wiplg only to compensation payable for services as aeraployee director to be renderel
the [insert specific Board Year] Board Year. | et understand that all elections on this Form adtome irrevocable on the Decembe
preceding that Board Yearhkreby certify that the above participant informatis true, accurate and complete. NTD: Paragraphctude fo
subsequent elections.

Director Date
Accepted:
TEMPUR SEALY INTERNATIONAL, INC.

By:
Name:

Date:
Appendix A

Competitive Enterprises of the Company and itsliatis

Ace

AH Beard

Auping

Ashley Sleep

Boyd

Carpe Diem
Carpenter

Carolina Mattress
Cauval Group
Chaide & Chaide
Classic Sleep Products
Comforpedic
Comfort Solutions
COFEL group

De Rucci

Diamona

Doremo Octaspring
Dorelan

Dunlopillo

Duxiana

Eastborne
Eminflex
Englander

Flex Group of Companies
Foamex




France Bed
Future Foam
Harrisons
Hastens
Hilding Anders Group
Hypnos

IBC

KayMed

King Kaoil
Kingsdown
Lady Americana
Land and Sky
Leggett & Platt
Lo Monaco
Magniflex
Metzler

Myers

Optimo
Ortobom
Natura
Natures Rest
Park Place
Permaflex
Pikolin Group
Recticel Group
Relyon
Restonic
Rosen

Rowe

Sapsa Bedding
Select Comfort
Serta and any direct or indirect parent company
Silentnight

Simmons Company/Beautyrest and any direct or intiparent
company

Sleepmaker
Spring Air
Sterling

Stobel

Swiss Comfort
Swiss Sense
Therapedic



EMPLOYMENT AND NON-COMPETITION AGREEMENT
(Jay Spenchian)

THIS EMPLOYMENT AND NON-COMPETITION AGREEMENT (thé Agreement’) is executed as of this Iday of November,
2014, and is effective as of December 1, 2014“(bate of Hire"”), by and between Tempur Sealy International,,ladelaware corporation

(the “ Company), and Jay Spenchian, an individual (* Employge

In consideration of the premises and the mwgatements and covenants contained herein, amdhfer good and valuable consideration,
the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby amkledged by the Company and Employee,

IT IS HEREBY AGREED AS FOLLOWS:

ARTICLE |
EMPLOYMENT

1.1 Term of Employment Effective as of the Date of Hire, the Companseag to employ Employee, and Employee accepts gmpglot by
the Company, for the period commencing on the Datdire and ending on the first anniversary of Bege of Hire (the * Initial Ternf),

subject to earlier termination as hereinafter gghfin Article 1ll. Unless earlier terminated @&@cordance with Article Il1, following the
expiration of the Initial Term, this Agreement dtzé automatically renewed for successive one-gedbds (collectively, the Renewal Term

", individually, a “ Renewal Tern) unless, at least ninety (90) days prior to the ratjpin of the Initial Term or the then current RemaéTerm,
either party provides the other with a written oetof intention not to renew, in which case the Eiype’s employment with the Company, &
the Company'’s obligations hereunder, shall ternairget of the end of the Initial Term or said Reneliain, as applicable. Except as otherwis
expressly provided herein, the terms of this Agreenaduring any Renewal Term shall be the sameeatetims in effect immediately prior to
such renewal, subject to any such changes or natidns as mutually may be agreed between theepast evidenced in a written instrument
signed by both the Company and Employee.

The expiration of the Agreement at the end of thial Term or any Renewal Term by reason of thenBany giving notice of nonrenewal
pursuant to this Section 1.1, other than if the @any specifies that the reason for the non-reneaval related termination of employment,
otherwise qualifies as:

* a“For Causetermination pursuant to Section 3.1(c
* a‘“Death or Disability'termination pursuant to Section 3.1

shall be deemed a termination by the Company “witli@ause” pursuant to Section 3.1(a) of this Agrestmand Employee shall be eligible to
receive the benefits set forth in Section 3.2(a).

1.2 _Position and DutiesEmployee shall be employed in the position oé&rive Vice President, Chief Marketing Officersarch other
executive position as may be assigned from tinterte by the Company’s Chief Executive Officer; pidrd thatany executive position that
does not also include continuing in the role ofeEilarketing Officer will require the consent oEtEmployee. In such capacity, Employee
shall be subject to the authority of, and shalbrefo, the Company’s Chief Operating Officer. Hayee’s duties and responsibilities shall
include those customarily attendant to Employee'sitipn and such other duties and responsibilaemay be assigned from time to time by
the Chief Operations Officer. Employee shall devéinployees entire business time, loyalty, attention and giesrexclusively to the busine
interests of the Company while employed by the Camypand shall perform his duties and respong#slidiligently and to the best of his
ability.

1.3 _Other DocumentsOn or prior to the Date of Hire the Employeel wiecute and deliver to the Company the followifgelocation
Repayment Agreement and Code of Business Condddtgmics and Policy on Insider Trading and Conftasdity acknowledgements, each in
the form previously furnished by the Company.

ARTICLE Il

COMPENSATION AND OTHER BENEFITS




2.1 Base Salary The Company shall pay Employee an initial ansasdry of $440,000.00 (* Base Saldyypayable in accordance with the
normal payroll practices of the Company. The Erppdds Base Salary will be reviewed and be subgeatijustment from time to time by the
Board of Directors or its Compensation Committethair discretion in accordance with the Comparmyisual review policy. Based on the
Company’s current policy, the Company expects Eyg#ts first annual review would be during the fistarter of 2016.

2.2 _Performance BonugEmployee will be eligible to earn an annual perfance-based bonus based on performance critgriaagd by the
Company'’s Board of Directors or its Compensatiom@uttee for each full or pro rafsortion of any fiscal year during which Employee is
employed by the Company commencing with 2015 (ea¢iBonus Yeat), the terms and conditions of which as well asgtoyee’s
entitlement thereto being determined annually endble discretion of the Company’s Board of Direstar its Compensation Committee (the “
Performance Bonu$. The amount of the Performance Bonus will veagsed on the achievement of Company and indivigeidbrmance
criteria established by the Company’s Board of &twes or its Compensation Committee, but the paréorce criteria will be set to target a
Performance Bonus equal to a designated perceofddmse Salary as of December 31st of the appkcBbhus Year if the performance
criteria are met (the * Target Bont)s The performance criteria for Employse2015 Performance Bonus will be determined in mtzowce witth
the Company’s Annual Incentive Bonus Plan For SeBie@cutives, and the performance criteria wilseéto target a Performance Bonus
equal to 65% of Employee’s Base Salary. Unlessratise provided under Section 3.2, Employee shdlbeoeligible to receive payment of a
Performance Bonus unless Employee was employeldeb@bompany on December 3af the applicable Bonus Year.

2.3 _Grant of Equity

(a) Pursuant to the Tempur Sealy Intéonat, Inc. 2013 Equity Incentive Plan, as amenedféctive as of the Date of Hire (for
purposes of this paragraph, the “ Grant Datae Employee shall be granted an award (the ‘afdff) of restricted stock units (the_* RSUs
each such RSU representing the right to a shateeafommon stock, par value $0.01 per share, o€trapany (the “ StocK having a grant
date fair value equal to six hundred thousand do(8600,000) on the date of grant, rounded upwmdto the nearest whole share. Such
Award shall be made pursuant to and subject téettmes and conditions of a Restricted Stock Unit Aduagreement between the Company
and Employee (* Award Agreemeftin the form attached hereto as Exhibit Subject to the provisions of the Award Agreeméris Award
shall vest in full on the third anniversary of {Beant Date.

(b) The Company expects that Employeéheilconsidered for an additional equity awardhia first quarter of 2015 in
accordance with the Company’s normal executive @msgtion practices, and annually thereafter, tithing, amount and terms of any
future grants will be subject to the discretiortred Board of Directors or the Compensation Committe

2.4 Hiring Bonus As additional consideration for Employee’s agreatrto accept employment with the Company, the Gompvill pay to
Employee a one-time bonus of $636,765. This bosipayable ninety (90) days after the Date of Hireyvided that as of the date payment
would otherwise be made, the Employee is considanegimployee of the Company in good standing; aadiged furtherthat in the event th¢
within twelve months of the Date of Hire, Employie¢erminated for Cause pursuant to paragraph BoBlow, or resigns his employment w
the Company other than for Good Reason, Employak r&ipay to the Company the entire amount of ihreuls described above within thirty
(30) days of the termination of Employee's emplogime

2.5 Benefit Plans Employee will be eligible to participate in tdempany’s retirement plans that are qualified urkstion 401(a) of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (thed&Qpand in the Company’s welfare benefit plans ta generally applicable to all
executive employees of the Company (the “ Plani& accordance with the terms and conditiongsabé& A brief description of the Company’s
current benefits is contained_in Exhibith@Breto.

2.6 _Automobile Allowance The Company shall pay to Employee an automaitlitsvance of $600.00 per month.

2.7 Vacation Employee shall be entitled to three weeks €ift€¢l5) days) vacation days in the calendar ydar tfe Date of Hire and three
weeks (fifteen days) at Employee’s one-year ansaugrand each year thereafter, subject to and takes in accordance with the Company’s
general vacation policies for similarly situateceutive employees.

2.8 _Relocation Benefits The Company will provide Employee with relocati@ssistance in accordance with the policy andrgtt@visions
set forth in_Exhibit C




2.9 Expenses The Company shall reimburse Employee for alharized and approved expenses incurred in the eafrthe performance of
Employee’s duties and responsibilities pursuanhito Agreement and consistent with the Companyliigs with respect to travel,
entertainment and miscellaneous expenses, anédo@ements with respect to the reporting of sugieases.

2.10 _Withholdings All payments to be made by the Company hereuwdkbe subject to any withholding requirements.

ARTICLE Il
TERMINATION

3.1 Right to Terminate; Automatic Termination

(a) _Termination by Company Without Caus8ubject to Section 3.2, the Company may terraiEmployees employment and all «
the Company'’s obligations under this Agreemenngttane and for any reason.

(b) Termination by Employee for Good ReasoBubject to Section 3.2, Employee may termin&eimployment obligation
hereunder (but not his obligations under Articleh&teof) for “Good Reason” (as hereinafter defirE&mployee gives written notice thereof
to the Company within thirty (30) days of the eveatdeems to constitute Good Reason (which notiak specify the grounds upon which
such notice is given) and the Company fails, withinty (30) days of receipt of such notice, toeor rectify the grounds for such Good
Reason termination set forth in such notice. “GBe@son” shall mean any of the following: (i) edton of Employee’s principal workplace
over sixty (60) miles from the Company’s existingrkplaces without the consent of Employee (whichsemt shall not be unreasonably
withheld, delayed or conditioned), or (ii) the Cceng’s material breach of this Agreement or any otréten agreement between Employee
and the Company which is not cured within thirt@)8ays after receipt by the Company from Emplayieeritten notice of such breach.

(c) Termination by Company For Caus&ubject to Section 3.2, the Company may terraiamployee’s employment and all of the
Company'’s obligations under this Agreement at amg t'For Cause”§s defined below) by giving notice to Employeeistathe basis for suc
termination, effective immediately upon giving suudtice or at such other time thereafter as the [@my may designate. “For Cause” shall
mean any of the following: (i) Employee’s willfahd continued failure to substantially perform tbasonably assigned duties with the
Company which are consistent with Employee’s positind job description referred to in this Agreemether than any such failure resulting
from incapacity due to physical or mental illnegfter a written notice is delivered to Employeetiwy Board of Directors of the Company
which specifically identifies the manner in whicmBloyee has not substantially performed the asdiginéies and allowing Employee thirty
(30) days after receipt by Employee of such ndticeure such failure to perform, (ii) material hekaf this or any other written agreement
between Employee and the Company which is not cwitkdn thirty (30) days after receipt by the Emyde from the Company of written
notice of such breach, (iii) any material violatiohany written policy of the Company which is motred within thirty (30) days after receipt
Employee from the Company of written notice of suihation, (iv) Employee’s willful misconduct whicis materially and demonstrably
injurious to the Company, (v) Employee’s convictlmna court of competent jurisdiction of, or higadling guilty or nolo contendere to, any
felony, or (vi) Employee’s commission of an acffrafud, embezzlement, or misappropriation agaires@bmpany or any breach of fiduciary
duty or breach of the duty of loyalty, includingitimot limited to, the offer, payment, solicitationacceptance of any unlawful bribe or
kickback with respect to the Company’s business: peirposes of this paragraph, no act, or failaract, on Employee’s part shall be
considered “willful”unless done, or omitted to be done, in knowingfaét and without reasonable belief that the actioomission was in,
not opposed to, the best interests of the Compamy. act, or failure to act, expressly authorizgdatresolution duly adopted by the Board of
Directors or based upon the written advice of celifa the Company shall be conclusively presunoellet done, or omitted to be done, in
good faith and in the best interests of the Compawgtwithstanding the foregoing, Employee shall In® deemed to have been terminated Fo
Cause unless and until there shall have been detite Employee a copy of a resolution, duly adde the Board of Directors at a meeting
of the Board called and held for such purpose (ai@sonable notice to Employee and an opportdaitEmployee, together with Employee’s
counsel, to be heard before the Board), findingithéhe good faith opinion of the Board of Dirextd=mployee committed the conduct set f
above in (i), (i), (iii), (iv), (v) or (vi) of ths Section and specifying the particulars thereafatail.

(d) Termination Upon Death or DisabilitySubject to Section 3.2, Employee’s employmentthe Company obligations under th
Agreement shall terminate: (i) automatically, effee immediately and without any notice being reseey, upon Employee’s death; and (ii) in
the event of the disability of Employee, by the @amy giving notice of termination to Employee. PBorposes of this Agreement, “disability”
means the inability of Employee, due to a physical




mental impairment, for ninety (90) days (whethenot consecutive) during any period of 360 daygedorm, with reasonable
accommodation, the essential functions of the veoritemplated by this Agreement. In the event gfdiapute as to whether Employee is
disabled, the matter shall be determined by the g2my's Board of Directors in consultation with aypitian selected by the Compasyiealtt
or disability insurer or another physician mutuagtisfactory to the Company and the Employee. Bihployee shall cooperate with the
efforts to make such determination or be subjegnhtoediate discharge. Any such determination dheltonclusive and binding on the
parties. Any determination of disability understiection 3.1(d) is not intended to alter any hiesahy party may be entitled to receive under
any long-term disability insurance policy carrigddither the Company or Employee with respect tplbyee, which benefits shall be
governed solely by the terms of any such insurgotiey. Nothing in this subsection shall be coustt as limiting or altering any of
Employee’s rights under State workers compensédis or State or federal Family and Medical Leaed.

3.2 Rights Upon Termination

(a) Section 3.1(a) and 3.1(b) Terminatiolf Employee’s employment terminates pursuarge¢ation 3.1(a) or 3.1(b) hereof,
Employee shall have no further rights against tbenany hereunder, except for the right to recdlgwing execution of a release and
waiver in form satisfactory to the Company in tlase of clauses (ii), (i) and (v) below, (i) anypaid Base Salary and the value of any
accrued but unused vacation, (ii) a pata portion of any Performance Bonus that woulgdable with respect to the Bonus Year in whie
termination occurs (based on the number of dayseoBonus Year prior to the effective date of teration and the amount of the Target Bo
set by the Board of Directors or Compensation Catesmifor the Employee for such Bonus Year) and edetrights to equity awards
Employee may have pursuant to any equity awardeageats with the Company, (iii) payment of Base §diar twelve (12) months (the “
Severance Peridl), payable in accordance with the normal practiaethe Company, (iv) reimbursement of expensesghich Employee is
entitled under Section 2.9 hereof, and (v) contilomeof the welfare plans of the Company as dedaileSection 2.5 hereof for the duration of
the Severance Period.

(b) Section 3.1(c) and 3.1(d) Terminations orivdéry Resignation If Employee’s employment is terminated pursuarections
3.1(c) or 3.1(d) hereof, or if Employee quits enyphent (other than for Good Reason) notwithstandiegterms of this Agreement, Employee
or Employees estate shall have no further rights against hragany hereunder, except for the right to recdaligwing execution of a relea:
and waiver in form satisfactory to the Companyhia tase of clause (iii) below, (i) any unpaid B8aéary, (ii) in the case of Section 3.1(d)
hereof, the value of any accrued but unused vatg(ig in the case of Section 3.1(d) hereof, a-pata portion (based on the number of day
the Bonus Year prior to the effective date of teraion) of any Performance Bonus that would be pkyaith respect to the Bonus Year in
which the termination occurs, and whatever rigtsoeequity awards as Employee may have pursudahetany equity award agreement with
the Company and (iv) reimbursement of expensesiohnEmployee is entitled under Section 2.9 hereof.

ARTICLE IV
CONFIDENTIALITY; NON-COMPETITION; NON-SOLICITATION

4.1 Covenants Regarding Confidential Informatibrade Secrets and Other MatterEmployee covenants and agrees as follows:

(a) Definitions. For purposes of this Agreement, the followingre are defined as follows:

(1) “ Trade Secretmeans all information possessed by or developethie Company or any of its subsidiaries, inclgdin
without limitation, a compilation, program, devigaethod, system, technique or process, to whicbfale following apply: (i) the
information derives independent economic valugjalair potential, from not being generally knownaad not being readily
ascertainable by proper means by, other personcamobtain economic value from its disclosures@ and (ii) the information is t
subject of efforts to maintain its secrecy thatra@asonable under the circumstances.

(2) “ Confidential Informatiorf means information, to the extent it is not a Te&kcret, which is possessed by or develope
for the Company or any of its subsidiaries and Whialates to the Company’s or any of its subsid&rexisting or potential business
or technology, which information is generally nookvn to the public and which information the Compan any of its subsidiaries
seeks to protect from disclosure to its existingatential competitors or others, including, withbmitation, for example: business
plans, strategies, existing or proposed bids, ctsthnical developments, existing or proposedareseprojects, financial or business
projections, investments, marketing plans, negotiagtrategies, training information and materiaifgrmation generated for client




engagements and information stored or developedseiin or with computers. Confidential Informati@lso includes information
received by the Company or any of its subsididries others which the Company or any of its sulagids has an obligation to treat
as confidential.

(b) Nondisclosure of Confidential InformatiorExcept as required in the conduct of the Comjzamiyany of its subsidiaries’
business or as expressly authorized in writing @malff of the Company or any of its subsidiaries plyee shall not use or disclose, directly
indirectly, any Confidential Information during tiperiod of his employment with the Company. Initidd, following the termination for any
reason of Employee’s employment with the Compamyplyee shall not use or disclose, directly oriiedily, any Confidential
Information. This prohibition does not apply tor@idential Information after it has become gengréhown in the industry in which the
Company conducts its business. This prohibiti@o aloes not prohibit Employee’s use of generalssiitd know-how acquired during and
prior to employment by the Company, as long as sisehdoes not involve the use or disclosure of idenfial Information or Trade Secrets.

(c) Trade Secrets During Employee’s employment by the Company, Exyge shall do what is reasonably necessary togpitev
unauthorized misappropriation or disclosure andatened misappropriation or disclosure of the Camypgaor any of its subsidiaries’ Trade
Secrets and, after termination of employment, Egggoshall not use or disclose the Company’s oradiitg subsidiariesTrade Secrets as lo
as they remain, without misappropriation, Trader&tsc

(d) Copyright All copyrightable work by the Employee relatitigthe Company’s business or the business of absidiary or
affiliate of the Company during the term of the Hayge’s employment by the Company is intended tbwmk made for hire” as defined in
Section 101 of the Copyright Act of 1976, and sbhalthe property of the Company. If the copyrighany such copyrightable work is not the
property of the Company by operation of law, theptoyiee will, without further consideration, assigithe Company all right, title and inter
in such copyrightable work and will assist the Campand its nominees in every way, at the Compaewfense, to secure, maintain and
defend for the Company’s benefit, copyrights angl extensions and renewals thereof on any and el swrk including translations thereof in
any and all countries, such work to be and rentarproperty of the Company whether copyrightedadr n

(e) Exceptions The provisions of paragraphs (b) and (c) aboMenat be deemed to prohibit any disclosure tisateiquired by law
or court order, provided that Employee has nonitib@ally taken actions to trigger such requiresctisure and the Company is given
reasonable prior notice and an opportunity to cgirge minimize such disclosure.

4.2 NonCompetition.

(a) During Employment During Employee’s employment hereunder, Emplasfesl not engage, directly or indirectly, as an
employee, officer, director, partner, manager, atiast, agent, owner (other than a minority shal@droor other equity interest of not more
than 1% of a company whose equity interests aréghylraded on a nationally recognized stock exad®or over-the-counter) or in any other
capacity, in any competition with the Company oy ahits subsidiaries.

(b) Subseguent to Employmentor a one year period following the terminatidrEmployee’s employment for any reason or
without reason, Employee shall not in any capa@ityether in the capacity as an employee, officeectbr, partner, manager, consultant, a
or owner (other than a minority shareholder or odwiity interest of not more than 1% of a compahpse equity interests are publicly tradec
on a nationally recognized stock exchange or dverebunter), directly or indirectly advise, managader or perform services to or for any
person or entity which is engaged in a businesgetitive to that of the Company or any of its sdigies (including without limitation those
businesses listed in Appendixté the form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreermattached hereto as Exhibit)Avithin any geographical
location wherein the Company or any of its subsidsaproduces, sells or markets its goods andeEsat the time of such termination or
within a one-year period prior to such termination.

4.3 Nonsolicitation. For a two year period following the terminatimhEmployee’s employment for any reason or with@atson, Employee
shall not solicit or induce any person who was rmpleyee of the Company or any of its subsidiarieshe date of Employee’s termination or
within three months prior to leaving his employmeiith the Company or any of its subsidiaries toséetheir employment with the Company.

4.4 Return of Documentsimmediately upon termination of employment, Eaygle will return to the Company, and so certifyviriting to

the Company, all the Company’s or any of its subsi€ls’ papers, documents and things, includingrimition stored for use in or with
computers and software applicable to the Compaanytkits subsidiaries’ business (and all copiesetbf@rwhich are in Employee’s possession
or under Employee’s control, regardless whetheh @apers, documents or things contain Confidehtfakmation or Trade Secrets.




4.5 No Conflicts To the extent that they exist, Employee will disiclose to the Company or any of its subsidiaai®s of Employee’s
previous employer’s confidential information ordeasecrets. Further, Employee represents and ntartreat Employee has not previously
assumed any obligations inconsistent with thogéiiefAgreement and that employment by the Compamg ahot conflict with any prior
obligations to third parties. In addition, Empleyand the Company agree that it is important fgr@nspective employer to be aware of this
Agreement, so that disputes concerning this Agre¢men be avoided in the future. Therefore, th@lbyee agrees that, following terminat

of employment with the Company, the Company mawéwd a copy of Article 1V of this Agreement (andyaelated Exhibits hereto) to any
future prospective or actual employer, and the Byg® releases the Company from any claimed liglilitdamage caused to the Employee b
virtue of the Company’s act in making that prosjvecor actual employer aware of Article 1V of tiigreement (and any related Exhibits
hereto).

4.6 _Adreement on FairnesEEmployee acknowledges that: (i) this Agreentes been specifically bargained between the paatids
reviewed by Employee, (ii) Employee has had an dppdy to obtain legal counsel to review this Agngent, and (iii) the covenants made by
and duties imposed upon Employee hereby are &isanable and minimally necessary to protect didrteate business interests of the
Company, and such covenants and duties will natepdan undue burden upon Employee’s livelihood énabent of termination of Employee’s
employment by the Company and the strict enforcémitine covenants contained herein.

4.7 Equitable Relief and RemedieEmployee acknowledges that any breach of thizément will cause substantial and irreparable harm
the Company for which money damages would be ateiqaate remedy. Accordingly, notwithstanding thevsions of Article V below, the
Company shall in any such event be entitled to ggekctive and other forms of equitable reliefpi@vent such breach and the prevailing p
shall be entitled to recover from the other, thevpiling party’s costs (including, without limitati, reasonable attorneys’ fees) incurred in
connection with enforcing this Agreement, in additio any other rights or remedies available at lavequity, by statute or pursuant to Article
V below.

ARTICLE V

AGREEMENT TO SUBMIT ALL EXISTING OR FUTURE DISPUTES
TO BINDING ARBITRATION

The Company and Employee agree that any controwerskaim arising out of or related to this Agreerher Employee’s employment with or
termination by the Company that is not resolvedhgyparties shall be settled by arbitration adnenégd by the American Arbitration
Association under its National Rules for the Reofuof Employment Disputes. Said arbitration sbalconducted in Lexington,

Kentucky. The parties further agree that the eatsit may resolve issues of contract interpretagiomell as law and award damages, if any,
the extent provided by the Agreement or applicédole The parties agree that the costs of theratbits services shall be borne by the
Company. The parties further agree that the atoitis decision will be final and binding and erfeable in any court of competent
jurisdiction. In addition to the A.A./s Arbitration Rules and unless otherwise agredalytthe parties, the following rules shall apply:

(a) Each party shall be entitled to discovery urile Federal Rules of Civil Procedure exclusivafythe following means: (i) requests for
admission, (ii) requests for production of docurse(iti) up to fifteen (15) written interrogatori¢with any subpart to be counted as a separats
interrogatory), and (iv) depositions of no morertisa individuals.

(b) Unless the arbitrator finds that delay is oewbly justified or as otherwise agreed to by theips, all discovery shall be completed, and
arbitration hearing shall commence within five mtenafter the appointment of the arbitrator.

(c) Unless the arbitrator finds that delay is omably justified, the hearing will be completeddam award rendered within thirty (30) days of
commencement of the hearing.

The arbitrator’s authority shall include the akilib render equitable types of relief and, in seebnt, any aforesaid court may enter an order
enjoining and/or compelling such actions or retiefered or as found by the arbitrator. The artmtralso shall make a determination regarc
which party’s legal position in any such controyeos claim is the more substantially correct (tHerévailing Party) and the arbitrator shall
require the other party to pay the legal and opinefessional fees and costs incurred by the Piagaitarty in connection with such arbitration
proceeding and any necessary court action.

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of thigidle V, the parties expressly agree that a coucbmpetent jurisdiction may entel
temporary restraining order or an order enjoinidgeach of Article IV of this Agreement without prisubmission




of the underlying dispute to an arbitrator. Suetmedy shall be cumulative and nonexclusive, antll sban addition to any other remedy to
which the parties may be entitled.

ARTICLE VI
GENERAL PROVISIONS

6.1 Notices Any and all notices provided for in this Agrearhshall be given in writing and shall be deemackgito a party at the earlier of
(i) when actually delivered to such party, or {ifpen mailed to such party by registered or cedifiil (return receipt requested) or sent to
such party by courier, confirmed by receipt, andradsed to such party at the address designated k&l such party as follows (or to such
other address for such party as such party may $avgtituted by notice pursuant to this Sectiof:6.1

(a) If to the Company:

Tempur Sealy International, Inc.

1000 Tempur Way

Lexington, KY 40511

Attention: Chief Executive Officer

With a copy to Executive Vice President and Gen€minsel

(b) If to Employee:

Jay Spenchian
790 Pinetree Rd.
Winter Park, FL 32789

6.2 Entire Agreement This Agreement, together with the exhibits herebntains the entire understanding and the fudl@omplete
agreement of the parties and supersedes and re@lagerior understandings and agreements amorpgatties with respect to the subject
matter hereofThe provisions of this Agreement shall survive térenination of the Agreement, or of Employgemployment for any reason
the extent necessary to enable the parties to@ntbeir respective rights.

6.3 _Miscellaneous This Agreement may be altered, amended or meztldnly in a writing signed by both of the partieseto, except that
either party may update its address set forth oii@= 6.1 by providing a Notice of the updated &sdrin the manner set forth in Section
6.1. Headings included in this Agreement are @onvenience only and are not intended to limit qvasd the rights of the parties

hereto. References to Sections herein shall meaiors of the text of this Agreement, unless atig indicated.

6.4 _Assignability This Agreement and the rights and duties s¢h floerein may not be assigned by either of thagsawithout the express
written consent of the other party. This Agreensdall be binding on and inure to the benefit afreparty and such party’s respective heirs,
legal representatives, successors and assigns.

6.5 Severability If any court of competent jurisdiction deternsrtbat any provision of this Agreement is invalidunenforceable, then such
invalidity or unenforceability shall have no effeat the other provisions hereof, which shall remailid, binding and enforceable and in full
force and effect, and such invalid or unenforcegderision shall be construed in a manner so gév®the maximum valid and enforceable
effect to the intent of the parties expressed there

6.6 Waiver of Breach The waiver by either party of the breach of pnyvision of this Agreement shall not operate ocbestrued as a
waiver of any subsequent breach by either party.

6.7 _Governing Law; Jurisdiction; ConstructioThis Agreement shall be governed by the intelaas of the Commonwealth of Kentucky,
without regard to any rules of construction thatilgarequire application of the laws of anothergdiction. Any legal proceeding related to
Agreement and permitted under Section 4.7 and lartichereof must be litigated in an appropriate Kiehy state or federal court, and both
Company and the Employee hereby consent to theigxeljurisdiction of the Commonwealth of Kentudky this purpose. The parties agree
that they have been represented by counsel duregegotiation and execution of this Agreement,aswbrdingly each party waives the
application of any law, holding




or rule of construction providing that ambiguitiasan agreement or other document will be constagainst the party responsible for the
drafting thereof.

6.8. _Effective Date The terms and conditions of this Agreement dhmkffective as of the Date of Hire. In the ew&ithe failure of
Employee to commence his employment with the Comanat such other date as the Employee and tihep@oy may mutually agree), this
Agreement shall be null and void and of no forceftect.

6.9. Tax Compliance

(a) The Company may withhold from any amounts plyhereunder any amounts required to be withhetttufederal, state or local
law and any other deductions authorized by Employdee Company and the Employee agree that théyexdlcute any and all amendments tc
this Agreement as they mutually agree in good fiaifty be necessary to ensure compliance with theégioas of Section 409A (together with
any implementing regulations,_* Section 409/f the Code while preserving insofar as possthkeconomic intent of the respective
provisions, so that Employee will not be subjecany tax (including interest and penalties) undssti®n 409A.

(b) For purposes of Section 409A, the right tedes of installment payments under this Agreemshatl be treated as a right to a
series of separate payments.

(c) With respect to any reimbursement of expen§ear any provision of in-kind benefits to, the Bloyee, as specified under this
Agreement, such reimbursement of expenses or poovid in-kind benefits shall be subject to thdduling conditions: (1) the expenses
eligible for reimbursement or the amount okind benefits provided in one taxable year shallafect the expenses eligible for reimburser
or the amount of in-kind benefits provided in arnlyey taxable year, except for any medical reimbuesg arrangement providing for the
reimbursement of expenses referred to in Secti&i)®f the Code; (2) the reimbursement of an klggexpense shall be made no later than
the end of the year after the year in which sugieage was incurred; and (3) the right to reimbueserar in-kind benefits shall not be subject
to liquidation or exchange for another benefit.

(d) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary irstAgreement, if Employee is a “specified employae’determined pursuant to
Section 409A as of the date of Employee’s “sepamdtiom service” as defined in Treasury Regulas@ettion 1.409A-1(h) (or any successor
regulation) and if any payments or entitlementsjaied for in this Agreement constitute a “defewhtompensation” within the meaning of
Section 409A and cannot be paid or provided imtla@ner provided herein without subjecting Emploleadditional tax, interest or penalties
under Section 409A, then any such payment or entéht which is payable during the first six morfgilbwing Employee’s “separation from
service” shall be paid or provided to Employee taah lump-sum on the first business day of therstvcalendar month immediately
following the month in which Employee’s “separativom service” occurs or, if earlier, upon the Epyde’s death. In addition, any payments
or benefits due hereunder upon a termination of [Byeg’s employment which are a “deferral of comp@ios” within the meaning of Section
409A shall only be payable or provided to Emplog@eEmployee’s estate) upon a “separation fromisehas defined in Section
409A. Finally, for the purposes of this Agreememounts payable under Section 3.2 shall be deawoted be a “deferral of compensation”
subject to Section 409A to the extent providedchiméxceptions in Treasury Regulation Sections A40®)(4) (“short-term deferrals”) and (b)
(9) (“separation pay plans,” including the exceptimder subparagraph (iii)) and other applicabtesigions of Treasury Regulation Section
1.409A-1 - A-6.

6.10 _Indemnification; Insurance Coveragéhe Company’s By-Laws, as may be amended frome tb time, provides to directors and
executive officers of the Company certain righténiemnification by the Company and to directorsd afficers’ insurance coverage. The
Employee shall be entitled to the same level ofgmtion provided to executive officers, as conteatgal in the Company’s Byaws, as may b
amended from time to time.

[ Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank

IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the parties have executed this Agreement aseofidly and year written above.




COMPANY:

TEMPUR SEALY INTERNATIONAL, INC.

By: _/s/ Brad Patrick
Title: EVP/Chief Human Resources Officer

EMPLOYEE:

/s/ Jay Spenchian
Jay Spenchian

WITNESSED BY:

/s/ Rachel Wheeler

Date:  11/18/14

Exhibits:
Exhibit A Form of Restrictetb8k Unit Award Agreement
Exhibit B 2015 U.S. Benefitsi@e

Exhibit C Executive RelocatiBrogram Guide



TEMPUR-PEDIC INTERNATIONAL INC.
2013 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN
Stock Option Agreement
[Insert Employee Name]

This Stock Option Agreement dated as of DATE] (thiddreement”), between Tempur Sealy International, Inc., a coram
organized under the laws of the State of Delawtre ‘( Company’), and the individual identified below, residing aetaddress there set
(the “Optionee”).

1. Grant of Option . Pursuant and subject to the Compan2013 Equity Incentive Plan (as the same me
amended from time to time, the “Plan”), the Compgrmnts to the Optionee an option (the “Optiotd’purchase from the Compse
all or any part of a total of | ] shareke(“ Option Share®) of the Companys common stock, par value $0.01 per share
“Stock”), at a price of 3 | per share (thexefcise Pricé). The " Grant Daté of this Option is [GRANT DATE].

If this Agreement is not executed and returnedchéo@ompany by Optionee on or before [RETURN DATE$ award shall be treas
as though it was never granted, and Grantee sénadl ho further rights pursuant to this Agreement.

2. Character of Option . This Option is not to be treated as an “incensteck option”within the meaning ¢
Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code of 198&naended.
3. Duration of Option . Subject to the next sentence, this Option shaire at 11:59 p.m. (Lexington, KY local time) dme

date immediately preceding the tenth anniversath®iGrant Date. However, this Option is subjeaddier termination as provided in Sec
5 below.

4, Exercise of Option. Until the expiration of this Option pursuant tecBon 3 or Section 5 of this Agreement, the Oy
may exercise it as to the number of Option Shatestified in the table below, in full or in part, @y time on or after the applicable exer
date or dates identified in the table. However jextito Section 5 of this Agreement, during anyigekthat this Option remains outstanc
after the Optioneg’ employment with the Company and its Affiliatesignthe Optionee may exercise it only to the exiewias exercisab
immediately prior to the end of the Optionee’s emgpient.

Number of Shares Percentage of Initial Exercise Date
in Each Installment Option Shares for Shares in Installment

Section 7.1(e) of the Plan sets forth the procedaoresxercising this Option by paying cash or aathenade payable to the order of
Company in an amount equal to the aggregate ExeRiise of the Stock to be purchased, or by déligesther shares of Stock of equiva
Market Value, provided the Optionee has owned sinares of Stock for at least six (6) months. Théddpe may also exercise this Op
pursuant to a formal cashless exercise progranefasreéd to in Section 7.1(e) of the Plan, subjecthe terms and conditions referred t
Section 7.1(e) of the Plan.

5. Termination or Acceleration in Certain Cases. The Option shall be subject to early terminapoior to the tent
anniversary of the Grant Date and acceleratedngesgticertain circumstances, as described belowwitstanding anything contain
in this Section 5 to the contrary, however, in nerg shall the Option become or remain exercistbkiny extent after the expirat
date set forth in Section 3.

(a) By the Optioneés Voluntary Resignation Without Good Reasotf the Optionees employment with tt

Company or its Affiliates is terminated by the @piees voluntary resignation without Good Reason, inclgdy any Retirement that is not
Approved Retirement or the Optione&ther voluntary departure, (i) the Option shaihain exercisable for that number of Option Shéwe
which this Option shall have become exercisablsymamt to Section 4 above (i.e., the “vest®gition Shares) as of the date of such termin
of employment through the last day of the threen@nth period commencing on the later of (y) theietion of any applicable Blackc
Period (as defined below) in which such terminatddremployment occurs and (z) the date of suchitetion of employment; and (ii) t
Option Shares that have not yet become vested OBtiares pursuant to Section 4 above as of theoflatech termination of employment sl
irrevocably expire, and the Optionee shall haveigiat to purchase any such unvested Option Shares.

(b) Termination by the Company other than For Caus®y the Optionee for Good Reasoiif the Optionees

employment with the Company or its Affiliates isrtenated by the Company or an Affiliate, other ti&r Cause,




or by the Optionee for Good Reason or by reasddptionees employer ceasing to be an Affiliate (in the alegeof a Change of Control), 1
Option shall remain outstanding and be or beconercésable to the extent otherwise provided in ®ectd for a three (3) year per
commencing on the date of such termination of egnpknt; provided that in the event the Optioneedmployment is terminated prior to
end of the twelve (12) month period immediatelydwaing the Grant Date, the number of Option Shatesrwise subject to the Option shal
pro+ated downward based on the actual number of falkrar months that elapsed during such twelve fi@th period prior to su
termination of employment. For example, if the ©p#e is granted an Option to purchase 600 Opti@neSton March 1, 2014 and Optiorsee’
employment is terminated by the Company or anysAffiliates other than For Cause on Septemb&014, the Option Shares subject to
Option will be adjusted downward by 50% to totaD3Dption Shares (and the number of Option Sharshiscome vested Option Share
each of the three (3) years specified in Secti@hall be correspondingly reduced by fifty percés@%)). No proration shall be made to 1
Option Shares for a termination of employment desdrin this Section 5(b) that occurs after thelted12) month anniversary of the Gr
Date, and the Option shall remain outstanding am@mbecome exercisable to the extent providedeitti& 4 for the three (3) year per
commencing on the date of such termination of egmpknt. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Stock kbal issued and all of Optionae’
rights to the Option and the Option Shares herausit| be forfeited, expire and terminate unlésthé Company shall have received a rel
of all claims from the Optionee in a form reasogadtceptable to the Company (and said release Istnedl become irrevocable in accordz
with its terms) prior to the date on which all bétOption Shares become vested Option Shareséarliér the deadline established in the 1
of release delivered by the Company to Optione@*ecution) and (ii) the Optionee shall have coetplvith the covenants set forth in Sec
10 of this Agreement.

(c) Termination by the Company For CausH the Company or any of its Affiliates terminat¢he Optionee’
employment For Cause, the Option and all of theddpBhares (whether or not then vested) shall beifed and shall expire and termir
immediately as of the date of such terminationropkyment.

(d) Death or Londglerm Disability. If the Optionee dies or the Company or any ofAffiliates terminates tt
Optionee’s employment due to the Optionee’s ltergn disability (within the meaning of Section 409Athe Code), all of the Option Sha
that have not become vested Option Shares pursmé&@ection 4 as of the date of death or such textioin of employment shall immediat
become vested Option Shares, and the Option shalhin outstanding and exercisable until the oney&Br anniversary of the date
Optionee’s death or such termination of employment.

(e) Approved Retirementin the event of the OptioneeRetirement, the Committee may consent to theiraoged
vesting of the Option in accordance with the anweasting schedule specified in Section 4 and thengbed exercisability of the vested Op
Shares until the earlier of (i) the three (3) yaaniversary of the date on which the Option becofulg vested, and (ii) the three (3) y
anniversary of the date of such Retirement (an_praged Retirement); provided, that in the event the date of the Optiose&pprove:
Retirement occurs prior to the end of the twelvg) (flnonth period immediately following the Grant Bathe number of Option Sha
otherwise subject to the Option shall be pated downward based on the actual number of catendnths that elapsed during such twelve
month period prior to such Approved Retirement (dodthe avoidance of doubt, in the event of aprwped Retirement no pmation shall b
made to the Option Shares awarded more than tw&R)emonths prior to the date of the Approved Ratient). Notwithstanding the foregoi
no Stock shall be issued and all of Optiosegghts to the Option and the Option Shares heleushall be forfeited, expire and termir
unless (i) the Company shall have received a releésll claims from the Optionee in a form reasipacceptable to the Company (and
release shall have become irrevocable in accordaitbeits terms) prior to the date on which alltbeé Option Shares become vested Oy
Shares (or if earlier the deadline establishechénform of release delivered by the Company to @t for execution) and (ii) the Optiol
shall have complied with the covenants set fortiséttion 10 of this Agreement. If the Committeellsteat any reason decline to consen
continued vesting on the Recipient’'s Retiremergntthe provisions of subsection (a) above shatéatsapply.

(0 Change of Contral If a Change of Control occurs then Section 9ahis Plan shall apply to the Optic
and Option Shares.
() For the purposes of this Agreement:
0] “ Blackout Period” shall mean any period when employees are prohilfited making purchases ¢
sales of the Company’s securities.
(i) “ Change of Controf shall have the meaning set forth in the Planyigled, that no event or transact

shall constitute a Change of Control for purpodethis Agreement unless it also qualifies as a geawf control for purposes of Section 4(
of the Code.

(iii) “ Employee”, “ employment,” “ termination of employment and “ cease to be employédand othe
words or phrases of similar import, shall mean ¢betinued provision of substantial services to @mnpany or any of its Affiliates (or t
cessation or termination of such services) whedlsean employee, consultant or director.

(iv) “ For Cause” shall mean any of the following: (A) OptioneeWwillful and continued failure
substantially perform the reasonably assigned slutiéh the Company or any Affiliate of the Companmkiich are consistent with Optionee’
position and job description, other than any suturfe resulting from incapacity due to physicalmental iliness, after a written notice
delivered to Optionee by the Chief Executive Office Chief Human Resources Officer of the Compaslgich specifically identifies tt
manner in which Optionee has not substantiallyqreréd the assigned duties, (B) Optiose®illful engagement in illegal conduct whict
materially and demonstrably injurious to the Companany Affiliate of the




Company, (C) Optiones’conviction by a court of competent jurisdictioh or pleading guilty or nolo contendere to, anjofiy, or (D
Optionees commission of an act of fraud, embezzlement, isappropriation against the Company or any Affdiaf the Company, includir
but not limited to, the offer, payment, solicitatior acceptance of any unlawful bribe or kickbadthwespect to the business of the Comj
or any Affiliate of the Company; Please note awagideement for each CEO, COO, EVP and any other@amelwho has an employm
agreement which defines such terms, will, if apgilie, define such term as it is defined in hiserdmployment agreement.

(v) “ Good Reasori shall mean the relocation of Optionsgirincipal workplace over sixty (60) miles fr
the existing workplaces of the Company or any #dféd of the Company without the consent of Optiof&lich consent shall not
unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned)aB¢enote award agreement for each CEO, COO, EVR@anather employee who has
employment agreement which defines such terms, ivépplicable, define such term as it is defimedtis or her employment agreement. and

(vi) “ Retirement” shall have the meaning assigned to such term imppécable retirement policy of t
Company or its Affiliates as in effect at such time
6. Transfer of Option . Except as provided in Section 6.4 of the Plaitheethis Option nor any Option Shares nor anits

hereunder to the underlying Stock may be transdezseept by will or the laws of descent and distiiitn, and during the Optioneslifetime
only the Optionee may exercise this Option.

7. Incorporation of Plan Terms . Except as otherwise provided herein in Sectiai®&ve, this Option is granted subject t
of the applicable terms and provisions of the Planjuding but not limited to Section 8 of the Pldawdjustment Provisions”and thi
limitations on the Company’s obligation to deliv@ption Shares upon exercise set forth in Sectioflihe Plan, “Settlement of Awards”
Capitalized terms used but not defined herein steale the meaning assigned under the Plan.

8. Miscellaneous. This Agreement shall be construed and enforcealcaordance with the laws of the State of Delay
without regard to the conflict of laws principldseteof, and shall be binding upon and inure tobteefit of any successor or assign ol
Company and any executor, administrator, trusteardjan, or other legal representative of the Qo This Agreement may be execute
one or more counterparts all of which togetherlstaistitute one instrument.

9. Tax Consequences

(a) The Company makes no representation or warranty alse tax treatment of this Option, including uptbe
exercise of this Option or upon the Optiorsesale or other disposition of the Option Shardse Dptionee should rely on his/her own
advisors for such advice. Notwithstanding the foirg, the Optionee and the Company hereby acknagel¢dat both the Optionee and
Company may be subject to certain obligations darwithholdings, social security taxes and otheliapble taxes associated with the ves
or exercise of the Options or the issuance of thgoD Shares to the Optionee pursuant to this Agese. The Optionee hereby affirmativ
consents to the transfer between his or her emplaye the Company of any and all personal infolwnatiecessary for the Company anc
employer to comply with its obligations.

(b) All amounts earned and paid pursuant to this Agesgnare intended to be paid in compliance withoror
basis exempt from, Section 409A of the Code. Agseement, and all terms and conditions used hestiall be interpreted and constr
consistent with that intent. However, the Compdags not warrant all such payments will be exemgrhf or paid in compliance with, Sect
409A. The Optionee bears the entire risk of anyeegk federal, state or local tax consequencespandlty taxes which may result fr
payments made on a basis contrary to the provigibB8gction 409A or comparable provisions of angligpble state or local income tax laws.

10. Certain Remedies.

(a) If at any time prior to the later of (y) thedW?) year period after termination of the Optidiseemployment wit
the Company and its Affiliates, and (z) the petiiogt includes the date (after a termination of Qpies employment with the Company anc
Affiliates) on which all of the Option Shares gratithereunder and capable of becoming vested Oftianes so become vested Option St
(the last day of such later period being the “ Garg Termination Dat®, any of the following occur:

0] the Optionee unreasonably refuses to comply witliuerequests for cooperation made by the Comy
its board of directors, or its Affiliates;
(i) the Optionee accepts employment or a consultingadwisory engagement with any Competi

Enterprise (as defined in Section 10(c)) of the @any or its Affiliates or the Optionee otherwisgyages in competition with the Compan
its Affiliates;

(iii) the Optionee acts against the interests of the @ogn@nd its Affiliates, including recruiting
employing, or encouraging or assisting the Optitm@ew employer to recruit or employ an employethefCompany or any Affiliate witha
the Company’s written consent;

(iv) the Optionee fails to protect and safeguard whldnis/her possession or control, or surrender ¢
Company upon termination of the Optioreemployment with the Company or any Affiliate ack earlier time or times as the Company ¢
board of directors or any Affiliate may specifyl @bcuments, records, tapes, disks and other ntddigery kind and description relating to
business, present or otherwise, of the Companyitaniiffiliates and any copies, in whole or in p#rereof, whether or not prepared by
Optionee;




(v) the Optionee solicits or encourages any pewoenterprise with which the Optionee has had lassin
related contact, who has been a customer of thep@oynor any of its Affiliates, to terminate itsagbnship with any of them;

(vi) the Optionee takes any action or makes any statemeitten or oral, that disparages the busir
products, services or management of Company oAffifates, or any of their respective directordficers, agents, or employees, or
Optionee takes any action that is intended tohat tloes in fact, damage the business or reputafidine Company or its Affiliates, or t
personal or business reputations of any of thepeetive directors, officers, agents, or employeethat interferes with, impairs or disrupts
normal operations of the Company or its Affiliates;

(vii) the Optionee breaches any confidentiality obligatithe Optionee has to the Company or an Affil
the Optionee fails to comply with the policies gmibcedures of the Company or its Affiliates for feiing confidential information, tl
Optionee uses confidential information of the Compar its Affiliates for his/her own benefit or gaior the Optionee discloses or othen
misuses confidential information or materials & @ompany or its Affiliates (except as requirechpplicable law); then

(1) this Option shall terminate and be cancelled eiffecas of the date on which the Optio
entered into such activity, unless terminated aorcelled sooner by operation of another term or ttmndof this

Agreement or the Plan;

(2) any stock acquired and held by the Optionee putdoatihe exercise of this Option during

Applicable Period (as defined in Section 10(b) bglmay be repurchased by the Company at a purgiraseeque

to the Exercise Price per share; and

3 any gain realized by the Optionee from the salsto€k acquired through the exercise of

Option during the Applicable Period shall be pajdie Optionee to the Company.

(b) The term “_ApplicabléPeriod” shall mean the period commencing on the later efddite of this Agreement
the date which is one (1) year prior to the Opte&sd¢ermination of employment with the Company or Affffliate and ending on the Coven
Termination Date.

(c) The term “_CompetitivéEnterprise” shall mean a business enterprise that engages iowms or controls
significant interest in, any entity that engageshie manufacture, sale or distribution of mattesssr pillows or other bedding products or @
products competitive with the Company’s productimpetitive Enterprise shall include, but not beitiéd to, the entities set forth dxppendi>
A Please note award agreement for each CEO, COO d@adRiny other employee who has an employment agrgenhich defines this ter
will, if applicable, define such term as it is defd in his or her employment agreement. heretoctwiriay be amended by the Company 1
time to time upon notice to the Optionee. At amgeithe Optionee may request in writing that the @amy make a determination wheth
particular enterprise is a Competitive EnterpriSach determination will be made within fourteen)(tys after the receipt of sufficit
information from the Optionee about the enterpried the determination will be valid for a periofimnety (90) days from the date
determination.

11. Right of Set Off . By executing this Agreement, the Optionee corssemta deduction from any amounts the Compa
any Affiliate owes the Optionee from time to tinte, the extent of the amounts the Optionee owesCiimpany under Section 10 abc
provided that this sedff right may not be applied against wages, satargther amounts payable to the Optionee to thenéxhat the exerci
of such set-off right would violate any applicatd&v. If the Company does not recover by means Bb#dhe full amount the Optionee ow
the Company, calculated as set forth above, théo@ge agrees to pay immediately the unpaid balemtee Company upon the Compagy’
demand.

12. Nature of Remedies

(a) The remedies set forth in Sections 10 and 11 abowén addition to any remedies available to then@any an
its Affiliates in any noncompetition, employment, confidentiality or othgreement, and all such rights are cumulative. Tteraése of an
rights hereunder or under any such other agreesmatitnot constitute an election of remedies.

(b) The Company shall be entitled to place a legendrgncertificate evidencing any stock acquired upearcise ¢
this Option referring to the repurchase right sathf in Section 10(a) above. The Company shall &lsoentitled to issue stop tran:
instructions to the Comparg/stock transfer agent in the event the Compangues that any event referred to in Section 10é&) dccurred «
is reasonably likely to occur.

13. No Right to Employment. This Agreement does not give the Optionee any rightontinue to be employed by
Company or any of its Affiliates, or limit, in arway, the right of the Company or any of its Afftka to terminate the Optioneegmploymen
at any time, for any reason not specifically prdteid by law.

[ Remainder of page intentionally left blapk




In Witness Whereof, the parties have executed3tusk Option Agreement as of the date first aboriden.
TEMPUR SEALY INTERNATIONAL, INC.
By:

Title: Signature of Optionee

[Name of Optionee]

Optionee’s Address:



TEMPUR SEALY INTERNATIONAL, INC
2013 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN

LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

Performance Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement
[Name]
This 2015 Performance Restricted Stock Unit Awagiement (this “ Agreemefit, dated as of [ DATE], is between Tempur Sealy

International, Inc., a corporation organized urttierlaws of the State of Delaware (the * Compgngnd the individual identified below (the
“Grantee”).

Grantee: _[Name]

Number of Target Shares in Award: [NUMBER]

Date of Award: [ GRANT DATE]

Designated Period: [SPECIFIED DESIGNATED PERIOD]

If this Agreement is not executed and returnedhéo@ompany by Grantee on or before [ RETURN DATRg, award shall be treated
as though it was never granted, and Grantee sénadl ho further rights under this Agreement.

1. Award of Performance Restricted Stock Units Pursuant and subject to the Company’s 2013 Edpitgntive

Plan, as amended (as the same may be amendedrfrertottime, the “ 2013 EIP and the Company’s Long-Term Incentive Plan as

adopted in connection with the 2013 EIP (the " PTan"), the Company grants the Grantee an award (thedrd ") for NUMBER]

of performance restricted stock units (the * PR8\Jsach constituting the right on the terms andditons set forth herein to a share

of the Company’s common stock, par value $0.01spare (the * Target Shar8s subject to upward or downward adjustment upon

the determination of a Final Award (as defined &ct®n 3 below) (such Target Shares, as so adjusted Shareg). This Award is
granted as of [ GRANT DATE] (the_* Grant Ddfeand is intended to qualify as a Qualified Pemfiance-Based Award.

2. Rights of the PRSUs and Target SharesThe Grantee will receive no dividend equivalentrpapts on the PRSUs or w
respect to the Target Shares. Unless and untita Piward has been determined and the Granteesbas/ed the Shares in accordance witt
terms and conditions described herein, the Grasitakt have none of the attributes of ownership wépect to any Shares.

3. Determination of Final Award .

(a) The Target Shares ultimately issued by the Gompursuant to the Award shall be subject to ddjast
according to the Company’s achievement (* Perforredhof the Performance Metrics for the Award and @iiance with the provisions and
rules set forth on Appendix Attached hereto (the “ Performance Metf)cand incorporated herein by this reference (theaAd as so adjusted,
“ Einal Award”).

(b) As provided in the LTI Plan, within sixty (6@ays after the end of the Designated Period, threg@oisation
Committee of the Board of Directors (the * Comndtteshall determine and certify in writing (y) whethand to what extent the Performance
Metrics have been achieved and (z) based on sutbridance, the number of Shares to be issued tot€&aas the Final Award (with the date
of such determination referred to as the “ Deteatiam Date’).

(c) Not later than the fifteen (5 day of the third month following the end of thedignated Period, the Company
shall issue the Shares, if any, to Grantee, subjeSection 7 of this Agreement relating to taxhiitlding (the date of such issuance or the dat
of such earlier issuance pursuant to Section 4(@)®(e) being referred to herein as the " SetletiDate’).




4, Termination of Employment . If the Grantee’s employment with the Company asdffiliates terminates prior to the
Determination Date, including because the Granteigloyer ceases to be an Affiliate, the Granteglds to the Shares and the Final Award
shall be as follows:

(a) By the Company For Cause or By the Grantee MitEood Reasonlf the Grantee’s employment with the
Company or its Affiliates is terminated by the Camp or such Affiliate For Cause or the Granteegresiwithout Good Reason, including by
Retirement that is not an Approved Retirement er@nantee’s voluntary departure, the Award wilhiarate immediately, no Shares shall be
issued to Grantee and all of the Grantee’s righte¢ Shares and Final Award hereunder shall Beifed. The terms “For Cause”, “Good
Reason”, “Retirement” and “Approved Retirement” defined below.

(b) By the Company Other Than for Cause or By thent@e for Good Reasonf the Grantees employment with tr
Company or its Affiliates is terminated by the Canp or an Affiliate other than For Cause, by thar@ee’s resignation for Good Reason or
by reason of Grantee’s employer ceasing to be &iliadé (in the absence of a Change of Controkntthis Award shall remain outstanding,
and the Grantee shall be entitled to receive a rumbShares the Grantee would have been entileeceive in a Final Award at the end of
Designated Period had the Grantee's employmerthewn so terminated based on the extent, if anyhioh the Performance Metrics for the
Designated Period are achieved, except that, ievikat the Grantee’s employment is terminated poidine end of the first year of the
Designated Period, the number of such Sharesyijfsrall be pro-rated downward based on the acwmber of full calendar months that
elapsed from the beginning of such Designated Béoiguch termination of employment as comparetPtdhe total number of months in the
first year of the Designated Period (with no sudhgation occurring if such termination of employmeccurs any time after the first year of
the Designated Period). For example, if Grantegipleyment is terminated on July 17, 2014, the Fxaard will be based on the extent, if
any, to which the Performance Metrics for the Deatgd Period are achieved, and the Grantee wockiviee6/12ths of the Shares the Grantee
would have been entitled to receive in the Finabfdvfor the Designated Period had the Grantee’d@ment not been terminated. These
Shares will be issued at the same time as setifolection 3(c) above. Notwithstanding anythingeireto the contrary, no Shares shall be
issued and all of the Grantee’s rights to the Fahrd and any Shares otherwise due shall be fedeexpire and terminate unless (i) the
Company shall have received a release of all cl&iom Grantee in a form reasonably acceptablegddmpany (and said release shall have
become irrevocable in accordance with its termy po the end of the Determination Date (or, ifles, the deadline established in the form of
release delivered by the Company to the Granteexecution); (ii) the Grantee has ensured thaCiiapany has a valid address for Grantee
on file as of the end of the Designated Period Xagermination Date and the Settlement Date; aidhie Grantee shall have complied with
covenants set forth in Section 12 of this Agreement

(c) Death or Longlerm Disability.

0] Death. If the Grantee dies at any time during the Destigd Period, then the Grantee shall be entitled t
receive Shares equal to the number of Target Sigaaesed to him pursuant to this Award in lieu o &laim to the Final Shares (if any).
These Shares will be issued within sixty (60) dafyer the date of death or termination of employtnen

(i) Long-Term Disability. If Grantee’s employment ends due to Grantee’g-tenm disability (within the
meaning of Section 409A of the Code) at any timeénduthe Designated Period, then the Award shatlaie outstanding through the end of
Designated Period and the Grantee shall be entilegceive a Final Award based on the extenhyf & which the Performance Metrics for
the Designated Period are achieved. These Shaltidsvissued at the same time as set forth in &e&c) above.

(d) Approved Retirementln the event of Grantee’s Retirement, the Conamithay in its sole discretion consent to
the partial acceleration of vesting of the Awardisat the Award shall remain outstanding throughehd of the Designated Period and the
Grantee shall be entitled to receive a pro-ratalFAward based on the extent, if any, to whichReeformance Metrics for the Designated
Period are achieved, pro-rated using the same melihgy as set forth in paragraph (b) above, sultstg for the date of termination of
employment therein the date of Grantee’s Retirer(@mt Approved Retiremeri}; provided, however, that no Shares shall be issued and all
of the Grantee’s rights to the Final Award and &imares otherwise due shall be forfeited, expiretardinate unless (i) the Company shall
have received a release of all claims from Graimeeform reasonably acceptable to the Company gaitirelease shall have become
irrevocable in accordance with its terms) priothte end of the Designated Period (or, if earliee, deadline established in the form of release
delivered by the Company to the Grantee for exenlitind (ii) the Grantee shall have complied whit tovenants set forth in Section 12 of
this Agreement. These Shares will be issued agdhee time as set forth in Section 3(c) above.

(e) Definitions. For the purposes of this Agreement:

() “ Employee”, “ employment’, “ termination of employmeritand “ cease to be employ&dand other
words or phrases of similar import, shall meandtetinued provision of substantial services toGaenpany or any of its Affiliates (or the
cessation or termination of such services) whedlsean employee, consultant or director;

(i) “ Change of Controf shall have the meaning set forth in the Planyigled, that no event or transaction
shall constitute a Change of Control for purpodeahie Agreement unless it also qualifies as a geaof control for purposes of Section 409A
of the Code;




(iii) “ For Cause” shall mean any of the following: (A) Grantee’slifuil and continued failure to
substantially perform the reasonably assigned slwtith the Company or any Affiliate of the Compamlyich are consistent with Grantee’s
position and job description, other than any sluife resulting from incapacity due to physicahmental iliness, after a written notice is
delivered to Grantee by the Chief Executive OfficeChief Human Resources Officer of the Compartictvspecifically identifies the mant
in which Grantee has not substantially performedassigned duties, (B) Grantee’s willful engagenieiitegal conduct which is materially
and demonstrably injurious to the Company or anfiliafe of the Company, (C) Grantesetonviction by a court of competent jurisdictidnar
pleading guilty or nolo contendere to, any feloory(D) Grantees commission of an act of fraud, embezzlement,isappropriation against t
Company or any Affiliate of the Company, includitmt not limited to, the offer, payment, solicitatior acceptance of any unlawful bribe or
kickback with respect to the business of the Commarany Affiliate of the Company; Please note ahagreement for each CEO, COO, EVP
and any other employee who has an employment agrdeahich defines such term, will, if applicablefide such term as it is defined in his
or her employment agreement.

(iv) “ Good Reasori shall mean the relocation of Grantee’s princiwatkplace over sixty (60) miles from
the existing workplaces of the Company or any #dféd of the Company without the consent of Graggch consent shall not be
unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned)a&¢enote award agreement for each CEO, COO, EVRrandther employee who has an
employment agreement which defines such term, ilvdipplicable, define such term as it is definedhis or her employment agreement. and

(v) “ Retirement’ shall have the meaning assigned to such terthdrapplicable retirement policy of the
Company or its Affiliates as in effect at such time
5. Change of Control Provisions. Pursuant to Section 9 of the 2013 EIP, immediaipbn the occurrence of a Change of

Control, all of the PRSUs subject to this Awardlsbanvert to time-based vesting restricted stockau(* RSUS”, with the shares of the
Company’s common stock issuable thereunder reféored “ RSU Sharé$, without any pro-ration, as follows:

(a) If the Change of Control occurs at any timeryithe Designated Period, the Grantee shall ilezhto receive
RSUs equal to the number of Target Shares in lieunyg claim to a Final Award.
(b) None of the RSUs issued to Grantee in conneetith a Change of Control pursuant to this Sectiaall be

immediately vested as of the date of such Chan@afrol (unless otherwise provided below). Allsoich RSUs shall vest on the last day of
the Designated Period (for purposes of this Se&ijdhe “ Vesting Dat#), regardless of whether the Company has thereaeli any of the
Performance Metrics if the Grantee’s employmenhulie Company and its Affiliates continues throtigg period commencing on the date of
the Change of Control and ending on the Vesting Qidie “ Vesting Periot).

(c) If the Grantee’s employment with the Compang ds Affiliates terminates during the Vesting Rekithe righto
the RSUs shall be as follows:

0] If the Grantee’s employment with the CompanytsiAffiliates is terminated by the Company ForuSa
or the Grantee resigns without Good Reason, inetuby Retirement that is not an Approved Retirenogrthe Grantee’s voluntary departure,
the RSUs will terminate immediately, no RSU Shaiteall be issued to Grantee and all of the Grantégss to the RSUs and the RSU Shares
hereunder shall be forfeited.

(i) If the Grantee’s employment with the Compamyite Affiliates is terminated by the Company or an
Affiliate other than For Cause, by the Grantee&geation for Good Reason or by reason of Grantemgloyer ceasing to be an Affiliate
following a Change of Control at any time followitige Change of Control, then all of the RSUs shadt immediately, and the Grantee shall
be entitled to receive all of the RSU Shares heldvbave been entitled to receive on the Vestinge@dth respect thereto.

(iii) If the Grantee dies or the Company or an Kdfe of the Company terminates Grantee’'s employmen
due to Grantee’s long-term disability (within theaming of Section 409A of the Code), then all & RS5Us shall vest and the Grantee shall b
entitled to receive all of the RSU Shares with ee$phereto. These Shares will be issued withity 460) days after the date of death or
termination of employment.

(iv) In the event of Grantee’s Approved Retireméinén the number of RSUs that will vest and Shares
issued in connection therewith shall be pro-rategrdvard based on the actual number of calendar thay®lapsed from the date the Award
was initially granted under this Agreement to tlagedof such Approved Retirement, versus the tataibrer of calendar days in the Designated
Period;_provided however, that no RSU Shares shall be issued and all oGtlastee’s rights to the RSUs and any Shares otbemue shall
be forfeited, expire and terminate unless (i) tlhengany shall have received a release of all cléiom Grantee in a form reasonably
acceptable to the Company (and said release shadl lrecome irrevocable in accordance with its teprier to the 50th day following
Grantee’s termination of employment and (ii) theu@ee shall have complied with the covenants s#t fo Section 12 of this Agreement.

(v) In the event that, immediately following a Clyarof Control, a successor organization does notar,
replace or assume the RSUs, all of the RSUs shalkidiately vest and the Grantee shall be entideddeive all of the RSU Shares
represented thereby.

(d) In all cases, any issuance of RSU Shares upsting of the RSUs in accordance with this Sedishall be
made promptly and, in any event, within twenty (88ys following the date such RSUs shall becomeedes§-or this




purpose, RSUs vesting on account of (w) a ternmonaty the Company other than For Cause, (x) resigmay the Grantee for Good Reason,
(y) Grantee's employer ceasing to be an Affiliaitboiwing a Change of Control at any time followitige Change of Control, or (z) an
Approved Retirement, shall be treated as vestintherCompany’s receipt of the required releasdaidfns but delivery of the RSU Shares at
that time shall not obviate the need to comply wlit covenants contained in Section 12 until thee@ant Termination Date (as defined in
Section 12) in order to retain the RSU Shares tiedinered.
(e) The Company (or any successor organization) nea@yire the Grantee to enter into a restrictedkstmit award
agreement that replaces this Agreement and retleeteerms described above.
6. Settlement. The Final Award shall be settled by the issuasfcghares and not by payment of any cash, notwaitiashg
any provision of the 2013 EIP.
7. Withholding . Pursuant to the 2013 EIP, the Company shall Haveight to require the recipient to remit to @mpany
an amount sufficient to satisfy federal, statealar other withholding tax requirements if, whand to the extent required by law (whether so
required to secure for the Company an otherwis#éadla tax deduction or otherwise) attributablétte Final Award awarded under this
Agreement, including without limitation, the awardlapsing of stock restrictions on the Final Awartie obligations of the Company under
this Agreement shall be conditional on satisfactiball such withholding obligations and the Conypahall, to the extent permitted by law,
have the right to deduct any such taxes from agyngat of any kind otherwise due to the Grantee. &l@x, in such cases Grantee may elect,
subject to any reasonable administrative procedorgsmely compliance established by the Committeesatisfy an applicable withholding
requirement, in whole or in part, by having the @amy withhold a portion of the Shares or RSU Sherde issued under this Award to sat
the Grantees tax obligations. The Grantee may only elect wel8hares or RSU Shares withheld having a Markaté/an the date the tax is
be determined equal to the minimum statutory tetdiholding taxes arising upon the vesting of aimai®s or RSU Shares. If the Grantee has
not submitted an election on or before the thinti@0) day prior to the Determination Date, Grardieall be deemed to have elected to have
shares withheld from the Shares or RSU Shares issbed under this award to satisfy the Grantex ®bligation. All elections shall be
irrevocable, made in writing, signed by the Grantew® shall be subject to any restrictions or tiins that the Committee deems appropriate
8. Other Provisions.
(a) This Agreement does not give the Grantee aht to continue to be employed by the Company gradrits
Affiliates, or limit, in any way, the right of th€ompany or any of its Affiliates to terminate thea@tee’'s employment, at any time, for any
reason not specifically prohibited by law.
(b) The Company is not liable for the non-issuasiceoniransfer, nor for any delay in the issuance orsi@mnof any
Shares or RSU Shares due to the Grantee upon tihen&t Date with respect to Final Award whichulesfrom the inability of the Company
to obtain, from each regulatory body having jurisidin, all requisite authority to issue or transgbares of common stock of the Company if
counsel for the Company deems such authority napess the lawful issuance or transfer of any s8tlares or RSU Shares. Acceptance of
this Award constitutes the Grantee’s agreementttieaShares or RSU Shares subsequently acquiredrigr, if any, will not be sold or
otherwise disposed of by the Grantee in violatibarty applicable securities laws or regulations.

(c) The Final Award and entitlement to the ShareR®U Shares are subject to this Agreement andt€san
acceptance hereof shall constitute the Grantee&eagent to any administrative regulations of then@ttee.
(d) All decisions of the Committee upon any questiarising under the 2013 EIP and LTI Plan or unldese terms

and conditions shall be conclusive and bindingluiding, without limitation, those decisions andeatatinations to adjust the Award made by
the Committee pursuant to the authority granteceusection 8 of the 2013 EIP.

(e) No rights hereunder related to this Award or theaFAward shall be transferable, voluntarily oresthise and n
rights hereunder related to the underlying Tardnetr& or RSU Shares shall be transferable until 8o, if ever, that the Shares or RSU
Shares are earned and delivered.

9. Incorporation of 2013 EIP and LTI Plan Terms. This Award is granted subject to all of the apatile terms and
provisions of the 2013 EIP and the LTI Plan, inahgdwithout limitation, the provisions of Sectioti7{e) and Section 8 of the 2013 EIP.
Capitalized terms used but not defined herein $tzale the meaning assigned under the 2013 EIPhandri Plan. In the event of any conflict
between the terms of this Agreement and the tefrtteed2013 EIP and LTI Plan, the provisions of 2043 EIP and LTI Plan shall control.

10. Miscellaneous. This Agreement shall be construed and enforceddordance with the laws of the State of Delaware,
without regard to the conflict of laws principlé®teof and shall be binding upon and inure to #reekit of any successor or assign of the
Company and any executor, administrator, trusteardian, or other legal representative of the Genthis Agreement may be executed in
one or more counterparts all of which togetherlstaistitute one instrument.

11. Tax Consequences

€) The Company makes no representation or warasty the tax treatment of this Award or the Fiahrd,
including upon the issuance of the Shares or RSWeShor upon the Grantee’s sale or other dispasitidhe Shares or RSU Shares. The
Grantee should rely on the Grantee’s own tax adyif® such advice. Notwithstanding the foregoithg, Grantee and the Company hereby
acknowledge that both the Grantee and the Compayyb® subject to certain obligations for tax witlligs, social security taxes and other
applicable taxes associated with the vesting oPIREUs or the Shares by the Grantee pursuantsté\gieement. The Grantee hereby
affirmatively consents to the transfer betweenohis




her employer and the Company of any and all petsofamation necessary for the Company and hisleygy to comply with its obligations.

(b) All amounts earned and paid pursuant to thiseAment are intended to be paid in compliance witlon a basis
exempt from, Section 409A of the Code. This Agreetnand all terms and conditions used herein, dteihterpreted and construed consister
with that intent. However, the Company does notrarrall such payments will be exempt from, or gaidompliance with, Section 409A. T
Grantee bears the entire risk of any adverse fed#ade or local tax consequences and penaltys takéch may result from payments made
basis contrary to the provisions of Section 409&amparable provisions of any applicable stat@oallincome tax laws.

12. Certain Remedies.

(a) If at any time prior to the later of (y) thestaay of the two (2) year period after terminatidnhe Grantee’s
employment with the Company and its Affiliates, gnylas and if applicable, the expiration of thesigeated Period or the Vesting Date, in
either case, that occurs after the date of termoinaif Grantee’s employment with the Company asdhffiliates, pursuant to Section 4(b), 4(d)
or 5(c)(iv) (the later of such days being the “Coamlt Termination Date”), any of the following occur

0] the Grantee unreasonably refuses to comply laitfiul requests for cooperation made by the Compan
its Board, or its Affiliates;

(i) the Grantee accepts employment or a consutimadvisory engagement with any Competitive
Enterprise of the Company or its Affiliates or tBeantee otherwise engages in competition with the@any or its Affiliates;

(iii) the Grantee acts against the interests ofGbmpany and its Affiliates, including recruiting o

employing, or encouraging or assisting the Grastaeiv employer to recruit or employ an employethefCompany or any Affiliate without
the Company’s written consent;

(iv) the Grantee fails to protect and safeguardenini the Grantee’s possession or control, or suigeto
the Company upon termination of the Grantee’s eymént with the Company or any Affiliate or suchleartime or times as the Company or
its board of directors or any Affiliate may speciffl documents, records, tapes, disks and othdiawa# every kind and description relating to
the business, present or otherwise, of the Compadyits Affiliates and any copies, in whole or aripthereof, whether or not prepared by the
Grantee;

(v) the Grantee solicits or encourages any pers@mt@rprise with which the Grantee has had busines
related contact, who has been a customer of thep@oynor any of its Affiliates, to terminate itsagbnship with any of them;
(vi) the Grantee takes any action or makes angrsint, written or oral, that disparages the busines

products, services or management of Company éffilgates, or any of their respective directordficers, agents, or employees, or the Gra
takes any action that is intended to, or that doésct, damage the business or reputation of rmgany or its Affiliates, or the personal or
business reputations of any of their respectiveatdrs, officers, agents, or employees, or thatfates with, impairs or disrupts the normal
operations of the Company or its Affiliates; or
(vii) the Grantee breaches any confidentiality obligatithe Grantee has to the Company or an Affilidte

Grantee fails to comply with the policies and phoes of the Company or its Affiliates for protegticonfidential information, the Grantee
uses confidential information of the Company otffliates for his own benefit or gain, or the Gtae discloses or otherwise misuses
confidential information or materials of the Compan its Affiliates (except as required by appliaw); then

(1) this Award shall terminate and be cancelledati¥e as of the date on which the Grantee
entered into such activity, unless terminated oiceied sooner by operation of another term or itmmdof this Agreement, the 2013 EIP or
LTI Plan;

(2) any Shares or RSU Shares acquired and heldeb@tantee pursuant to the Award during the
Applicable Period (as defined below) may be repaseldl by the Company at a purchase price of $0:04hpee; and

3) any after-tax proceeds realized by the Grafitea the sale of Shares or RSU Shares acquirec
through the Award during the Applicable Period shalpaid by the Grantee to the Company.

(b) The term “ Applicabléeriod” shall mean the period commencing on the latehefdate of this Agreement or
the date which is one (1) year prior to the Grastemination of employment with the Company oy &ffiliate and ending on the Covenant
Termination Date.

(c) The term “ Competitiv&nterprise’ shall mean a business enterprise that engages awns or controls a
significant interest in, any entity that engagesgliie manufacture, sale or distribution of matteessr pillows or other bedding products or othe
products competitive with the Company’s productsmpetitive Enterprise shall include, but not beitéd to, the entities set forth gppendix
B Please note award agreement for each CEO, COO aadRny other employee who has an employment agrgemhich defines such term,
will, if applicable, define such term as it is defd in his or her employment agreement. hereto;hwimay be amended by the Company from
time to time upon notice to the Grantee. At anyetiilme Grantee may request in writing that the Camppaake a determination whether a
particular enterprise is a Competitive Enterprisech determination will be made within fourteen)(ddys after the receipt of sufficient




information from the Grantee about the enterpiase, the determination will be valid for a periodniriety (90) days commencing on the date
of determination.

13. Right of Set Off. By executing this Agreement, the Grantee condersisdeduction from any amounts the Company or
any Affiliate owes the Grantee from time to timethe extent of the amounts the Grantee owes thep@oy under Section 12 above, provided
that this set-off right may not be applied agaimages, salary or other amounts payable to the Eadntthe extent that the exercise of such se
off right would violate any applicable law. If ti@ompany does not recover by means of set-off tharfwount the Grantee owes the Company
calculated as set forth above, the Grantee agogasytimmediately the unpaid balance to the Compgon the Company’s demand.

14. Nature of Remedies

(a) The remedies set forth in Sections 12 and d®@hre in addition to any remedies available éo@Qompany and
its Affiliates in any non-competition, employmengnfidentiality or other agreement, and all sugit$ are cumulative. The exercise of any
rights hereunder or under any such other agreesmatitnot constitute an election of remedies.

(b) The Company shall be entitled to place a legendrgncertificate evidencing any Shares acquired wgsting o
this Award referring to the repurchase right setifan Section 12(a) above. The Company shall bésentitled to issue stop transfer
instructions to the Company’s stock transfer agettie event the Company believes that any evédatresl to in Section 12(a) has occurred or
is reasonably likely to occur.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]

In Witness Whereof, the parties have executedRbiformance Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreemerd aealed instrument as of
the date first above written.

TEMPUR SEALY INTERNATIONAL, INC

By:
Name:
Title:
GRANTEE

Grantee signature

Name of Grante



SUBSIDIARIES OF TEMPUR SEALY INTERNATIONAL, INC.

Exhibit 21.1

Entity

Tempur World, LLC

Tempur-Pedic Management, LLC
Tempur-Pedic Manufacturing, Inc.
Tempur Production USA, LLC
Tempur-Pedic Sales, Inc.
Tempur-Pedic North America, LLC
Tempur-Pedic Technologies, Inc.
Tempur-Pedic America, LLC

Tempur Sealy International Distribution, LLC
Tempur Holdings B.V.

Dan-Foam ApS

Tempur Danish Holdings ApS

Tempur Danmark P/S

Dan-Foam Acquisition ApS

Tempur UK, Ltd.

Tempur Japan Yugen Kaisha

Tempur Sealy International Limited
Tempur France SAS

Tempur Deutschland GmbH

Tempur Singapore Pte Ltd.

Tempur Benelux B.V.

Tempur Benelux Retail B.V

Tempur Australia Pty. Ltd.

Tempur Korea Limited

Sealy Corporation

Sealy Mattress Corporation

Sealy Mattress Company

Sealy Mattress Company of Puerto Rico
Ohio-Sealy Mattress Manufacturing Co.
Sealy Mattress Company of Kansas City, Inc.
Sealy Mattress Company of Illinois
Sealy Mattress Company of Albany, Inc.
Sealy of Maryland and Virginia, Inc.
Sealy of Minnesota, Inc.

Sealy, Inc.

The Ohio Mattress Company Licensing and Compon@ntsip, Inc.

Sealy Mattress Manufacturing Company, Inc.

Sealy Technology LLC

Sealy (Switzerland) Gmbh

Mattress Holdings International B.V.

Sealy Canada, Ltd.

Gestion Centurion Inc.

Sealy Mattress Company Mexico S. De R.L. De C.V.
Sealy Servicios De Mexico S.A. De C.V.

Sealy Colchones De Mexico S.A. De C.V.

Sealy Texas Management, Inc.

State or Country of Organization

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Virginia
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Netherlands
Denmark
Denmark
Denmark
Denmark

United Kingdom

Japan

United Kingdom

France
Germany
Singapore
Netherlands
Netherlands
Australia
South Korea
Delaware
Delaware
Ohio
Ohio
Georgia
Missouri
lllinois
New York
Maryland
Minnesota
Ohio
Delaware
Delaware

North Carolina

Switzerland

The Netherlands

Alberta
Quebec
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Texas



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference ifdllewing Registration Statements:

(1) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 388821) pertaining to the Tempur Sealy Internatiolme. Amended and Restated 2003 Ec
Incentive Plan,

(2) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 353966) pertaining to the Tempur Sealy Internatiolme. Amended and Restated 2003 Ec
Incentive Plan,

(3) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333:545) pertaining to the Tempur Sealy Internafioima. 2003 Equity Incentive Plan, the 2(
Employee Stock Purchase Plan, and the 2002 StotikrOplan,

(4) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 382220) pertaining to the Tempur Sealy Internafidma. 2013 Equity Incentive Plan, ¢

(5) Registration Statement (Form S-4 No. 38%063) of Tempur Sealy International, |

of our reports dated February 13, 2015, with respethe consolidated financial statements and dudleeof Tempur Sealy International, |
and Subsidiaries and the effectiveness of intaroatrol over financial reporting of Tempur Sealyelmational, Inc. and Subsidiaries, inclu
in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) of Tempur Sealyernational, Inc. and Subsidiaries for the yealeehDecember 31, 2014.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Louisville, Kentucky
February 13, 2015



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANTT O
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT RULES 13a-14(a) AND 15d-144), AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Mark Sarvary, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fRempur Sealy International, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or amgitate a material fact necessary to r
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeler which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period coverec
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material resp
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this report;

4. The registrang other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifide establishing and maintaining disclosure cdstrand procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-1
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedwe caused such disclosure controls and procediarébe designed under
supervision, to ensure that material informatiolatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhtgubsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly durihg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financeglarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggatide reliability of financial reporting and timeeparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registedisclosure controls and procedures and presémtidis report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #pstt based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegegnt's internal control over financial reportititat occurred during the registranthos
recent fiscal quarter (the registranfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrg that has materially affected, or is reasondikely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal trmhover financial reporting;

5. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | have discloség@sed on our most recent evaluation of internaltrob over financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaadmmittee of the registramst’board of directors (or persons performing theiveden:
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbmiver financial reporting which &
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that innedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrastinterna
control over financial reporting.

Date: February 13, 2015 By: /S/ MARK SARVARY
Mark Sarvary
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT T O
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT RULES 13a-14(a) AND 15d-146), AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Dale E. Williams, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fRlempur Sealy International, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or amgitate a material fact necessary to r
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeler which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period coverec
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material resp
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this report;

4. The registrang other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifide establishing and maintaining disclosure cdstrand procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-1
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedwe caused such disclosure controls and procediarébe designed under
supervision, to ensure that material informatiolatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhtgubsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly durihg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financeglarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggatide reliability of financial reporting and timeeparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registedisclosure controls and procedures and presémtidis report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #pstt based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegegnt's internal control over financial reportititat occurred during the registranthos
recent fiscal quarter (the registranfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrg that has materially affected, or is reasondikely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal trmhover financial reporting;

5. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | have discloség@sed on our most recent evaluation of internaltrob over financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaadmmittee of the registramst’board of directors (or persons performing theiveden:
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbmiver financial reporting which &
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that innedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrastinterna
control over financial reporting.

Date: February 13, 2015 By: /S/ DALE E. WILLIAMS
Dale E. Williams
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Each of the undersigned hereby certifies, purstat8 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuanettidh 906 of the Sarban€xley Act o
2002, in his capacity as an officer of Tempur Sdalgrnational, Inc. (the “Company”hat, to his knowledge, the Annual Report of
Company on Form 18- for the period ended December 31, 2012, fully pbes with the requirements of Section 13(a) ord)5¢f the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. § 78mi&n(d)) and that the information contained in steort fairly presents, in all matel
respects, the financial condition and results oérapons of the Company. This written statemenibégg furnished to the Securities .
Exchange Commission as an exhibit to such ForniK.18-signed original of this statement has beerviged to the Company and will
retained by the Company and furnished to the Séesiand Exchange Commission or its staff uponesgu

Date: February 13, 2015 /SI MARK SARVARY

Mark Sarvary
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 13, 2015 IS/ DALE E. WILLIAMS

Dale E. Williams
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office




